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Important Notice:

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee and
the Directors, members of the Supervisory Committee
and senior management of China Vanke Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) warrant that in respect of the information
contained in this report, there are no misrepresentations or
misleading statements, or material omission, and individually
and collectively accept full responsibility for the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness of the information contained in
this report.

Chairman Wang Shi, Director Yu Liang, Director Wang
Wenjin, Independent Non-executive Director Zhang
Liping, Independent Non-executive Director Hua Sheng,
Independent Non-executive Director Elizabeth Law attended
the board meeting in person. Director Qiao Shibo and
Director Chen Ying were not able to attend the board
meeting in person due to business engagements and had
authorized Independent Non-executive Director Elizabeth
Law to represent him and vote on behalf of him at the
board meeting. Director Sun Jianyi was not able to attend
the board meeting in person due to business engagements
and had authorized Director Yu Liang to represent him and
vote on behalf of him at the board meeting. Director Wei
Bin was not able to attend the board meeting in person
due to business engagements and had authorized Director
Wang Wenjin to represent him and vote on behalf of him.
Independent Non-executive Director Hai Wen was not able
to attend the board meeting in person due to business
engagements and had authorized Independent Non-

executive Director Hua Sheng to represent him and vote on
behalf of him.

The Company’s proposal on dividend distribution for the
year 2016: Based on the number of shares on the record
date for dividend distribution, a cash dividend of RMB7.9
(including tax) will be distributed for every 10 existing shares

held.

Unless otherwise specified, the currency referred to in this
report is Renminbi.

Chairman Wang Shi, Director and President Yu Liang, and
Executive Vice President and Supervisor of Finance Sun

Jia declare that the financial report contained in the annual
report is warranted to be true and complete.

This report contains forward-looking statements in relation
to subjects such as future plans, which do not constitute any
specific undertakings to investors by the Company. Investors
should beware of investment risks.

This report has been prepared in Chinese and English
respectively. In case of discrepancy, the Chinese version
shall prevail, except for the financial report prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
of which the English version shall prevail.
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Definition

BuR

Term

/NN
The Company

S8 &8 - x&E
Vanke, the Group

BRmE

Vanke Service

PEBES
CSRC

REFIT
SZSE

B 2 P
SEHK

BBRSM
HKEx

i SR
SZMC

FEEA
CRC

THES

China Resources Trade

BRI E

Evergrande Real Estate

Eh&HE
SCPG

R ERE
Chengdu Vanke

X B

Chengdu China Resources

PCER R &
Chengdu Runwan

BERE

Meaning

ERPERMNABRA A
China Vanke Co., Ltd.

ERCERMERATRENE QT
China Vanke Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries

BRI EERGRE A F
Vanke Service Co., Ltd.

TEHESEEEELES
China Securities Regulatory Commission

RYEHFR 5

Shenzhen Stock Exchange

EEBMARSHMARATE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BERXGMERAR AT
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

RN R B B PR A R
Shenzhen Metro Group Co., Ltd.

EHBRNBRAR]

China Resources Co., Limited

FEBENE S ER AT
China Resources Trade Co., Ltd.

BAMESREER AR
Evergrande Real Estate Group Limited

NN SEEERAR AR
SCPG Holdings Co., Limited

REBE RLEHE B R A A
Chengdu Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.

EHEH (KE) BRAF
China Resources Land (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.

KREBEEXAR AR
Chengdu Runwan Property Co., Ltd.
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Definition

RBITH

Skynet Action

fEAREE
Jushenghua

(RRLE)

Company Law

(BHFIE)

Securities Law

CEMARAD
Listing Rules

CGREEIEFESI)
Guidelines for Standardized
Operation

(B2 praE s LRI

Hong Kong Listing Rules

(REIER)

Articles of Association

HEH
Reporting Period

14388 T

14 Cities

4 BRERD AR A F China Vanke Co., Ltd.

AEERTIERIME - HERBOME - BmMEREETH

TE M ey ok

the Group’ arrangement of conducting random check

on purchased materials, parts and equipment in order to

maintain its high level of quality

FYITHEE R ZE R D B R A A
Shenzhen Jushenghua Co., Ltd.

(REARAMBARDE)
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

(REARAMBEESE)

Securities Law of the People's Republic of China

CRYIBEF R ZPARE AR AL
Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange

CRYINEBFR G ETARIREEERS)
Guidelines of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for
Standardized Operation

(BABERGMARARES EMHRAD
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(BRIEERNDBRARER)
Articles of Association of China Vanke Co., Ltd.

2016F1 H1HE2016F12H31H
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

NERGAEENI4ERTEEILR - Bg - R BN X
2B M B RER - BUE - R R B &

M

14 cities which are under the Company’s long term
observation, including Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Tianjin, Shenyang, Hangzhou, Nanjing,
Chengdu, Wuhan, Dongguan, Foshan, Wuxi, Suzhou

WERR G AR ARE T

Renminbi, unless otherwise specified
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For property developers in China, the market boom in 2016
was not something to be taken lightly. Sometimes, there
is not a fine line between content and disquiet. The total
sales volume in China’s real estate market reached record
high during the year. However, is this really something worth
celebrating?

One should pay attention to the fact that the heating up
of property markets in major cities is not as drastic as that
in land transactions. Property prices overtaken by land
premium has become a common phenomenon rather than
a rare case. This puts developers in a dilemma of acquiring
expensive land lots to bear operational risk in the future or
being forced out of the market due to lack of land bank.

It is for the aforementioned reasons we welcomed the
State’s introduction of specific austerity measures in certain
overheated cities in October 2016. We believe this round
of austerity measures was timely and absolutely necessary.
Allowing overheated market to moderately cool down would
undoubtedly benefit healthy enterprises that are keen on
long-term development.

“Housing is for accommodation” is a simple common
sense that we all should understand. However, learning
from lessons of most developed countries, it is almost
unavoidable for housing to be treated as an object of
investment. Particularly following waves after waves of real
estate price upsurge, we, as market participants, would
easily lose our track of objective in front of temptation. If
people could easily make money by holding assets, would
we still be able to persist with our dedication to create true
value?

All along, China Vanke has been insisting on “building
quality housing for ordinary people, developing premises
for accommodation”. We firmly believe that property
development should be back to its basics of offering houses
for accommodation. In the face of yet another state of
market euphoria, it is imperative for us to remember our

initial motive for entering the industry.

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 5



1 BRE
| To Shareholders

BRI ARZFC - EWIMERRTIA
B REPRUEEFNERMRY A
ERMEREEZREZMED

WRAMEIER - LERHERERENER
WHELEEE REEEBB_+ESF
7 EREVSA L = o BEE FT AL R L B
MER  OIMERNERAORBES L
—F [MRSABHE] ORRE - KAKAT
Re-BEHFTRERBOGERPERE
BEBRZHNIERTE - FILEARRA
iy EFERABKEHRNL T EHK
BN =ZgE=E] KABZEFNT

BEE -

RFTREHRARENEFMEERS -
BMEESE - BMEER  BYEHES
EE(E - AW ISR RS E
EOER * ZMEANE  ETR2 R
KB NTREIER - BiE—B - 4l
WIRHRAVEZTERAER ©

BPMERABRZEE - BUbib IFr6E

MER - [B8+7x | RERN - 2R
BEEZBINEHTE R~ BE
FANARTAE RO RIBIERA - UMK
MHREXBREBRNRIAZBELERRN
(TOD)BES = R A2 M A ~ EIE ™
B RNt L AT BER A MM E
PRAREBEKRAE - BAB MG 2
20205 - HEIMTHERBREERAL
BR015F I — 15 ERR/AEH™
RRERHEN G HEBAKENERE T E#

&= o
=

6 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.

We must always bear in mind that no matter whatever
changes in the external environment, providing customers
with better products and services is an utmost important

mission for Vanke as an enterprise.

According to neutral forecast and based on actual
urbanization rate measured by population with household
registration, our country has room for further urbanization
by over 20 percentage points. With the implementation
of the new urbanization strategy, nearly 200 million of
new-generation rural migrants will shed the “temporary
migrant” status of their parents, and become permanent
urban residents. Most of these new urban residents
will concentrate in developed conurbation with better
employment opportunities. Therefore, in areas with influx of
population, shortage of housing will continue in the short
term. Our offering of “Good Houses, Good Services, Good
Neighbourhood” still have promising market potential.

It is our obligation to provide new urban residents with
quality housing and ancillary services. However, faced with
rising land costs, how are we going to supply the market with
affordable residence for new urban residents? We certainly
understand that this is not a task that can be accomplished
by a single enterprise; however, this should not be an excuse
for our inactivity.

We still have ample opportunities to make capable
contribution to the aforesaid scenario. The
"Railway+Property” development model is the first direction
we should strive to adhere to. As demonstrated by the
development process of densely populated metropolises
such as Tokyo and Hong Kong, the transit-oriented urban
development model (TOD) with an emphasis on public
transportation can effectively link up surrounding towns and
megalopolises, to increase the effective supply of housing in
core conurbations, and to reduce living costs. According to
estimates by relevant authorities, by 2020, the total mileage
of urban rail transit in China is expected to nearly double the
level in 2015. This will provide a large number of new urban
households with opportunities for settling down through
home purchase at prices affordable by their income levels.
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Second, by actively participating in the development of
rental housing market, we can supply more affordable
housing to new urban residents. Rental housing is the major
tool for metropolis to resolve the housing issue of new urban
residents. Take the example of conurbations such as New
York, Tokyo and London; the proportion of rental housing is
56%, 54% and 50%, respectively. In 2016, the State Council
promulgated the “Opinions on Accelerating the Cultivation
and Development of Rental Housing Market” and the
“Proposal for Pushing Forward the Household Registration
of 100 Million Non-registered Residents in Urban Areas”,
with a key emphasis on the importance of rental housing in
resolving housing issue of urban residents. As an important
player of the real estate industry, we should definitely
respond proactively to the State policies.

In addition to housing itself, we should also notice that,
with changing consumer attitude of the younger generation
and the emergence of the internet era, there exists an
enormous demand for urban ancillary services which has yet
to be fulfilled. Emerging real estate and services in areas of
elderly service, logistics, education, resort, and new-start
business are just in their infant stage. The aggregate volume
of the aforementioned emerging businesses is equivalent
to creating another real estate sector. As evidenced by the
experience of developed countries, when the economies
become mature, the pivotal position and economic
contribution of the real estate industry in a broad sense will
not be lessened due to abundant supply; on the contrary,
it will be further strengthened by the emergence of various
derivative services.

We continue to see a promising prospect. Our abilities to
capture the aforementioned opportunities depend on our
expertise and our ability to minimise resource consumption,
in order to create maximum real value for the society. We
are grateful to be in an era of ample opportunities, and
are honoured to be able to embrace a brand new future
together with our shareholders.

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 7
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Il Corporate Information

1 BXEE: BECEROERAT 1. Company Name (Chinese): &I H B R A F]
EX %78 CHINA VANKE CO., LTD. Company Name (English): CHINA VANKE CO., LTD.

2 bt - FEURYITERHEAEY 2. Registered address:  Vanke Center, No. 33 Huanmei

IR IR 33 BRI L Road, Dameisha, Yantian District,
Shenzhen, the People's Republic
of China
IR 5% - 518083 Postal code: 518083
PAHLHE ¢ AR R T EE R oK Office address: Vanke Center, No. 33 Huanmei Road,
IRIBEEIITERA L Dameisha, Yantian District, Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China
BERFTELEME - BAERE IR Principal place of business
Fh R KB 551 in Hong Kong: 55/F, Bank of China Tower,
1 Garden Road, Hong Kong
BRR BB A48 - www.vanke.com Website address: www.vanke.com
B {548 : IR@vanke.com E-mail address: IR@vanke.com
3 AERRAEA 3. Legal representative: Wang Shi
4 KERK: EXE - KB 4. Authorised representatives: Wang Wenjin and Zhu Xu
BREEREK R Alternate authorised representative: Luk Chi Chung Peter
5- EFEEWE - ARWE KB 5. Secretary to the Board and the company secretary: Zhu Xu
B F15% : IR@vanke.com E-mail address: IR@vanke.com
REBEBEBREREK : 22 Securities Affairs Representative: Liang Jie
EF{E48 : IR@vanke.com E-mail address: IR@vanke.com
Bl AR R EE R K Contact address: Vanke Center, No. 33 Huanmei Road,
IRIGEEIITERAF L Dameisha, Yantian District, Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China
BEE + 0755-25606666 Telephone number: 0755-25606666
& : 0755-25531696 Fax number: 0755-25531696
BB RRIWE : R Assistant company secretary: Luk Chi Chung Peter
BEFEM : peterluk@vanke.com E-mail address: peterluk@vanke.com
Begeubit - FEIEERBE IR Contact Address: 55/F, Bank of China Tower,
R K E 5518 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong
EaE + 00852-23098888 Telephone number: 00852-23098888
{E& : 00852-23288097 Fax number: 00852-23288097

8 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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10.

ARCRYEE T - RRFT

AR R © BFIA
ARZ A ZE S + 000002
HARARSE Emdth : B S P

HIRAY SR GHE - BRIEE - BRIHAR

HAR IR ZE RS © 2202 ~ 299903

i REEAMRTEERA QR RBEAK
REARAHBRAER X ETiRE
BEAEFRBARHREKXH AR
AIHIHAE

HA R D B B il « BB RE %
ERBRA
BB - HEET
ERREFR1835E

BMH L7
1712-1716%

BHREHEELE - (FEE
#&>> (BHER)  (LE m%"#w
<<E ZFEM)  BEHREUKREE—
Eprgr s
BEFEREHBIR G B AL
AJ% © www.cninfo.com.cn

HR% : www.hkexnews.hk
FEREEEE  RAEFEPNE

AR RGEMERR B - 1984454
30H

B ORI

BEELHE  2014F 108228

HE R

ERAENEZH RS
440301102900139

TRAS B R0 5RAS
H557E F4403001921814905%
Bl 7% 7440300192181490%%

10.

Stock exchange on which the Company’s A shares are
listed: SZSE

Stock short name of A shares: Vanke A

Stock code of A shares: 000002

Stock exchange on which the Company’s H shares are
listed:

Stock short name of H shares: China Vanke, Vanke Hnote

Stock code of H shares: 2202, 299903t

Note: The stock short name and stock code are only applied
to the Company's H shares traded through domestic
securities companies’ trading system by the original B
shareholders of the Company after the listing of the
Company’s H shares on SEHK

H share registrar: Computershare Hong Kong Investor

Services Limited

Contact address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Centre,

Media for disclosure of information: “China Securities
Journal”, “Securities Times”, “Shanghai Securities
“Securities Daily”, CNINFO Network and an

English media in Hong Kong

News"”,

Website address for publication of the annual report:

A shares: www.cninfo.com.cn

H shares: www.hkexnews.hk

Place for annual report collection: The Office of the
Company’s Board of Directors

First registration date of the Company: 30 May 1984
Location: Shenzhen
Date of change in registration: 22 October 2014

Location: Shenzhen

Corporate legal person business registration no.:
440301102900139

Taxation registration code:
Local taxation registration code: 440300192181490
State taxation registration code: 440300192181490

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 9
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11, AR 1 192181490 11. Organisation code: 19218149-0
12. ARIHEFHE TR E AT 12. Certified public accountants engaged by the Company:
BN EEEERSFEEBSET Domestic: KPMG Huazhen (Limited Liability Partnership)
(FRERE%)
oatk - bR MR EL 15 Address: 8/F, KPMG Tower,
RAEBSEFHAESE Oriental Plaza,
1 East Chang An Avenue, Beijing
BRI G BR - BOXE Signing CPA: Fong Kwin, Chen Yongyi
BN BERE ST ENEAT Overseas: KPMG
otk - BB IREITE 1057 Address: 8th Floor, Prince’s Building,
KFKRESE 10 Chater Road,

Central, Hong Kong

13. REEFHEMEBPT 13. Legal advisor engaged by the Company

BN BRIEERMEGH Domestic: Guangdong Shujin Law Firm

ik RYITEREE Address: 12th floor, Taiping Finance Tower,
% 600155 6001 Yitian Road, Futian District, Shenzhen
REFERIAE1212

BAN - E AR BT Overseas: Paul Hastings

ik - FBTEEEBE 1R Address: 21 to 22 F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden
IR KE21~2218 Road, Hong Kong

10 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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lIl Accounting and Financial Highlights

BN AEETEETHERMYHK

3.1 Key accounting information and financial

br=p indicators for the year
Bfi : ARBTT
Unit: RMB'000
20165 W% AR R 20145
2016 2015 Fluctuation 2014
WA Revenue 228,916,100 184,317,543 24.20% 137,994,043
ES| Gross Profit 58,313,785 45,691,945 21.62% 34,634,908
R Profitfor the year 28,3505 25949438 9.25% 19,287,524
ARARRERHERFE  Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the company 21,022,606 18,119,406 16.02% 15,745,454
MeFRELNBALREFE  Net cash generated from operating activities 39,566,129 16,046,018 146.58% 41,724,820
EXERG Basic earnings per share 1.90 1.64 16.03% 143
BESRUE Diluted earnings per share 190 1.64 16.03% 143
PEEFIEENRE Net return on equity on a fuly diluted basis FHOMEESY
18.53% 18.09% Increased by 0.4 pp 17.86%
METFEENRE Net return on equity on weighted average basis HROSUEESY
19.68% 19.14% Increased by 0.54 pp 19.17%
20165% WSER  RERK FERER WUER
31 December 2016 31 December 2015 Fluctuation 31 December 2014
THEE Current assets 721,470,635 547,220,793 31.84% 465,036,865
nBRE Current liabilities 579,998,486 420,061,827 38.07% 345,654,030
TRAREELESAE Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 113,444,766 100,183,518 13.24% 88,164,570
e Share capital 11,039,152 11,051,612 0.11% 11,037,507
BER LM ARRRA Net assets per share attributable to
BRFEE equity shareholders of the company 10.28 9.08 13.22% 7.99

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 (K|
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lIl Accounting and Financial Highlights

2P FEEFEHMKERE 3.2 Quarterly Key Financial Indicators
B - \RBTT
Unit: RMB'000
5 3E 3-%F E-ZF 2R

The first quarter  The Second quarter  The Third quarter  The Fourth quarter

LN Revenue 13,709,845 57,038,990 40,280,646 117,886,619
ARARRER Net profit attributable to equity
EHE shareholders of the company 833,233 4518077 291,07 12,760,225
BEEBELN Net cash generated from operating
ReneFE activities (10,726,129) 36,523,342 17,188,682 (3,419,766)
33BANGHEAERE 3.3 Difference arising from accounting standards
of the PRC and the international standards
Bfi : \RETT
Unit: RMB'000
FRMLTAIRRNENE BRI LTAARRNFEE RS
Net profit attributable to Owners' equity attributable to
the shareholders the shareholders of the company
16% 158 20165128318 015812A318
2016 2015 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
ERAR RS E According to IFRSs 21,022,606 18,119,406 113,444,766 100,183,518
REREHE] According to the PRC accounting standards 21,022,606 18,119,406 113,444,766 100,183,518
EERHRREE Breakdown and total reconciled according
AENNARAT with IFRSs
RERHHESEY According to the IFRSs - : - _
EEiH Differences EZE N

12 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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4.1 BEE R REE DT

20165 MINEREEE R B - B EFI32
FEREL FBRATSEN—F -

RITXFBE  2EEREEHEN
BRIESE#m  KREFEMERBEE
TSN ERE — TR - EREKRE
S8 AEWHIHEKE LR (48
MEBMEE ] BRTE  EESEXIT
ERPRRES - FUFEHRAEH
RiRAERTR T K
B DEFEFR  INREHE R
R REFQBREEDE St
PEBREELE - B HEHEH
wiER  HEETENZERZER
R WRATBEE  HN2015%7A
MR EEN - SRRNKEEEREH
W B A PR B B N REEIE © 8B ik
R-ERZRRE2RES  FBRIK
REE  ARBRERERS @ F0E
B HEm - aEBH - SREIEN
RERBREELELETHSRZ -

4.1 Discussion and Analysis of Operation

2016 was a turbulent and uncommon year in the
Company'’s 32-year development history.

Looking at the industry situation, the national scale of
sales of commodity housing experienced a record high
and the market shares of large real estate enterprises
further increased. Behind all this prosperity, there were
worries about the significant growth in land prices
of popular cities. It was not uncommon that the cost
per sg.m. would be higher than the expected selling
price, eroding the long-term growth potential of the
industry. In the fourth quarter, the central government
reaffirmed the integrated use of various means such
as finance, land, taxation, investment and legislation
to improve the construction of long-term mechanism
for real estate and restore the function of housing
as residence. After the intensive implementation of
policies of curbing, the market of popular cities began
to cool down, bringing far-reaching implications to the
development of the industry. Looking at the Company
itself, the shareholding issue began in July 2015
created unprecedented uncertainties to the Company’s
operation and management in the short term. Certain
shareholders had proposed the removal of all the
directors and non-employee representative supervisors.
The share price of the Company fluctuated substantially
and it also resulted in distrust among certain customers,
suppliers, partners, financial institutions and investors.

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 13
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

In the face of challenges in internal and external
environments, the Group adhered to the principle of
“workforce stabilizing, risk control and sustainable
development”, fully played the vital role of business
partnership in maintaining stability and pushed
forward stable development of the Company’s various
businesses. In 2016, the Group realized a sales amount
of RMB364.77 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 39.5%, ranking the first in the industry in
terms of sales proceeds. Net profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB21.02
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.0%.
Net gearing ratio at the end of the year was 25.9%. Cash
in hand (including restricted cash) amounted to over
RMB87.03 billion. The new business layout in commerce,
logistic properties, ski holiday, long-term rental
apartments, education and pension developed with
the Group's centering on being an “integrated urban
service provider” since 2014 has begun to take shape. In
July 2016, the Group was listed on Fortune Global 500,
ranking 356th. During the year, the Company’s proposal
of acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares was
terminated because shareholders could not reach a
consensus. However, the Company continued to explore
the development model of “Railway + Property” with
great development potential. In January 2017, SZMC
became a significant shareholder of the Company by
way of transfer agreement, laying a solid foundation
for the implementation of the Company’s development
model of “Railway + Property”.

In this year, the central government will continue to
implement policies according to cities to prevent
market overheating and began formulating long-
term mechanisms for promotion of steady and healthy
development of the property market. It will provide a
larger room for development for enterprises with sound
operation and professional abilities for development.
Vanke has been insisting to “building quality housing
for ordinary people and building housing acceptable for
occupation”. It always advocates restoration of living
function of housing and industrial nature of real estates,
which is in line with the position of real estates set by
the central government. The Group sincerely hopes
that the shareholding issue will be resolved as soon
as possible, allowing the Group to be back on track
for normal operations and creating larger values for
shareholders and the society.



4 EZERE
IV Directors’ Report

4112016 F EE T 5 E EE

EREREETEHERD A BF
NEEREREMRE - BRFEAH
ERER  2016F2EHRIEFH
E@MB1B38EFE K HESBEA
R0 9B BT 2015 H Rl &
22.4%FN136.2% + $HE R B FE = 3
S Ed RZEAFTEZHERE
EHE@mER L D B K35.6% ¢
247%FN24.9% » FAIEWE L E%
%mé@ﬁm%%wm~%%m

EEEFTHR BEATHEBMHSE
BEDINEAHEE- BEE2015
F2016F KR KIERE - 25
MHmEEFECEBRNEBER - LA
AR ERPERMIAE T AD - AR
2015-20165F B fh £ E ik 32 #5548 18
- #EHETR  EF (BEIEH
E5A - MAEHMERE) 242014
FIRM1.55EF FKEE2016F K
BI0.93BF H K : EFE/LBEHA
2014% X 8911.518 A 48 52 220164
ER6OEA - BEAFEFEERE
A P HAETREADERER
= BEEERHARER ALK &
WHEREEBRESL BRERB
B R R HE AR B IR o

REWHBEAS BEERE 2016
FI[ BOoWMTHBKREEER
R LBHIEEBR LR - KBHR
BHRF  WREELK  DHEmHE
@ BIERTR - BB20E M ™ = &
HERZERR  BREMRE R
E-geminEE  WETXREE
BE o HBE—RIFEMAEN - BB
TR TR R IR o

4112016 Property market review

The commodity housing market in the country
continued to improve but the growth rate slowed
down in the fourth quarter. According to the data from
the National Bureau of Statistics of China, sales area
and sales amount of commodity housing in the country
in 2016 amounted to 1.38 billion sgq.m. and RMB9.9
trillion, representing an increase of 22.4% and 36.2% as
compared with that in 2015 respectively, with a record
high in the scale of sales. Of which, the sales area of
commodity housing in the country for the first three
quarters recorded year-on-year increase by 35.6%, 24.7%
and 24.9% respectively, and the year-on-year growth in
the fourth quarter was 13.4% which significantly slowed
down due to the release of policies of curbing the real
estate sector.

Despite the decline in sales of inventory, there was
still obvious variation between the overall demand and
supply in various cities. With the significant rebound in
amount of transactions in 2015 and 2016, the duration
for the market to absorb housing inventory in some
cities had been substantially shortened. For instance,
in the 14 Cities, due to the continuous increase in
transactions of commodity housing in 2015-2016, the
supply of new housing decreased, the inventory of new
housing (i.e. those area that had already obtained sales
permit but not yet sold) decreased from 155 million
sgq.m at the end of 2014 to 93 million sg.m. at the end
of 2016, while the duration for the market to absorb
housing inventory had been shortened from 11.5 months
at the end of 2014 to 6.9 months at the end of 2016.
However, with integrated assessment on the factors
such as the size in housing inventory, land supply and
future growth in population, overall housing supply in
the country was sufficient while there were no specific
changes in the variation between supply and demand
in cities and the long-term judgement of shortage as a
partial phenomenon.

Local market overheating triggered concerns over
policy. In March 2016, some cities began to tighten
mortgage policies to prevent the housing prices from
growing too fast. In order to suppress investment
demands, avoid asset bubble and prevent market
risks, before and after the National Day, over 20 cities
intensively implemented of policies of curbing the
real estate sector, including resumption of purchase
restrictions, limitation in loans, strengthening market
regulation and tightening the industry financing
channels. With the implementation of a series of
measures, the property market in popular cities cooled
down rapidly.

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016 15
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Constant overheating of land market in major
cities. The area supplied and the area transacted for
residential units in the 14 Cities (including mixed use)
grew by merely 3.4% and 8.4% respectively and the
transaction price of land increased by 34.3%, reaching
new height again. The land premium rates (the average
actual transaction price of floor area minus the average
starting price/average auction price of floor area for
land transactions) continued to increase and reached
the peak value of 110% in the third quarter.

The property development and investment across
China showed improvement from the slump in
2015 but in a slow rate. Investment in residential
property development in China was approximately
RMB6.9 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of
6.4%. Floor area of new construction of housing was
approximately 1.16 billion sg.m., representing a year-on-
year growth of 8.7%, which was 5.3 percentage points
lower than that in the first half of the year.

The operational model of developers needed
transformation. As the problem of urban housing
shortage was basically solved, the demands for real
estates was increasing diversified and the dominance
of demand for purchasing new home came to an end.
Under the situation of constant overheating of land
markets and the increasing burden of soaring land
price on stable housing price, the operational model
of developers of land acquisition, construction and
sales became more unsustainable. Amidst challenges in
traditional model, leading the urban redevelopment and
renewal projects through urban rail transit construction
and providing real estate-related services such as
property services, commercial operation, long-term
rental apartments, education and vacation and pension
businesses based on the urban ancillary needs have
been showing great potential.
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4.1.2Major work during the Reporting Period

The core businesses of the Group include property
development and property service. In recent years, the
Group strategically positions itself as an “integrated
urban service provider”, upheld the vision of “building
quality housing for ordinary people and building
housing acceptable for occupation”, actively explored
expansion in property-related business such as retail
properties and industrial properties related to the urban
ancillary services on the basis of consolidation of core
business advantages.

In 2016, the Company realized a revenue of RMB228.92
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.2%;
and profit attributable to equity shareholder of the
Company amounted to RMB21.02 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 16.0%. Basic earnings per
share amounted to RMB1.9, representing a year-on-
year increase of 16.0%. Net return on equity on a fully
diluted basis was 18.5%, representing an increase of 0.44
percentage points as compared to that in 2015.

B ARBTT

Unit: RMB'000
% EXR EXRA EET) b

Segment Revenue Cost of sales Operating profit margin*¢
E2 4] E2 4] 8 by
Amount Change Amount Change Amount Change
1. TaEg 226,939,250 24.63% 170,353,622 23.19% 20.34%  001EBENE
Core business -0.01pp
£ EpE 222,883,814 24.32% 167,034,823 22.81% 2039%  001EENE
Including: Property development 0.01pp
ESi 4,055,436 44.85% 3,318,799 45.35% 18.09%  03BEEH
Property services -0.35pp
2. EftEH 1976850 (11.35%) 28693 (26.18%) 87.34%  245EERE
Other business 245pp
ax V2EENH
Total 228,916,100 24.20% 170,602,315 23.07% 20.92% -0.21pp

it BEMNBERIECD RS S KM -

Note: The profit margin excluded taxes and surcharges.
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Revenue and profit of core business by region

BERRR
TERBRA iy
kB (AE%Tr) il (AR%TT) t il
Net profit
Revenue from attributable
Recognized core business to shareholders
area (sg.m.) Proportion (RMB'000)  Proportion (RMB'000) Proportion
AR Shanghai Region 26.04% 73,785,862 33.11% 6,982,540 31.82%
BRESL Guangshen Region 27.60% 72,289,540 32.43% 9,609,275 43.78%
T RES Beijing Region 20.16% 39,780,257 17.85% 3,255,364 14.83%
Central and
H R Western Region 26.20% 37,028,155 16.61% 2,099,522 9.57%
EH Total 20,532,922 100.00% 222,883,814 100.00% 21,946,701 100.00%
i MEHANEEBEEENMTAT Note: During the Reporting Period, the cities with projects
booked are as follows:
BEREESFEEM -~ F=Y| - @Bl Guangshen Region included Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
REBR-@IN-BH- EM Foshan, Dongguan, Qingyuan, Fuzhou, Putian, Xiamen,
ED BN KB P mE Changsha, Huizhou, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Nanning,
B« =I5 Quanzhou and Sanya;
FeseEaE EF - MmN =68 Shanghai Region included Shanghai, Hangzhou, Jiaxing,
M@ me - |EmE BT BN Nantong, Nanjing, Wuxi, Zhenjiang, Suzhou, Kunshan,
Bl BN &M 5N 51 Yangzhou, Changzhou, Xuzhou, Hefei, Wuhu, Ningbo,

P R ORM - BmE

tRREEFELER Bl RE

& R=E EH KR B

EoBL-Z0 WmERE-
oEE B BE

wh 78 BT [ 42 B 4E A AR

E - WM BEE - BHA-

BAR -

- R

==
=

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Wenzhou and Nanchang;

Beijing Region included Beijing, Tangshan,
Qinhuangdao, Tianjin, Shenyang, Taiyuan, Jinzhong,
Dalian, Anshan, Yingkou, Fushun, Changchun, Jilin,
Jinan, Qingdao and Yantai;

Central and Western Region included Chengdu,
Chongging, Wuhan, Xi'an, Zhengzhou, Guiyang,
Kunming and Urumgqi.
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1.
(1)

Quality growth in property development business
Property sales amount in 2016 reaching RMB364.77
billion

The floor area of new construction recorded a year-on-
year increase of 47.5%. In 2016, the Group's floor area
of new construction for domestic projects amounted
to 31.367 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year
increase of 47.5% and an increase of 42.6% from the
planned floor area of new construction at the beginning
of the year. The Company realized a completed floor
area of 22.372 million sg.m., representing a year-on-
year increase of 29.4% and an increase of 8.3% from the
planned floor area at the beginning of the year.

The sales amount recoded a year-on-year increase of
39.5%. In 2016, the Group realized a sales area and
sales amount of 27.654 million sgq.m. and RMB364.77
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 33.8%
and 39.5% respectively. In terms of the sales amount
of commodity housing in the country of RMB11,762.71
billion, the Group’s market shares in China in 2016
was 3.1%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.1
percentage point.

For housing products, the Company focused on
medium and small ordinary commodity housing. The
main products of the Group’'s property development
business were commodity housing and commercial
auxiliary facilities. Among the products sold in 2016,
housing, commercial office and other auxiliary facilities
accounted for 84.7%, 11.9% and 3.4% respectively.
The Group's housing products focused on residential
needs of mainstream customers, with medium and small
housing under 144 sq.m. accounting for 95%.

The Company focused on urban economic areas and
further developed existing cities. As of the end of 2016,
the Group had presence at 65 cities in Mainland China,
which were distributed at Guangshen Region with the
Pearl River Delta as the core, the Shanghai Region with
the Changjiang River Delta as the core, the Beijing
Region with the Bohai-Rim Region as the the core and
the Central and Western Region comprised of core
cities at Central and Western China. In 2016, the Group
recorded sales amount of over RMB10 billion in 14
cities, namely Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Hangzhou, Wuhan, Suzhou, Dongguan, Foshan, Nanjing,
Xi'an, Ningbo, Shenyang and Tianjin, and ranked top
three in terms of market sales in 40 cities.
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The Company paid constant attention to investment
opportunities in overseas markets. Internationalization
is the long-term development strategy of the Group
and it already entered six cities overseas, namely San
Francisco, Hong Kong, Singapore, New York, London
and Seattle as of the end of 2016, the Company. In
2016, the sales area attributable to overseas project
amounted to 36,000 sq.m., and sales income of RMB3.30
billion was contributed. Investment in overseas projects
allowed the Group to introduce excellent products and
business visions from abroad and enhance its brand
influence in overseas markets.

PTEFHEHERER Regional sales

HEME HESH
(FFHK) tF (AREBET) Lt 45

Sales area Sales amount
(sg.m.) Proportion (RMB mn) Proportion
BRI 15 Guangshen Region 6,474,538 23.41% 102,417 28.08%
EBRE Shanghai Region 7,579,463 27.41% 118,897 32.60%
1t 7 &% 33 Beijing Region 6,711,169 24.27% 79,923 21.91%

Central and

PR 7 20 [ 3 Western Region 6,852,764 24.78% 60,231 16.51%
BN Overseas 36,479 0.13% 3,300 0.90%
&3t Total 27,654,412 100.00% 364,769 100.00%
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

The area sold but not booked grew to RMB278.23
billion. In 2016, the Group realized a booked area and
booked amount of 20.533 million sq.m. and RMB222.88
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 20.5%
and 24.3% respectively. As of the end of 2016, the Group
had a total area of 22.797 million sg.m. sold but not yet
booked and the contract amount was approximately
RMB278.23 billion, representing an increase of 29.4% as
compared to that at the end of 2015. The above area
will be booked in the coming few years, laying a solid
foundation for the Group's future operating results.
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(2)

Sufficient land reserves for sustainable
development needs

The Company maintained a prudent investment
strategy and rationally replenished project
resources. The Group had 173 new projects. The
aggregate GFA attributable to the Company’s
equity holding amounted to approximately 18.922
million sq.m. while the aggregate GFA amounted
to approximately 31.573 million sq.m., with 88.3%
of new projects located in first- and second- tier
cities. Given the intensive competition in the land
market, the Group constantly explored a diversified
land acquisition model and obtained land resources
at reasonable cost through cooperation, equity
acquisition and OEM construction. In 2016,
approximately 59.5% of the new projects obtained
by the Group through cooperation. Facing the
intense competition in land market, the Group
adhered to the investment principle of keeping
expenditure within the limits of revenue. In 2016,
the Group achieved net cash inflow from operations
of RMB39.57 billion. With sufficient capital, the
Group was able to respond to market fluctuation
flexibly and actively seized potential development
opportunities.

The existing land resources satisfied the Group's
development needs in the next two years.
As of the end of 2016, the Group had 600 key
development projects in Mainland China. GFA
attributable to the Company's equity holding
of the projects under construction amounted
to approximately 36.222 million sgq.m. and the
aggregate GFA amounted approximately 54.424
million sg.m.; GFA attributable to the Company’s
equity holding of the projects under planning
amounted to approximately 36.559 million sg.m. in
total and the GFA amounted approximately 52.969
million sg.m. in total. In addition, the Company also
participated in 11 urban redevelopment projects.
According to the present planning conditions, the
planned GFA attributable to the Company's equity
holding amounted to approximately 3.605 million
sg.m. and the GFA amounted to approximately
5.447 million sg.m. in total. At present, the
demolition and relevant procedures are still in
progress.

For specific information of the Group’s new projects,

please refer to “Project investment” under the “Use
of capital not from the capital market” section.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(3) Enhancement in operating efficiency

During the Reporting Period, the Group strengthened
the segmented management to enhance operating
efficiency and achieved sound development in various
operation management areas. 1) Profitability increased.
In 2016, the Group’s return on equity on full dilution
increased by 0.44 percentage point from 2015 to 18.5%.
Gross profit margin of the Group's property business
increased by 0.01 percentage point from 2015 to 20.4%.
2) Sales proceeds further enhanced. In 2016, the Group's
average collection ratio of sales proceeds was over
95%, maintaining the leading edge in the industry. 3)
Gearing ratio remained at a low level. As at the end of
the year, the Group's net gearing ratio (interest-bearing
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents, divided by net
assets) was 25.9% (as at the end of 2015: 19.3%), which
remained at the low level in the industry.

Maintaining leading position of property services
in the industry

The Group is engaged with property services through
Vanke Service. In 2016, the revenue of the Company’s
property services business achieved RMB4.06 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 44.9%.

Quality of property services continued to enhance.
Vanke Service launched “Rui Service 3.0” and
established “Sunshine Community, Transparent
Property”, under which income received other than
property fees and expenses paid out of property fees
were disclosed to property owners. It also implemented
the “Friendly Neighborhood Scheme” to donate the
profits from “Neighborhood Mart” to the community
for equipment renewal and culture building, further
improving the brand uniqueness and reputation of
Vanke Service. During the Reporting Period, Shenzhen
Wan Rui Intelligent Technology Company Limited
controlled by Vanke Service successfully registered as a
state-level high-technology enterprise.
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Steady promotion of various business

The real estate sector entered into the silver age,
the Company adhered to the policies of synchronous
development with the municipalities, followed the urban
development trend and the increasing customer needs
to actively explore new business opportunities.

Commercial property sector

There was an extensive coordination between
commercial property and the Group's business,
therefore the commercial property segment was
indispensable for urban ancillary services. Over the
years, the Group has strived to cultivate its capabilities
in management and operation of commercial property.
During the Reporting Period, Shanghai Qibao Vanke
Mall, Ningbo 1902 Plaza, Guiyang Vanke Plaza, Beijing
Zhuzong Vanke Plaza and other large commercial
projects commenced in operation.

In 2016, through the joint acquisition platform with
certain partners, the Group acquired the equity interests
in SCPG. SCPG had solid capabilities in commercial
development and operation management, as well as
large and stable quality customer base. The strategic
investment has brought synergy for both parties.

Logistic properties

In 2016, the Group adhered to the strategy of “focusing
on major customers and key cities, and emphasizing
high-standard warehouse products” for logistic
properties to maintain stable and healthy expansion.

As of the end of 2016, the Group obtained 18 logistic
property projects, with GFA of approximately 1.47
million sq.m. in total. In 2016, the Group had 10 new
projects and the new leasable area amounted to 960,000
sq.m.
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Skiing business

As of the end of 2016, the Group had operated and
managed three skiing projects, namely Jilin Vanke
Songhua Lake Project, Qiaoshan Beidahu Project and
Beijing Shi Jinglong Project, and established the skiing
brand image of Vanke, ranking the first in the country
in terms of piste area, serving area of snow system
and number of ropeway. As at the end of 2016, Vanke
Songhua Lake Resort was officially promoted to a
national 4A tourist attractions.

Long-term rental apartments, pension and education
businesses

The Group actively explored in the long-term rental
apartment market. Currently, the Company has
established a unified external operating brand — “"BoYu".

With reference to the demand for elder care in the
cities, communities and at home, the Group further
explored the pension model. Sui Yuan Jia Shu Project
in Hangzhou, the Group's first large pension community
had over 600 residents since its commencement of
operation in 2015, and became the reception and
visiting location for G20 Summit in 2016.
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Risk control and efficiency enhancement

Creating refined quality to consolidate product
competitiveness

Adhering to the quality first principle. In 2016, the
total delivery volume of the Group amounted to 214,000
units, reaching the largest record scale. The Group
continued to promote exact survey, delivery appraisal
and other management tools, provide customers with
inspection guidance and enhanced the frequency of
“Skynet Action” to maintain good product quality. The
Group’s European Village in Guangzhou was awarded
Luban Award, the best quality award in the architecture
industry.

Enhancing construction efficiency. In 2016, the Group
continued to enhance quality and efficiency through
application of industrial technologies and reduced the
reliance on workforce and consumption of materials.
Among the new mainstream products of the Group, the
proportions of the three industrial application, namely
prefabricated components, interior wall assembling and
non-plastering of internal and external walls, amounted
to 43.5%, 100% and 100% respectively. Through
promotion and application of efficiency enhancing
technologies, 64% of the new mainstream projects of
the Group reached the target of enhancing efficiency by
20%. During the year, the Group continued to promote
the green strategy and completed 28.34 million sg.m.
of green construction, of which 13.19 million sgq.m. were
granted as the green label projects. 14 projects were
granted the three stars rating, covering area of 1.828
million sg.m.

Promotion of cost optimization. With the target of
“saving cost for customers”, the Group established
hierarchical cost adaptation systems according to the
positioning of various projects. Through technological
innovation and resource consolidation and other refined
management, the Group continued to optimized the
cost. In 2016, the Company adhered to the principles
of “lump-sum tender prices, prohibition of changes
afterwards, contract settlement at completion of
construction” and further enhanced control over
construction cost.
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(2)

Optimizing capital management and control to explore
and create financial cooperation environment

With cashflow management as the core, the Group
continued to improve capital management and control
and enhanced capital efficiency. At the end of the
Reporting Period, cash held by the Group (including
restricted cash) increased from RMB53.18 billion at
the end of 2015 to RMB87.03 billion. In addition, the
Company participated in multi-channels of innovative
financing with upstream and downstream partners
to create financial cooperation environment. During
the year, the first ABS of property supply chain in the
country for the Group's supply chain was approved by
the SZSE, and successfully issued four tranches, with a
total amount of nearly RMB6.0 billion, broadly welcomed
by various types of market investors.

Smooth transition after the implementation VAT in lieu
of business tax

In March 2016, the Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation published the “Notice on
the All-out Launch of the Pilot Program of the Reform
of Levying Value-added Tax in lieu of Business Tax".
From May 2016, real estate industry was included in
the pilot program. The Group set up a special group
for VAT in lieu of business tax to fully manage the
business operation process. Through the establishment
of business, finance and tax integration, the Company
created a VAT automatic reporting management
system to achieve informatization management model,
which allowed the Group to adapt to the adjustment
in policies in the shortest time and supported the
refined management of the Company's production
establishment system and coordination with suppliers.
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Established risk control system

In line with the revised requirements under the
Corporate Governance Code of HKEx, the Board of
the Company amended the implementation rules of
the Audit Committee, increased the risk management
functions of the Committee. The Company has set up
the Risk Management Committee and established a
three-level risk management structure for headquarter,
business units and front-line companies. It identified and
assessed major risks from the external environment and
of the Group through risk evaluation on the headquarter
and business units, and constantly monitored the
comprehensiveness, rationality and effectiveness of the
risk management system.

Establishing an informatization platform

In January 2016, the Group launched the “Reformation
Scheme” for informatization establishment to fully
enhance operating efficiency and promote constant
business growth. As of the end of 2016, the blueprint
design for the main product of core business operation
platform projects, core ERP, had entered the stage
of full development. The product “Spirit of the
craftsman” focused on project site management had
been successfully applied on the pilot companies. The
customer platform projects completed the application
of online housing purchase product “Vanke Online”,
agency sales product “Vanke Sharing”, digital case
product “Vanke Sales Master” and customer service
product “Vanke Service Master”. Meanwhile, the
Company established a unified customer database
platform to consolidate customer data in various
formats. The coordinated office projects completed
the upgrade of “Wei V", the internal communication
software, while launching the design and development
of office portals and human resources information
system.
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Improvement of business partners mechanism

In 2016, the share issue brought significant impact
to the Group’s daily operation and staff stability, and
the Group's business partnership scheme fulfilled
its vital role. Based on the persistent belief in the
Group's cultural value, the partners served as a role
model, seriously performed the duties to maintain the
Group’s normal operation. Through team building and
organization of caring activities, communication with
staff and promotion of excellent performance, the
Group effectively stabilized the team and enhanced the
morale to control the risk of staff loss.

In 2014, the Group established the co-investment
scheme to link the project performance with the
interests of staff. At the end of 2016, to further
strengthen the co-creation, co-bearing and sharing
with co-investor, the Group further improved the co-
investment scheme. Through cancellation of additional
co-investment arrangement, setting the threshold return
and excess return, the Group protected its priority in
receiving respective return from the threshold return
and encouraged co-investor to create larger value for
the Company and shareholders.

Since the establishment of co-investment scheme, the
staff further reflected the partnership concept and
purposes in terms of accelerating project turnover,
cost reduction and sales promotion. As of the end of
February 2017, the Group had 308 projects under co-
investment. The average time from obtaining the co-
invested projects to the first phase of construction to
the first phase of operation to the restoration of positive
cash flow was significantly shortened. The Group's
marketing expenses were also under effective control.
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Fulfilling social responsibilities through accurate
poverty alleviation

While striving for business growth, the Group
persistently adhered to its values and concepts, actively
fulfilled social responsibilities through concern with the
development of stakeholders and is committed to allow
more people sharing our operating results.

In 2016, the Group responded to the government’s call
to participate in accurate poverty alleviation in terms of
education, industry and employment, fully demonstrated
its professional edges and expanded the radial and
leading influence, including (1) the Company donated
for building 12 300kw photovoltaic power station for
poverty alleviation in Zhangbei county in Zhangjiakou
city and allocated all income to the needy families at
no cost to constantly provide economic income for
the poor population; (2) the Company carried out 6
school-enterprise cooperation projects with vocational
schools in Taijiang, Danzhai and Leishan in Guizhou
and Huichang in Jiangxi and Shunping and Zhangbei
in Hebei to nurture property management talents and
recruit them to Vanke. It offered 4 types of position
including property manager, property customer service,
utility maintenance and safety management, with a view
to helping the poor.

The Group constantly fulfilled social responsibilities
through Vanke Charity Fund. In 2016, Vanke Charity
Fund completed the construction and delivery
of Xinjiang Tahman Boarding School, applied all
government incentive funds of Vanke from shortlisting
as the top 500 global enterprises to the construction of
intangible cultural heritage museum in Tibet; combined
running activities with assistance to families with autistic
children, expanding the scope of assistance to 40 cities
in the country. The Group supported rural education
projects in Yunnan and Guizhou, to provide better
education for children.
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41.3.Analysis of operational and financial

condition of the company

Profit

During the Reporting Period, the Group realized profit
for the year of RMB28.35 billion, an increase of 9.3% as
compared with last year. Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company reached RMB21.02 billion,
an increase of 16.0% as compared with last year.

The gross profit margin of the Group’'s property
development business was 20.4%, an increase of 0.01
percentage point as compared with 2015. The fully
diluted return on equity was 18.5%, an increase of 0.44
percentage point as compared with 2015.

In 2016, the Group's share of profits of associates
amounted to RMB1.69 billion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 22.2%. In 2016, the Group’s share of
profits of joint ventures amounted to RMB3.24 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 220.9%.

Cash position

The Group adhered to the vision of “continuously
creating actual value based on cash flows”. During the
Reporting Period, the Group continued to accelerate
sales proceeds and enhanced capital efficiency. The
sales proceeds in the year further increased from that in

2015, exceeding 95%.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, monetary
capital held by the Group (including restricted cash)
amounted to over RMB87.03 billion, much higher than
that the interest-bearing liabilities due within one year
of RMB43.35 billion. Among the monetary capital held
by the Company at the end of the period, Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Great Britain Pounds
accounted for 89.9%, 2.5%, 7.4% and 0.15% respectively,
and the rest were Singaporean dollars.
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Liabilities

Gearing ratio

As of the end of 2016, the Group's total interest-bearing
liabilities amounted to RMB128.86 billion, accounting
for 15.5% of total assets (as of the end of 2015: 13.0%).

Financing cost

The Group maintained good long-term partnership
with various financial institutions. During the Reporting
Period, the Group fully played it capital and credit
edges and maintained the overall financing cost at a
low level. The Group’s capitalized interest expenses
amounted to RMB3.23 billion in total and the interest
expenses not capitalized amounted to RMB2.31 billion.

Analysis of interest-bearing liabilities

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group's
interest-bearing liabilities were mainly medium- and
long- term liabilities. Among the interest-bearing
liabilities, interest-bearing liabilities due within one year
amounted to RMB43.35 billion, accounting for 33.6%;
interest-bearing liabilities over one year amounted to
RMB85.51 billion, accounting for 66.4%.

By types of interest rates, among interest-bearing
liabilities, liabilities with fixed interest rates accounted
for 44.1% and liabilities with fluctuated interest rates
accounted for 55.9%. Pledged interest-bearing liabilities
amounted to RMB1.99 billion, accounting for 1.6% in the
overall interest-bearing liabilities.

By financing sources, bank borrowings, bonds payable
and other borrowings accounted for 58.6%, 24.5% and
16.9% respectively.

By locations, domestic liabilities and international
liabilities accounted for 64.6% and 35.4% respectively.
RMB liabilities and foreign currencies liabilities
accounted for 66.2% and 33.8% respectively. In 2016,
foreign currencies liabilities grew faster than that in
2015, mainly due to the Group’s international strategic
promotion and the increase in cross-border merger &
acquisition.
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Issuance of notes and credit ratings

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed
the issuance of tranche 1 and tranche 2 for 2016
Medium-Term Notes of RMB3.0 billion in total with a
tenure of five years in China’s interbank market and the
issue rate was 3.2%.

In order to fulfil development needs, the Group set
up a Medium Term Note Program of US$2.0 billion in
2013 (“Medium Term Note Program”), and renewed
the scale of the Medium Term Note Program to US$3.2
billion with authority of the Board in 2016. During the
Reporting Period, the Medium Term Note Program had
three issuances, namely 1) the 3-year fixed rate note
issue with aggregate amount of HK$3.65 billion and a
coupon rate of 2.50% in April 2016; 2) the 5-year fixed
rate note issue with aggregate amount of US$220 million
and a coupon rate of 2.95% in October 2016; 3) the
3-year fixed rate note issue with aggregate amount of
US$600 million and a coupon rate of 3.95% in December
2016. The above notes were listed on HKEx.

During the Reporting Period, Standard & Poor’s and
Fitch Ratings continued to maintain BBB+ ratings for the
Company'’s long-term credit rating. Moody’s held Baal
credit rating for the Company. Although the financial
indicators of the Group were stable, influenced by the
shareholding issue, in August 2016, Standard & Poor’s
and Moody's lowered the Group's rating to “negative”.
Ltd.,
institution in the country, also raised attention in the

China Chengxin Securities Rating Co., a rating

Company'’s changes in the shareholding.

Analysis of inventory

As the project investments and development scale
increased, the Group's inventory size increased. As of
the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s inventory
amount was RMB466.23 billion,
on-year increase of 26.9%. Of which, properties held
for development amounted to RMB136.92 billion,
accounting for 29.4%,; properties under development
amounted to RMB285.06 billion, accounting for 61.1%,
completed properties for sale amounted to RMB43.71

representing a year-

billion, accounting for 9.4%.
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During the Reporting Period, asset impairment provision
for projects amounted to RMB1.38 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 82.3%, due to the constant
adjustment of housing price and land price of certain
cities and the Group's provision for impairment of
inventories for risk items based on its prudent financial
strategy. Details are as follows:

Bl ARBT
Unit: RMB’000

FARE FRERE

Fi H® HHE ERRE ERRE
Balance of Balance of
impairment impairment
provision at  provision at
the beginning the end of
No. City Project of the year the year
1 G BESR 305,733.71 305,733.71
Yantai Haiyuntai
2 SBARE FLLAR 135,876.42 135,876.42
Urumqi Southern Hillside
3 SEARE TEARE 9,292.75 6,962.03
Urumgqi Jinyu Tixiang
4 fE ALAT 58,986.82 19,406.10
Tangshan Stratford
5 BN BEEEE 176,126.95 68,391.46
Wenzhou Longwan Garden
6 M BRI 35,593.84 -
Wuhu Dream Town
7 &0 BB 32,495.73 67,720.37
Yingkou Harbour City
8 T EILTER - 168,901.88
Zhenjiang Blue Mountain Garden
9 2R BRI - 86,988.75
Ningbo Dream Town
10 YR JIB I B - 110,479.81
Fushun The Paradiso
11 RiE SN - 114,827.99
Dalian Harbour City
12 M7 & BER - 270,633.38
Nanchong Jinrun Huafu
13 3R i REEE - 19,148.68
Nantong The Paradiso
&5 Total 754,106.22 1,375,070.58
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

After taking into account the effect on deferred taxation,
the asset impairment provision made during the
current year affected the net profit after tax during the
Reporting Period by RMB670 million and profit for the
year attributable to the shareholders of the Company by
RMB540 million.

Capital expenditure commitments

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the capital
commitments of the Group reached RMB140.94 billion,
including the construction contracts entered into or to
be executed by the Group, as well as the land contracts
signed.

Contingent liabilities

In accordance with industry practice, the Group will
provide provisional guarantee for mortgage loans
taken by purchasers of the Company's properties. The
terms of the provisional guarantee commenced on the
day the guarantee agreement becoming effective up
to the day on which the ownership certificates of the
properties purchased by the customers being obtained
and the mortgage being registered in favor of the
mortgage banks. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
the aggregate guarantees provided by the Group
for mortgage loans taken by its customers amounted
to approximately RMB111.19 billion. The Group has
not suffered any material loss due to the aforesaid
guarantees. The Group is of the view that it does not
need to make any provisions for such guarantees in the

financial statements.

Risk of fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group conducts a majority of its business
operations in the PRC.

In order to coordinate with the global developing
strategy of the Company and cross-border merger and
acquisition of real estate business in the PRC, the Group
continued to expand its foreign financing scale and
raised funds abroad in various ways.
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As the Group mainly carried out cross-border merger
and acquisition of real estate business in the PRC in the
second half of the year and the significant fluctuation
in exchange rates in Renminbi to US dollar and HK
dollar resulted in a substantial depreciation in the
same period, the Group generated an exchange loss
of approximately RMB570 million during the reporting
period.

To constantly control the risk of fluctuations in exchange
rates, the Group conducted dynamic management on
asset/liability matching, liability period and foreign
liquidity risk and adopted various hedging instruments
to cover exchange rate exposure risk. In order to limit
the risk associated with the fluctuations of exchange
rate of foreign currency loan, the Group entered into
deliverable forward (“DF") contract to hedge a foreign
currency loan of US$1.15 billion and non-deliverable
forward (“NDF"”) contract of US$325 million expired
during the Reporting Period. The change in the DF
and NDF value will not have any impact on the Group's
profit and loss for the period.

Seizures, withholding and freezing of major assets

R
e Nil.
ENBEESHER Change of key performance indicators
B - ARBTT
Unit: RMB'000
ER BHEE HP
[tem 2016-12-31 2015-12-31 Change Description
ME - BERRE 9,105,632 6,373,913 42.86% BREEEM
Property, plant and Increase in self-occupied
equipment assets
REME 12,096,846 7,609,532 58.97% WEBREMMEIEM

Investment properties

RECE N RIRER 29,777,377
Interest in associates

REENANER 31,924,611
Interest in jointly
controlled entities

Increase in acquisition of
investment properties
9,427,598 215.85% HIMREZM
Increase in outward
investment
24,075,826 32.60% HIMREE
Increase in outward
investment
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Bl ARBTR

Unit: RMB'000

HH BHEE HP

[tem 2016-12-31 2015-12-31 Change Description

HipIERBEE 17,055,019 9,642,481 76.87% FETEMZILM

Other non-current asset Increase in leasehold land
prepayment

ELEFHRBEEE 7,198,533 5,166,541 39.33%  AIEAEE IR AN

Deferred tax assets Increase in recoverable loss

B R EMEKTR 159,542,743 118,576,603 34.55%  BIEHERIEN

Trade and other Increase in transactions with

receivables cooperation partners

XRFH 7,542,103 1,432,760 426.40% FEERE LM

Pledged deposits Increase in pledged deposits
for financing

BeMBEEEEY 79,490,015 51,747,621 53.61% SHEEFIE

Cash and cash equivalents Increase in sales proceeds

RITER L ERBBER 97,287,766 59,476,955 63.57% RLEEM

Loans and borrowings Increase in borrowing

B REMENTIE 519,643,307 380,825,800 36.45% AEREREM

Trade and other payables Increase in transactions with
cooperation partners

FEf RS 31,576,557 20,013,934 57.77% HERERR

Bonds payables MTN drawdown

AtIFRBRRE 2,862,000 1,378,076 107.68% REIEFFIZ M

Other non-current liabilities Increase in long-term
payables

HtA 1,388,918 3,431,620 (59.53%) FFEBHERARD

Other net income Decrease in non-recurring
income

EEBR (7,174,595) (4,853,224) 47.83% WEREER

Administrative expenses Increase in operational scale

B (519,023) (229,477) 126.18%  FEEEEILEREM

Other operating expenses Increase in non-recurring
expenses

EEAEARNBRER 3,240,394 1,009,731 22092% AERRBEREEN

Share of profits less losses Increase in booked area of

of joint ventures joint ventures
Fiis® (21,118,491) (14,567,270) 44.97%  FEHEEEM
Income tax Increase in total profits

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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10. Operation of major subsidiaries

Bl ARST
Unit: RMB'000

NEER

BR 2016F5EEHA

2016EFHE 2016ERBEE

Total assets

016FTERBER

Net profit attheend  Major development

Company name Equity interest Revenue in 2016 in 2016 of 2016  projects in 2016

LEEEEEERAR 49.9% 8,138,492.6 1,290,197.1 35767703  LHEEEHEF

Shanghai Shuo Cheng Real Feicui Yabinli, Shanghai
Estate Limited

RENEEENEBRAT 57.4% 4,563,365.7 671,999.9 46383212 REEMAERS

Dongguan Wanhhong Real Dream Town, Humen,
Estate Co., Ltd. Dongguan

FEBHMREERERAR 70.0% 4,346,735.9 1,431,568.3 43461522 HIBER

Shanghai Junke Investment Dream Town, Shanghai
Management Co., Ltd.

IRERFHERRERATF 500% 3,101,485 484,047 3701523 SREHRE

Beijing Wanrui Real Estate Eastern Metropolis, Beijing
Development Co., Ltd.

AEEMEALERRLA 1000% 29884944 6031272 79897723 ARHHAE

Hefei Vanke Ruixiang Real Estate Forest Park Hefei
Co., Ltd.

MNEMSRHERARAA 9.6% 29637315 204,899.5 49,0513 fUMERENE

Hangzhou Vanke Jinnan Property Puyuewan, Hangzhou
Co., Ltd.

MNRHEZARAA 1000%  2,929,703.7 146,877.1 513097 HMERAEAE

Hangzhou Dongshang Property Park Avenue, Hangzhou
Co., Ltd.

AREER MNMEREERAF 51.0% 29224111 269,249.6 54405003  BHEHESERS

Henan Meijingzhizhou Real Estate Vanke Meijing Dream Town,
Development Co., Ltd. Zhengzhou

LEBZIIRHEREERAR 90.0%  289,7638 22,359.3 7896079 HERIAEMSE

Shanghai Wanzhijing Real Estate Zhangjiang West Land Lot,
Development Co., Ltd. Shanghai

EREIEEERNA 100.0% 2,827 318.7 319,951.0 27614291 ERIEF

Ningbo Wanjiang Property Co., Ltd.

Jiangdong Mansion, Ningbo
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414 Future development prospects

1.

External environment

In the short term, the market environment will still be
complicated. Segmentation between popular cities and
third- and fourth-tier cities will remain. The adjustment
in land market lags behind that in the property market.
Deleveraging process in the industry since the end of
2016 also enhanced the uncertainty in operation.

In the long term, the housing returning to the
residential nature is the trend. In December 2016, the
Central Economic Work Conference clearly proposed
the concept that "housing is built for living instead
of speculation”, and stated that it will integrate
the methods related to finance,
tax, investment and legislation and speed up the
establishment of fundamental system and long-term
mechanism in line with national conditions and adapting
to the market trend. The implementation of these
measures will provide system protection for the long-
term healthy development of the industry.

land, business

With increasing urban development and living
standard, there is large property needs that have
not been fully exploited in the area of urban service.
Taking commercial properties as example, although
the commercial property industry has entered the
adjustment period recently, digitalization and electric
development further accelerated the survival of the
fittest, the new shopping centers still maintained
rapid development with rapidly increasing purchasing
power in the first- and second- tier cities, accurate
positioning and focusing on consumption experience.
Meanwhile, the emerging business forms also bring
development opportunities. In 2016, the government
clearly proposed to accelerate the development the
rental market through implementation of supportive
policies in relation to finance, land and business tax,
cultivation of institutionalized and large-scale housing
rental enterprises. Under the strong support from
the government, the establishment of special towns
has been launched in the country. With the coming
construction peak of rail transit in the country, the
collaborative development model featuring “Railway +
Property” provided room for imagination for enterprises.
It is expected that the product types and development
models of the industry in future will increase.
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Company strategy

In 2017, the Group will adhere to the principle of
"building quality housing for ordinary people and
building housing acceptable for occupation” and the
business concept of “continuous and real value creation
on the basis of cash flow”, fully implement the strategic
positioning of being an “integrated urban services
provider” and push forward the launch of major work in
2017.

(1) Adhering to the principle of quality growth and
"customer orientation” and steady development
and the business guiding ideology of “continuous
and real value creation on the basis of cash flow"”
For products, the Group will adhere to the
customer-oriented, continue to deepen the "Quality
housing, quality services, quality community”
product concept and satisfy the real household
demands of mainstream customers to ensure more
than 90% of the mainstream project positioning.

Upholding the bottom line of quality, the Group
will promote the project efficiency, including
the continuous promotion of industrialization
construction system, proactive exploration of new
management model of business engineering.
Through quarterly implementation of”exact
survey”, “delivery appraisal” and “Skynet Action”,
a continuous improvement of product quality will
be guaranteed. In the meantime, the Company
will promote a widely application of interweaving
effective technology within the Group.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

The Group will focus on quality and efficiency
enhancement to reduce cost waste and improve
management efficiency from the dimension of
contract execution through the Three-principle
management of implementing lump sum contract,
prohibiting later supplement or amendment, and
settlement within the deadline after completion.
A comprehensive cost control system for business
expansion will be established to make the
management of business expansion more lean and
efficient. The reconstruction of core business ERP
platform will be accomplished to integrate multiple
ports information and incorporate management
rules. Management of core business will be
improved with the help of informatization.

For sales, the Group will implement the strategy
of reasonable pricing and active sales, accelerate
destocking, facilitate efficiency of resource
conversion and turnover, and in the meantime,
actively promote returns in sales with the aim of
achieving an over 95% annual money return-to-sales
ratio.

For investment, the Group will insist on the principle
of “no land hoarding, no inventory withholding and
no supreme land lot”, maintain a steady, continuous
and prudent investment, and ensure a sufficient
resource reserve for a sustainable growth in the
long run. As the gradual rationalized industry in
2017, there is a potential opportunity for mergers
and acquisitions. The Group will pay a close
attention to any cooperation opportunities in land
stock market, fully leverage our capital strengths,
enhance cooperation with all kinds of institutions
and adopt a more flexible cooperation way to
explore and revitalize quality project resources.
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In January 2017, SZMC became a substantial
shareholder of the Group, providing a sound
foundation for both parties to explore the TOD
model together. In the context of the increasingly
scarce supply of land in the core cities, the Group
will continue to work together with our partners,
actively explore the models of acquiring and
developing various types of resource such as the
"Railway + Property” model and urban industrial
upgrading model to break through the growth
bottleneck and realize sustainable development.

For financing, the Group will continue to maintain
its good market credit, further improve its
financing structure, expand financing channels and
guarantee stable development of business through
combination of investment of financing.

In 2017, the Group is expected to realise a floor
area of new construction of 29.236 million sgq.m
for existing projects, representing a decrease of
6.8% as compared with the floor area of actual
construction in 2016, it is expected to realise
a completed floor area of 24.483 million sqg.m,
representing an increase of 9.4% as compared with
actual completed scale in 2016. For details of the
Group's plan to start and complete for the project,
please see "Development of major domestic
projects in 2016 and projects to be developed in
2017".

Continue to enhance the implementation of our
strategic positioning as an “integrated urban
services provider”

The Group will adhere to its strategic positioning
as an "integrated urban services provider”, actively
expand our business coverage on the basis of a
sustained and sound operation of core business,
establish and consolidate its professional platform

of business expansion and reinforce expertise.
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The Group will improve the establishment of
M&A team and its ability, actively seek business
opportunities in relation to urban ancillary services,
acquired project resources and professional teams
required for new business development through
merger and acquisition, cooperation and other
means, give full play to the strengths of business
partnership system, effectively integrate resources
and accelerate the construction of business
ecosystem of “integrated urban services provider”.

In 2017, for the residential service sector, Vanke
Service will intensify the concept of “preserving
and adding asset value for property owners” and
enhance its brand recognition, and continuously
upgrade its product quality and asset value; and
for commercial and office properties, accelerate
the expansion of business scale leveraging on the
strength of star customers. It will provide more
intensive community services for property owners
through step-by-step establishment of a “all things
grow” ecological chain connecting traditional
residential services, commercial and office services,
value-added services for building and valued added
services for living ancillary, and continuously invest
in internet technologies to enhance efficiency and

improve customer services.

In commercial property sector, with the aim of
becoming “a first class commercial property
platform in China”, the Group will continue to
facilitate its operation capacity and returns, build an
excellent and most popular shopping center brand
and strive to became an outstanding demonstration
of community business.
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Logistic properties of the Group will also uphold
the core strategy of “focusing on major customers
and key cities, and emphasizing high-standard
warehouse products” to expand business scales
and enrich product lines with the aim of becoming
a logistic property service provider with highest
customer recognition.

In 2017, the apartment business will accelerate
its expansion, achieve business professional
management, continue to optimize the unified
business support platform with the integration
of resource management, customer resources,
business interface, operating platform and payment
system, so as to improve business efficiency and
customer experience.

For skiing resort business, we will strive to form a
strong market influence and recognition, carry our
standard output by building the Vanke Standard in
mountainous outdoor industry.

In addition, the Group will continue to deepen
its exploration in promising businesses such as
pension and education so as to build our core
competencies, improve the business model and
gradually improve our strengths.

Iterate and update business partnership
mechanism and continue to build the culture of
“striver”

Talents are the most valuable assets and core
competitiveness of Vanke. In order to maintain
excellent results in the silver age era and better
reward customers, investors and stakeholders, we
have to retain a talented team.
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The Group will continue to foster the concept of
business partnership mechanism, systematically
establish a guiding principle for Vanke business
partners and specify the direction and principle for
the design and innovation of relevant systems and
mechanism; adhere to the idea of “Co-creation,
co-bearing and sharing”, under the guidance
and support of the Board, discuss the iteration
and update of EP-Bonus Plan and co-investment
mechanism; encourage business units to explore
innovation in business partnership team model and
build a partnership model which can meet business
needs.

The Group will adopt striver-orientation in selecting,
educating and introducing strivers who can meet
the needs of business development, and build a
striver team which is strong in conviction, strict in
discipline, cooperative and have the courage to
bear responsibility.

Strengthen the construction of risk control system
and continue to improve corporate governance
The Group will implement risk control measures
with regard to major risks evaluated in the risk
management report and improve the compliance
of major areas. The Group will exert more effort
in enhancing risks awareness of business units/
regional companies, conduct risk-oriented audit
and monitoring work, improve the capability of risk
control and prevention and establish a long-term
mechanism for risk management. Also, the Group
will continue to keep in touch with investors and
improve corporate governance.
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Development of major domestic projects in 2016 and

20175 BAEGHE development plan for 2017
Efi: ThR
Unit: sq.m.
A 16% 10 BE6E 168K UEHE FHE
LR fi& B AHER RBEER RIER HIER ARIER Bt RIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA in2016 2016 end2016 endof 2016 in2017  in2017
Guangshen Region
MIELEER il V% 575 B0 51750 - - . - -
Chegongmiao Project, Futian District
Shenzhen
B TLEEE EHE 15.0% 16,370 17575 - - - - - -
Lanjiang Hillside Project  Futian District
R R0 BiR 650% 18 1999 - - - - - -
No.68 Shennan Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen
MIREE HHE 1000% 25399 30,028 - 948 20,5% - - -
Vega Villa, Shenzhen Yantian District
IS8 #HR 500% 131250 354,69 - 70320 192961 - - -
Shenzhen One City Yantian District
MIZHILER HlE 1000% 48804 21997 136,866 - - 83,101 83,101 -
Antuoshan Project, Nanshan District
Shenzhen
FBUR BlE T84% 394084 1335510 463017 37,066 37,068 496,000 496,000 162,600
Liuxiandong, Shenzhen ~ Nanshan District
MR EER HIlE 0% 68285 419,000 383,000 - - 36,000 36,000 -
Shenzhen Metro Mangrove - Nanshan District
Bay Project
HIZR i 600% 186 47200 - - - am - -
Ravine Village, Shenzhen  Baoan District
HIEED Tk 1000% 77045 26405 - B0 2407 - - -
Philiope Castle, Shenzhen  Baoan District
MIxE EEE 1000% 118132 690,219 - 353 18753 - - U9
Tianyu, Shenzhen Longgang District
UL SETE R 600% 164982 456405 - %000 21829 10479 104793 34006
Shuijing Project, Buji Longgang District

Shenzhen
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Unit: sq.m.
] 16§ 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
MINER EHE 65.0% 104876 478318 SN0 3B - SRR
Park Avenue, Shenzhen  Longgang District
FlRgEaR AEHE 000% %5438 BB 5543 - - - - -
Langai Project, Shenzhen ~ Dapeng New
District
HI=ERE EHE 0% 66600 250600 229910 - - - S
Sanguan Project, Shenzhen  Longgang District
REHILTEE ERE 80% 3982 107931 - 10793 107,931 - - -
Jiayueshan Garden, Longgang District
Shenzhen
MIEEARTE EEHNE 80% 61000 144962 - 81,702 81,702 - - 63,260
Jinyu Jiuyue Garden, Longhua New
Shenzhen District
AIEIER REHR ¥2% 039 142400 142,400 - - - - -
North Railway Station, Longhua New
Shenzhen District
MIRESRER EENE 1000% 1993 18,500 - - - 18,500 18,500 -
Yayuan School Project,  Longhua New
Shenzhen District
MIRFS B 1000% 364450 93340 - - - 93,340 - -
Dajia Island, Shenzhen Huizhou
Rila-1EE LR 1000% 1947 90 141970 - - - - -
Yuyicun Project, Shenzhen  Nanshan District
BliehzE EhE 1000% 151298 327,55 - - 327,550 - - -
Jinyu Huating, Huizhou  Huicheng District
glgns EY 3 1000% 704223 1,068,191 1,686 109941 322,964 35,454 5454 117,082
Lunas Del Mar, Huizhou  Huidong County
FE ERE 000% 59878 414759 32415 -0t 7838 71633 -
Watersity, Dongguan Tangxia Town
REmERD RARE 50% 004 3008 - - 30,084 - - -
Songhu Centre, Dongguan  Songshan Leke
District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ZEMAR e 000% 4 L% - e aw - - -
Vanke Building, Dongguan  Nancheng District
=hE HiE 00% 4954 3430 - B BT W12 W12 3141
Feilishan, Dongguan Nancheng District
FEREEA e S.0% 43851 10962 - - 108,294 - - 1332
Xiangshu Lishe, Dongguan  Nancheng District
SEMTL SHE B0% 587 215507 - 1953 21459 - - %9
Vanke Centre, Dongguan ~ Guancheng
District
RREFER gt S4% 39805 78413 - 39206 459,018 - - 9138
Dream Town, Humen, Humen Town
Dongguan
RERIER i3 B&% 200 11649 - - - - - el
Humen Garden, Dongguan Humen Town
RRERR il TA% U5 338 338 - - - - 197858
Cloud Plaza, Dongguan ~ Humen Town
BEET I LER gt 89.6% 23 13642 - - - 136,422 136,422 -
City Tailight Plaza, Humen Town
Dongguan
FRRRENAD k%8 1000% 75653 249,658 - 99,128 29,658 - - -
Chang'an Vanke Centre,  Chang'an Town
Dongguan
RREBHA R%# 69.6%  dbobb 116666 - 110843 110,883 - - 5823
Joying Gold House Chang'an Town
FREHER B 0.0% 3002 1138% - 82,216 113,856 - - -
Houjie Plaza, Dongguan ~ Houjie Town
REhHES BSE 000% 68431 150,548 - 10489 14503 - - 55
Songhu Chuangj, Liaobu Town
Dongguan
THRIE Euz B8% 21593 0% 4705 - - - - 10
Lakefront Garden, Liaobu Town
Dongguan
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Unit: sq.m.
] 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
RERIRF i 636%  3036% 52650 184069 - - 8 60 2080
Zhujiang Dongan, Machong Town
Dongguan
REDATE K §1.3% 75663 238719 161,871 - - 76,908 76,908 -
Songlang Garden, Dalang Town
Dongguan
FRLARE AELE B8% W MR W - - - - -
Golden Paradise, Dalingshan Town
Dongguan
BRI LR iR 2% A8 272318 22,318 - - - - -
Hen Lin Cheng ShiHua ~ Dongcheng
Yuan, Dongguan District
SN B bt 5136 81431 - - -8 81,431 -
Garden City, Dongguan ~ Dongcheng
District
=hERER BB 667% I3 65546 - - - 65,546 - -
Shilong Road Project, Dongcheng
Dongguan District
RERILE il 508% 99200 312175 - - - 312,175 312,175 -
Dongjiang Star, Dongguan  Nancheng District
RRYRNTHER  RUE 04% 10008 285751 - - ST BV -
Gaobu Dongcheng Central - Gaobu Town
Road Project
RERANER 8 %0% 1740 78388 - - - 78,388 78,388 -
Intersection of Dongkeng ~ Dongkeng Town
Road Project
EMEsE AZR 1000% 24052 93803 - 93,803 93,803 - - -
Fengjing Huayuan, Baiyun District
Guangzhou
RINEMERS HHE 680% 16831 52765 - 1L - - -
Guangzhou Vanke Plaza  Haizhu District
EMHEDAF020122 #EE 100.0% 7,141 30,706 30,706 - - - - -
i
Land Lot AF020122, Liwan District

Xinlongsha, Guangzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi& Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ENEABELIE H)E 895% 156555 250,488 - 126360 157,480 - - 93,008
Guangzhou Southemn Nansha District
Legend Garden
RhREZE iz 0% 20252 16172 - - 1M - - 38
Racho Sante Fe, Huadu District
Guangzhou
ENAETLE AR 500% 126941 26360t 903 82882 1169% - - WM
Guangzhou Valencia Huadu District
ENREA BuE 0% 177588 49 - 138 w9 - - -
Donghui Town, Guangzhou - Luogang District
ENREH (BR) EHE B0 109748 201463 - B 043 - - -
Donghui Town (Expanding), Luogang District
Guangzhou
EMEEEE 25k 1000% 15671 289,178 - WM D54 - - B
Golden Dream, Guangzhou  Huangpu District
EMEEEE BiR 9.10% 19293 31363 313,63 - - - - 63,884
Lingtou Project, Guangzhou Luogang District
EMZLERR FhE W% 1026 %899 10179 - - W 26 -
Hengyuangang Project, ~ Huangpu District
Guangzhou
EMEEAm 2HE 8% 103306 3020 18920 - - B B
Golden City Project, Huangpu District
Guangzhou
EMERE e 0% 26700 96700 - Lm0 - S
Guangzhou Huangpucang  Huangpu District
ENERELE EER 3% 29300 543939 29402 178514 178,514 173,895 105874 71215
Xinfuyu Garden, Guangzhou Huangpu District
EMER #EE 1000% 364851 591,662 - I 1662 - - -
European Vilage, Panyu District
Guangzhou
EienzE R 100.0% GnT 8582 - - 85,662 - - -
Jinyu Huating, Guangzhou  Haizhu District
ENERERS K& 1000% 30995 82982 - 3742 82962 - - -
Vanke Cloud Plaza, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
] 16% 10 BRI6F 168K UEHE 7R
ERZR i€ BE (HER REER MIER RIER AUIER e WIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 endof 2016 in2017  in2017
EMERFE K& B0% B0 4923 - - - - - 49,23
Guangzhou Yunkai Home ~ Tianhe District
Town
RHEHE-H R B% 0L BB T35 - - R B2 18138
Guangzhou Vanke Cloud  Tianhe District
Phase 2
BMmi Rz BRE 180% 112600 161,800 33962 - - 127,838 127,838 -
WRER
Zhongxin Knowledge Town  Huangpu District
Land Lot, Guangzhou
RN REEAER R %1% 142 3628 - - - 36,282 36,262 -
Paitan Town Liujia Village ~ Zengcheng
Project, Guangzhou District
RNARELEREE  25E BO% 51950 19875 - - - 198 1985 -
Zhucun Subdistrict Zengcheng
Shantien Village Project, ~ District
Guangzhou
FADREAEREE  EVE 3% 8120 104618 - - - 104618 104618 -
Huangge Avenue East ~ Nansha District
Project, Guangzhou City
BN mRRER AR 5Bk %8% 13750 22000 - - - 2,000 22,000 -
Donghuan Street Panyu District
Dongsheng Project,
Guangzhou City
FRER il 100.0% 1219450 2,438,901 122,645 106,808 76308 1,253,394 /K MR
Dream Town, Qingyuan ~ Qingcheng
District
FRERER i 1000%  7933% 316,002 - 15,789 28,460 - - 87,542
Vanke Huafu, Qingyuan ~~ Qingcheng
District
BIRTE HAE 27% 3094 130000 - 65,782 65,762 - - 12,660

Chengdong Garden, Foshan Nanhai District
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Unit: sq.m.
it | 16% 105 BEl6E  6ER  UETE 7
BEAR fuE Bi (HER BEER  HIEE AIER AUIER B HIERE HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
Blegrs BEE 299% 18896 793784 314636 306,609 306,609 - - 95,552
Jinyu Zhongyang, Foshan ~ Nanhai District
FIEMAR HEE 1000% 25178 146000 - - - 00 146000 -
Foshan Vanke Tower Nanhai District
s Sl HiEE 00% 4125 354404 664 50648 9,307 - - 9%8n
Respecte Chateau Plaza, ~ Nanhai District
Foshan
BuERF R 01 512 178 12,781 - - - - 178
Vanke Lake, Foshan Nanhai District
BlLsesm HEE 98.7% 10248 210,744 210,744 - - - - 137,12
Golden City, Foshan Nanhai District
illlkageil s HEE 51.0% 89009 37380 - T8 028 - - U
Jinyu International, Foshan ~ Nanhai District
Pk JEER 090% 28403 710092 - 11689 606,258 - - 68,178
Crystal City, Foshan Shunde District
BLEHRTIES EEE 00% 1324 452880 - 1686 12686 WIS IES 41613
Foshan Golden Paradise  Shunde District
Binjiang Plaza
BlLEHRE EER 1000% 43748 153000 - 73153 145,012 - - -
Binfen Xiyuan, Foshan Shunde District
FUENES BiE 8B0% 114429 5819 246038 1435 307950 - - -
Vanke Plaza, Foshan Chancheng
District
Bz BilE 1000% 3754 7763%0 L9g 013 5959 - - 10
Dream Town, Foshan Chancheng
District
lllEacE R 627% 81157 BB B,19% - - - - 11499
Golden Paradise, Foshan ~ Nanhai District
Ble@RNER HER 100.0% 1803 99125 - - - 99,125 - -
RARGERER
Hi-tech Service Zone B~ Nanhai District
Zone Central Avenue
Commercial Service
Project
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER B RIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
Blymz T8E 97.7% e 22831 - - - 28312 28312 -
City Twiight, Foshan Nanhai District
il HaE 000% 1318 6130 - - - 83 6130 -
H#ERR
Shangduhui, Nanhai, Nanhai District
Foshan
BUEREL [ 0% A6 18394 - - - 139 16304 -
Feicui Binjiang, Foshan ~ Shunde District
BlLeBEE BiE 95% 71562 298,004 - - - 298,004 298,004 -
Golden Milestone, Foshan  Chancheng
District
UhERE Bl 8% NN 15907 - - - I -
X—iER
Youyicheng Project, Chancheng
Chancheng District, District
Foshan
FAGEIE il 1000% 109917 165,107 - 55,234 165,107 - - -
Zhubin Garden, Zhuhai ~ Xiangzhou District
heeuke EiE 50% 78000 196,358 - - - 154,038 154,038 3,63
Jinyu Gangwan, Zhuhai  Xiangzhou District
HeLHaR s B0 N3 7045 - 140475 - - -
Zhuhai Golden Paradise  Xiangzhou District
FEEMI il 906% 193150 625,358 127,071 - - - - 254N
Dream Town, Zhuhai Xiangzhou District
BEB N i 000% 137061 214122 S 1088 266454 - - 7,668
Glamourous City, Zhuhai ~ Doumen District
WRERAERE File 184% 3368 05 2417 - - 268009 - -
Tangjia Hongshu East Kiangzhou District
Coast, Zhuhai
RlEERE RE# 1000% 260982 830,402 3776 121,974 7228 236,274 22128 78,657
Golden Home, Zhongshan - Dongfeng Town
PR AR 6B.0% BI85 100492 18516 101405 101605 80396

Le Bonheur, Zhongshan ~ Huoju District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fiE Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
hIEHEE RE 139% 143852 41245 ST451 107,189 107,189 216,764 197,132 76,274
The Paradiso, Zhongshan ~ Shig District
ERLE HER 1000% 9509 19710 51,995 5,924 134,159 18,330 18,330 -
Heart of Lake, Xiamen Huli District
FFEEAR HEE 1000% 1913 151,188 S Y1 - ¥ - S YK
Yunxi Project, Xiamen Huli District
EFkE2ER HER 000% 5609 18877 - - - - - -
Zhaofengjin Project, Huli District
Kiamen
IR §XE 1000% 10242 446802 - B0 A9 - - -
King Metropolis, Xiamen ~Jimei District
EFERES SXE 1000% 137,93 TI0000 183517 95847 9584 18318 140000 106,650
Vanke Plaza, Xiamen Jimei District
EFfAR%E §XE V% 44 U810 103163 - - - - B
Dongsen Project, Xiamen  Jimei District
EfzaaR RXE 0% 0159 136041 - 130 136041 - - -
Honggjan Project, Xiamen  Jimei District
EFSREMA BEE 00% 18972 517,690 - B3 - - 108776
Dream Town, Haicang Haicang District
EFzAthEER HEE 900% 136440 245592 - - - 25,592 - -
Northern District of Xiamen Huli District
Airport Project
ERn%2ER HEE 1000% 44800 70,020 - - - 70,020 - -
Wuyuan Bay Project, Huli District
Kiamen
EFENRER ER 9%.8% 8368 95000 - - - 95,000 95,000 -
Heron Hill, Xiamen Xiangan District
EFERENDE HZE 85% %% 8850 - - - 88,500 88,500 -
B-HRE
Phase 2 of Shoukai Vanke ~ Xiangan District
Bailujun Project
EISHEI - B 1% 4578 192260 - - - 192,260 124,635 -
Jinyu Binjiang Phese 2, Jinjiang City

Jinjiang
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
BISHEIH B 0% 54074 165867 - - - 165,867 - -
Jinyu Binjiang Phase 3, Jinjiang City
Jinjiang
BISHEI-H B N3% 248 71119 - - - 77,119 77,19 -
Jinyu Binjiang Phase 1, Jinjiang City
Jinjiang
FMER 2EE 600% 136741 478591 19881 160487 160,487 - - 380
Dream Town, Quanzhou  Fengze District
FNEWEERR I 00% G789 mN3 10172 - - - - -
Jinyu Zhongyang, Shishi,  Shishi City
Quanzhou
ENER Wik BA% 2606 805195 - - - WS 10000 158777
Dream Town, Zhangzhou ~ Xiangcheng
District
e EXE 1000% 16673 315711 - - 389 - - b
Jinyu Rongjun, Fuzhou  Jinan District
B SR BB 000% 16168 3759 - - W - - -
King Metropolis, Fuzhou  Cangshan District
RMEHRT RLE 9.0% 80013 415844 - - - 35,733 358,733 -
Jinyu Binjiang, Fuzhou ~ Cangshan District
RAERAEBRSL  AUE 1000% 83099 110759 - - - 079 4812 -
Vanke Jiuli Commercial  Cangshan District
Center, Fuzhou
EMEEEE BILE 1000% 53923 69400 - - 57,400 12,000 - -
Fuwan Project, Fuzhou ~ Cangshan District
BHENES AIE 1000% 9330 440828 - 133 440,828 - - -
Vanke Plaza, Fuzhou Taijiang District
EMEETR aILE 60.0% BT 128512 - - 128512 - - -
Jinyu Garden, Fuzhou Taijiang District
EMeRELD 21E 9%.5% 41761 104,156 - - - - - 104156
The Financial Heroour ~ Taijiang District

Centre, Fuzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi& BE  GMER BEER RIER AIER AMIER B HIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
BNAEERA G 0% 000 4249 80 - BM8 M6 e b4l
Dream Town, Yongtai, Yongtai County
Fuzhou
R i 0% 213602 6665 130%2 W6 9816 3055 11949 18246
The Paradiso, Fuzhou Minhou County
ENRRHEE kR 000% 4% 106392 - - - 1032 10839 -
Hang Cheng Project, Changle City
Changle, Fuzhou
BNTHEERR HEE %3% 1545 43000 - - - B0 9 -
HifER
Yanggiao New Village ~ Gulou District
Project, Gulou District,
Fuzhou
BAmE L ERGSE BlRE 100.0% 7400 5403 - - - 5403 - -
REGHR
Yangqi Road Carpark land ~ Cangshan District
lot, Cangshan District,
Fuzhou
BAMALERR £LE 1000% 401 703 - - - 37,013 - -
RESHA
Zhonggeng Town Carpark ~ Cangshan District
[and lot, Cangshan
District, Fuzhou
EMmELEREA BULE 000% 53 3 - - - 347 - -
REGHR
Juyuanzhou Carpark land ~ Cangshan District
lot, Cangshan District,
Fuzhou
ENTEILE Il %1% B8 40009 - - - 40,009 40,009 -
RELER
Feifang Mountain Project, ~ Cangshan District
Cangshan District,
Fuzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER B RIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
AT EZEARE %k 100.0% 3525 203 - - - 203 - -
BES
Kiufeng Road Carpark land  Jinan District
lot, Jinan District, Fuzhou
ROEMI #hE 800% 250708 537,219 - 1M S - - -
Dream Town, Putian Licheng District
EREMHCISR 3 836% 7840 254609 - - - - - DAY
Land Lot G, Dream Town,  Licheng District
Putian
RDENZH RitR 80.0% 40237 133,730 SIA05 144849 265,906 939,066 873,555 95,59
Glamourous City, Changsha Yuhua District
ROEHESR XAE N2% 10208 32976 101505 - 0% 9% 861% 10771
The Paradiso, Changsha ~ Furong District
ROEHRE FER 100.0% B33 1289% - - 19433 - - 312
Golden Paradise, Changsha Yuelu District
ROEHET TER 580% 58287 207,9% - 83,980 83980 113,130 113,130 -
Jinyu Binjiang, Changsha ~ Yuelu District
RORED FEE 1000% 100351 297,167 - B 97168 - - -
Heron Hill, Changsha Yuelu District
R R FER SO0% 199393 587,739 116800 102,134 102,134 298,584 211,266 70,254
Jinyu International, Yuelu District
Changsha
RYBED FER 94% 1933 30517 157535 106,437 154,084 - - 15433
Changsha Meixi County ~ Yuelu District
ROEHA R 00% 0651 489617 - - e - - -
Dream Town, Changsha ~ Kaifu District
Rb%a ROE 00% 16486 200177 - B B0 T a8 20
Zitai, Changsha Tianxin District
HEERAR REE 1000% 2555 11768 K 41,308 - - -
Vanke Building, Nanning ~ Liangging District
EE bl RERE B30% 104174 332381 - 104757 104,757 - - 15776

Glamourous City, Nanning  Liangging District
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Unit: sq.m.

A 16§ 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE

BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR

Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be

commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be

Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed

Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017

EES 21 FEE 04% TS 247% 143391 - - T a0 -
The Paradiso, Nanning ~ Liangging District

HEE i BT% 35083 1408482 31271 - -8R 29416 10487
Dream Town, Nanning Qingxiu District

HESTAA RER 5% 17729 600920 - - - 600,920 363,562 -
Jinyuzhongyang, Nanning  Liangging District

BN RER 5% M 27609 - - - 21609 107,389 -
Park Avenue, Nanning Liangging District

HEAME i Bd% %6 4634 - - - B 3 -
Macau Garden, Nanning ~ Qingxiu District

HELHRE il %0% %36 217303 - - - 217,303 101,690 -
Golden Paradise, Nanning ~ Gaoxin District

ZORNERAE it 05.0% 942745 498,469 30822 87,964 91017 85,033 3,250 23,749
Forest Holiday Part Tiandu Town

SHENE ik 05.0% 37807 39,02 - - 69,185 279,841 50,000 -
Gaozhiyuan, Sanya Tiandu Town

CEHRERAE HZE 80.0% 338410 474516 29,18 47832 172,028 209,949 150,000 -
Lakeside Holiday Park, ~ Hedong District

Sanya
RRES 3t 19,608,152 46612944 7800070 6436549 16777549 14261900 9559719 5,837,153

Guangshen Region subtotal
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
LEEH
Shanghai Region
LR LER BRIE 600% 14091 3019 7887 - B - - -
Heishang Chuang, Pudong New
Shanghai District
A2 e BRIE 600% 264846 54904 7,803 - A - -3
Golden City, Shanghai ~ Pudong New
District
LABREL BRIE 00% 1183 50860 - 80 50860 - - -
Feicui Binjiang Project, ~ Pudong New
Shanghai District
LARTAR BRIE 00% 7834 23388 - g2 112 - - 1178
Binjiang Project, Shanghai  Pudong New
District
LARIRIA BRIE 0% 798 26569 K194 5983 59863 - - 10386
Zhangjiang East Land Lot,  Pudong New
Shanghai District
LARIESA BRIE V0% AT T4 - X T4 - - -
Zhangjiang West Land Lot, Pudong New
Shanghai District
LAZAERNE BRIE 5% 1320 e e 48 460 - -
Yuhe Mansion, Shanghai  Pudong New
District
HERIEERD BENE 00% 63143 99,158 - 99,158 99,158 - - -
Zhangjiang Guochuang ~ Pudong New
Centre, Shanghai District
LhduRE BENE B4% 104360 125233 125233 - - - - 16,16
Jin Yu Lan Wan, Shanghai ~ Pudong New
District
HELEENES Gi61= 500% 48932 128586 - 12858 128,586 - - -
Vanke Plaza, Qibao, Minhang District
Shanghai
LAHIHE RiTR 0% 29476 451437 -89 36 - - -

New City Garden, Shanghai Minhang District

58 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.



4 EZERE
IV Directors’ Report

i ¥k

Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
LRIREHT L K& 00% 3217 110462 - 10k 110462 - - -
Vanke Centre, Honggiao, ~ Minhang District
Shanghai
LRIRR-E Hi7E 610% 112864 178951 - nW 1789 - - -
Shiyi District, Honggiao, ~ Minhang District
Shanghai
HEER i1 00% 210615 501,833 - 163439 43,313 - - 58,520
Dream Town, Shanghai ~ Minhang District
LAREEHT L HER 0% 107486 493447 - - 10598 B0 8RO 5BEN
Vanke Centre, Xuhui, Xuhui District
Shanghai
Lagsal L 1% B 9 - BB 31 - - 5%
Zhao Lane at the Mountain, Qingpu District
Shanghai
HEERES HIR 02 5943 80,08 - 1383 13832 - - 36,254
Yunjianchuang, Shanghai  Songjiang District
HERRER ZER 170% 4390  877%2 - 3,755 34,795 - - 47315
Southbridge Legend, Fengxian District
Shanghai
LEeHER 22E BI% BB 13462 13434 - - - - 1362
Golden Paradise South  Fengxian District
Bridge, Shanghai
LEREHEER ETR T45% 633891 633691 123,346 62911 233,550 276,995 4972 123346
Anting New Town Project,  Jiading District
Shanghai
HERE AR FRE 98% 20119 455248 40,170 - - 45017 115,128 -
Skycity Project, Shanghai ~ Qingpu District
LRERRENAR B%E 0% MW 1N S ATV AT - - -
Emerald Albany Project,  Jing'an District
Shanghai
LARERER B%E 01 30 10975 - - - IW 6998 -
Zhongxing Road Project,  Jing'an District
Shanghai
HREHES ARE 50% 990 218,650 - - 218,650 - - -
The Paradiso, Nantong ~ Gangzha District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
BRLRE il 88.6% 65009 154,170 B8 T3 73,29 - - M
Park Avenue, Nantong ~ Gangzha District
HEEAES e 000% 37T 139550 - MM IR0 - - -
Heohe Chuangj, Nantong  Chongchuan
District
HRLHER e 6B8% 1940 4390 118 - - 108812 108812 79271
King Metropolis, Nantong  Chongchuan
District
HETLHRIAR ERE Bl 19182 19U 33340 - - 16060 128209 -
Shibei Hi-tech Park Project, Gangzha District
Nantong
HREnES ATE 000% 235 2m 1040 - - - -5
Anpin Huanshe, Nanjing  Baixia District
HReHEE 1EE 1000% 21229 545280 - 30574 545,280 - - -
The Paradiso, Nanjing~ Jiangning District
HigE 15E 0% 03 07205 - 73,589 73,569 33,685 33,685 -
Metropolis, Nanjing Jiangning District
ARERLE 18R O1%  MeM 600 837 - - 1,708 1708 949y
Feicui Park, Nanjing Jiangning District
HREEF OB 1000% 62291 102127 - - 102127 - - -
Golden Hill, Nanjing Pukou District
sl O 600% 122645 168426 87369 61623 61,623 - - 106,803
Puyue Mountain, Nanjing  Pukou District
ARNEE Hize 800% 126058 37203 5040 11936 3% A9 AR %I
Jiuduhui, Nanjing Yuhuatai District
HRiA#E Hize 00% S8 136 08 43 M3 U0 LU0 9683
Shangduhui, Nanjing Yuhuatai District
HRNBER HiER 88% 4400 10893 108,934 - - - - -
Site south to Vanke Yuhuatai District
Jiuduhui Project, Nanjing
RRHHER HiLER 0% T3 3% 7620 - - %R 9% -

Shangduhui South End Yuhuatai District
Project
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Unit: sq.m.
A 16§ 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
B 2% 1EE 94%  B/eA 132000 26,341 - - 105,659 105,659 26,341
City Twiight, Nanjing Jiangning District
EEYEEE 2R 509% B30 7399 - - - 73992 73992 -
IRER
Site south to Vanke Jiuduhui Jiangning District
Project, Nanjing
RARNEELERE  IEE 000% 66267 13134 - - - B 1313 -
BSRER
Chunhua Commercial Jiangning District
Street Land Lot B Project,
Gaoxinyuan, Nanjing
BTN BN 1000% 795,100 942820 118,294 81,781 703,037 81,23 3785 11113
Glamourous City, Zhenjiang Runzhou District
BIENTE ENE 800% 285683 41628 39,45 30423 149,604 216922 201,006 13,395
Blue Mountain Garden,  Runzhou District
Zhenjiang
EEES ] BKE 695% 218794 525400 132,349 64,963 64,963 217692 97,944 108,148
Dream City, Nanjing Lishui District
BNRRRE IZEE 1000% 104486 179,075 - 85,388 179,075 - - -
Nimble East District, Industrial District
Suzhou
EMinde RiTE 50% 8908 8320 - 21,1% 83,220 - - -
New Metropolis, Suzhou  Gaoxin District
Blepse 28R 090% 903 477R - 77,299 47,73 - - -
Golden Milestone, Suzhou  Jinchang District
M ER RER 50% 144535 361,338 40778 31467 235,699 53,03 53,035 17
Dream Town, Suzhou Wuzhong District
FhHRRE RTE %3% 1296 2056 705 - - - - B
Huxi Emerald, Suzhou Wuzhong District
T2 RN 5 B0 80U 189677 - 0% 126309 - - 8%
Jinyu Pingjiang, Suzhou  Gusu District
give)e B 1000% 138601 415,804 138,434 61,007 107,656 - - 48,049
VIC Small Town, Suzhou  Xiangcheng
District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
EMERL BHE W% 167206 234059 234,059 - - - - 98,919
Yu Jian Shan, Suzhou Gaoxin District
HNENEHEER RIE 0o T8 99 1391 - - - - -
Vanke Country Garden ~ Wujiang District
Project, Suzhou
gNAER FIE 00% 173783 359337 261,363 - - 97,974 97,974 -
Park Avenue, Suzhou Wujiang District
ENRLRIE RHE 51% 79200 15715 - - 2046 13,669 13,669 -
Dongshan Villa, Suzhou  Wuzhong District
EMEsER IZEE BI% 59 30,948 - - - 30948 30948 -
Qingjian Lake Project, ~ Industrial District
Suzhou
FMRLICRR ik 8% 1410 193684 - - S Y ) -
North Yangshan Project, ~ High-tech District
Suzhou
RIRERE B 100% 383117 451293 16415 - - 404,878 382,862 -
Park Avenue, Kunshan Zhou Shi Town
ELBEER #EH 9%3% 163930 246067 - - - 246,067 164,257 -
Jini Project, Kunshan ~—Jinxi Town
A DS e 1000% 433916 327,891 - - - 249,208 - -
Gold Project, Kunshan -~ Bacheng Town
BLENE ERREE 920% 30927 713042 158,098 138,201 395,118 54,170 54170 111,978
Glamorous Garden, Huagjiao
Kunshan Development
District
FHAZER XfthE 0% 8469 19792 64,190 - - - - 42904
Gongwang Project, Cultural District
Changshu
BREN2H EHE 600% 962116 1346963 13,731 26369 1,208,606 55,854 - 439
Glamorous City, Wuxi Binhu District
RhTHES BiE 1000% 15448 38610 11 - Nea 1037 16,468 -
The Paradiso, Wuxi Binhu District
BHfE il 000% 154119 35299 Ted2 8452 92830 454 18I0 3956

Xincheng Road, Wuxi Binhu District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi& BE  GMER BEER RIER AIER AMIER B HIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
EEESEMISER ER 74.0% 582 145,091 145,091 - - - - 88,010
No.4 Zhouxin Old Street  Binhu District
Project
ERLIRE HRE 000% 2418 60713 27030 758 0807 0% 49483 -
Golden Paradise, Wuxi ~ Xinwu District
BREE HRE 836% 18208 24318 - 23,001 23,01 - - 1377
Runyuan, Wuxi Nanchang District
EHEHIAEE fixE B 39 138581 5,344 - - B e -
Meicun Land Lot, Wuxi Xinwu District
EHER REE 1000% 9399 234983 40,682 88,639 88,639 83614 45931 37,607
Dream Town, Changzhou ~ Wujin District
HNER ik 650% 971 313910 -1 31390 - - -
Dream Town, Yangzhou  Hanjiang District
aeegE FiIE 039% 87135 215850 117,089 97,461 97 461 - - 118389
Golden Dream, Yengzhou  Hanjiang District
BNEHERE i N3% T840 0749 107449 - - - - R
Vanke Feichui Yunshan, ~ Hanjiang District
Yangzhou
aMENERRR TIE 89% 46927 78200 78,200 - - - - 60,608
Vanke Feichui Xi'an, Hanjiang District
Yangzhou
RMER #ER 1000% 692037 1,351,698 28901 249616 526,263 260,806 160,000 336,639
Dream Town, Xuzhou Gulou District
HMERRS RUE 0% 2676 81854 8799 14026 19905 222400 222400 239,560
Huaihai Paradiso, Xuzhou  Quanshan District
BHERRS HER 8o% 28149 95707 95,707 - - - - 95,707
Bei Chen Tian Di, Xuzhou  Gulou District
BRI @R 2% 61005 87,108 87,108 - - - - 87,108
FEE
Puyue Mountain, Xuzhou  Economic &
Technological
Development
Zone
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Unit: sq.m.

RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE

LEE fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR

Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be

commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be

Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed

Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017

HELRES ZHE B0% %34T 186076 - - - 1806 T4 -
Tong Shan Road, Xuzhou ~ Yunlong District

HHEHER e Wie s 806 - - SRR B /A7 -
Yu Dai Road, Xuzhou Tongshan District

NERBHAAR RIE 0% 5100 19313 - - - 19313 193,135 -

Huadong Machinery Plant - Quanshan District

Project, Xuzhou
MR A R 1000% 3708146 231628 14759 16730 139710 380,301 123391 260210
Liangzhu Cultural Village,  Yuhang District

Hangzhou

MR x 0B 00% 115683 293409 S 16083 293409 - - -
Beichenzhiguang, Yuhang District

Hangzhou

PNRATERARE  AWE 8% 56206 140715 - 34 93,449 - -

Hangzhou Liangzhu Culture Yuhang District
Village Future Town

iR Hiie 9% NS WS - - - - - e
ARAZH

Hangzhou Liangzhu Culture Yuhang District
Village Future Town

Phase 2
NEnES 31 86% 2760 43520 43520 - - - - 43520
Hangzhou Xingkong Yuhang District
NEMTR -5 iR 86% 38333 8433 84,333 - - - - 68,286
Hangzhou Hangchen Yuhang District

Phase |
NEREE #iE 4% BT 10315 103157 - - - - -
Vanke Xiwang, Hangzhou  Yuhang District
NEE=H Bl #3% 30403 60806 - - - - - 60,806
Hangzhou West Court ~ Xihu District

Phase 2
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
LEE fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
INER il I57% 58867 99T - - - - - 29
Hangzhou Yuguan Xihu District
HER =S e 0% A a8 - - - - -
Hangzhou Yuquan Phase 2 Xihu District
HREAE T8E 000% 68564 150841 - 108 150841 - - -
Park Avenue, Hangzhou  Jianggan District
ik xaess THE 00% 21915 76703 - - - - - -
Hangzhou Metropolis Jianggan District
No.79
THERAFEER THE 00% 51945 135087 - - - - - -
Vanke Dajia Qiantang Jianggan District
Mansion, Hangzhou
MERRAAE ki B1% 9413 95061 95,061 - - - - -
Central Park, Hangzhou  Jianggan District
HE BIE W% o521 166204 - 16 16620 - - -
Puyuewan, Hangzhou Binjiang District
i ERzx AR 00% 6145 188790 - - - - - 18919
Hangzhou Brilliant Splendor Xiaoshan District
Mt % BLE 00% 18505 24409 - - - - - MM
Shijizhiguang, Hangzhou  Xiaoshan District
AR LA BlE BO% T WS 139 - - - - -
Hai Shang Ming Yue, Kiaoshan District
Hangzhou
N L 1000% 517900 208981 - - 97,005 94,241 69,365 8523
Gongwang Hangzhou Fuyang District
AEZAD L 00 129874 164845 - - - 93513 - -
Junwang A+D, Hangzhou  Fuyang District
MZEEZB+C EhE 00% 138233 152,231 - - - 12373 - -
Junwang B+C, Hangzhou  Fuyang District
R =4 B %% BB W6 619 - - - - -
Hangchen Phase 2, Yuhang District
Hangzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
M RAIE AR RIE 7% 82834 18223 182,235 - - - - -
AL
Liangzhu Culture Vilage ~ Yuhang District
Future Town North
Project, Hangzhou
MRAR(H FiE B3 1857 1334% - - - 1B 13349 -
tERIAEE
Liangzhu Culture Vilage  Yuhang District
Qixiangiao Project,
Hangzhou
MRz =4 AR B4% R B3 83,354 - - - - 67,593
Beichenzhiguang Phase 3, Yuhang District
Hangzhou
b i 000% 2305 68283 - - - B% 6823 -
Hangxing Road Commercial Yuhang District
and Office Project,
Hangzhou
AZEEHTL B 0% TaM8 287960 - - KU 1850 - -
Huanglong Vanke Center,  Xihu District
Hangzhou
NERE i 99.6% 62200 174132 - - - 174132 174132 -
Seattle, Hangzhou Xihu District
Mg AR AR 1% N2 46665 - - - 46,665 16,665 -
WIRER

Hai Shang Ming Yue Xi Di~ Xiaoshan District

Kuai Project, Hangzhou
MNEMERTEN E I 8% 80340 200848 200,848 - - - - -
Vanke Tie Jian Jiang Wan ~ Xiaoshan Disrict

Cheng, Hangzhou

MRER HER 08% 4295 10323 103,238 - - - - 8
Park Avenue, Hangzhou  Gongshu District
MHXEAEER HER 1000% 14513 5079 - - - 50,79 50,79 -

Tian Ma Apartment Project, Gongshu District
Hangzhou
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RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
BR%H fiE Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ngde L 7% 0063 66,139 66,139 - - - - -
Jiuduhui, Hangzhou Fuyang District
AR R #iE 000% 81828 245084 - - - MW M -
Wei Lai Zhi Guang, Yuhang District
Hangzhou
NERHAE1958 THE B2 WA 6118 61193 - - - - -
New Metropolis 1958, Xiacheng District
Hangzhou
BERSR AERAE 8% 4260 11345 134D - - - - -
Yue Zhong Huan, Jiaxing  Economic and
Technological
Development
Zone
ERYIRER HER%E 1000% 37911 83,404 - - - 83,404 83404 -
Cheng Bei Road Project, ~ Economic and
Jiaxing Technological
Development
Zone
FELERR e 000% 8528 137495 - 18 1345 - - -
Golden Paradise, Jiaxing ~ Xiuzhou District
FRZERE FE 1000% 80987 144699 - -0 74,938 - -
Golden Dream, Jiaxing~ Xiuzhou District
RERH FhE 84% 457 3968 - 39,685 39,685 - - -
Jiaxing Wuyue Xiuzhou District
FEGLES ffErRaE 1000% 31945 66,904 - 66,904 66,904 - - -
Haishang Chuangj, Jiaxing  Economic
Development
Zone
REELFE HER%E 899% 5100 60200 - 60,200 60,200 - - -
Jiaxing Cruise Home Town  Economic
Development
Zone
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Unit: sq.m.
it | 16% 108 BE16E  6ER  UEHE 7
BEAR fuE Bi (HER BEER  HIEE AIER AUIER B WIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced  Completed  completion ~construction ~ commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end2016 end of 2016 in2017  in2017
EREEE TitE §0% 314208 387,96 45,803 - 233460 - - 1039%3
Yunluwan, Ningbo Jiangbei District
EReHER ge 0% 43752 100630 - 00630 100,630 - - -
Legend On Midtown, Yinzhou District
Ningbo
ERTER giE 622 BT 9126 - - - - -
Jiangwanfu, Ningbo Yinzhou District
ERIER-_8 R 00% 2787 4793 47931 - - - - -
Jiangwanfu Phase 2, Ningbo Yinzhou District
EHER A B7% 30804 7390 - - - - - 73930
Zhonghe Project, Ningbo ~ Yinzhou District
ERER bl 90% M52 6189% - B Kl 47892 - 847
Dream Town, Ningbo Zhenhai District
ERIRN T5R 1000% 66833 133666 - 133666 133,666 - - -
Jiangdong Mansion, Jiangdong District
Ningbo
ERLNRE EEil 1000% 48004 105,609 - 105,609 105,609 - - -
Park Avenue, Ningbo Gaoxin District
ERNRE-H BHE 08% 0% 68181 - - - - - 68,181
Park Avenue Phase 2, Gaoxin District
Ningbo
ERBNEE IR 472% 09,774 139,548 139,548 - - - - -
Ming Zhong Jia Di, Ningbo  Yinzhou District
ERKEDER ge 08% W9 79880 79,880 - - - - 79880
Yiyun County Project, Yinzhou District
Ningbo
ERREMER gie 93% W3 AT 214 - - - R RN
Donggjan Lake Project, ~ Yinzhou District
Ningbo
ERAZIFER ge B3% 539 108254 - - - 1084 1082 -

East Yinxiang City, Ningbo  Yinzhou District
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER B HIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ERFEHAR 1 911% 138665 140052 - - - 140,052 140,052 -
LsF2R
Baishixianping, Donggian ~ Yinzhou District
Lake Project, Ningbo
ERR-92 EHE 1% 488 80659 80,659 - - - - -
Tian Yi Jiu Zhu, Ningbo~~ Gaoxin District
EREH1902 EHE 47.6% 7338 126144 126,144 - - - - -
Dong Cheng 1902, Ningbo ~ Gaoxin District
ERZELI0RLR e 8% 029 48263 - - S VX VX -
Yunluwan Lend Lot 10, Jiangbei District
Ningbo
ERRBER HEE 6% 04T 4040 - - - 0M M -
Zhongshan Road Project, ~ Haishu District
Ningbo
ERmEEER el 7% 20000 40000 - - - 40,000 40,000 -
T
East Tongxin Lake project,  Zhenhai District
South Vanke City,
Zhenhai, Ningbo
ENEELE BEE o00% 125219 179733 - - 19 - - -
Longwan Garden, Wenzhou  Longwan District
BHeHES EER 1000% 45864 128400 - 128400 126,400 - - -
Legend On Midtown, Longwan District
Wenzhou
BEHEETR Bk 600% 53765 144939 - S R - - -
Jinyuzhongyang, Wenzhou  Ouhai District
L BHE B0 133 RIS R - - - - RIs
City Twiight, Wenzhou  Lucheng District
SRR EiE 01.5% 36,081 79,833 79,833 - - - - 79,833
T Xueyuan Road, Wenzhou  Lucheng District
BRI EiE 4% A07 96068 96,008 - - - - -
Land Lot Hongdian, Lucheng District
Wenzhou
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
EHERRD EiE 32.0% 5819 18037 - - - - - 18,037
Shi Dai Center, Wenzhou  Lucheng District
EMHRE 2 03% 5148 1132 - - - 1N 11320 -
Qidu Project, Wenzhou  Lucheng District
EHEERLER H8E J0% 1843 18307 - - - 183,057 183,057 -
ATEE
Ouhai Central Unit A-07  Quhai District
Project, Wenzhou
AL HER 5UE 500% 115628 412,101 - B 412001 - - -
King Metropolis, Hefei ~ Shushan District
AEEM EAE 000% 10720 375272 S KLY ] - - -
Dream Town, Hefei Binhu District
AEEWTE EHE 0% 165584 46363 33 e 39M - - T
Blue Mountain Garden,  Binhu District
Hefei
AEAHAR ERE 1000% 516459 1394439 188,780 311,616 529,321 412,749 121816 248919
Forest Park, Hefei Luyang District
alEnm 2k iRE N 7 X T O N 1 T O I
Hefei City Twilight Luyang District
AEER R EHE 00% 8554 21801 183,093 - - 391 3921 19,015
Shidaizhiguang, Hefal Binhu District
AERIREER ExE 598% 197179 433,794 - - - 13379 95,53 -
Zhangjiang Road East, Hefai Feidong County
AIELsAR e 0% 22512 410507 - - - MOS89 -
Beicheng Project, Hefai  Beicheng New
District
BiE BIE 1000% 274404 493926 125119 4395 322,168 47,195 47,195 36,543
Dream Town, Wuhu Jiujiang District
BAsLES {IE BS% 8% a2 68y 88233 8823 11200 112009 104471
Haishang Chuangj, Wuhu  Yijiang District
EENER BliE W% 10163 176,20 101,305 - - - - A%
Park Avenue, Nanchang ~ Qingshan Lake
District
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k] 165 168 BEIE 168K 17EHE  17EHE

BR%H fiE Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
REENA BifE 5% 99708 417302 -9 BB KN3B3 63
Dream Town, Nanchang ~ Gaoxin District
HEELER RTE 00% 163213 35580 -0 BIM B B 88
Haishang Chuangj, Gaoxin District
Nanchang
HERLE R £ 00% 8010 184273 - - 152 - - BW
Cuidieyuan, Nanchang ~ Honggutan
District
HEERES HEEY 1 00% 83800 293400 - TME 114571 B9 M9 SBEM
Nanchang Times Square ~ Hongguten
District
RENEEE FERR U8 VL9 W A3 - - B BRY -
Nanchang Hongdu Qingyunpu
District
RELHER BRE B8 902 38N MM B0 K0 420 - 195
Jinyu International, Economic and
Nanchang Technological
Development
Zone
HESHEL llkE 162% 20009 0172 50,172 - - - - -
Golden Paradise Binjiang, ~ Qingshanhu
Nanchang District
HEZHER HRE B0% G705 17414 17414 - - - - B
Legend on Midtown, Economic and
Nanchang Technological
Development
Zone
BERMILE R 5% 78733 19683 195,450 - - 1382 1,382 -
City Garden, Nanchang ~ Nanchang County
IEERINER 2ER 9% 1615 201918 - - - WM A0118 -
Wanli 174 Project, Wanli District
Nanchang
LEEH N 23,105,688 40902793 8248002 5641955 16905992 9,541,855 6,101,598 6,672,479

Shanghai Region subtotal
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
LEE fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
Y3ES
Beijing Region
FRIECH ebid 0% 8509 197813 90425 39670 81,217 - - 15,276
Ruyuan C1, Beijing Haidian District
FriEES iy 000% 0680 6204 - - - M e -
Daoxianghu Project, Beijing Haidian District
kRAHE Ll 100.0% 5309 36465 - - 36,465 - - -
The Metropolis, Beijing ~ Chaoyang District
KRS FHE 00% 4103 1430 - - AR - - -
No. 77 Beihe Yanjia, Beijing Dongcheng
District
L ATENR 4R 150% 233209 69170 - 184440 230,294 133,937 - 2809%
Kihuafu, Befjing Fengtai District
EROEE0M0 BE 0% 88767 210738 6370 166,360 166,360 11,805 11,805 8445
014015017~
019554858
Land Lots 010, 014,015, Tongzhou District
017,019 Park Avenue,
Beijing
FRARBO0TSAR el H0% 65T 122483 - - - - - 83,850
Land Lot 007 Park, Beijing  Tongzhou District
FROER05 ifl 00% 61717 1459 97455 - - - - -
008 ~ 00933858
Land Lot 005,008,009 Park ~ Tongzhou District
Avenue, Beijing
FRAM0ER MR 20% 144005 258,968 - - - 258,968 147,735 -
Taihu 020 Project, Befiing ~ Tongzhou District
FreRERS =¥E 00% 178908 485,234 - - - - -
Jinyu Vanke City, Bejing ~ Changping
District
FrREHER EYE 00% 198007 SW24 121289 MIM3 53424 - - 00
King Metropolis, Beijing ~ Changping
District
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
LEE fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
IRt 5EE R H2% 25088 430900 181,508 - - 29,39 1,286 114852
Qijia North Project, Befjing - Changping
District
FrRE+E FULE 00% 431179 859,08 - A% 825 - - 1B
Changyang Bandao, Bejing Fangshan District
IREEFE FlE 500% 61567 157984 - 6,354 157,984 - - -
Yunwan Jiayuan, Beijing  Fangshan District
FRERE BlE 80% 71912 141,665 - 299 137,711 3,888 - -
Xingfuhui, Beijing Fangshan District
frehgs FILE 00% 5% 15699 - - 156,993 - - -
Golden Paradise, Beijing  Fangshan District
TREBRA BUE 69.0% 112673 208351 1942 34,401 34,401 - - 62,428
Changyang Tiand, Beijing ~ Fangshan District
IRRETE PR FlE 0% 63950 156,384 91,731 - - 8,659 - 10866
Changyang Bandao, Fangshan District
Beijing CBD
LRAER rER 500% 61651 173205 - 65,153 171,470 - - 1,745
Spring Dew Mansion, Daxing District
Beijing
TREHFD rER 500% 57826 144564 - 105557 128,100 - - -
Eastern Metropolis, Beijing  Daxing District
TREHE fEE 00% 4348 1507 - ST 15207 - - -
Vanke Cheng, Beijing Daxing District
FRERERRL rEE 00% 40 129 - - - - -5
Shoukai Vanke Centre, ~ Daxing District
Beijing
LRREENHL lE5E 9.0% BN 44191 - 1,191 46,191 - - -
Beijing Tianzu Vanke Shunyi District
Center
IREELER E2E H0% 187830 170568 139,599 971 9711 - - 17493
Gaoliying Project Beijing ~ Shunyi District
LREA12 ENg 500% 168245 261,868 74,295 - - - - 1B

Beijing Xianghe 2012

Xianghe County
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RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
LEE fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
TRTERIR V& 500% 68944 240,089 240,089 - - - - 62,576
Beijing Qiliqu Lot Changping
District
FR8EEER lk5E 96% 293 4200 41,200 - - - - 40,801
Beijing Street 28 Project  Shuny District
FrEMRY rEE 4% 4000 1435 14438 - - - - B
Beijing Vanke City Daxing District
KREEEM {4 00% 1617 232,564 49,81 - 69872 51,960 12,502 -
Construction Dream Town,  Yancing District
Beijing
LRFBEER FIEAR 98 0581 25082 79,588 - - 172,494 172,494 24,104
Mentougou Project, Beijing Mentougou
District
A3 AEE L 00% 16782 51895 - - - - - -
Beixiaoying Project, Beijing  Chaoyang District
FRTHREE L] 82.5% 9847 31,506 - - - 31,506 31,506 -
L
Chaoyang Xidan Shopping ~ Chaoyang District
Mall Project, Beijing
TRERLS ichid 00% 17630 52889 - - - 52,889 52,889 -
003138872 8
Heidian North 0031 Land ~ Haidlan District
Lot, Beijing
trERKE0ER SRR 1000% 83550 138825 - - - IRES 1385 -

Haidian Yongfeng 0062 Haidian District

Project, Beijing
FRERAE0ER  BRE 00% 8585 16260 - - - lefu 16280 -
Haidian Yongfeng 0132 Haidan District

Project, Beijing

FREERA #2E 00% 400486 384,881 - 950 95301 28279 - -
Miyun Project, Beijing Miyun District
IRETCFEE EYE 16.0% 08,834 173813 - 173813 173813 - - -

Qijia North Project, Changping
Changping Befjing District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
FrEMGLEEE BME B 9293 949 - - - % %8 -
Tongzhou Core Area Tongzhou District
Project, Beijing
BLAH HEE 1000% 20053 151,606 23,800 - 127,806 - - 5687
Stratford, Tangshan Lunan District
Bl SHER LB 600% 8414 154769 9900 - s - - A0
King Metropolis, Tangshan  Lubei District
BlsHEE BiE 00% 5340 154828 - 89,460 154,828 - - -
The Paradiso, Tangshan ~ Lubei District
ElegERAQN  RIE 0% N2 1037 - - - - - -
King Metropolis A-02-02,  Lubei District
Tangshan
ElifER BEsH B0% 88 231 S48 180416 - ST
New Milestone, Tangshan ~ Fenghuang New
City
ElERERER BEE W% 165834 312738 - - 146,967 139,568 - 86,203
Nanhuchunxiao Project,  Lunan District
Tangshan
ELSHRE B1E 67% 53400 133418 - - - 133,418 125,803 -
Golden Paradise, Tangshan  Lubei District
ZE2ERARZ BRE 600% 7552 188816 - - 3R - - -
Holiday Views, Haigang District
Qinhuangdao
RERHENE FEAE 500% 238561 278286 - - RM W8M6 10860 16189
Beidihe Town, Beidihe District
Qinhuangdao
REREH 2EE 1000% 270888 1,763,059 126,21 75 1,164,832 357,045 100000 171,100
Waterfront, Tianjin Dongli District
RELHENR FER SO0% 21207 3988 134,830 60,670 147,764 38,590 38,590 86,000
King Metropolis, Tianjin D Dongli District
RERNBER REE 87.0% 180880 262481 97,236 102,188 102,188 - - 180,293
Minhe Lene Project, Tianjin - Dongli District
REFL REE 0% T2 W T - - - - -

City Twilight, Tianjin

Dongli District
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE1E  1ERK UEHE EHE
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
REDEH i S10% 409701 502,892 149,452 93076 207440 - - 76,000
Wonderland, Tianjin Kiging District
RERFER BEE 00 199 93560 206577 - - Hm 00 -
Dongdi Project, Tianjin ~ Xiging District
RERRY BEHE S.O0% 149483 373093 40,105 70,853 332,948 - - -
Harbor, Tianjin Binhai New Area
District
RELHER BEHE 1000% 108389 189,160 - - 48,15 100,885 100,885 0119
Jinyu Interational, Tianjin -~ Binhai New Area
District
REBIHEE i 800% 62205 124208 - 61,706 61,706 - - 62,500
Park Residence, Meijiang,  Hexi District
Tianjin
REAHELER HFR 99 40068 139,09 - - - 139,099 - -
Tiantuo North Project, Nankai District
Tianjin
REER BiE 08% %55 13689 95,965 - - 40,864 40,864 95,965
Zitai, Tianjin Binhai New Area
District
REEAEE 1R 9.0% 6240 76778 78,778 - - - - 29919
Nanhu Project, Tianjin Wuging District
REBREE g o17% 8195 82,390 - - - 82,390 82,390 -
Haitainyanju Project, Ji  Ji County
County, Tianjin
REGOEEER i 1000% 168000 329,000 - - - 329,000 - -
Yangwuzhuang South Xiging District
Project, Tianjin
REREEER ESHE 260% 21589 685897 - 100012 100,012 585,884 - -
Zhongguotang Project,  Binhai New
Tianjin District
ERERA fvE 1000% 120333 360,99 - 97,540 295,576 30815 30815 34,608
Rotterdam, Shenyang Heping District
AReaEe BB 1000% 2636 601439 - UM 014 - - -
The Paradiso, Shenyang ~ Hunnan New
District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 16§ 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ERRARS RuiRE 695% 199319 ST M09 B /8N BN BT 174819
Shenyang Tomorrow City Hunnan New
District
i e B0 $329 20041 S wm m - T
Park Residence, Shenyang ~ Shenhe District
EBETR TR 1000% 81378 431232 5,362 - 203,091 87,893 87,893 120,248
Chunheli, Shenyang Shenhe District
BRI )E FhE 1000% 285599 286,141 - - 60717 205424 42999 -
Whistler, Shenyang Dongling District
BhEE il 100.0% 7050 141,594 49,613 27.3% 82,352 - - 59,243
Spring Dew Mansion, Tiexi District
Shenyang
BREREN HER 91% 51832 154638 12473 85,133 85,133 - - 69,505
Shenyang Tiexi Blue Tiexi District
Mountain
ERENBEIE RHE 1000% 19015 342360 Sgw 09 . I 5,
Lakeside Grand View North, Yuhong District
Shenyang
BRAEAE iR 1000% 169774 407374 105,187 5,152 218,449 95,993 5993 108,101
Park Avenue, Shenyang ~ Yuhong District
BRERESR EitR 1000% 200000 475936 41,54 84,174 84,174 269,307 15213 118574
Holiday Views, Shenyang ~ Huanggu District
BhZn EfiR 0% 6170 199,883 29,029 78,760 76,760 4315 43,15 79,968
Shenyang Zitai Huanggu District
ERIm L ARE Ush G183 05T 108583 - - W% ST 9N
City Twilight, Shenyang ~ Dadong District
EBnGE il 63.9% 54257 166,35 108,583 - - 5,173 57,173 -
City Sunshine, Shenyang ~ Tiexi District
ARBRL BAE 108% 108183 486823 151079 - - 1R -
Fei Cui Zhi Guang, Tiexi District
Shenyang
Ll n¥E 90% M TS5 7595 - - - - -

Sun Yat-Sen Park, Shenyang Heping District
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Unit: sq.m.

] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH

HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR

Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be

commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be

Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed

Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017

ERERLE RAR 0% 109776 21952 98361 - - -
Feicui Park, Shenyang ~ Yuhong District

L JEIN it 915% 45100 920 - - - 99,20 99,20 -
Four Season Park, Shenyang Yuhong District

BERIN iged] 976% UM 4828 - - - 48286 18,286 -
Changjiangfu, Shenyang ~ Yuhong District

EBEE BRENE 400% 449889 201,508 - - - 201,508 - -
Pan Jin Project Liangdongwan
New District

BRSHEE FiE 1000% 300150 67598 - 3342 185,763 490,205 50,000 -
The Paradiso, Fushun Development
District

ERCHEAR JE5E 1000% 72560 29331 14,079 54,648 163,401 1544 154 15,644
Jinyu International, Fushun ~ Shuncheng
District

ENEEN haEE 1000% 13890 399,49 - W03 %31 uss 50000 -
Yingkou Harbor, Shenyang  Bayujuan District

SleHER il S.0% 25715 477,000 34,689 68,307 135,063 508,035 72175 -
Jinyu International, Anshan ~ Tiexi District

BUEHSR HRE 000% 420 TIA0 47045 S W W/ R B
Whistler Town, Anshan Tiedong District

SER BHE 1000% 167664 374676 - 23,802 340,615 - - 34,061
Dream Town, Anshan Gaoxin District

REHNEE R 1000% 118506 22982 - 14,465 29822 - - -
Spring Dew Mansion, Dalian Ganjingzi District

AERIER sy 50% 044 91308 - AR - - W%
Kishan Project, Dalian Ganjingzi District

REEW L1 1000% 125100 214470 -0 2140 - - -
Blue Mountain, Dalian ~ Ganjingzi District

RELER HHR 90.0% 19131 31627 - 31627 37627 - - -
Park Avenue, Dalian Ganjingzi District

RERRA EATR 000% 024 715 SR M - - -

Dalian Xianzai Town

Ganjingzi District
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A 16§ 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
KBLHESR iEisye §.0% 44085 803 - 80,337 80,337 - - -
King Metropolis, Dalian  Ganjingzi District
RERREKER iEisye! §.3% 10993 22,000 - 22,000 22,000 - - -
%H
Bolang Washing Machine  Ganjingzi District
Factory Project, Dalian
AERTZH TR 934% 153500 28395 221395 - - 62,580 - U6
City Tuilight, Dalian Ganjingzi District
RERRN EARE 0% 581172 968300 - - wI% Tam S )
Harbor, Dalian Pulandian District
ABEFE SR 1000% 16677 342625 71,260 4525 92,733 149,006 149,006 52,415
EXEE
Cherry Blossom Garden,  High-Tech
Dalian Industrial Zone
REEM £ 1000% 284806 620607 61,062 S /7 B v/ I VI
Dream Town, Dalian Jinzhou District
RENLRER BAOE 1000% 375 64260 - - - 64,260 - -
Chuanghua East Project,  Shahekou District
Dalian
R A HERUE il 86% 15300 32400 340 - - - - -
Magnetic Head Factory ~ Zhongshan
Project on Zhongnan District
Road, Dalian
REHUEE Ying B0 B3 M0 8510 - - - - -
Ban Shan Ban Hai, Dalian ~ Shahekou District
RERBRMARR 118 127% 1429 248710 - - - 248,710 165,700 -
Chuming Food Processing ~ Ganjingzi District
Plant, Dalian
AEERARR H47E %1% 169 513% - - S -
Huadong Road, Dalian ~ Ganjingzi District
rEENE-% HE %0% 83330 243918 - - - U318 u3918 -
Wuyi Road, Jinzhou, Dalian  Jinzhou District
REEL ZiER 1000% 228670 501,678 38,243 44,058 4728 47,053 3194 -
Blue Mountain, Changchun ~ Erdao District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER B RIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
REZHHIE 5RE 00% 39715 484714 SR [ VAV A VXV S VK B35 153
Whistler, Changchun Jingyue District
REEMA FRE SI0% 30965 1068%4 0208 40075 282516 41826 6804 4791
Dream Town, Changchun  Jingyue District
FEREE Eil 1000% 267981 503349 28,584 1462 262,445 195,201 70,743 36,298
Park Residence, Changchun Chaoyang District
RECHRE [ 1000% 121109 343,08 135,862 58,025 103,267 57,048 57,048 9492
Changchun Golden Nanguan District
Paradise Fantasy
REME AR 6% 181283 199411 87,442 - - 111,969 85,136 65,093
Ruyuan,Changchun Jingyue District
RESHYIRIE #RE D5% 49 w36 1740 - - 12620 58850 -
Hui Si Le Ban Fu Hua Yuan, Jingyue District
Changchun
RESEER e 95.1% 44154 75,002 75,002 - - - - 75,002
Gold Milestone, Changchun Qikai District
REND L RER 9.3% 181,000 435039 - - - 435,039 180,664 -
City Twilight, Changchun ~ Luyuan District
ERER i 650% 7813 2001721 124130 89682 T8 10200  m%s R
Dream Town, Jilin Gaoxin District
L e £k 1000% 531598 681,89 55,250 99,308 99,308 519,468 114,869 12,669
Songhua Lake Project, Jilin - Fengman District
ERUGE HiRE S.0% 30069 53,153 201,492 19.792 202,842 59,460 3013 WAy
Rose Lane, Qingdao Chengyang
District
FEERILE 5l 0% 86493 187,168 ST R VAT - - -
Chunyang Garden, Qingdao Chengyang
District
ERIER-H 5l 4% 134669 24406 24046 - - - - -
Taohuayuan Phase 2, Chengyang
Qingdao District
ERLFMARBMR  WUE 00% 508 25741 541 - - - - -
Land Lot B Shandong Road - Shibei District

Project, Qingdao
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A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi BE  GMER BEER RIER AIER AMIER B HIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
FREM e B0% 14407 375523 S 134 - - -
Dream Town, Qingdao ~~ Shibei District
EERMBEHTL i 1000% 375 123703 - R 1370 - - -
Vanke Centre, Fuzhou Road, Shibei District
Qingdao
ERLRREHTL e 00 B %26 B0 288 70486 - - -
Vanke Centre, Shandong ~ Shibei District
Road, Qingdao
FE%a i 000% 6B 183943 - 85 198 - - 104068
Zitai, Qingdao Shibei District
EEEHAN e 3% 1BOU 4083 B - - N s WM
(BiBSR)
Future City (Land Lot B),  Shibei District
Qingdao
EREHANS i 5% 614 053 - - - u5s - -
(e:):)
Future City (Land Lot CJ,  Shibei District
Qingdao
BB R4E 0% 9B/ W99 83506 Tl 9% S8 1SR 8289
Qingdao Town Development
District
EERD PEm 50% 19446 462142 127,080 17,208 154,564 55,480 - 128
Qingdao Dongjun Jimo District
EETRENS ¥R 0% 59308 18185 - %M mus o 30n 37,071 -
Pingdu Dream Town, Pingdu District
Qingdao
ERTRAH ¥R S.0% 75000 80790 19887 233 404683 - - -
Pingdu New City, Qingdao  Pingdu District
ERERI Tk 1000% 110919 350,385 215,640 - - - - 180415
Ecological New Town, Licang District
Qingdao
ERIIER HEE 2% 190 2939 61,032 - 68,196 - - 99,733
Taohuayuan, Qingdao Chengyang
District
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Unit: sq.m.

it | 16% 108 BE16E  6ER  UEHE 7

ERZR fuE Bi (HER BEER  HIEE AIER AUIER B WIER HIER

Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be

commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be

Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed

Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017

EBLHER il B 6359 12198 127,198 - - - - -
King Metropolis, Qingdao ~ Chengyang
District

e R 1000% 31614 444000 13,968 - 188,699 146,560 48835 108741
Haiyuntai, Yantai Zhifu District

EERARR BlR 700% 190281 362813 - - 217,361 59,347 59,347 86,105
Holiday Dew Garden, Yantai Fushan District

BEZEL ) 5.0% M3 4nm 9,083 26904 130919 197 481 62929 80,417
Yulongshan, Yantai Zhifu District

EEEMI A S1.0% 1061 49,165 12950 1583 2636 181%1 1928 40878
Dream Town, Yantai Development
District

RESENE R 78.6% 5892 114119 15975 - - 38,144 38144 -
Feicui Park, Yantai Zhifu District

BEfm L RIE 32.0% 7988 131752 1112 - - 93,640 93,640 -
City Twilight, Yantai Fushan District

REERE RUE 95.0% 50620 109,993 - - - 109,993 109993 -
Fei Chui Wan, Yantai Laishan District

EHeHER B 630% 12571 318712 -5 318712 - - -
Jinyu International, Jinan ~ Gaoxin District

ERENRL BHR 630% 15188 839w - - - - - -
Vanke Center, Jinan Gaoxin District

BRI ETR 9.0% 191418 480,980 - Mgl 3R - - 168398
Dream Town, Jinan Lixia District

BRHLHER ETE 03% 103870 36 2405 - - - - -
King Metropolis, Jinan Lixia District

jEH ETR 8Bo% 8785 24718 1164 65528 65,528 - - 159,19
Heppiness Garden, Jinan  Lixia District

RS BiR 1000% 13130 3268% - 389 113669 - - M
New Milestone, Jinan Licheng District

ERLRE HER Q7% 18763 152371 - 14,45 14,45 - - 1391
Park Avenue, Jinan Huaiyin District

ERLein AEE 00 IR 250289 - - - - - 11865
Joying Gold, Jinan Tiangiao District
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A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
EEEN RifE B6% 000 AT 645l - - - - -
Lu Cheng, Jinan Gaoxin District
RRENER RTE 160% 6914 a8 4178 - - - - -
Lu Cheng Commercial, ~ Gaoxin District
Jinan
EEZa EnE 979% B0 7053 - - - 70539 70539 -
Jitai, Jinan Licheng District
BRERNERRD Bik a0 a542 B2 15038 - - Boest 4368 -
Vanke-Longfor Zijun, Jinan  Licheng District
RakiEEE e BO% 1494 7508 - - - 508 75086 -
Yufeng Projects Jinan Shizhong District
EREEFER ETE 4% 255 76038 - - - 76,238 76,238 -
Haiyanmen Project, Jinan  Lixia District
AREW Btk S.0% 198392 688392 150,884 238,181 333,672 - - 00131
Blue Mountain, Taiyuan ~ Wanbailin District
ARARATA EiE 1000% 370600 177415 - - - 177,415 - -
Transportation Company ~ Wanbailin District
Land Lot, Taiyuan
RREHER e 5% 506 192230 - - - - - 130
King Metropolis, Taiyuan ~ Wanbailin District
AREREHEL iR BI% 143 989 98 - - - SO
Sijian Vanke Blue Mountain, Wanbailin District
Taiyuan
AR iR W0 T2  0MAT 2147 - - - - -
Zijun Wanbailin District
RRHEAL PR 06% 2643 7929 - - - 79,298 - -
Xinduxin, Taiyuan Xiaodian District
REEM R 086 W 1B 334966 - - 104138 - 169500
Dream Town, Taiyuan Xiaodian District
RE2EEE ERE 86% 0047 148741 148741 - - - - -
The Paradiso, Taiyuan Jinyuan District
ARLER *ETE B0k el 20491 - - - n0m 20 -
Park Avenue, Taiyuan Jiancaoping
District
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] 16§ 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
KR KEHE 89 263066 416045 - - - 416,045 187,709 -
Taiyuan Town Jiancaoping
District
REER e 180% 7433 29612 - - - M2 9412 -
Zi Yuan Taiyuan Yingze District
EhpER hRR 5.0% 218143 366064 - 42,405 366,064 - - -
Spring Dew Mansion, Yuci District
Jinzhong
YREH N 24821109 47569302 7,683,065 5165874 18232562 15,876,118 6,788,986 6,652,799
Beijing Region subtotal
PEHES
Central and Western Region
RAEHERRS RER 500% 2970 208037 - 0803 208,037 - - -
Vanke Huamao Plaza, Chenghua District
Chengdu
RACELRELES  HER 800% 152852 75903 - 2688% 268,89 490,140 165,600 -
Jinse Yuefu Music Plaza,  Chenghua District
Chengdu
RATRULE g 1000% 345768 35,503 - - 356,503 - - -
Wulong Mountain Garden,  Xindu District
Chengdu
RALHRE e 1000% 111,166 329,000 - 41,74 92997 101,409 - -
Jinyu Tixiang, Chengdu ~ Xindu District
RAERY i 1000% 65858 118564 58,222 - - - - 1185
Feicuijun, Chengdu Xindu District
neg A BiE 00% 4835 150 - NI N - - B0
Jinyu Mingd, Chengdu ~ Gaoxin District
e BHE 0% 8782 283444 - 39,003 39,003 186,814 - 31647
No.5 Park Front Boutique ~ Gaoxin District

Apartment, Chengdu
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Unit: sq.m.
A 165 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
= Tl ErER 1000% 72100 288410 - - 10838 - - 100
Golden City, Chengdu ~ Longguanyi
District
REBHES L4l 1000% 104307 54883 - - 504,843 - - -
Haiyue Huicheng, Chengdu  Shuangliu County
AEEIA $ihE N8 3B 891 508516 - - 30610 300000 17136
No.5 City, Chengdu Shuangliu County
RAENE gk 90% 136000 411,882 22,001 - - 189,841 - -
Park Jiuli, Chengdu Shuangliu County
HBER % 6% 11375 5093 WI6T uIsm el e 186000 -
Dream Town, Chengdu  Pi County
RAAZER e4E 4% T 914 97432 - - - - 9743
Guabin Runyuan, Chengdu  Jinniu District
RBLEHR ERER 1000% 47245 141602 - - 141,602 - - -
Aureate City, Chengdu ~ Longquanyi
District
#2081 p kil 56.6% 16745 409,541 194,084 - - 25457 150,000 -
Hua Yang 220 Mu Project, ~ Tianfu New
Chengdu District
RARELEL e 000% 120000 145139 91989 - - B0 B0 91989
Wu Long Shan Lan Shan, ~ Xidu District
Chengdu
RBREs 9k B0% 14478 6769 182898 - - BATE 23000 -
Dream Town, Chengdu Pidu District
AREEER SR 1000% 182012 518,004 12,116 41623 193,815 155,941 50,000 -
Jinrun Huafu, Nanchong ~ Gaoping District
HEZRER ERE 1000% 166817 568,974 - TATI0 196789 - S/
Hanyang Intemational, ~ Hanyang District
Wuhan
REEHME TEE 000% 17413 105457 -am w0 - S K
Wuhan Golden Lake Jianghan District
Courtyard
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
REENER LEE 500% 178881 94713 494,245 133,445 26,26 3072 0722 145,811
Henkou Chuangj, Wuhan J Jianghan District
HERREN LR RR 00% 199709 29563 91512 345 3140 - - 154474
A
Liantou Vanke Ecological ~ East Lake
Town, Wuhan High-Tech
Development
Zone
RRNEER R B 1000% 89865 49600 136779 153812 308949 - - 100651
e
Luxuriant Scenery, Wuhan ~ East Lake
High-Tech
Development
Zone
HERE R o D% L9 30 5608 110740 169,818 - - 1799
e
Jiayuan, Wuhan East Lake
High-Tech
Development
Zone
HEGRE R B BN BB 260 SIAU Me6T g - - 41983
FiE
Jincheng, Wuhan East Lake
High-Tech
Development
Zone
REREAT HLE 1000% 23850 896484 - 108463 861,642 - - 3,842
Golden City, Wuhan Hongshan District
RERHAER il 1000% 77381 239,083 - 130204 232,211 - - 6,812

Changzheng Village Project, Hongshan District
Wuhan
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Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
BR%H fiE Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
REERNE BB 99% 160882 30755 19882 - - My M9y -
iE
Fei Cui Jiu Xi, Chengdu  Economic &
Technological
Development
Zone
REERAL EBE % 2500 93828 16822 - - TI0R MB0 9460
Feicui Binjiang Hanyang District
Project, Wuhan
ZHEIERR IRE 60% 40300 208576 - - - 208,576 124,058 -
Erqi Binjiang Business Area Jiang'an District
REBRER AR H1% - 5386 1329 71329 - - - - 63,659
Fei Chui Yun Tai Hongshan District
REEHLS il 90% 57253 198999 127,940 - - 71,0600 71,000 -
Vanke Home, Wuhan Hongshan District
ERIR il 1000% 105406 533486 - - 533,486 - - -
Jincheng, Chongging Yuzhong District
ERH TEHE 000% 13799 376737 - - ey - - -
Palace of Pleasure, Northern New
Chongaing District
EREMI LR 50% 28167 647378 - TS SMM9 1905 B2 1290
Dream Town, Chongging ~ Northern New
District
BEE Lt BH0% 435499 649158 37,650 87,188 295,441 295,021 190,09% 52,157
Yuewan, Chongging Jiangbei District
ERHAZ it 1000% 129535 652,785 %5719 73,502 73502 523,564 265,904 55,719
Gailanxi, Chongging Jiangbei District
EELHER iEE 45% U134 85T 028 19920 119920 689,837 246,541 35,893
Changging Golden Paradise Nan'an District
Academy
ERSENN ISR 800% 175000 700,000 74,818 89,085 18,127 185,120 151,263 66,178
Joying Gold, Chongging  Shapingba District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ERENEN NERE 500% 27593 151,620 - - 68,943 - - 77,386
Vanke Xijiu, Chongging  Jiulongpo District
ERERES NESE 000% 6026 A - - 1N3K 61,927 -0
Vanke Xicheng, Chongging  Jiulongpo District
EEGH NERRE 93.4% 69,160 167,677 - 2309 239 109,814 8,443 25,53
Chongging Jinshang Jiulongpo District
BEHTLH HiE 786% 100340 M3 78,187 - - 40,030 - U593
City Twilight, Xi'an Qujiang New
District
REZNES HiE 405% 10969 383985 154429 75,393 75,393 96,184 9,184 68,900
Oriental Legend, Xi'an ~ Qujiang New
District
ERERETHE RER 85.0% 186849 61980 U 81,902 - -
Land Lot 7# Dream Town, ~ Chang'an District
Ai'an
BB RER 800%  M3B 352802 - - MM 3,519 - T
Land Lot 3# Dream Town, ~ Chang'an District
Ai'an
EREMH RER 000% 89377 201569 5461 135653 135653 19967 - 4591
Land Lot 8# Dream Town, ~ Chang'an District
Ai'an
BReTER ARE 50% 106667 372461 53290 - 298,642 17424 - 27,860
King Metropolis, Xi'an Weiyang District
REAEEER ARE 00% 9052 221603 - - 92935 83,192 63,192 85,476
Daminggong Project, Xi'an  Weiyang District
BRE B BiE B00% 193571 eshed3 4S80 23859 48312 - S
Joying Gold, Xi'an Lianhu District
fiseactiviNg EHE 1000% 36708 146,831 131,89 - - 14,935 - -
Joying Gold DK1, Xi'an  Lianhu District
EReHER BHE 0% B8 15013 49,971 - - - - 63,537

Jinyu International, Xi'an  Gaoxin District

88 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.



4 EZERE
IV Directors’ Report

&l TR

Unit: sq.m.
RE 16§ I6F  BE16E 1ERK UEHE EHE
LEE fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
BZEHED ERLAR 1000% 175387 686,388 143721 160,064 160,064 156,837 15,837 200719
Eastern Metropolis, Xi'an ~ Chanba
Ecological
District
FRERE RAE 1000% 65628 229.6% 38299 1383% 138,3% - - 3893
Xi'an Happiness Garden ~ Weiyang District
EREHER LR 698% 14745 476559 197,527 181,266 181,266 - - 55,088
Xi'an Prestigious Academy  Yanta District
BT AEM EITHE 99% 0000 7000 70000 - - - - U
Cheng Shi Zni Guang Mi-~ Qujiang New
You, Xi'an District
ERATOARERE  HIHE 0% 601% 210771 - - - W 11660 -
South City Twilight, Xi'an ~ Qujiang New
District
EREMAE BHE % 450 303610 96,261 - - 207,349 1323 -
Vanke Tianyu, Xi'an Gaoxin District
EZRERER EEil 800% 161200 668,498 - - - 668,49 - -
Gaoxin Baotian Project, ~ Gaoxin District
Ai'an
[N E BHE 8B0% 161244 340,770 - - - 340,770 - -
Garden South Project, Xi'an Gaoxin District
ERRENGER  BEE 498% 55205 16313 - - - 163,135 89,215 -
Land Lot of Late Stage ~ Yanta District
of Xi'an Prestigious
Academy
el AR G1% 700 93284 188659 - - TMN% B 3540
Feicui International Project ~ Yanta District
i RZE 150% 14l 414458 209,598 - - 264,860 151972 -
Spring Dew Mansion, Xi'an - Chang'an District
DhENEREMRE  HHRE 0% 7945 266838 - A% T3 W% 340 -
Vanke Meijing Longmen  Guancheng
Longtang, Zhengzhou District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fi& BE GHER RBEER RIER AIER AMIER B RIER HIER
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
INERZREMI i SI0% 3487 1080973 163437 409310 753 134999 135000 -
Vanke Meijing Dream Town, Gaoxin District
Zhengzhou
SMERZREMI i 0% 18354 41938 479308 - - - - 0%
(4+5)
Vanke Meijing Dream Town  Gaoxin District
(4,5), Zhengzhou
LD bk S SI0% 24474 S04 122916 115050 15050 3190 BN 15308
(7:6°5:3-2:
1#4)
Vanke Meijing Dream Town ~ Airport Area
(765324), Zhengzhou  District
BNREER R hzER S.0% 4387 87,742 - - - 87,742 - -
1# Land Lot Airport Area, ~ Alirport Area
Zhengzhou District
IHERRRZR -1 0RI% 0 1980 169800 - - - - 169840
(7#0)
Vanke Tianlun Zitai, Huiji District
Zhengzhou (7# Land)
ONFEEE (RMR)  $4R 0% BB 16412 126472 - - - - -
Rancho Santa Fe, Zhongmu District
Zhengzhou (East Land
Lot)
INERRR fiztE S0% 031 40682 - - - e - -
Bhoi
Vanke Meijing, Glamorous  Airport Area
City 2, Zhengzhou District
T hzER S0% 210 52609 - - - 52,609 52609 -
BN
Vanke Meijing, Glamorous ~ Airport Area
City, Zhengzhou District

0 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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Unit: sq.m.

k] 165 168 BEIE 168K 17EHE  17EHE

BR%H fi Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
PiwEEE L 08% 70688 162170 - - -1 10 -
(Eis%)
Rancho Santa Fe, Zhongmu District
Zhengzhou (West Land
Lot)
OHRESE (R BEA TEE 08 T8 1632 - - - 183 16,321 -
EAi)
Rancho Santa Fe, Zhongmu District
Zhengzhou (Margin land
of East and West Land
Lot)
DiEHRZa SRR 0% 88 2063% - - - WX 2083% -
Vanke Tianlun Zitai, Huiji District
Zhengzhou
NZATEE MR BER Q7% 64388 193163 - - - 193,163 193,163 -
Zitai 9% Land Lo, Huiji District
Zhengzhou
ghER e “tE BA% WL de19 41819 - - - - 194
Vanke Metropolis, Erqi District
Zhengzhou
DR gRiE 1% 1793 719 - - - T 719 -
Fusheng Square, Zhengzhou Zhengdong New
District
EDILEE £1kB 698% 62197 18659 - - - 18850 186,5% -
Zheng Fang Ji, Zhengzhou Jinshui District
SHhREEER hRE 006 1774 BB - - - 1321 73221 -
K2~ K38
Zhongyuan Yandong Project Zhongyuan
Land Lots K2 and K3, District
Zhengzhou
EUraE NIE 1000% 351800 581217 84495 152674 504,154 1830 1830 75,233

King Metropolis, Guiyang ~ Xiaohe District
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Unit: sq.m.
] 165 0§ BEGE 1R UFRE 17EH
HR%H fiE B MMER BIER RIAR RIER AUIER BE  RIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced  Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016  in2016  end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
LN IR 1000% 159972 449917 195694 200118 X089 WS BS540
Metropolis, Guiyang Kiaohe District
REABEH e 0% N4 1120 - om0 2 - - -
#6508
Guiyang Metropolis Kiaohe District
Commercial Complex
BFRRE ZEE 1000% 80594 200,705 - 70,89 158,167 - - -
Nimble Bay, Guiyang Yunyan District
Rl 22k S0% B3 2278 479 873 136109 1478 148 41789
Joy City, Guiyang Yunyan District
EhEN Z2E 00% M8 914893 28921 182489 389,59 204,832 14832 218921
Dream Town, Guiyang Yunyan District
ERLES 22k 5% 1097 %8132 - B - - -
No.5 Park Front Boutique ~ Yunyan District
Apartment Guiyang
LB 22k D5% 4904 8B 144478 - SN T T Vi R 5
Yunyan Metropolis, Guiyang Yunyan District
ERLEES 25E 08 M35 10087 130087 - - - - W
Gong Yuan Chuan Qi,  Yunyan District
Guiyang
RRERES 25E 07% 10960 340 118168 - - T 10783 16168
Fei Chui Chuan Qi, Guiyang Yunyen District
ERENERES E2E 59.0% 6% 58991 - - - 58,991 58,991 -
Vanke Guiyang Chuan Qi,  Yunyan District
Guiyang
EHeEEY BHE 1000% 105484 314602 - 1479 256,450 5,192 - -
Respecte Chateau, Kunming Gaoxin District
BHREN 20 REE 1000% 47919 1,662,861 - 266765 609,563 897,392 7949 155907
Glamorous City, Kunming  Guandu District
o N REE 919% 213037 564,081 71980 83990 83990 312,29 146,219 94,517
Park Avenue, Kunming ~ Guandu District
RHELIE BHE 6% 340 1459 145,292 - - - - 12424

Xin Jin Hua Yuan, Kunming  Gaoxin District
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Unit: sq.m.
A 16§ 165 BEE 16K UFRE 17EHE
BR%H fiE Bi MMER BIER RIAR RIER AMIER BE  WIER HIAR
Area not
Area Accumulated  yetunder  Areato be
commenced Completed ~ completion ~construction  commenced ~ Area to be
Planned  construction area areabythe  asatthe construction completed
Project Name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA in2016 2016 end 2016 end of 2016 2017 in2017
ERREE EtERE 298% 243605 43579 143922 - - 1873 107,04 143922
Yinhaiboan Project, Dianchi Tourist
Kunming Resort
=L v BRE B1% 96 15323 - - - 153,236 153,236 -
City Twiight, Kunming ~ Panlong District
SEAELHER Hie 0% 8336 45719 - - 358 7,164 5189 630
King Metropolis, Urumgi~ New District
SEAERLE BEAEY 1000% 32298 15947 - - - - - 15,947
Urumai Southern Hillside ~ Urumai County
EERERHRE DEERE 1000% 20008 49,033 - - 49,033 - - -
Jinyu Tixiang, Urumai Shayioake District
SEREREREE YHERR 600% 204628 208972 - - MBMS 03T 0AT -
Rancho Sante Fe, Urumgi Shayibake District
SERERALE KEER 1000% 80698 201,745 41,631 16,769 46,769 50,241 50,394 63,340
Central Park, Urumg Shuimogou
District
SERENELH BHE W5% 188748 566,243 83,168 94,845 94,845 379438 231,464 48093
Urumgi Wonderland Gaoxin District
EEAEPANECH  KEEE BO% W0 117,195 - - SR (VAU T /F ] -
Central Park Phase 2, Shuimogou
Urumo District
RERER T 1244208 38008515  7,636359 5127970 13783628 13289563 6785603 5320164
Central and Western
Region Subtotal
SEai 719976977 173093554 31367497 22372,348 65699731 52969437 29235906 24,482,595
Group total
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a. BBEEAREHETISAEEER
Bk BEEE B HELIRE L

b. MEVEREABEFHERE T K
1% - BRI B R R R ERIR
FERMBER

. WRIFEMER FERETEHHY
SHEELYE

d. BEARRECAEHEENTHESL
TEMTERT

e. HMAAFERAMNEXNEHEEER TH
EENFE -

4.2 RRIRER/R

W BRESERAER
2007 F AR ITARER
< H R PY A= O A R) R2007
FEANRAEMHMBRERE M
e R BETARKRE BT
B 317,158,261 (B A A R
BT/ BITERARE
NI ] BEEEARK
9,999,999,969.337C - ¥R EE 1T E F
AR #63,398,268.1170 18 & &
& 55 AR #9,936,601,701.2270
20078 A30R (L - EmRIIEA
R & 560 =5 FTRE BT (2007)5%
1555 BREMERBAR ©

il

Q4 BRI EMRH BBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Special Risk Warning:

The plan to start and complete for the project above may
adjust due to the following reasons:

a. Changes in macroeconomic as well as the real estate
market, or changes in the sales on an individual project;

b. The new regulations require more stringent project
approval, therefore the processing of the development
projects license may delay and affect the pace of
development;

c. The demolition progress of projects involving demolition
may have an impact on the development plan;

d. Significant weather changes may have an impact on the
duration and impact of the completion of the project;

e. Other significant events may have an unpredictable
impact on the project schedule.

4.2 Investment of the Company

42.1 Use of proceeds from the capital market
public issue of A Shares in 2007

Having obtained the approval from the relevant
authorities, the Company issued a prospectus regarding
the public issue of A shares on 22 August 2007. The
Company issued 317,158,261 shares (par value: RMB1
per share) at an issue price of RMB31.53 per share,
raising proceeds of RMB9,999,999,969.33. After
deducting issuing expenses of RMB63,398,268.11,
the net proceeds amounted to RMB9,936,601,701.22
and were received on 30 August 2007. Shenzhen
NanfangMinhe CPA Firm Co., Ltd (&I RS
T%FT) had prepared and filed a capital verification report
(Shen Nan Yan Zi (2007) No. 155).
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The aforesaid proceeds were used to invest in 11
projects. Details on the investment amount, investment

BE - Wa - EEBEREAT gain, development progress of the projects as of 31
December 2016 are as follows:
B BT
Unit: RMB'0000
FRECRE P340  AEERAERELEE 2558
Total amount of proceeds raised, net Funds used for investment during the year
EERENERELLE 0 CERRERALEE 993,640
Total amount of proceeds with changed usage Total accumulated fund used
EERENREE AR 0%
Percentage of total proceeds with changed usage
ki
RE BRA K i g REWE  RARL
LEE #EER £ RASE  RA%E REEE ERNNE RokE  EXRM
Funds
Amount  used for Doesit I there
Isthere  offunds  investment Progress of ~ Accumulated ~ achieve  significant
any change  planned during  Accumulated ~ application of realized  estimated  change in
Investment projects inproject ~ foruse  theyear  funds used funds income ~income feasibility
EMER (RRSHHIER) £ 60000 - 60,000 100% 14,107 & A
Everest Town (former Science H3 Project), Guangzhou No Yes No
ENegER (ReDHER) £ 80000 - 80,000 100% 118,540 & a
The Paradiso (former Jinshazhou Project), Guangzhou No Yes No
fuEM (REIRR) 000 - 90,000 100% 65,584 = &
The Dream Town (former Nanzhuang Project), Foshan No Yes No
KeENERSRRER e - 65,000 100% 8,109 £ &
Zhuhai Hotel Project, Xiangzhou District, Xiangzhou No Yes No
District, Zhuhai
MMRERE (REYER) £ 70000 - 70,000 100% 182,052 % i
West Spring Butterfly Garden(former Jiangcun No Yes No
Project), Hangzhou
iNRREREER & 170000 - 170,000 100% 192,379 % 3
Liangzhu Project, Yuhang District, Hangzhou No Yes No
e ey e 163660 - 163,660 100% 83,53 % a
Golden Town Project, Yinzhou District, Ningbo No Yes No
LERERNG 120000 - 120,000 100% 83911 & 3
Wujiefang, Pudong, Shanghai No Yes No
LhEERE (RPivER) & 7000 - 70,000 100% pi % &
Jinse Yazhue (former Zhonglin Project) No Yes No
HRATEZREER 65000 2558 65,000 100% - & 3
Anpin Street Project, Baixia District, Nanjing No Yes No
BRIE (REFITER) & 40000 - 40,000 100% 5,140 a 3
Stratford (former Huangjiayu Project) Nanjing No No No
&it - 993660 2558 993,660 00% 840577
Total
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RENFHERNE Y (HARRR)

Remarks on delay and failure to achieve
estimated income (by project)

EERRRETRANS (PERER)

Remarks on reasons and procedures for change
oy project]

AAERNERE S MRRER

Application of the balance of the proceeds

() EREREERRBFZARENIRTE ENTRAESHR YETRRNNERT  BAABRICEESRA BANG
EREABIRR NERERREE BOVEAERG -

Q) BXIEEASRDOFERERERN - R ERBERNE0 00 BRRGTARNRENE  ERNKEENARENER
ik«

BRECABRARE AR IRRIRH A RANERAKE  FRERESRMAR HERNER SN AREMEN AR KE -

(1) Nanjing Anpin Street Project was not able to commence construction according to schedule, s the government was making
adjustment to its planning to preserve the city's heritage. The relevant planning has now been approved. The project has
commence construction in 2015 and commenced pre-sale in 2016 and is expected to realize gain in 2017. The overall
development plan of the project was adjusted accordingly.

(2} Stratford Project in Nanjing was basically sold out, with properties delivered in 2010.achieve estimated income {oy project)
Accumulative net margin amounted to 8.62%. The project had achieved brand effect but the income generated from the
project did not reach the estimated level stated in the prospectus.

The income of other projects financed by the raised proceeds exceeded or is expected to exceed the estimated level. The overall

return from the projects financed by the raised proceeds will be higher than the estimated level stated in the prospectus.

587

No changes

BENGF12A3E - KAEEECRRAREMERR T ARBON 0BT - (FEEESFEARE93 6608 747100%
As of 31 December 2016, the Company had applied RMB,936.60 million of the proceeds in accordance with the prospectus. The
amount represented 100% of the net proceeds of RMBY,936.60 million.

BEMPEARMNBRAF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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4.2.2 Use of capital not from the capital market

A. Equity investment
MEEA - K EE AR During the Reporting Period, new additional
461E L T EHRUT4LIEE investment amounted to RMB46.1 billion, which
were used as follows:
FTEHREXINFMER (1) promoted and established 21 new subsidiaries,
£ A K #5,0008 7T A £ each with registered capital of over RMB50
WEEBRKREN TR million, and actual investment had been made.
K BEWT : The details are as follows:
B8 HRAT 83l BMEA (R)  ANERRRE SE6E
(FAARR)
No. Name of the newly established Currency Registered ~ Actual investment  Scope of business
company capital (RMB) by Vanke (RMB)
1 EREREXARAHA AR 1,847,968,500.00 692,988,200.00 FHERE
Qingdao Wan Yi Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
2 WNEREXERA ARH 1,300,000,000.00  1,300,000,000.00 EiERE
Hangzhou Wanchen Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
3 EEHRRMERZARAT AE% 550,000,000.00 495,000,000.00 FHERE
Yantai Gong Ying Real Estate RMB Real estate development
Development Co., Ltd.
4 EREMEREXERAA AE% 250,000,000.00 162,500,00000 FiERE
Shenyang Vanke Xisheng Property RMB Real estate development
Co., Ltd.
5 RINBREXBRL AE% 170,000,000.00 170,000,000.00 EiERE
Xuzhou Wan Chen Property Co., ltd. RMB Real estate development
6 MMNEREREEARAR AE® 170,000,000.00 170,000,000.00 EiERE
Hangzhou Fu Yang Wan Chao Property RMB Real estate development
Co., Ltd.
7 EREREXFRAR AR 125,422,000.00 4703325000 REHERE
Qingdao Wan Ying Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
8 EFTENBEREXARAA AR 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 EiERE
Xiamen Vanke Bailu Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
9 LEEMENERARL AE® 100,000,000.00 100,000,00000 FEiERE
Shanghai Vanke City Development RMB Real estate development
Co., Ltd.
10 BRHE (R2) ARATA AE% 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 EiERE
Vanke Town (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
1 LEEEXEEERERARAT AR 80,000,000.00 56,000,00000 REEEZN
Shanghai Wanning Cultural and RMB Corporate management

Creative Industry Development
Co., Ltd.

consultancy
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No. Name of the newly established Currency Registered ~ Actual investment ~ Scope of business

company capital (RMB) by Vanke (RMB)
12 Vanke SMLT Onshore LLC e N/A 51195896471  #&

Vanke SMLT Onshore LLC usb Investment
13 Vanke SMLT Offshore LLC eI N/A - 497,737,889.07 %%

Vanke SMLT Offshore LLC usb Investment
14 BNBREXARARF AE% 338,020,000.00 338,020,000.00 fEiERE

Xuzhou Wanxu Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
15 ARHEGEARREARLE ARH 5600000000 5600000000 FEEEE

Beijing Xin Zhu Chang Xiang Business  RMB Business operation

Services Limited
16 BRESEXARAT AE% 51,000,000.00 30,600,000.00 EHERE

Kunming Wan Hai Property Co., Ltd. ~ RMB Real estate development
17 EREHEXARAA ARE 50,000,000.00 31,500,000.00 EiERE

Jinan Jinyu Property Co., Ltd. RMB Real estate development
18 BNBHREXARAF AE® 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 EiERE

Xuzhou Wan Ming Property Co., Ltd. ~ RMB Real estate development
19 HREBEXARAT AE® 50,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 FiERE

Nanjing Hui Feng Property Co., Ltd. ~ RMB Real estate development
20 REEMEFRERATA N 50,000,000.00 50,000,00000 %HiREIR

Tianjin Vanke Meihaojia Co., Ltd. RMB Decoration and renovation
21 MEEBRRA ik 1,000,000,000.00 859,800,00000 [FHAERE

Fozter Limited HKD Real estate development

ax 5,849,138,303.78

Total
Btz 9N AEIEE In addition, the Group had also promoted and

VHMARHKSIIR - AFF
RESEARKLLETT -
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established another 517 new companies, with a

total investment amount of RMB4.46 billion.
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2016F1 258 « AR
A £F B100%H) F 2 A
NHE e HEAREST
BB T EPIERE
EAMRRERRR
A]90%HY A °

20168 A58 » A A
&) 55 % 100%H) F A &)
NIRSEHEARKE7.6
BTWETHRER
EHwERZEBFR A A
74.7 %R HE

2016F9H18H » &K 2
Al EF I 100% 89 F A 7]
NIREHBARKE12.2
Bl TRESE
NEEERBRA A
100%H) % 1 ©

2016%F10H288 © K
N RFHIRII%E)F A 7
NESHEARKIS
BTWETELRSR
BEGRRFI99%H A
TE o

2016F10A30H © &
AN A #F R100%H) F
RAINBESHEBEAR
#2088 ;T W B TC
Plaza Co., Ltd 100%
HIRRAE ©

(2) Major companies acquired during the

Reporting Period are as follows:

a)

On 25 January 2016, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 90%
equity interests in Xiamen Jiadehongshi
Logistics Investment Co., Ltd., at a cash
consideration of RMB868 million.

On 5 August 2016, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 74.7%
equity interests in Nanjing Tongsheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd., at a cash
consideration of RMB1.76 billion.

On 1 September 2016, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 100%
equity interests in Wuhan Xianghualin
Business Development Co., Ltd., at a cash
consideration of RMB1.22 billion.

On 28 October 2016, a 99% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 99%
equity interests in Kunshan Changtai
Property Co., Ltd., at a cash consideration
of RMB944 million.

On 30 October 2016, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 100%
equity interests in C Plaza Co., Ltd., at a
cash consideration of RMB2.08 billion.
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f) 2016%F12H25H © &
N A 100%8) F A
AN SHBARKE
12,28 i T b 2
EREEREME R A
100%H) A% HE -

B B T HAB129K
nE ARTWEYEBAR
#120. 1187 °

(3) B HIS5KFRARA:
#EANREE156.9718T - H
FPEREBEE (BB ARAQ
A E AR#23 378
FEBREEMERR QA
#E ANR#92.00E - Hit
REEEATARKEA1.60
BT o

HERERR

WwE A KK E L NFA
BIE B173(8 - AR R EAG
R EMREREEREY
180228 F HX  #EEEE
#93,157 38 F 5K °

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

f)  On 25 December 2016, a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired
100% equity interests in Beijing
Hanzhu Investment Co., Ltd., at a cash
consideration of RMB1.22 billion.

During the Reporting Period, other 129
companies were also acquired, at a total
consideration of RMB12.01 billion.

(3) During the Reporting Period, the Group
increased the capital of 15 subsidiaries by
RMB15.697 billion, among which, RMB2.337
billion was for Vanke Property (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (BREZ% (F8) BRAF),
RMB9.2 billion was for Shanghai Vanke Real
Estate Company Limited and RMB4.16 billion
for other subsidiaries.

Project investments

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired
173 new development projects, with a site area
attributable to the Company’s equity holding of
approximately 18.922 million sg.m., representing a
planned GFA of approximately 31.573 million sg.m.
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Unit: sq.m.
it | ERER
FE 4% LERT i BHUA GHER  REER REER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA Shareholders  Progress
(It BT TE RilE w6 T4g3 38 125675 &R
Dongguan  Han Lin Cheng Shi Hua Yuan Dongcheng District Under Construction
1 R= LR FHE s 36 8143 Jes HE
Dongguan ~ Garden City Dongcheng District Prefiminary
3R HERER R 67% RT3 655 B s
Dongguan ~ Shilong Road Project Dongcheng District Preliminary
b RE BIRERES iR 08% N0 3N 189028 %
Dongguan  Binjiang Stadium Project Nancheng District Preliminary
5% RYRHTRER Bz 04% 10004 285750 (A
Dongguan ~ Gaobu Dongcheng Central Road Project  Gaobu Town Prefiminary
6 S FyBNER 78 S50 1740 78388 B3 s
Dongguan  Intersection of Dongkeng Road Project Dongkeng Town Preliminary
[ 1 TGRSR 2RE 1B0% 12600 161800 HU3 kR
Guangzhou  Zhongxin Knowledge Town Land Lot Project  Huangpu District Under Construction
8 BN REBARIAR EHE BI% 1642 %8 KO NTE
Guangzhou  Paitan Town Liujia Village Project Zengcheng District Preliminary
§ B ATELERER e B SIB0 12987 15 8
Guangzhou  Zhucun Subdistrict Shantian Village Project  Zengcheng District Preliminary
0 Eh FEAERER AbE 3% %1 104618 01751 HE
Guangzhou  Huangge Avenue East Project Nansha District Preliminary
1 BN RREFAEE el 95.8% 13,750 22,000 2008 HH
Guangzhou  Donghuan Street Dongsheng Project Panyu District Preliminary
2 fu SHRE HEE 7% 8IS 33119 mss kR
Foshen  Golden Paradise Nanhai District Under Construction
13 fhl ERRHEBERAAGERAR HER 100.0% 18,023 99,125 9125 A
Foshan  Hi-tech Service Zone B Zone Central Nanhai District Preliminary
Avenue Commercial Service Project
(L fimz tBg el 0% TN M3 me
Foshan ~ City Twilight Nanhai District Prefiminary
15 B HEERTERR B 000% 13718 6130 6130 i
Foshan ~ Shangduhui Project Nanhai District Prefiminary
16 Bl ZREI -1 Q4% S 16394 162956 i
Foshan Feicui Binjiang Project Shunde District Preliminary
7 Bl pB2E BilE 0% TIS 980U 26683
Foshan ~ Golden Milestone Chancheng District Preliminary
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Unit: sq.m.
it EMER
FE 4% BRH fiE BHUA  GHER  REER REER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
8 B BiER 538 BilE 8% NW I Thoes A1
Foshan  Youyicheng Project, Chancheng District ~ Chancheng District Prefiminary
9 KE EXMERE EMe 184% 333668 50053 Ny HE
Zhuhai Tangjia Hongshu East Coast Kiangzhou District Under Construction
0 EA LR ERE R 0% 13640 U550 203
Xiamen  Northern District of Xiamen Airport Project  Hul District Preliminary
0 B L5EER HieE 100.0% 44,800 70,020 000 A
Xiamen — Wuyuan Bay Project Huli District Prefiminary
2 EA BEH e %8% 8638 95000 919%
Kiamen Bailujun Project Xiangan District Prefiminary
B EA ERENREN_AER H%E B5% 5% 8850 0y
Xiamen  Phase 2 of Shoukai Vanke Bailujun Project ~ Xiangan District Prefiminary
u Bl BREE BT W% 579 1920 8628
Jinjiang  AiLe Project Jinjiang City Preliminary
5 Bl RIS BT 0% S04 165867 610
Jinjiang ~ Phase 2 of Golden Paradise Binjiang Jinjiang City Prefiminary
% Bl BRfRAR B 03% B4 709 300 FE
Jinjiang ~ Alejia Garden Project Jinjiang City Preliminary
7 @M REHIRE RRT 000% 4% 1063%2 106392
Fuzhou  Hang Cheng Project, Changle Changle City Preliminary
% B BRERRFHER HiEE %3% 1546 43000 ba9  HE
Fuzhou  Yanggieo New Village Project, Gulou District Gulou District Preliminary
B B BUERKHAFERR BUE 000%  TH0 5403 543 i
Fuzhou  Yanggi Road Carpark land lot, Cangshan ~ Cangshan District Preliminary
District
K. EUBTRARE LR BUE 0% 281 370 I3 HE
Fuzhou  Zhonggeng Town Carpark land lot, Cangshan Cangshan District Preliminary
District
K. BUERRNFERR BUE 0o 58 3 W fE
Fuzhou  Juyuanzhou Carpark land lot, Cangshan ~ Cangshan District Preliminary
District
R B EUERELER BUE Bi% BB 09 3061 HE
Fuzhou  Feifeng Mountain Project, Cangshan District  Cangshan District Preliminary
B ERRABEREIN E%E 100.0% 3525 2035 2035 A
Fuzhou Xiufeng Road Carpark land lot, Jinan District Jinan District Preliminary
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Unit: sq.m.
it ERER
3 A1 LERT fig Banhl  fHER  REER BEER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
¥ EE el RER W65% 11779 600920 948 HH
Nanning ~Jinyuzhongyang Project Liangging District Prefiminary
% BE LEE REE B1% M 2160 102661 %
Namning  Gongyuanli Project Liangqing District Prefiminary
¥ BE AE B3R Bd% 8% 463 %9 HE
Nanning ~ Macau Garden Project Qingxiu District Preliminary
¥ mE FREHERER EHE 95.0% 532 217,303 0043 A
Nanning  Golden Paradise Project, High-tech District ~ High-tech District Preliminary
¥ LE RELHAR EhE 08% 20119 4558 26%3 KR
Shanghai  Skycity Qingpu District Under Construction
¥ LE SREEER HiR 0% M9 1914 LI
Shanghai  Emerald Albany Project Jing'an District Preliminary
0 Lk RERER BRE O1% 30 109754 %593 HH
Shanghai  Zhongxing Road Project Jing'an District Preliminary
i B TBRAER ARE %26 191868 1950 185106 R
Nantong ~ North Hi-tech Park Project Gangzha District Under Construction
0 BR R#ER TR 0% TR 0757 &R
Nanjing~ Shangduhui South Project Yuhuatai District Under Construction
B @R Bmek 18R 99.4% 1824 132,000 131260 EE
Nanjing~ City Twlight Jiangning District Under Construction
TR} NPEERER IEE 509% 23,350 73992 Jea1 A
Nanjing~ Jiuduhui South End Land Parcel Project ~Jiangning District Preliminary
5 BR RHEEAXEBIAER TRE 00% 6627 1313 13134 HE
Nanjing~ Chunhua Commercial Street Land Lot B Jiangning District Preliminary
Project, Gaoxinyuan
b i BRI e W% 161206 234059 104063 %R
Suzhou  Yujianshan Project Gaoxin District Under Construction
B ERRERER RIE 0% T8 139 8613 EE
Suzhou  Vanke Country Garden Project Wujiang District Under Construction
8 Ei LEE RIE 00 17378 393y 13735 R
Suzhou Park Avenue Wujiang District Under Construction
H &N Rl RTE B1% 190 15715 8653 B
Suzhou  Dongshan Villa Wuzhong District Preliminary
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Unit: sq.m.
it EMER
FE 4% BRH fiE BHUA  GHER  REER REER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
0 FAM EliAR TXEE %% 59 M8 04 A8
Suzhou  Qingjian Lake Project Industrial District Prefiminary
I RlbRR RiE 8% 13840 193,664 106070 1%
Suzhou  Yangshan North Project Gaoxin District Preliminary
Nl REAE Ang 00% /M 451293 By R
Kunshan ~ Park Avenue Zhou Shi Towin Under Construction
5 B #%ER #EE 9%3% 163930 246,067 B0 HE
Kunshan ~Jinxi Project Jinxi Town Preliminary
%o Ef febsaR HiRE B0 379 138581 1312 EE
Waxi Meicun Land Lot Xinwu District Under Construction
5 o ENBRZ i 93% B9 107409 B2 EE
Yangzhou  Vanke Feichui Yunshan Hanjiang District Under Construction
% B ENERER i 8% 497 7820 050 EE
Yangzhou  Vanke Feichui Xi'an Hanjiang District Under Construction
5 IRE HEE 8% B9 95707 B kR
Xuzhou  Bei Chen Tian Di Gulou District Under Construction
BN il BERARYE 0% 015 87108 W6 EE
Xuzhou Puyue Mountain Economic & Under Construction
Technological
Development Zone
% LR ZRE B0% 536 186076 772 FE
Xuzhou  Tong Shan Road Yunlong District Preliminary
60 A IHHAR HlE Wi dMe Ba0sl J55  HE
Xuzhou  YuDaiRoad Tongshan Disrict Preliminary
I ERMAT-SpisRE RUE B0% 51050 15313 15478 EE
Xuzhou  Huadong Machinery Plant Phase | Land Lot B Quanshan District Preliminary
Project
6 fifl HR=4 #iE %0% B8 6.9 oo AR
Hangzhou  Hangchen Phase 2 Yuhang District Under Construction
83 i RATI ARSI ER Rk 46.7% 8283 182,23 8518 R
Hangzhou  Liangzhu Culture Village Future Town Yuhang District Under Construction
6 i TERLARR iR B3 8K 1334% 127169
Hangzhou  Qixiangiao Project Yuhang District Preliminary
6 fif IRA=H B B4% N5 833 150 EE
Hangzhou  Beichengzhiguang Il Yuhang District Under Construction
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3 A1 LERT fig Banhl  fHER  REER BEER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
6 i HTAERER e 00 2305 6823 6623
Hengzhou  Hengxing Road Commercial Project Yuhang District Prefiminary
6 il FRARRL i} S0% 248 287960 1680 R
Hangzhou  Huanglong International Center Xihu District Under Construction
6 il SRR [ 08% 00 174132 13520
Hangzhou  San Dun North Land Lot Xihu District Prefiminary
6 i B LR ATRER BlE 0% A2 466 1406 #
Hangzhou  Hei Shang Ming Yue Xi Di Kuai Project Kiaoshan District Prefiminary
0 i L FlE W8 B30 200848 g% KR
Hangzhou  Vanke Tie Jian Jiang Wan Cheng Kiaoshan District Under Construction
A hEE el 6% 4295 103238 080 EE
Hangzhou  Park Avenue Gongshu District Under Construction
7 REABER HEE 100.0% 14513 50,796 079
Hangzhou ~ Tian Ma Apartment Project Gongshu District Preliminary
B ERIER gFE 1% 003 681 b6 ER
Hangzhou  Fu Chun Land Lot 16 Project Fuyang District Under Construction
i UNEY Vb e 000% 81828 245484 usil HE
Hangzhou  Wei Lai Zhi Guang Yuhang District Preliminary
15 ER % HERLR 8B8% 4260 113425 0404 ER
Jiaxing Yue Zhong Huan Economic and Under Construction
Technological
Development Zone
s EE SRR HERYE 000% I 834K LI
Jiaxing Cheng Bei Road Project Economic and Prefiminary
Technological
Development Zone
noER BHFE g 0¥ o4 139,548 687  EE
Ningbo  Ming Zhong Jia Di Yinzhou District Under Construction
B ER KEHEH gile 08 B 7980 Ny EE
Ningbo  Yiyun County Project Yinzhou District Under Construction
HER FRHRE gl 93% w3 my 19666 &R
Ningbo  Donggan Lake Project Yinzhou District Under Construction
0 ER D3AR 0 B3%6  BM 10825 106414 1%
Ningbo ~ East Yinxiang City Yinzhou District Preliminary
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Unit: sq.m.
it EMER
FE 4% BRH fiE BHUA  GHER  REER REER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
8 ER FEMARITRR BiE 0% 138665 140052 135990 1
Ningbo ~ Baishixianping, Donggjan Lake Project Yinzhou District Prefiminary
8 ER R-9E RiE B1% Mgl 806N B AR
Ningbo  Tian Yi Jiu Zhu Gaoxin District Under Construction
8 ER F90 RifE a8 T 1614 6005 EE
Ningbo  Dong Cheng 1902 Gaoxin District Under Construction
% ER EELI0TR TR 8% 029 48283 qao wE
Ningbo ~ Yun Lu Wan No. 10 Land Plot Jiangei District Preliminary
& ER BEET AR HEE 6% AT 040 093 HE
Ningbo ~ Dairy Factory, Haishu District Haishu District Prefiminary
% ER ESEMIRALHRER R “r% 0000 400 17880 #
Ningbo  East Tongxin Lake project, South Vanke City, Zhenhai District Prefiminary
Zhenhai
g 2 BRI 2 0% 549 180% 51 kR
Wenzhou ~ Shi Dai Center Lucheng District Under Construction
8 2 1HEE 2 03% S48 11326 1414
Wenzhou ~ Qidu Project Lucheng District Preliminary
-1 BSTLETAIER HER 0% om3 183057 61731
Wenzhou  Ou Hai Center Unit A-07 Ou Hai District Preliminary
0 AR BRZE BvE 00% 8B4 21801 g8 EE
Hefei Shidaizhiguang Binhu New District Under Construction
9 AR RIFAER ER% 08% 919 43379 335 f8
Hefei Changjiang Road East Feidong County Preliminary
n AR 1HEE LiKE 0% 22512 40507 us3
Hefei Beicheng Project Beicheng New Preliminary
District
B EE SHEL LR 162% 0069 5017 Bg R
Nanchang  Golden Paradise Binjiang Qingshanhu District Under Construction
% BE 2485 e 0% 805 17414 65 R
Nanchang  Legend on Midtown Economic and Under Construction
Technological
Development Zone
% BE HimiE Be% %5% 7873 196832 ngM ERE
Nanchang ity Garden Nanchang County Under Construction
% B BE174ER EEE 92 115 1918 1849 #i%
Nanchang ~ Wanli 174 Project Wanli District Preliminary

ERMEMRH BBR AT China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
7 AR F)ERR ghe 00% 16782 5189 15569 KR
Beijing Beixiaoying Project Chaoyang Disrict Under Construction
B AR SRRERAER ghe 05% 9% 3150 5% 08
Beijing Chaoyang Xidan Shopping Mall Project  Chaoyang Disrict Prefiminary
9 AR R B03ERER HitE 00% 1780 52889 245 8
Beijing Haidian North 0031 Land Lot Haidian District Preliminary
0 kR BEAE00628E eyid 100.0% 83550 13882 138825 A&
Beijing Haidian Yongfeng 0062 Project Haidian District Preliminary
0 kR BIEKE013EE HiEE 00% 85585 1626% 47 e
Beijing Haidian Yongfeng 0132 Project Haidian District Prefiminary
02 IR IRENGORRR ENE 98.6% 9293 94,966 936 fE
Beijing Tongzhou Core Area, Beijing Tongzhou District Preliminary
03 kR YERE 7R 0% 400486 384,881 153952 A&
Beijing Miyun Project Miyun District Preliminary
04 X2 PEREE BAHE 60 U589 685897 78333 HE
Tianjin Zhongguotang Project Binhai New District Preliminary
05 L A#ERES BHE 0% 16583 3273 b EE
Tangshan  Nanhuchunxiao Project Lunan District Under Construction
06 R EWtER g¥E 160% 6884 173813 g0 FE
Beijing Qijia Project, Changping North Changping District Preliminary
0 g5 L EREFE 00% 9869 201,508 80603 HH
Panjin Pan Jin Project Liangdongwan New Preliminary
District
08 L 2t BitE 1% 5340 133418 6053 H4
Tangshan  Golden Paradise Lubei District Preliminary
09 X2 e EA¥E 08% %M 13689 53 kR
Tianjin Zitai Binhai New District Under Construction
" 2 HERA HER 0% oM 78718 Tas  EE
Tianjin Wugingnanhu Wuging District Under Construction
" X BEERAERR ag 61.7% 81,935 82,390 50853 A
Tianjin Haitainyanju Project, Ji County Ji County Preliminary
n  x% e i 1000% 168000 329,000 W00
Tianjin Yangwuzhuang South Project Xiing District Preliminary
[IER ALy i 63%% 427 16835 106297 kR
Shenyang  Hongmei MSG Factory Project Tiexi District Under Construction
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attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
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g Rk i 108% 108183 486823 05T EE
Shenyang  Fei Cui Zni Guang Tiexi District Under Construction
ns &h P NTE 90% 94 75965 6837 EE
Shenyang  Sun Yat-Sen Park Heping District Under Construction
e &% 520 iyl 0% 109776 219,552 uy  EE
Shenyang  Feicui Park Yuhong District Under Construction
17 &R BEAE gt 97.5% 45,100 99,220 %740 A
Shenyang  Four Season Park Yuhong District Prefiminary
ng &% R el M8 MM 828 a0
Shenyang  Changjiangfu Yuhong District Prefiminary
9 xE Hl+E YANE BO% 123 B 0w R
Dalian Ban Shan Ban Hai Shahekou District Under Construction
0 AE RHRRARE Tk 7% U0 48710 e i
Dalian Chuming Food Processing Plant Ganjingzi District Preliminary
1 RE ERAER HHTE %1% B19 513 038
Dalian Huadong Road Ganjingzi District Prefiminary
12 KE F i M B0 B30 U398 B2 fE
Dalian Wuyi Road, Jinzhou Jinzhou District Preliminary
13 & & FRE 08 118 19401 oy AR
Changchun  Ruyuan Jingyue District Under Construction
% RE e FRE D5% WA MeN g EE
Changchun  Hui Si Le Ban Fu Hua Yuan Jingyue District Under Construction
15 K% 2E2R R Bi% A1 750 Ny EE
Changchun ~ Gold Milestone Qikai District Under Construction
1 K% FRARER HER 03% 1100 43503 IR
Changchun  Jingyang Avenue Project Luyuan District Preliminary
- SRR fibE 58.6% 63599 127,198 5% R
Qingdao ~ King Metropolis Chengyang District Under Construction
18 [EE $R0E ZRE 8% 582 14119 899 ERE
Vantai Feicui Park Thifu District Under Construction
19 [EE i FElE 0% 498 13172 RTINS
Vantai City Twilight Fushan District Under Construction
130 EE BEE HILE B0% 060 109993 104493 1%
Yantai Fei Chui Wan Laishan District Preliminary
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GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
131 @ B RifE 8B8% 20000 64 7083 kR
Jinan Lu Cheng Gaoxin District Under Construction
12 R Bhifx e 160% 69 4178 6686 EE
Jinan Lu Cheng Commercial Gaoxin District Under Construction
13 EE %8 EilE 7%  BA 7059 60019 HiE
Jinan Iitai Li Cheng District Prefiminary
13 EE EiEnZD BilE 0 B0 451722 % &R
Jinan Vanke-Longfor Zijun Li Cheng District Under Construction
13 ZEEEE e 9%0% 1494 7508 7358 A
Jinan Yuefeng Commercial Project Shizhong District Prefiminary
1% @ BEFIBREEHR ETE 04%6 255 7628 B HE
Jinan Haiyanmen Residential Project Lixia District Preliminary
137 AR 2R 2R 8B8% 007 14874 131784 ER
Tayuan  The Paradiso Jinyuan District Under Construction
138 AR hRE *EIE B0 819 20491 199967 %
Taiyuan Park Avenue Jiancaoping District Preliminary
19 A& 2 RESE B w306 416045 048
Taiyuan — Xiao Zhen Jiancaoping District Preliminary
W AR Ey R 180% 433 96N KNE N
Taiyuan Ziyuan Yingze District Preliminary
1 E ER20aER KR 6% 146745 409,541 By9  EE
Chengdu  Huayang 220mu Project Tianfu New District Under Construction
WA HELEL 8 1000% 121000 145,139 513 EE
Chengdu ~ Wu Long Shan Lan Shan Xidu District Under Construction
3 A BEH 848 %% 1948 417659 6776 KR
Chengdu  Dream Town Pidu District Under Construction
W RE EeE QERHREE 99 160682 31075 18007 R
Wuhan Fei Cui Jiu Xi Econoric & Under Construction
Technological
Development Zone
o HE $REL #hE 8% 2509 938268 2087 EE
Wuhan Feicui Binjiang Project Hanyang District Under Construction
o HE “tRIARE IFE B0% 4030 208576 93859
Wuhan Erqi Binjiang Business Area Jiang'an District Preliminary
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it EMER
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GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
o RE BR2e AUE B1% Bk 13 B KR
Wuhan Fei Chui Yun Tai Hongshan District Under Construction
g HE HUHER gl 0% T2 19899 19695 R
Wuhan Hongshan Village Hongshan District Under Construction
W % M AEm BITHE 9% 2000 70000 30 EE
Xi'an Cheng Shi Zhi Guang Mi You Qujiang New District Under Construction
150 EX fimz tEERA kTHE bo%  401% 20771 %% A8
Xian Cheng Shi Zhi Guang South Qujiang New District Prefiminary
151 ER Ehxe e WS 45T 03610 09 KR
Ki'an Vanke Tianyu Gaoxin District Under Construction
152 ER RNERER iR 800% 161200 668498 S48 B
Xi'an (Gaoxin Baotian Project Gaoxin District Prefiminary
18 EX NERRES RifE 8B0% 161244 30770 W5
Xi'an Garden South Project Gaoxin District Preliminary
1% EX BLE ke 08 BB 16313 g4
Xi'an Land Lot of Late Stage of Xi'an Prestigious ~ Yanta Disrict Prefiminary
Academy
155 E% BRER ke 1% W00 93085 wom Eg
Ki'an Feicui International Project Yanta District Under Construction
1% EZ LE RZE T50% 44T 474458 o KR
Xi'an Runyuan Chang'an Under Construction
157 o ERZRENOM HERE 0% 0B 40 078 #E
Zhengzhou  Vanke Meijing, Glamorous City Airport Area District Preliminary
158 A ERXRENA HEER S0% 204 52609 %831 HE
Zhengzhou  Vanke Meijing, Glamorous City Airport Area District Preliminary
159 B WEZE (Bits) 2R 08% 7068 162170 6084 %
Zhengzhou  Rancho Santa Fe (West land lot) Zhongmu District Preliminary
160 BA WREZE (R ButkiERl) REE 08%  TH8 163 TSI
Zhengzhou  Rancho Santa Fe (Margin land of eastand ~ Zhongmu District Preliminary
west land lot)
161 A ENXR%a SR 0DI% 882 2083% 8110 FH
Zhengzhou  Vanke Tianlun Zitai Huiji District Preliminary
162 B RREAMLR )14 0I% 643 193163 B4 HE
Zhengzhou  Zitai 9% Land Lot Huiji District Preliminary

ERMEMRH BBR AT China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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Bl Pk

Unit: sq.m.
it | ENEE
3 A1 LR fig BHUA  GHER  REER BEER ER
GFA
attributable to
% of Planned  Vanke's equity
No.  City Project name Location Shareholding ~ Site area GFA  Shareholders  Progress
163 Bl LN H “tE %A% WA 41619 W kR
Zhengzhou  Vanke Metropolis Erqi District Under Construction
164 BH BRES gRiE i 793 71198 R
Zhengzhou  Fusheng Souare Project Zhengdong New Prefiminary
District
165 BM LHL 7\ 608% 62197 1885% 1097 HE
Zhengzhou  Zheng Fang Ji Jinshui District Preliminary
166 BN RREFREK K3t FRE 00 7 B Bt HE
Zhengzhou  Zhongyuan Yandong Project Land Zhongyuan District Preliminary
Lots K2 and K3
167 & hREH 22k 0% UR5 130087 6180 R
Guiyang  Gong Yuan Chuan Qi Yunyan District Under Construction
168 &F hREs = 07% 109630 314021 19209 &R
Guiyang ~ Fei Chui Chuan Qi Yunyen District Under Construction
169 &R PELHER 22k 59.0% 655 B9 KR
Guiyang  Zhonghua North Road Project Yunyan District Preliminary
m B 04 ] BHE B8%  JM0 15 1879 TR
Kunming ~ Xin Jin Hua Yuan Gaoxin District Under Construction
m E# 0yl HtEbE B8 U605 457% 1987 &R
Kunming ~ Yinhaiboan Project Dianchi Tourist Resort Under Construction
1 EH gmet BEE BI% I 153236 15035 #E
Kunming ~ City Twilight Panlong District Preliminary
73 RERE  ERMENAER KERR B0% NS 11719 3% s
Urumgi Convention and Exhibition New Zone 59 Shuimogou District Preliminary
Mu Project
3t 13958320 31573239 18,922,093
Total

LR RS EREA
BERABEA S HARY
1,236.3187T °

The aggregate of land premium and general

redevelopment costs of the above projects

attributable to the interests of the Company
amounted to RMB123.63 billion.
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£ B ¥TIE hN G 3 IR B 36ME - 1%
AArEEERTENRE R

As at the end of the Reporting Period to the Disclosure Date

of this Report, the Group newly added 36 development

projects. Area attributable to the equity shareholders of the

HMEIELAL389EF K - B Company amounted to approximately 4.389 million sq.m.,
LEIEH636.08F 5K - 74 with a gross floor area of approximately 6.360 million sq.m.,
BERIAT with details as follows:
B FAK
Unit: sq.m.
gt | ENER
RS bR frg Bilthl HRER REER BEER ER
GFA attributable
to Vanke's equity
%of  Sitearea  Planned  Shareholders
No.  City Project name Location shareholding (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.)  Progress
T BIIHER L 0% 95T 29140 160309 A%
Foshan  Xijiang Joy Project Gaoming District Preliminary
2 U HEER BHE 100.0% 978 58710 56710  FE
Foshan  Yueduhui Project Chancheng District Preliminary
3 B BEMIEH RLE 00% 342 55453 286 §H
Fuzhou  Xiajing New Town Project Cangshan District Preliminary
4 @M AiEHER ALE 00% B3 6397 31988 HIE
Fuzhou  Baihuazhou Project Cangshan District Preliminary
5 Wl HERNER HE 1000% 139,968 419,808 49808 HIE
Zhongshan  Haizhou Project, Gu Town Gu Town Preliminary
6 Ul NERBHER NERER 100.0% 6628 1463 14635 HH
Zhongshan  Xianfeng Temple Project, Huojy ~ Huoju Development Preliminary
Zone
7 B 2L #EE 617% 82354 451482 28,688 A
Guangzhou Guangzhou South Station Project  Panyu District Preliminary
8 &l BRN-HER RiTE 50% 138470 193666 106517 #i%
Guangzhou  Phase 2 Yujianshan Project The New & High- Preliminary
tech Industrial
Development Zone
9 B BfEEEEE RE 40.0% 182100 224,200 89,680 I
Wuxi Guoxin Guanhuwan Project Xinwu District Preliminary
0 EE RKHER AnEnE 600% 88912 222019 133367 A1
Jiaxing  Changshui Road Project Jiaxing International Preliminary
Business Park
1 EB TRHENIER ARE 800% 0742 Rub 13781 HIE
Shenyang 203 Gong Nong Road Project Dadong District Preliminary
8 RbRKE-HEE s 00% 6420 128444 091 HE
Qingdao  Ruiyang Road Houtian Phase Two  Chengyang District Preliminary

12

Project

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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B Tk

Unit: sq.m.
REl ENER
FE H ERAR fig BalAl  GHER  REER BEER ER
GFA attributable
to Vanke's equity
%of  Sitearea  Planned  Shareholders
No.  City Project name Location shareholding (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.)  Progress
13 Ag AFHCHRER i 1000% 73800 129,292 19092 #E
Dalian Youjia Village Land Lot C Project ~ Ganjingzi District Preliminary
W AR RFB_HER 2RE 600% 2044 105694 63417 HiH
Taiyuen  Wujiabao Phase Two Project Jinyuan District Preliminary
15 AR REE-HAE ERE 600% 35492 141966 85180  FiH
Taiyuen  Wujiabao Phase Three Project Jinyuan District Preliminary
16 %R HENEER LS 0% 15593 89233 118 FHH
Beiing  Hong Lingjin Bridge Project Chaoyang District Preliminary
7 kR EitER F%RE 00% 7470 4420 2100 HiH
Beiing  Military Village Project Mentougou District Preliminary
18 HE AR REHE 1000%  B05 91 AL
Wuhan  Gold Silver Lake Project East West Lake Preliminary
District
9 ER DERERER BsE 00% 121741 355417 01875 FE
Xi'an Park South Road Project Yanta District Preliminary
0 Bl D&EAER mHE 100% 28000 514,600 51460 #1
Kunshan  European Expression Project Gaoxin District preliminary
N BB BABEEER REE 090% 55900 15652 76695  #i
Wuxi Headquarters Business Park Project Liangxi District preliminary
2 EfR R-FH45HER 2R 1000% 103800 269,992 2999 FE
Wuxi Tianyi New City 4% Lot Project  Huishan District preliminary
BB A—HHSTHIER BlLE 100.0% 88,200 193970 193970 i
Wuxi Tianyi New City 5% Lot Project  Huishan District preliminary
# BB REME-288 i e 1000% 126000 227,200 2100 HE
Shenyang  Kunming Lake Road-2 Project  economic and preliminary
technological
development zone
5 RE BEROMECHER H#1E 100.0% 55,000 135,345 135345 Bt
Dalian  Sports Center 4th Phrase C Project Ganzijing District preliminary
26 FBE  ILKELHGCOGI02ER  RHE 1000% 11989 41982 92 #E
Nanning  Jiangbei Road North GC2016-102 Gaoxin District preliminary
Project
7 EE BEREEAGCHI6-10088 #HE 1000% 14948 59792 0192 HE
Nanning  Pengfei Road West GC2016-106  Gaoxin District preliminary

Project

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016
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B Tk

Unit: sq.m.
RE ENER
FE H CEES fig Baltfl  EHER  REER BEER ER
GFA attributable
to Vanke's equity
%of  Sitearea  Planned  Shareholders
No.  City Project name Location shareholding (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.)  Progress
8 L& EEMEMNER BEE 1000% 40361 48433 18433 H5
Shanghai  Lingang New City Project Nanhui District preliminary
N ER ERUIER #hR 1000% 3597 41143 61143 B
Ningbo  Vanke City 1# Project Zhenhai District preliminary
0 ER ERUEE g5k 100.0% 25,587 38,381 38381 AIH
Ningbo  Vanke City 24 Project Zhenhai District preliminary
31 A BiRE ZEE 1000% 122207 356,000 356000  HI
Xuzhou  Qiaohu Project Yunlong District preliminary
2 ER EIN-SIA ! ElLE B4% 66686 146700 18998 B
Changshu  Vanke Gongwang North Project ~ Yushan preliminary
3 HR E7REtRbRER BNE 300% 115610 231220 69,366 FI#
Nantong  Yucai Middle School North Project Tongzhou District preliminary
¥ WEER  AEETWAE i 500% 111,000 348,000 174000 Hi%
Ha'erbin  Zhaoshang Notting Hill Project  Xiangfang District preliminary
¥ BE  ERTEER ERLER 1000% 41800 146,300 146300 B
Xi'an Chanba Middle School Project  Chanba District preliminary
¥ E% R®TFER ARE 70.0% 42000 224,700 157,290 #i
Xi'an Zhang Qianhu Project Weiyang District preliminary
ait 2,633,022 6,359,956 4388741 -
Total

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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REBHF N OFEY - B
#7310/ B bt
EIEE - REEEEREL99.18
Tk -

Apart from the core business, the Group proactively

sought for new businesses with competitiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired

10 logistics properties project, with a planned GFA

of approximately 991 thousand sqg.m.

Bl FhK

Unit: sg,m.
it | ENER
F$m HRER g BR (HER REER BEER HBEEE
GFA attributable
Planned  to Vanke's equity
No. City Project name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA holding  Progress
I ER LmiEEE 1B 0% 191334 10829 53415 ExIHE
Ningbo  Beilun Port Project Beilun District Completed and leased
2 zE BERENER R%# 50% 140,000 90,571 62 kR CxrEl
Jiaxing ~ Automobile Town Project, ~ Chang'an Town Under construction and
Haining all pre-leased
3 B e EIEE idld 100% 8,010 83357 83357 EE
Guangzhou ConghuaWandun Project ~ Conghua District Under construction
4 ER RKREER Fk 0% 110983 63406 31703 BrItd
Nanjing  Lishui Logistic Park Project  Lishui Completed and leased
5 ER IEEANREER HERLE 0% 122110 7629 B ExIHA
Nanjing  Jiangning Airport Logistic ~ Economic Completed and leased
Park Project Development
District
6 X2 HEETERERR Y-S 0% 16667 10453 568 BrItf
Tianjin -~ Wuging E-commerce Park ~ Wuging Completed and leased
Project
[ ARHENREER Za kil 0% 110001 107,213 5363 EE
Chengdu  Tianfu New District Logistic ~ Tianfu New District Under construction
Park Project
§ &R HENRERE HERRE 0% 132667 85007 04 kR H9%IE
b - ERES
BEMR
Hefei Xingang Logistic Park Project  Economic Under Construction,
Development partly leased for
Zone completed area and

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016
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B Tk

Unit: sq,m.
ok | ERES
FH T CEES g Bi (HER BEER BEER REEE
GFA attributable
Planned  to Vanke's equity
No. City Project name Location Shareholding  Site area GFA holding  Progress
9 EH ERRIMRERE RFRZRAEE 100% 223898 12506 15064 EE
Kunming ~ Wankunchangshui Logistic ~ Airport Economic Under construction
Park Project Area, Dianzhong
New District
0 B BT hiRERE B¢ Sk 00% 130771 148248 148248 HRE
Foshan ~ Wanfoleping Logistic Park ~ Sanshui Leping Under construction
Project Industrial Park
&t 1,414,441 990,585 673,627
Total

WMEHAN AEBEEENRS
INET  ERH2EEBREE
#3IE B - Rivington{4155% 18
B 6% IEE - 18R
A& AE15 8 B « Jackson X
B22-125: B B 5B B - #
=& T 2 H3821775%: 18 B A
Market{22405% 18 B 218 18
B - HTE AT E 2 BEwalld
6005RIEE : EABIIGERE
885RIE R °

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to expand overseas business, and participated in
five projects in New York at Macy’s, Sears, No. 41
Rivington Street, Pier 6 and No. 1 Brooklyn Bridge
Park No. 22-12 Jackson Avenue, two projects in
San Francisco at No. 2177 3rd Street and No.2240
Market Street. The Group entered Seattle for the
first time and participated in No. 600 Wall Street;
and participated in No.88 Camp Street in Hong
Kong.
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(1) BEFREBER

T -

FAEHMEDARIKRERS
o

T -

FBEFLETEREE B

C. Other investments

(M

Investment of securities

Not applicable.

Equity interests held in other listed companies

Not applicable.

Shareholding in non-listed financial

ETRTIRERER corporations and companies planning for
listing
TEA - Not applicable.
BYERREBR (4) Investment in wealth management products
By @5
Unit: RMB’0000
EmERE BITA 8 Felz
Annualised
Name of product Issuer Amount return
BB E — BR25% ARy EEEERERAT 6,550 7.34%
HIEEEEENE
CMS Wealth -No. 2 Guangde  China Merchants Fund
Specialised Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Management Plan
[EESE — BFE25 ] B ZEIRTT 600 2.64%
AREEBEIETE
“CIB Gold Snow Ball — Priority  Industrial Bank
No. 2” Renminbi Wealth
Management Scheme
ITREERES TRIRTT 2,100 3%-4%
ICBC Credit Suisse Monetary  ICBC
Fund
#or— RIRE ERRIRTT 450,000 2.80%
Gan Yuan - Fu Shun Ying China Construction Bank
© EIRIE £ 55733008 B ERTT 200,000 3%

Gold Snow Ball Priority
No. 5 33008

Industrial Bank

ZE—REFEHRE Annual Report 2016
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TERRERBR

HERITEmET RN ER
D R EbIE SR (B
BARRTERAR R
R EARER - BRIE
R EERRE)

Remarks on risk analysis
and management of
derivative positions
during the Reporting
Period (including but not
limited to market risk,
liquidity risk, credit risk,
operational risk and legal
risk, etc.)

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

()

Investment in derivatives

RETIINEBREXTEHELNRR  XFAR
AETHIISEETINEEREZE T BHIINERZYD
(DF) » ZAE3.25FERTTHER S R EEHINEZL
(NDF)& £ 2/ 5 - DFFINDFZE SN {8 5K 89 BAFR A0
THBER - FBEHTEIER - FEH|E R
[Rfz o

In order to limit the risk associated with
the fluctuations of exchange rate of foreign
currency loan, the Company entered into a
deliverable forward (DF) contract to hedge
foreign currency loan of USD1.15 billion and
another non-deliverable forward (NDF) contract
agreement of USD325 million expired during
the year. In terms of the term and amount
of the foreign currency loan, DF and NDF
limits the risk of fluctuations of exchange rate
through fixed forward exchange rate.
REENESEEELNELR QB E361ESE
TRS0EB TR BERRE T HEENNXE
BAX(RS)  RERBFBNEREAEHNHEFHK
AR - AR B #E A ST H R UER B9 F B RIS,
RIEZIREE N R maOEF 77 E o IRSE
MBAETAABTERNHRMCABERN - BB
HE B R - R R F R o

In order to limit the risk associated with the
fluctuations of interest rate, the Company
entered into interest rate swap (IRS) contracts
to hedge floating rate loans of USD361
million and HKD$5.00 billion respectively. The
Company would charge the counterparty an
interest according to the floating rate, to pay
the floating interest receivable by creditor, and
pay interest to the counterparty according to
a fixed rate. In terms of the term and amount
of the USD and HKD borrowings, IRS limits the
risk of fluctuations of interest rate through fixed
forward interest rate.
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ERENTERBEHAT
SERIEMAABEE
BNER HOTEMmAR
BEMNDMERE BB
A8 R ERERRERES
HHRTE

Change in market price
or fair value of the
derivatives invested
during the Reporting
Period, as well as
the method, related
assumptions and
parameters used to
analyse the fair value of
derivatives should be
disclosed

HREBHARTERNEE
BREEFAZEALEBRE
HE—-REHALRE %
EBERECHFHA
Remarks on whether
there has been a material
change in the accounting
policy and accounting
measurement principles
for the Company’s
derivatives during the
Reporting Period as
compared with those of
the previous reporting
period

BYEE RBASYTH
RSN ITERKRER
g ESIE RN EIRER
Special opinion on
derivative investment
and risk control from
independent directors,
sponsors or financial
advisors

NDFZ 4 2| B 45 2 B AN #R &5 HA 75 208,381,888 7T
ARBr Y

NDF expired during the year contributed
income of RMB83.818.8 thousand for the
Company during the Reporting Period.
DFRIRSHF A MR AR BEZEBH AR AREH
BERYE -

The change in the fair value of DF and IRS did
not affect the Group's profit and loss during
the Reporting Period.
WEHRDFRIRSAREELRF —ZIHAMNEm®
BT 5 REFETE °

The fair value of DF and IRS is determined
with reference to the prevailing spot rate of
products on the delivery date.

Nil

NRAVBIYEFRREENDF DFRIRSE SR T
B 7 INE BN E RN R 88 AR
ERIEKR - RRIBRATHERAE -

The independent directors of the Company
are of the view that NDF, DF & IRS and other
financial derivatives prevent the possible
loss associated with foreign currency loan
in the event of significant fluctuations in
exchange rate or interest rate. The relevant
arrangement of the Group had been prudent
and reasonable.

ZE—REFERE Annual Report 2016 119



4 EEERE
IV Directors’ Report

BEMRTERRENFREBRE

Derivative positions as at the end of the Reporting Period

B ARBETR
Unit: RMB'0000

BAeNEE  HRENER

Contract
amount as at Contract amount

the beginning of  as at the end of

BRENEE
ERF2016ER
FEELH(%)

Contract

RERREER

amount as a
percentage of
Profit during  the Company’s

the Reporting  net assets as at

ENEE Type of contracts the period the period Period the end of 2016
IRS IRS - 701,355.80 - 4.34%
NDF#IDF NDF and DF 198,867.50 802,251.50 8,381.88 4.96%
&% Total 198,867.50 1,503,607.30 8,381.88 9.30%

) ~ArEEFEHEBHEREIS
MEFEINECRBEEM

TRAERENR

120 BEERMDERZAF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(6) Information on Fair Value Measurement Items

and Monetary Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities Held
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4A3EERMER FFER

431 DB A RIS K EERE &R EREE
BEE2ERBRENEI L
WA AR MAISE MR R
RN RBEA T ARE27.29%
T R FRBREN2.07% : 2
DAIERAHEENRBEOBA
R¥7.55( 00 « 5 2 FRIBREN
0.57% °

432 ARIBAISAEFE X GG
DEIEEWANBED
AEFBMTIEERARMAES @
ANBEEATHEFPE BFEZWMA
DE EEMOBMAREER - FOH
EERSEEBRSLEE - REY
N AISREPMEEENAARE
20.METT - HAEBRFELEIWAL
H i 50.9% : B & ARPH L
FABARBINIEL  HAEES
FERE A BILEI0.5% o

NAEE (RERREBHAESFR
SHBRARESF EMRARENE
TEBA) EE RREEAER -
ZORMA R ~ FRS% A ERRERAM
HRAE AN EXT2ER - HER
PGB o ARIEIA EFBHE
BMEF 2 A HEBEE -

4.3 Major suppliers and customers

43.1 Percentage of purchases from top five supplier in

total to the total purchase for the year

During the Reporting Period, the purchase made by
the Group from the top five materials and equipment
suppliers amounted to RMB2.729 billion in total,
accounted for 2.07% of the total purchases for the year.
Of which the the purchase made by the Group from
the top supplier amounted to approximately RMB755
million, and accounted for 0.57% of the total purchases
for the year.

43.2 Percentage of revenue to the turnover of the top

five customers of the Group

The current main product of the Group is commodity
housing. The major customers are the individual housing
buyers, which are in a large number and fragmented.
Only certain OEM projects from the government or
group purchases can generate higher turnover. During
the Reporting Period, the turnover of top five customers
was approximately RMB2.04 billion, representing 0.9%
of the revenue of the Group for the year. Of which
the turnover of the top customer was approximately
RMB1,190 million, representing 0.5% of the revenue of
the Group for the year.

The directors (and the close associates as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), supervisors,
senior management officers, core technicians,
shareholders holding 5% of shares and other related
parties of the Group do not have any interests in the
above customers and suppliers. The Group does not
have any connected relationship with the above major
suppliers and customers.
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AAEESHAEIERBR 4.4 Regular Working Report of the Board of Directors
4412016 EH Bl EETESE 44.1 The Board held 6 board meetings during 2016
BE+rEESEeE AN E R A. On 11 March 2016, the Ninth Meeting of the

A.

122

2016FE38118 B B & 3% = 3 Seventeenth Board was held to consider and approve
WEB T W TE?—%% = NG the following resolutions. The announcement regarding
2016538138 B £ Bt 3 B 49 b the relevant resolutions was published on the website
(www.hkexnews.hk) 245 + #2016 of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
F30148 T & R (b B & % $|§>> (www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 13 March 2016,
(BHEBERY (FEEBAR) (& and was published in China Securities Journal, Securities
B MESEALE - Times, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Daily

and CNINFO Network, respectively, on 14 March 2016.

3%

EES

Resolution

10

11

BRFHEMZIH2015FEEEREERIENNRES

The resolution in relation to the appropriation and write-off of the provision for diminution
in asset value for the year 2015

2015F E B E

The financial report for the year 2015

BREREEES2015F E1F MM BB R ZIHHA

The special remarks on the deposit and use of proceeds raised from previous fund-raising
exercises during 2015 was considered and approved

2015FEAEES B HAHERS

The internal control self-assessment report for the year 2015

2015 EME DB R D 4LR B FEER

The proposal on profit appropriation and dividend distribution for the year 2015
BAR20165F R EIS &t Bl EHPTHIRR

The resolution regarding the reappointment of certified public accountants for the year 2016
2015 EHE - MEM015FEREARE

The 2015 annual report and its summary, and the 2015 annual results announcement

2015 EHgHEERmE

The corporate social responsibility report for the year 2015
ARREETSTFELEBRRALNBRETIAETHIINFHERBRENESR

The resolution regarding granting the chairman of the Board and his authorised person(s)
the authority to use investment instruments to carry out investments in overseas property
projects

BN ER2015FERENBRENER

The resolution regarding confirmation of economic profit bonus for the year 2015

ARERERABRGABRYBEEETSNENATIRE  MBEEEANZER

The resolution regarding change in job duties of senior management personnel and
appointment of the secretary to the Board, executive vice president and supervisor of
Finance

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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E+HEEEFEETREHEN2016  B. On 27 April 2016, the Tenth Meeting of the Seventeenth

FAR2/B A B2 WEBT Board was held to consider and approve the following
AT SR - HEAER2016F4H27 resolutions. The announcement regarding the relevant
AR B S XS AR QR ML resolutions was published on the website of The Stock
(www.hkexnews.hk)Z#H - WH2016 Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk)
F4H288 HIERCH EEZHFH) - after trading hour on 27 April 2016, and was published
(BEER) (LEBEHFR) (FBH in China Securities Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai
AR AMEBMENS - Securities News and Securities Daily and CNINFO

Network, respectively, on 28 April 2016.

Fi  BR
No.  Resolution
1 2016FF—FERERBHHRE
2016 first quarterly report and financial statements
2 AR AM2015FERREFASHNER
The resolution regarding the convening of 2015 annual general meeting
3 BRENEX (F8) ARARAMEE (F8) ARAFEENZER

The resolutions regarding the increase in capital of Vanke Property (Hong Kong) Company
Limited and Vanke Real Estate (Hong Kong) Company Limited

FETLtEEFEET —REHERN  C. On 17 June 2016, the Eleventh Meeting of the

2016F6H17B B @RER LB Seventeenth Board was held to consider and approve
BTIATER - HERQER20165F the following resolutions. The announcement regarding
CANTEBEREBAaRXSHMBRA the relevant resolutions was published on the website
&) A8 (www.hkexnews.hk)Z45 + I of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
R2016F6H18H FII &R (Bl 35 5 (www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 17 June 2016,
Wy (EHEEHR) (EEFFEHHR) - and was published in China Securities Journal, Securities
(EEHR) MEBENSA - Times, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Daily

and CNINFO Network, respectively, on 18 June 2016.

FiE  EB=R

No. Resolution

1 BRARNEETRNBEEERINESR
The resolution regarding the Company’s compliance of the conditions for acquiring assets
by way of issuance of shares

2 BRARZETRNBEEEZEM I I T ENRSR
The resolutions regarding the Company’s Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares and
connected transaction proposal

2.1 BNEEMRSET

Target Assets and Counterparty
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FiR B=R
No.  Resolution
22 BHEEMNEME EEREZATRA
The preliminary estimated value of, pricing principle and payment method for the Target
Assets
23 FITIR G VR EE
Class and nominal value of the shares to be issued
24 BOIHR
Target subscriber of the Issue
25  FEEEEH - FEHFAMEITER
Pricing reference day, pricing method, and issue price
26  E{THE
Issue amount
27 #IAR
Issue method
28  HEROEHTEH
Lock-up period of the Consideration Shares
2.9 HERMDE MR
The exchange on which the Consideration Shares are proposed to be listed
210 BWEEHRBEEB
Attributable profit and loss of the Target Assets during the period
211 BHRRRFADEMEZEE
Arrangement of Target Company’'s accumulated undistributed profits
212 KRBETHRRRFARD BENBEEZEE
Arrangement of the Company’s accumulated undistributed profits prior to the Issue
213 ARRETRHBEEEMBRREE RS
The validity period of the resolution in relation to the Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance
of Shares
3 BRCBHMEEBRNBERARETRNBEEEZHBRRFIAR) LAKENZER
The resolution regarding China Vanke Co., Ltd.'s Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of
Shares and connected transaction proposal, and its summary
4 R ARBEITROBEEEBKEMIINER
The resolution regarding the Company's Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares
constituting connected transactions
5 BARBZZNREERN (ETRNBERERTE) HER
The resolution regarding the signing of a conditional Agreement on the Acquiring Assets by
Way of Issuance of Shares
6 BARRNRBETROBEEENS (ANRE LT AR EAEESHE THENRTE) FHERT

DEES
The resolution regarding the Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares’ compliance
with the requirement of Provision 4 of the Provisions on Issues Concerning Regulating the

Material Asset Restructuring of Listed Companies

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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No.  Resolution

7 BARARBETROBEEENS( LT ARIEREEZTHEERINE) FHT=HRTENER
The resolution regarding the compliance with the requirement of Provision 43 of the
Administrative Measures for the Restructuring of Material Assets of Listed Companies in the
Company'’s Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares

8 FARRNRBETRNBEEEMNBERER LTHESR
The resolution regarding the Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares not constituting
a reverse takeover

9 AR ARIREER KB TR ED (BNRE EM AR ERAKE KBS H1TRNEN) 51 iKE
IR EMZESR
The resolution regarding whether the share price fluctuation of the Company reaching the
relevant standard under article 5 of Notice of Regulating Information Disclosure of Listed
Companies and Act of Each Relevant Party

10 BRARETRNBEEERTEEREANTENL - SR M MEZERENA RN A
Elaboration on the integrity and compliance in the performance of the statutory procedures
during the Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares, and the validity of the submitted
legal documents

11 BNMERRRAEREARESFEMERARBETRNBEEEEBEENZER
The resolution regarding submission to the general meeting for granting authority to the
Board to handle the matters in relation to the Acquiring Assets by Way of Issuance of Shares

12 FARE T AFRERERASNHESR

The resolution regarding not convening an extraordinary general meeting for the time being

FEttEEFEEFT_RgaR D. On 1 July 2016, the Twelfth Meeting of the Seventeenth

20167AVB B e@E=H LB Board was held to consider and approve the Resolution
BT ANTREHERERINEASR regarding not agreeing to convene the Second
B At B R A FRF B F2016F % Extraordinary General Meeting for 2016 requested
“RBERRRERAGHNZESR - HELQ by Shenzhen Jushenghua Co., Ltd. and Foresea Life
HH2016F7 A 3R K & Bk 22 P A8 U Insurance Co., Ltd. The announcement regarding the
(www.hkexnews.hk)ZE45 - 10722016 relevant resolutions was published on the website
F7TRARTIER (P EZESFR) - (B of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
AR - (EBEBEE®R)  (EHH (www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 3 July 2016,
WY MEFENS - and was published in China Securities Journal, Securities

Times, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Daily
and CNINFO Network, respectively, on 4 July 2016.
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20165F8A9R B - 8§ & & &
WHEBTUTER BEARAER
20168 A21H B 1£ B & AT 48 uf
(www.hkexnews.hk)Z4H + WH 2016
FEANA T ERC(FRAESFH) -
(BHEER) (LEBEHB)  (FBF

On 19 August 2016, the Thirteenth Meeting of
the Seventeenth Board was held to consider and
approve the following resolutions. The announcement
regarding the relevant resolutions was published on
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 21
August 2016, and was published in China Securities

BR) FEMEMA -

Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News and
Securities Daily and CNINFO Network, respectively, on
22 August 2016.

FiE  B=R
No. Resolution
1 20165 FFERE  HE  MBERENEFERELS
2016 interim report, its summary and financial report, and 2016 interim results announcement
2 2016FFFENRE - TETARSERBANESR
the resolution regarding there will be no distribution of dividend nor capitalisation of equity
reserve for the 2016 interim period
3 ETEARESERMBNESR
the resolution regarding the amendment of the implementing rules for the audit committee
4 BN HEATTRNARREENER

the resolution regarding the cancellation of the unexercised stock options of A shares

FTtREEFEFTOREHEL  F
20165F10H27H & # -
TERBTATER - BREALER

On 27 October 2016, the Fourteenth Meeting of

T3 ER the Seventeenth Board was held to consider and

= Bk
approve the following resolutions. The announcement

20165108278 &% 7£ B XX BT 49 uh
(www.hkexnews.hk)Z46 + WH 2016
FI0H28B FIBR (P BEIES W)
(BHERHm (LEBESFWM) (BF
B¥R) MEBMEMA -

regarding the relevant resolutions was published on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 27 October
2016, and was published in China Securities Journal,
Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News and

Securities Daily and CNINFO Network, respectively, on
28 October 2016.

Fi  BR
No. Resolution
1 20165 R =FEWMEMAFBIHRE
the 2016 third quarterly report and financial statements
2 BANMERT (BRI EERNERARERHREEEINE) NER

the resolution regarding the amendment of “The Measures on the Administration of
Information Disclosure of China Vanke Co., Ltd.” ({(B@FI ¥R MNBRAGEEEREEEINE))

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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442 In 2016, the Board conducted 12 votings by
electronic communication

1.

On 15 January 2016, the resolution regarding the
cooperation with CRC on co-development of Plot
1 of Chengdu Jiujiang Project was submitted to
the board for consideration and approval through
voting by electronic communication.

On 25 January 2016, the resolution in relation to the
application for continuing trading suspension of the
Company’s A shares and the resolution regarding
the convention of the 2016 first extraordinary
general meeting were submitted to the board
for consideration and approval through voting by
electronic communication.

On 18 March 2016, the resolution regarding
the guarantees given to the borrowings of
Fozter Limited was submitted to the board for
consideration and approval through voting by
electronic communication.

On 15 June 2016, the resolution regarding the
acquisition of part of the shareholding of SCPG
Holdings Co., Limited and MWREF Limited
was submitted to the board for consideration
and approval through voting by electronic
communication.

On 11 August 2016, the resolution regarding the
bidding for the Project of Zhongxin Community,
Jing-An District, Shanghai was submitted to the
board for consideration and approval through
voting by electronic communication.

On 12 August 2016, the resolution regarding
the investment as a limited partner (LP) of
Zhongheruimin small and medium-sized enterprises
investment enterprise, L.P. was submitted to the
board for consideration and approval through
voting by electronic communication.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

10.

11.

12.

On 14 August 2016, the resolution regarding the
business cooperation agreement entered into with
China Merchants Bank and matters in relation to the
transaction with SCPG was submitted to the board
for consideration and approval through voting by
electronic communication.

On 17 August 2016, the resolution regarding the
acquisition of the right to construct and operate of
Shenzhen International Convention and Exhibition
Center (Phase I) (FYIH R & & & 0 (— H) and
the land use right of ancillary commercial land
was submitted to the board for consideration
and approval through voting by electronic
communication.

On 2 December 2016, the resolution regarding
the increase in capital of Vanke Real Estate (Hong
Kong) Company Limited (E&HBE (F8) GRAR)
and Vanke Property and Real Estate (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (BRI E XM E (FF) BRAR)
and the resolution regarding the introduction of
strategic investor of Vanke Service were submitted
to the board for consideration and approval
through voting by electronic communication.

On 12 December 2016, the resolution regarding
the termination of acquiring assets by way of
issuance of shares was submitted to the board
for consideration and approval through voting by
electronic communication.

On 27 December 2016, the resolution regarding
the second amendment of co-investment policy
was submitted to the board for consideration
and approval through voting by electronic
communication.

On 30 December 2016, the resolution regarding the
increase in capital of subsidiaries was submitted to
the board for consideration and approval through

voting by electronic communication.
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Pursuant to relevant requirements, the progress and
important facts of the related issues were published on
CNINFO Network and the website of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) after trading
hours on 29 January 2016, 15 April 2016, 18 April 2016, in
the morning on 12 July 2016, at noon on 21 July 2016, after
trading hours on 21 August 2016, 17 December 2016 and 5
January 2017, and also disclosed in China Securities Journal,
Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News and Securities
Daily on 30 January 2016, 16 April 2016, 19 April 2016, 13
July 2016, 22 July 2016, 22 August 2016, 18 December 2016
and 6 January 2017.

443 The Board's implementation of the resolutions
approved at shareholders’ meetings
A. The implementation of the proposal on dividend

distribution for the year 2015

In accordance with the resolutions passed at the
2015 (28th) annual general meeting, the Board had
proceeded with the implementation of the proposal
on dividend distribution for 2015. The dividend
distribution proposal for 2015 is as follows: Based
on the total share capital of the Company at the
close of market on the record date, for every 10
existing shares held, a cash dividend of RMB7.2
(including tax). At the time of distribution, the
actual cash dividend paid to individual shareholders
and securities investment fund investors of A
shares on the basis of every 10 existing shares
held was RMB7.2. When a shareholder transfers
his/her shares, China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited will, according to
the Notice from the Ministry of Finance, the State
Administration of Taxation and China Securities
Regulatory Commission Regarding Policies of
Implementation of Differential Individual Income
Tax on Bonus Shares and Dividends of Listed
Companies (Cai Shui [2015] No. 101), withhold
the outstanding amount of tax that has not been
withheld and paid in accordance with the actual
tax amount to be paid by the shareholder, which
is calculated basing on the holding period of the
shares, and such outstanding balance will be paid
by the Company on behalf of the shareholder.
Shareholding period is determined in unit of
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

securities account of shareholders. According to the
first-in, first-out principle, a tax amount of RMB1.44
is required to be paid for transferring every 10
shares held within 1 month (inclusive); a tax amount
of RMBO0.72 is required to be paid for transferring
every 10 shares held over 1 month and less than
1 year (inclusive); no tax is required to be paid
for transferring shares held over 1 year. An actual
amount of RMB6.48 cash dividend, after deducting
a withholding income tax at a 10% rate, was paid
to non-resident enterprise shareholders of A shares
(including qualified foreign institutional investors
and qualified foreign institutional investors of
Renminbi) on the basis of every 10 existing shares

held.

For an individual shareholder of H shares who
is a resident of a country or territory which has
signed an dividend income tax treaty with the
PRC, withholding income tax will be deducted at
the relevant rate; for an individual shareholder
who is a resident of a country or territory which
has no dividend income tax treaty with the PRC,
withholding income tax will be deducted at a 20%
rate. The record date for A shares was 28 July 2016,
and ex-dividend date was 29 July 2016, while the
ex-dividend date of H shares was 29 June 2016,
the record date for dividend distribution was 6 July
2016. The exchange rate for H share’s cash dividend
was HK$1 = RMBO0.85736, being the median price
of the exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars for
Renminbi published by the People’s Bank of China
on the first working day (28 June 2016) after the
approval of the dividend distribution proposal at
the Company’s 2015 annual general meeting.

Based on the Company’s total number of shares
of 11,039,152,001 on the record date for dividend
distribution for 2015, the actual amount of cash
dividends paid by the Company amounted to
RMB7,948,189,440.72.
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The issue of bonds

According to the authorization of the second
extraordinary general meeting in 2014, upon the
approval of the Board, the Company applied
to register RMB9 billion medium term notes
with National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors of the PRC. In May 2015,
the Company received the notice on acceptance
of registration of medium term notes from the
association. Among which, medium term notes
with registered amount of RMB4.5 billion were
underwritten jointly by Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Ltd. and Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.
The remaining medium term notes with registered
amount of RMB4.5 billion were underwritten jointly
by Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd. and Agricultural Bank
of China Limited. The relevant registered amount
will be effective within two years from the date of
issue of Acceptance of Registration by the National
Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors of the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Company
completed the second issue of medium term notes
in two tranches under relevant caps in the inter-
bank bond market, both in the amount of RMB1.5
billion with a term of 5 years and an interest rate
of 3.2%. The short names of such notes are "16
Vanke MTNOO1” and “16 Vanke MTNO002"” and the
stock codes are “101651012" and "“101669006"
respectively.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

On 22 May 2015, the annual general meeting of
the Company in 2014 further authorised the board
to issue the bonds with amount of no more than
RMB15 billion, and the authorization was valid for
24 months from the date of approval at the general
meeting. Following the resolution of the Board in
July 2015, the Company applied to SFC and SFC
approved for the public issuance of corporate
bonds in an amount of not more than RMB9.0
billion. On 25 September 2015, the Company issued
corporate bonds in the amount of RMB5.0 billion
with a term of 5 years. During the Reporting Period,
the Company did not issue any additional corporate
bonds.

444 Specialised Committees’ Performance of Duties

There are three specialised committees under the

Board, namely the audit committee, the remuneration

and nomination committee, as well as the investment

and decision-making committee. Each of the

committees had dutifully performed their duties, in

accordance with the “Code of corporate governance

for listed companies”, "Articles of Association”, and

“Rules Governing the Procedures of Board Meetings”

and the responsibilities and obligations as stipulated in

the implementation details of the different specialised

committees.

A.

Audit committee’s performance of duties

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee
held five audit committee meetings and one
communication meeting. The audit committee
considered the following issues: the arrangement
of audit duties, the periodical financial reports,
proposal on profit appropriation, the appointment
of accountants, guarantees, investments of
derivative, amendments on the implementation
details of the audit committee, risk management of
the Board, work carried out by the risk management
committee, internal control construction of
the Company and internal audit etc. The audit
committee also communicated with the auditors on
several occasions.
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The audit committee actively facilitated the audit
process in 2016. Since 2017, the audit committee
had held 2 committee meeting and communication
meeting, supervised the auditors to strictly follow
the audit schedule and expressed audit opinion. It
also resolved on the appointment of accountants,
internal control self-assessment report, risk sections
of corporate governance reports, and dividend
distribution.

The audit committee concluded the audit
performed by KPMG Huazhen LLP and KPMG
(collectively referred to as "KPMG") in 2016 as
follows:

The audit for 2016 took eight months to complete,
starting from internal control auditing, which
commenced at the beginning of August 2016. From
August to October 2016, KPMG selected certain
major front-line companies to conduct internal
control audit. From November to December 2016,
KPMG selected key cities according to the level of
importance in 2016 and allocated teams to perform
pre-audit for the headquarter and major front-
line companies. Since 16 January 2017, KPMG had
started to perform their annual audit in Vanke's
office. Before the auditors came in, the audit
committee had reviewed, with due diligence, the
financial statements prepared by the Company
and provided their opinions in writing. During the
auditing process, the audit committee supervised
in writing and requested KPMG to arrange its audit
work according to the audit work schedule, in
order to ensure that the audit completed on time.
On 22 March 2017, KPMG submitted to the audit
committee the drafts of 2016 Auditors’ Report and
Internal Control Audit Report. On 24 March 2017,
KPMG has issued its unqualified opinion for the
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2016 Auditors’ Report and Internal Control Audit
Report. The Board reviewed the reports and the
work performed by KPMG for the Company’s 2016
financial audit completed. The audit committee is
of the opinion that the audit performance of KPMG
on the Company's 2016 financial statements is
satisfactory.

The audit committee resolved to propose to the
Board for approval of the reappointment of KPMG
to audit the Company's 2017 financial statements
according to the PRC and international auditing
standards, and to prepare the internal control
audit report according to the requirements of the
regulatory bodies.

Remuneration and nomination committee’s
performance of duties

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration
and nomination committee held 5 meetings and
conducted one voting by electronic communication.
The committee had discussed reviewed the
resolutions including the allocation of economic
profits-bonus for 2015 and issues on the collective
bonus, handling of bonus points of economic
profits-bonus of departure and retirement, the
remuneration of senior management officers and
change of senior management officers. Since 2017,
the remuneration and nomination committee had
held 3 meetings for the discussion about allocation
of economic profits-bonus for 2016 and issues on
the collective bonus, the remuneration of senior
management officers. The Remuneration and
nomination committee had maintained regular
contact with the management and held several
debriefing sessions where the management
reported their work.
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Investment and decision-making committee’s
performance of duties

During the Reporting Period, the investment and
decision-making committee held 2 meetings,
several communication meetings for the discussion
of the authorization of project development and
financing, the introduction of strategic investors,
the revision of project co-investment policy, major
acquisition and investments etc. Since 2017, the
investment and decision-making committee held
1 meeting and 1 communication meeting for the
discussion of the Board’s authorization and major
investment and cooperation etc. The investment
and decision-making committee had maintained
regular contact with the management, thereby
having full understanding of the Company's
investments and other progress.
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4.5 Profit Appropriation and Dividend

Distribution Proposal

The Company's profit appropriation and dividend
distribution was based on the Company'’s profit available
for appropriation. Details on the profit available for
appropriation of the Group and the Company in 2016
according to IFRSs for the Group and the Company are
as follows:

B AR
Unit: RMB

DA EH BRF
The Group The Company

Fi1& Al o EC F)

appropriation
He : 2016FZFFE  Include: Net profit for 2016

R E A o A E

the beginning of the year
Allocation of dividend for 2015

2 iR 20155 [Z XA

Profit after taxation available for

65,672,270,911.73 13,663,640,590.91
21,022,606,256.56 12,777,146,023.88

Profit available for appropriation at

52,597,854,095.89  8,834,684,007.75
(7,948,189,440.72) (7,948,189,440.72)
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According to the relevant rules and requirements of
the Company’s Articles of Association, and considering
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s development
needs in the long run, the Board submitted to the
shareholder meeting the following profit appropriation
proposal for the year 2016:

The reserve of the parent company exceeded 50%
of the Company’s Capital, so statutory reserve is not
withdrawn.

To appropriate 35% of the net profit of the Company to
discretionary surplus reserve;

To appropriate 65% of the net profit of the Company
and unappropriated profit of the previous year for
dividend distribution fund.
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The allocation of the profit available for appropriation

LU for the year 2016 is as follows:
B - ARBTT
Unit: RMB
fhAREF fERE
SN AREH
SN ERALA REAALA
As a
Asa  percentage of
percentage of the Group's
the Company's consolidated
net profit for net profit for
The Company the year the year
2016 F R Net profit of 2016 12,777,146,023.88 100% 60.78%
AREELRES Transfer to statutory surplus reserve 0 0% 0%
AARAERSLED Transfer to discretionary surplus
reserve 4,472,001,108.36 35.00% 21.27%
TIR2016FER4ES  Transfer to 2016 dividend
distribution fund 8,305,144,915.52 65.00% 39.51%
FPNAHEFE Profit available for appropriation at
the beginning of the year 886,494,567.03
AE2016FEIRERFI*  Distribution of cash dividend for
2016* 8,720,930,080.79 68.25% 41.48%

BENRFEIEME

Retained profit for appropriation for
the following financial year

470,709,401.76

* LA20N6F R ARG B E *

DNE0NGEEDARETR : ULy
AREBEZLBERDEAEEE &
10M0RIEARET7.97T (£F) WL

B o
o

Company at the end of 2016

Calculated based on the total number of shares of the

The Company’'s 2016 dividend distribution proposal:
Based on the number of shares on the record date for
dividend distribution, a cash dividend of RMB7.9 (tax

included) will be distributed for every 10 existing shares

held.
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LA2016%F KR A &) # & 1 &
11,039,152,0010% & & ' 2016F E
R & R FE A R #8,720,930,080.79
TC B R F016F A HHFFE A L
{5l 541.48% o

BUYEFRRR R A2016F E M H
DER AR ETT ROEIERFE QA
ERNMBERE  ROZESEBRE
WA BYESE—BREHERET

REXBRAGEZ °

Based on the Company’s total number of shares of
11,039,152,001 at the end of 2016, the total amount
of cash dividends for distribution for 2016 will be
RMB8,720,930,080.79, and accounted for 41.48% of the
consolidated net profit for 2016.

The independent directors were of the view that the
Company's proposals on the profit appropriation
and dividend distribution for the year 2016 was in
compliance with the Company's Articles of Association
and the relevant requirements, and took into account

RABEZFHDAMIRETERER

the interests of various types of shareholders. The
independent directors unanimously agreed to submit
the relevant proposals to the shareholder meeting for
consideration.

The Company's proposal on dividend distribution for
the past three years:

D 4Dk SR EE G BRI AEE - F10REARE7.27T (£8) BElE
Based on the number of shares on the record date for dividend distribution, a cash
dividend of RMB7.2 (including tax) would be distributed for every 10 existing shares

LA 4TIk SRS BRI D AEE - F10MIR*EARES.0T (85) BERE
Based on the number of shares on the record date for dividend distribution, a cash
dividend of RMB5.0 (including tax) would be distributed for every 10 existing shares

AP 4Dk BRAES L RN RER - F10RKREARKELT (85) B2RE

4 DRUKE R
Year Proposal on dividend distribution
20155 &
2015
held.
20145
2014
held.
20135 &
2013

Based on the number of shares on the record date for dividend distribution, a cash
dividend of RMB4.1 (including tax) would be distributed for every 10 existing shares
held.

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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The Company’s distribution of cash dividends for the past
three years:

Bi: A\RET
Unit: RMB
REMISH SN NAEH HRATE HAREH  ATAHEE
Ef (&%) iy FRE OFREGHE  FABGLA TARHE

Asa The Group's

Asa  percentage of  consolidated

Cash The Group's  percentage of the Group's  profit available

dividend ~ The Company's ~ consolidated  the Company’s ~ consolidated for appropriation

Year (including tax) net profit net profit net profit net profit for the year

0155 2015 7,948,189,440.72  9,949,954,678.46 18,119,406,249.27 79.88% 43.87% 54,587,845,031.57

WI4E 2014 5,524,400,900.00 11,886,732,139.37 15,745,454,144.70 46.48% 35.09% 47,936,205,751.99

0135F 2013 4,516,137,256.79  7,795,895,844.62 15,118,549 405.78 57.93% 29.87% 39,825,247,201.93
FO=FRARE ML BERARFTE=FFFN B 110.17%

Accumulated cash dividends in the past three years as a percentage to the Group's average consolidated net
profits in the past three years

L6 BERFERBERRE

4.6 Selected Media for Disclosure of Information

NRAEE(FEESR) (FEHFH
H) (EBEHF®R (FBHFAH)
ERERBEEE - RENKBAE
BREHE -

4.7 BAERFHIVREMRX

RBEHRKRERAITAHA - K
BHEHINE ERHEAIEEFFRE R
X (T meBHARAGTL) BEEAK
RAMNEFHEE  TREAXRE
AR E I ERFRE R (iR
NARIAL) BRARE 2 GHE AT
MESHES -

ARRIERBEFERESFAKEAZE
AT RHEENEERESE
ERER

The Company has chosen China Securities Journal,
Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News, Securities
Daily, CNINFO Network, and an English publication in
Hong Kong as media for disclosure of information.

4.7 Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the Reporting Period and up to the Latest
Practicable Date, no permitted indemnity provision
which benefits the Director or Supervisor of the
Company was in force or is currently in force (whether
entered into by the Company or not), and no permitted
indemnity provision which benefits the Director and
Supervisor of related companies the Company was
in force or is currently in force (if entered into by the
Company).

The Company has arranged appropriate liability

insurance for the Directors and Supervisors concerning
the relevant legal action they may be faced with.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

4.8 Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders can make enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the
address set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report. Generally, the Board
will not deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

During the year, the Company did not make amendment
to the Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of
the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

4.9 Management Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no contracts
concerning the operation and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed (other than
a contract of service with a Director or any person
engaged in the full-time employment of the Company).

4,10 Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract with
the Group which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

4.11 Relationship with Stakeholders

The Company values our employees, customers and
business associates are keys to our sustainability
journey. We strive to achieve corporate sustainability
through engaging our employees, providing quality
services for our customers, collaborating with business
partners and supporting our community. The Company
places significant emphasis on human capital. The
Company provides a fair workplace, promoting
nondiscrimination and diversity to our staff, together
with competitive remuneration and benefits, as well as a
range of opportunities for career advancement based on
employees’ merits and performance. The Group ensures
its employee health and safety management system and
ensures the adoption of the principles. The Company
provides regular trainings for staff to keep them abreast
of the latest developments in the market and industry,
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in the form of both internal trainings and trainings
provided by experts from external organizations. The
Group value the feedback from customers through
daily communication, regular inspections and etc. The
Group have also established the mechanism about
customer service, support and complaints. When
dealing with a customer complaint, the Group treat it
as an opportunity to improve our relationship with the
customer, addressing the concern in a timely manner
and in accordance with international standard.

412 Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Group's financial statements as at the end
of the Reporting Period.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Please refer to the Independent Auditor's Report for
the statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements.
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142  ERMERHBRRZAE] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

5.1 Material Litigation and Arbitration

During the year under review, the Group did not involve
in any material litigation or arbitration.

5.2 Major Acquisition and Disposal of Assets

On 18 December 2015, the securities of the Company
was subject to trading suspension due to the
preparation of material asset restructuring. On 17 June
2016, the Company convened the Eleventh Meeting of
the Seventeenth Board of the Company, on which the
matters related to acquiring 100% equity interest in
SZMC Qianhai International Development Co., Ltd. held
by SZMC. by way of issuance of shares were considered
and approved. As the shareholders did not reach
unanimous agreement, on 16 December 2016, the Board
of the Company considered and approved to terminate
such asset acquisition by way of issuance of shares. For
details, please refer to the disclosure announcements of
the Company dated 18 June, 2 July and 19 December
2016.

On 23 September 2016, the Group made a total
investment of approximately RMB3,889 million into
the Joint Acquisition Platform formed with several
cooperation partners, which completed the acquisition
of the majority shareholding of SCPG. For details,
please refer to the disclosure announcements of the
Company dated 12 July, 21 July and 22 August 2016.
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5.3 Major Related Party Connected Transactions

On 22 May 2015, the Company's 2014 annual general
meeting resolved to authorise the Board to decide
on the continuous cooperation with China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd and its connected companies
(collectively "CRH"), including entering into a loan
agreement with China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co.,
Ltd., using the funds under China Resources SZITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. and Harvest Capital Partners Limited, joint
investment with China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
and Harvest Capital Partners Limited, and joint project
development with China Resources Land Limited and
its connected companies within the aggregate amount
of no more than RMB17.6 billion per year (i.e. not more
than 20% of the audited equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company as at the end of 2014).
The granted authority is valid for two years.

During the Reporting Period, as considered and
approved by the Board of the Company, Chengdu
Vanke and Chengdu China Resources entered into a
cooperation agreement on 29 January 2016 to jointly
develop Plot 1 of Chengdu Jiujiang Project. The planned
gross floor area ("GFA") of the site was approximately
408,000 sg m, of which no less than 367,000 sgq m
would be for commodity housing for end-users and no
more than 41,000 sg m for community and commercial
purposes. The total corresponding land premium was
RMB507.5278 million (including land assignment fee,
transaction service fees, construction land quota fee and
land deed tax).
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Pursuant to the provisions of the cooperation
agreement, Chengdu Vanke would transfer the project
company of Plot 1 of Chengdu Jiujiang Project, being
51% equity interest in Chengdu Runwan to Chengdu
China Resources. Upon the completion of the relevant
equity transfer, Chengdu Vanke would beneficially
own 49% equity interest in Plot 1 of Chengdu Jiujiang
Project, while Chengdu China Resources would
beneficially own 51% equity interest in Plot 1 of
Chengdu Jiujiang Project. The parties will share the risk
and profit according to their respective shareholdings.
Since the date of signing of the cooperation agreement,
Chengdu Vanke and Chengdu China Resources
had contributed capital required for development
and operations in the proportion of 49% and 51%
respectively.

The cooperation with CRH will help the Company
better leverage shareholder’s resources, to broaden the
Company’s financing channels, which will help expand
the Company’s operations and enhance return on assets.

Save as the above, the Group did not have other
material related party (connected) transactions.

5.4 Purchase, sales or redemption of the listed

securities of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Company or its
subsidiaries did not purchase, dispose or redeem any
list securities of the Company or its subsidiaries.

5.5 A-share Stock Option Incentive Scheme

5.5.1 Relevant procedures and progress of the

implementation of the A-Share Stock Option
Incentive Scheme

After filing with CSRC without objection, the A-Share
Stock Option Incentive Scheme of China Vanke Co., Ltd.
(Revised Draft) (the “Scheme”) was passed at the first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company in 2011
on 8 April 2011. Implementation of the Scheme thus
commenced.
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The A-Share Stock Option Incentive Scheme uses stock
option as an incentive instrument. Each stock option
confers the right to purchase one A-share of Vanke at
the exercise price within the exercise period under the
A-Share Stock Option Incentive Scheme. The underlying
shares of the stock options are new shares issued by
the Company to the beneficiaries. When the Company
and the beneficiaries of the Scheme fulfil the conditions
for granting the options, the Company will grant stock
options to the beneficiaries according to the Scheme.
No stock options should be exercised during the
vesting period, which is one year from the grant date.
Thereafter, the granted stock options can be exercisable
in three exercise periods. 40% of the options granted
shall be exercisable during the first exercise period,
another 30% and the remaining 30% shall be exercisable
in the second and third exercise periods respectively.
The stock options will lapse if they fail to vest because
the performance targets are not achieved and if they are
not exercised after the expiry of the exercise periods.

On 9 May 2011, the registration of the grant of stock
options was completed. The Company granted
an aggregate of 108,435,000 stock options to 810
beneficiaries. The abbreviation of the stock options
granted under the Scheme is “VankeJLC1"”, and the
stock option code is “037015".

55.2 Adjustment of exercise price of stock options and

the implementation procedures of the A-Share
Stock Option Incentive Scheme

The initial exercise price of the stock options was
RMB8.89, which was subject to adjustment according
to the relevant requirements of the Scheme should
distribution of dividends, transfer of capital surplus
reserve to share capital or other conditions occur within
the validity period of stock options. At the beginning
of the Reporting Period, the exercise price of the stock
options was RMB7.57, and the exercise price of the
stock options was not adjusted during the Reporting
Period.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

5.5.3 Exercise of stock options under the A-Share Stock

Option Incentive Scheme during the Reporting
Period

During the Reporting Period, a total of 20,000 stock
options were exercised at an exercise price of RMB7.57.
The weighted average closing price of the Company's A
Share immediately before the exercise date of the stock
options was RMB24.43. On 24 April 2016, the term of
the stock options was expired, and the 4,676,319 stock
options granted but not yet exercised will be cancelled
in accordance with relevant regulations.

554 Impact of implementation of the A-Share Stock

Option Incentive Scheme on the financial position
and operating results in the Reporting Period and
subsequent years

The introduction of the A-Share Stock Option Incentive
Scheme will fill the gap in the Company's long-term
incentive instruments, while establishing a check-
and-balance mechanism between shareholders and
professional management team through linking up
their interests. The Scheme will further improve the
Company's corporate governance structure and
strengthen the Company’s competitiveness.

Accounting treatments for the A-Share Stock Option
Incentive Scheme as equity-settled share-based
payment are carried out in accordance with the “IFRS 2
— Share-based payment”.

Before the Reporting Period, the amortisation of the
cost of stock options according to the straight-line
method was completed. And the stock options have
no effect to the financial position during the Reporting
Period.
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5.6 Major contracts and their Implementation

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
subject to any material entrustment, sub-contracting
or leasing arrangements involving assets of other
companies, nor were any other companies entitled
to any entrustment, sub-contracting or leasing
arrangements involving assets of the Group.

Details on the new guarantees made by the

M Company during the Reporting Period are as
follows:
ERA ERY%
P (RAmERERA)  (AFRERRLA) EREE BRHE RERELAS st
Principal of the guarantee
Guarantor (% of equity (% of equity interest held
No. interest held by Vanke) by Vanke) Guarantee Amount  Details of the guarantee Guarantee Period Remarks
1 REEHRRE REEHER ARBUB0ET  AARH153 00087 201651 A108~
ARAF(100%) BRATA5%) FITRERRER 201851A108
LI ER
Tianjin Vanke Real Tianjin Xinke Property Co., ~ RMB418.50 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 10 January 2016
Estate Co., Ltd. Ltd. (45%) bank loan of RMB1,530.00 to 10 January 2018
million in proportion to the
equity holding
2 BMEX(ER) ERARAT ER020808T  AEB650,00ET 016528198~
BRDA(100%) (100%) FEETBEREER 020%4F198
Vanke Property (Hong  Alliance Grace Limited HKD2,020.80 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 19 February
Kong) Company Limited  (100%) syndicated loan of HKD6,500 2016 to 19 April 2020
million
3 RNMERELE BN ARB2I0EL  AARB2700ET 2016524298~
ARRF(100%) FHERLERRAT(100%) PITEFRMEER 2019568128
Guangzhou Vanke Real ~ Guangzhou Huangpu RMB27.00 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 29 February

Estate Co., Ltd. (100%)

Wenzhong Urban Village
Property Development Co.,
Ltd. (100%)

bank loan of RMB27.00 million 2016 to 12 June 2019
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Principal of the guarantee
Guarantor (% of equity (% of equity interest held
No. interest held by Vanke) by Vanke) Guarantee Amount  Details of the guarantee Guarantee Period Remarks
4 ERILE (B%) Bestgain Real BE0IET  AEE365,0008T 2016E4F 138~ BERKR
BRAR(100%) Estate Lyra Limited (100%) NREFABREER 2019547138 [
Vanke Real Estate (Hong HKD3,923.75 million  Provided a guarantee for From 13 April 2016 to  Released as
Kong) Company Limited principal and interest of 13 April 2019 at the end of
(100%) the corporate bond of the Reporting
RMB3,650.00 million Period
5 BHEEED FHERARAF(100%) RPBO0ET  ARESET 016547148~
BRAR(100%) FEETRAER 021548148
China Vanke Co., Ltd.  Fozter Limited (100%) (GBP86.00 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 14 April 2016 to
(100%) syndicated loan of GBP86.00 14 April 2021
million
b ENmENEE BMEHIORE ARB125008T  AARE12500087 2016578228~
BRAT(100%) FHERZARAA(00%) SORERHEER 01959A228
Guangzhou Vanke Real  Guangzhou Huangpu RMB1,250.00 million  Provided a guarantee From 22 July 2916 to
Estate Co., Ltd. (100%) ~ Wenzhong Urban Village for a bank guarantee of 22 September 2019
Property Development Co., RMB,250.00 million
Ltd. (100%)
7T EUENERRME W BMENEERHE AEBI02938T  BARMIS7ET 201657 A 268~
BRAT(100%) BRAR9%) BiTRRERESLIRR 2018547288
Wuhu Vanke Wandong ~ Wuhu Vanke Xinda Real RMB7.6293 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 26 July 2016 to
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Estate Co., Ltd. (49%) bank loan of RMB15.57 million 28 April 2018
(100%) in proportion to the equity
holding
8 ENEHMERREHE  HABHEEERE ARE266078TL  BARBSIETLRIT 201657 A28~
BRAFI100%) BRAT49%) BT PR 20185428
Wuhu Vanke Wandong ~ Wuhu Vanke Xinda Real RMB2.6607 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 28 July 2016 to
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Estate Co., Ltd. (49%) bank loan of RMB5.43 million 28 April 2018
(100%) in proportion to the equity
holding
9 BNEMERRME  HHBNEEREME ARBRETL  AARK20008T 201658258~
BRAT(100%) BRAT49%) BiTRRERESLIRR 2018547288
Wuhu Vanke Wandong ~ Wuhu Vanke Xinda Real RMB9.80 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 25 August 2016
Real Estate Co., Ltd. Estate Co., Ltd. (49%) bank loan of RMB20.00 million  to 28 April 2018
(100%) in proportion to the equity

148

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

holding



5 EEEI

V Significant Events

BRA RERY%
FE o (RAMGERLA)  (AIRGERLA) EREE BRIY BERELAS fast
Principal of the guarantee
Guarantor (% of equity (% of equity interest held
No. interest held by Vanke) by Vanke) Guarantee Amount  Details of the guarantee Guarantee Period Remarks
10 HImEMEHE BEERAR(100%) ARB20000087  BARH200,00087T 01659878~
ARAF(100%) RiTRHREER 2017456A228
Shenzhen Vanke Real  Diamond Huge Limited RMB2,000.00 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 9 July 2016 to
Estate Co., Ltd. (100%)  (100%) bank loan of RMB2,000.00 22 June 2017
Shenzhen Vanke Binhai million
Real £
11 V Capital Limited (100%) C Plaza Co., Ltd. (100%) BT 200ET  RE%147 2008 016598218~
FESHRRER 2019F10A28F
V Capital Limited (100%) C Plaza Co., Ltd. (100%) HKD1,472.00 million  Provided a guarantee 21 September 2016 to
for a syndicated loan of 28 October 2019
HKD1,472.00 million
12 VCapital Limited (100%) HEFEHERRAF) ARESB0BT  AARESS0ET 16598218~
(100%) RITETRMER 20196104285
V Capital Limited (100%) Shanghai Central Land Estate  RMB58.50 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 29 September
Ltd. (100%) bank loan of RMB58.50 million 2016 to 28 October
2019
13 MImENEHE EEARAT (100%) AEB2042508T  BARK204,5087T 016594298 -
ERAT(100%) STETREABER 017538228
Shenzhen Vanke Real ~ Diamond Huge Limited RMB2,042.50 million  Provided a guarantee for From 29 September
Estate Co., Ltd. (100%)  (100%) abank's credit facility of 2016 to 22 March 2017
RMB2,042.50 million
1 ERER (BR) ERERARAA AB6T 008 AEH180,00087 2016510858~
BRAT(100%) (100%) RTEFERRRER 021548198
Vanke Property (Hong ~ Allied Glory Development ~ HKD670.20 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 5 October 2016
Kong) Company Limited  Limited (100%) bank loan limit of HKD1,800.00 to 19 April 2021
(100%) million
15 ERUE (B5) Bestgain Real Estate ENLBUET  B20EETLAT 2016F107148 ~ REHR
ARRE(100%) Lyra Limited (100%) BARSRMAER 2021517145 £k
Vanke Real Estate (Hong Bestgain Real Estate Lyra USD252.45 million  Provided a guarantee for From 14 October 2016 Released at
Kong) Company Limited  Limited (100%) principal and interest of the  to 14 January 2017 as the end of
(100%) corporate bond of USD220.00 the Reporting
million Period
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Fi (DEMRGRELA) (ARFEERLLA) EREE ERAY ERELAH fait
Principal of the guarantee
Guarantor (% of equity (% of equity interest held
No. interest held by Vanke) by Vanke) Guarantee Amount  Details of the guarantee Guarantee Period Remarks
16 ERENMEHERE  EEARERAR ARB9008T  RARE9S0008 20165108248~
ERAE(100%) BERE30.6%) fERiRMER N1754A21E
HhIMER
Kunming Vanke Property Yunnan Yongshang Property ~ RMB290.70 million  Provided a quarantee for a From 24 October 2016

Development Co., Ltd.
(100%)

17 VANKE HOLDINGS
USA LLC (100%)
VANKE HOLDINGS USA
LLC (100%)

18 REEMBHE
BRRF(100%)
Tianjin Vanke Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (100%)

19 LEERREER
BRAF(100%)
Shanghai Vanke
Investment Company
Limited (100%)

0 BHER(ER)
BRRF(100%)
Vanke Property (Hong
Kong) Company Limited
(100%)

150

Co., Ltd. (30.6%)

22-12 JACKSON £T1058T
AVENUE OWNER LLC (70%)

2212 JACKSON AVENUE USD1.05 million
OWNER LLC (70%)

REMEFERS ARH63, 071087

FEARAR5%)
Tianjin Harmonious Realty
Development Co., Ltd. (45%)

RMB630.70 million

LERERATE
RBRATA1%)
Shanghai Shenyang

ARE2050E T
RMB20.50 million

Investment Management

Co., Ltd. (41%)

BSABDNR(100%) B3 0008 T

Champ Shine Limited (100%)  HKD430.00 million

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

bank loan of RMB950.00 million
in proportion to the equity
holding

BUTSEXTEN
REI05BZTERER
Provided a pledged guarantee
of USD1.05 million for a loan of
USD21.75 million

BARBI0, 10087

B ERL fI AR
Provided a guarantee for a
bank loan of RMB901.00 million
in proportion to the equity
holding

BARSS,0008 LT
ERREEL DINER
Provided a guarantee for a
bank loan of RMB50.00 million
in proportion to the equity
holding

B5%85,0008 LT
BREEER RN SBRMER
Provided a guarantee for the
actual withdrawal amount a
bank loan limit of HKD850.00
million

to 24 April 2017

016E10A318~
017538248

From 31 October 2016
to 24 March 2017

016E11A11B~
2018F11A11A
From 11 November
2016 to 11 November
2018

2016F127168~
2024128150

From 16 December
2016 to 15 December
2024

016E127218~
2018F12A21A

From 21 December
2016 to 21 December
2018
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BRA RERY%
(AAFERELA)  (RAMERELA) EREE BERHE BERELAS it
Principal of the guarantee
Guarantor (% of equity (% of equity interest held
No. interest held by Vanke) by Vanke) Guarantee Amount  Details of the guarantee Guarantee Period Remarks
2 MIRENELE EEBRAR(100%) ARB9000ET  A101008RERT 0165127238 -
BRAR(100%) R HER 017%6A238
Shenzhen Vanke Real  Better Express Limited RMB930.00 million  Provided a guarantee for a From 23 December
Estate Company Limited (100%) bank loan of GBP101.00 million 2016 to 23 June 2017
(100%)
2 ERE (BE) Bestgain Real Estate ETOT V0BT B60000EZ LA 2016124238 ~ FREHRER
ARAF(100%) Lyra Limited(100%) ErRBRHERR 20195124238 [
Vanke Real Estate Bestgain Real Estate Lyra USD671.10 million  Provided a guarantee for From 23 December  Released as
(Hong Kong) Company  Limited (100%) principal and interest of the 2016 to 23 December  as the end of
Limited (100%) corporate bond of USD600.00 2019 the Reporting
million Period
B RmEMELE BERRLA (100%) AEB2140008T  RAKE200,00087 0165128298~
ARAF(100%) RITEHABRIER 20175128298
Shenzhen Vanke Real ~ Diamond Huge Limited RMB2,140.00 million  Provided a guarantee for From 29 December
Estate Company Limited (100%) principal and interest of the 2016 to 29 December
(100%) bank loan of RMB2,000.00 2017
million
(3) EILHMEHKR QA ERRE (3) As at the end of the Reporting Period, the

AR®331.7{8 7T - 1hAF2016
FREEFHEBR LM AAR
R FEENLER292% - H
P RRIRERTFARAHAM
TRFABRERHERBEAR
¥313.31BL » AR RIERFA
AIYBERNT REERRIRM
ERHBEA184ETT - AEEE
HIMER o

outstanding amount of guarantees provided by
the Company was RMB33.17 billion, accounting
for 29.2% of the unaudited equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company as at the end of 2016.
The outstanding amount of guarantees provided by
the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries
for other majority-owned subsidiaries was RMB31.33
billion, while the outstanding amount of guarantees
provided by the Company and its majority-owned
subsidiaries for associated and joint venture
companies was RMB1.84 billion. The Group did not
provide external guarantees.

BEHAN XEEBRBRR -
BEBRIEHIA R E B T R
® e

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
provide guarantee to shareholders, de facto
controller and its connected parties.
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MERFL2R FBREERE
FRl 2 [HBERE] -

5.7 BMFHITESH A EIEE
FEZHANYIMERER
MEEHANBIZRR

RE BT RRUR K B A RARE 5
FELMERRARETIBE

WMEHARNEBESIZBERSRE

REEIMERIT R - 1T HIEIMERE
B - RiER CERRE LR FEIN
ERITARBRN) HEXK - KEBEMN
EREBNEECENESAENAN
BEBERAREREE  RBEAR
a] AR R F 2 o

5.8 AREZMTHEBEAEER
w

ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ4wy)ﬂ443sﬁﬁ“\a
BITRRIESF NP HERNIE
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(4) For details on the projects acquired by the Group
during the Reporting Period, please refer to
“Project investment” under the “Use of capital not
from the capital market” section.

5.7 Specific elaboration and independent

opinions of the independent non-executive
directors on the use of capital by connected
parties and external guarantees provided by
the Company

There had been no non-operational use of capital by
the controlling shareholder or other connected parties
of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, in strict
compliance with the related rules, regulated its external
guarantee activities in order to control risks. There
was no violation against the “Notice regarding the
regulation of external guarantees by listed companies”.
The Group's guarantees had been made to meet its
production and operational needs and the requirements
for reasonable use of capital. The procedures for
determining the provision of guarantees are legal,
without prejudice to the interests of the Company and

its shareholders.

5.8 Relevant information of corporate bonds and

medium-term notes

Please refer to 4.1.3(4) and 4.4.3.B for the details of
issuance of corporate bonds and medium-term notes of
the Company.
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b AEEIEEITIER

ERERAARMLATRELTARS
SEREGEK - RBEER LT AR
FE—RBREHE - BRFELETAA
EAB - BE U1 #E - ¥5%
FEMEEE o FIRFEREREER
THIAFGE  [HAEBFRERE
BOHRASZHER  EEQRKTE
ARl EBRAIRES MEIRERFN
KEEE  BREARRERFmMEE
BT A RSP -

SRR M H BB ARG

(1 RRA]RAR B E RS A
ATBEMZ2E ZERFAFA
KEMATERIEG GEE
RAZHABEBG T FEBRS
TR 7 H M K ROX 0%
RNTEEEENERRER
BEMABRENEBRS o

2 BEBRBRRBARAEDE) FER
ERANBRARERENAR
METERREN S EESE
M- ERRAGUARESSYH
BRAW MoAGE NFIHDO BB
ZEITRORE - BITREIERIR
MR ©

5.9 Implementation of the undertakings given by

the Company or shareholders holding 5% or
more of the equity interests in the Company

Jushenghua issued the undertaking letter on
maintaining the independence to the Company, under
which it was independent from the Company in respect
of employees, assets, finance, organizations and
businesses during the period of acting as the largest
shareholder of the Company. Jushenghua and its de
facto controller made an undertaking: provide support
to Vanke as long as such support was beneficial to the
Vanke's development, and it would remain impartial in
the event of investment projects of Jushenghua and its
subsidiaries or Vanke that may face peer competition
and in the event of any disagreements or disputes
arising from peer competition.

Jushenghua and its de facto controller also undertake
that:

“1. There is no connected transaction between the
Company, its de facto controller, its other wholly-
owned, holding subsidiaries and other companies
with actual control and the listed Company, nor
is there any connected transaction which shall be
disclosed according to the laws and regulations
and requirements of China Securities Regulatory
Commission ("CSRC") but was not yet disclosed.

2. It will exercise the shareholders’ rights or directors’
rights according to the Company Law and other
laws and regulations and the requirements of
Articles of Association of the Company and
fulfill the duties of abstaining from voting from
the connected transactions involved with the
undertaken matters on the general meeting and
Board meeting.
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3 ARBRARBEBRZES AR
MTBEMEE  EZERFAF
NEMAERIZEG ERESH
ZEBBERIBABIS - W
AEBEBREH S ZMEHEEI
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A B EL At Y o 1B 3 78 BR AR 8 ST
ERERRTEREEEMER
BRETARIER BB 5T
B EOR R AR B E R E - 1R
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3. The Company, its de facto controller, its other
wholly-owned, holding subsidiaries and other
companies with actual control will avoid connected
transactions with Vanke as much as possible. If
under objective circumstances, the connected
transactions cannot be avoided, the obliged
parties of information disclosure and other
subsidiaries shall disclose information in strict
compliance with the laws and regulations of CSRC,
other requirements of Articles of Association of
the listed company after the reorganization, the
related system of controlling and determining the
connected transactions and in accordance with a
fair and reasonable business principles.

4. Upon the completion of transaction, it will not use
the status as the largest shareholder of the listed
Company and prejudice the legitimate interest of
the listed Company and other Shareholders.”

CRNC, the parent company of CRC, gave a significant
undertaking to the Company in 2001: CRNC would
provide as much support to the Company as it did in
the past, as long as such support was beneficial to the
Company's development, and that it would remain
impartial in the event of any horizontal competition
between the investment projects of the Company and
that of CRNC and its subsidiaries, and in the event of
any disagreements or disputes arising from horizontal
competition. CRNC had fulfilled its undertaking.
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5.10 Details on the Company’s investor relations

activities and investor protection

The Company always attached great importance to the
investor relations. In 2016, the Company amended the
administrative measures for disclosure of information,
further specified the responsibilities of the Board and
information disclosure department of the Company
so as to give full play to its function, strengthen the
management on information disclosure and enhance
the Company's transparency. During the year, the
Company published over 200 overseas and domestic
announcements and was assigned high information
disclosure rating by SZSE.

Faced with the changes of shareholders, save as timely
and sufficient information disclosure, the Company
insists to keep communication and interaction
with investors through various methods. In 2016,
the Company received over 500 investor visits and
conference calls, participated in 47 meetings organized
by both domestic and international corporations. The
Company also organised 4 domestic and international
results presentations, intensive reverse roadshow for
2 times, performed 2 internet road shows for medium
and small-sized investors, and replied to 350 questions
from medium and small-sized investors through
irm.cninfo.com.cn. In addition, via telephone, e-mail
and the Internet, the Company communicated with
investors, thereby maintaining long-term trust between
the Company and its investors.
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Details on the Company’s investor meetings in 2016 are

set out as follows:

A E] it S ik G HFROARRRENER
Issues discussed and
Type of meeting Date Location Approach  Types of investors information provided
PEEE 2018, Bk REg 5H EESREREE (~) KRNI ERA :
CICC meeting 2016.1 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc 1) AIRREER
ERERERY 2016.1 I REg 5H EESREREE n
DBS Vickers mesting 2018.1 Singapore Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc 2) DAEREE
BNPIEE 2016.1 &k i 5h - EESREREE 3) RAETRRL
BNP meeting 20181 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc BE -
Erfiid 0161 &t REg 5 AEERERAE (2) REHIRER -
Barclays meeting 20161 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc REEHREED
REEY 2016.1 Iy i 55 AEERERAE BECE
UBS meeting 2018.1 Shanghai Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc () Major issues
BESROED AR fEg 5% HATERRES discussed
Deutsche Bank meeting 2016.1 Beijing Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc 1) The Company's
LA 20181 Bk i 56 AEERERAE daly
Goldman Sachs meeting 20161 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc operations;
FRRERNE me3  MILE tR)-FE  REE 58 A% EASREREE ) The Company’s
Annual results presentation ~ 2016.3 Shenzhen (Shanghai, Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds and individual, development
Beijing) Hong Kong gc strategies;
ERERED M3 EE i 58 BEERERAE 3 The Company’s
CLSA meeting 0163 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc opinions about
REERED me3  EE i 56 AEERERRE the changes of
Credit Suisse Securities 20163 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc the industry
meting (Il) Major information
s AT me3 5 REE 3R BASAERME proiet pubised
Morgan Stanley meeting 0163 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc information
R a3 ER fEg GERE S incuding the
Citi meeting 20163 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc Company's regular
HEERLY 063 L& REg #h RESREREE reports.
China Merchants Securities ~ 2016.3 Shanghai Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
meeting
it mes ER fmg 55 AESRRRAR
Credit Suisse meeting 0164 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
ERERERD W4 HIR i 55 AEERERRE
DBS Vickers meeting 20164 Singapore Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
hEEE w65 EE i 5H - EESREREE
CICC meeting 2185 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
khEig mes  ER fmg 5% BEERRRAR
Macquarie meeting 20165 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
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Issues discussed and

Type of meeting Date Location Approach  Types of investors information provided

258 M5 B fme 58 AEERERAE

CLSA mesting 0165 Chengdu Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

EEERTED M5 HR i 5H EESREREE

Deutsche Bank meeting 2185 Singapore Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

EREEN M5 AR ik 76 ASERERAE

Morgan Stanley meeting ~ 2016.5 Beijing Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

TRARAY mes R SEg - BESEBREE

BOCl meeting 20166 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ERARRY M6 AR i 56 AEERERAE

JP Morgan meeting 20166 Beijing Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

L1yt M FE fmg 78 AEERERAE

CLSA meeting 20186 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

EiR ) Wes  EE REg aH - EESREREL

Morgan Stanley meeting 20166 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ERARREY Wes  EE i 55 AEERERAE

JP Morgan meeting 20166 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

) M FE i 55 AEERERAE

Citi meeting 0186 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

GEES 9 Mmes  EEMI(LE 4R)  RES »h A% BASREREE

Interim results presentation 20168 Hong Kong, Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, individual
(Shanghai, Beijing) investors, etc.

ERERLY w69 B fEg »h BESREREE

GF Securities mesting 20169 Fund Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

DBSIZ3) my  FE fme 55 AEERERAE

DBS meeting 20169 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

REEE My FE i 55 AEERERAE

CICC meeting 20169 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ERERED my  EE g 5 BESREREE

CLSA megting 20169 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

UOB Kay Hian 8! w610 iR REg 7 BESXERER

UOB Kay Hian meeting 016,10 Singapore Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

AEERED mel0 R i 55 BEERERAE

Guosen Securities meeting 201610 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

e ) M0 FE fEg 76 AEERERAE

Jefferies megting 201610 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

RS o6 SEg 55 RESERRAR

Citi megting 016,11 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

8 wmel R i 55 AEERERAE

Credit Suisse meeting 016.11 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc
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£l ] 1w hiES EGHE FRORERRENER
Issues discussed and

Type of meeting Date Location Approach  Types of investors information provided

CET ) mern AR fmg 55 AESERRAR

CICC meeting 216,11 Beijing Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ey w81 AR i 5H - EESREREE

Citi megting 201611 Macau Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ANEFEY el EE i 58 BEERERAE

Daiwa Securties meeting 016,11 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ERIANEY WMot HR REg 5H AEERERAE

Morgan Stanley meeting 0161 Singapore Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

AFERREY melr R fmg i RESERRAR

Guotal Junan meeting 201611 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

PERARY et R i 56 BEERERAE

CITIC Securities meeting 016,11 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

BRERY men  LE fmg 55 AESRRRAR

Haitong Securities meeting 206,12 Shanghai Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

RS me12 L8 i 58 EEERERRE

CRE Securities mesting 016.12 Shanghai Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

ERAREY w62 EE i 55 AEERERAE

JP Morgan meeting 201612 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, efc

ERMENES w2 EE REg »h BESREREE

Morgen Stenley meeting 16.12 Hong Kong Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

REEFRY me12 g i 55 EEERERAE

Essence Securities 216,12 Boao Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

AEERED me2 R i 5H EESREREE

Guosen Securities meeting 216,12 Shenzhen Facetoface  Investors including securities companies, funds, etc

g FPMRESRA—E— - —HEMARSHENNTUET - RENREERZBIBSOR °
Note: The above-mentioned meetings included one-on-one meetings, small group meetings and large group

presentation. The Company received or met with investors from over 50 companies.
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£l KA it biE:S EEHES ARHRARRENER
Issues discussed and
Type of meeting Date Location Approach  Types of investors information provided
&RAH gEEm O MBNCERRD. MEE-H- 8EER REES BHE JEE - EE
L& il &M & hEER ERAR M%ﬁ Z*E s BFER
B BN M RIES REER EREEH REES TEES BT
g5 RN 2R B EE 2585 2RE5 REE5 EHRERLANE
¥5- K285 A 7 Be2% AHE5 (B8) (VB Forsyth Barr Asia
2S8 Bl BB 3% BNPZ
BE 1% ER ER
AR B - BB
Securities companies Duringthe  Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiemen, Small group or  Haitong Securities, UBS Securities, Nomura Securities, Deutsche
Reporting  Changsha, Shanghai, one-on-one  Bank, Citigroup, HSBC, CICC, BOC Intemational, JPMorgan,
Period Hangzhou, Nanjing, Suzhou, Macquarie, Mitsubishi UF. Securities, Guotai Junan Securities,

Wux, Changzhou, Yangzhou,
Xuzhou, Ningbo, Wenzhou,
Hefei, Wuhu, Beijing,

Tianjin, Shenyang, Dalian,
Qinhuangdao, Tangshan,
Jinan, Qingdao, Chengau,
Wuhan, Chongging, Xi'an,
Taiyuan, Zhengzhou, Guiyang
and other places

Changjiang Securities, CCB International, Morgan Stanley, GF

Securities Ping An Securities, credit Suisse, Huatai Securities,

Essence Securities, Mizuho Securities, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan

Stanley Securities, State Securities, China Merchants Securities

(Hong Kong), CIMB, Forsyth Barr Asia, BNP etc.

—=
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Issues discussed and
Type of meeting Date Location Approach  Types of investors information provided

KRG RERAREREA ®5Em RMIRM EFORD. MER-Y- TRAZERARAMLRDELASS SEESEEARL

REE &M B A TRREESERARLR  HEES 2EES U
RS R 7Rl B RlEG “2EE HIEE KBEE EARE
BRI o B BEED EhEL Brfk S35 MBEL R
RN AY RN BRG THEE RPAE ERAS Wenadh
225 Bl B9 5% E50RES - 77%E2 - Amundi Hong Kong Limited -
BE 1% BB EX Vontobel Asset Managerent AG + Allanz Global * Och Ziff
AR DN EREH YSL~ UBS GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT * Blackrock

Fidelity * Wellington ~ GIC ~ APS ~ TRAFIGURA INVESTMENT
(CHINA) CO., LTD  Brookfield * Capital  Baillie Gifford * NPJ
Asset Management * Investec Asset Management » Oaktree
Northwoods * Moore Capital Mgt » AXA Investment
Aberdeen International * Putnam Investrent (US) * PNBInt |+
Avi Hoddes, Millennium » Henderson Global Investors * T Rowe
Price » Greenlight Asset Mgt » Lombard Odier Asset Mgt »
EGERTON + LAKE TRAIL CAPITAL » OLD MUTUAL  PUBLIC
SECTOR PENSION INVESTMENT BOARD * SCHRODER
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT ~ SPQ ASIA CAPITAL»

TD ASSET MANAGEMENTMerlon Capital Partners ~ Super
Investment Mat * Wavestone Capital * Northern Trust Asset
Mgt~ Covalis Capital ~ Samlyn Capital » Tiger Fund ~ Trafelger
Copley * Fortress Investment Group * Nikko am ~ GMO
CBRE Clarion * Neuberger Barman Asia Limited + First State
Investments + Passport Capitl - Falcon Edge Capital * MLC+
Cooper Inv Pty Ltd%
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L B 1

Type of meeting Date Location

ES SIS HROARRRROEN
Issues discussed and
Approach  Types of investors information provided

Funds end other investment ~ Duringthe  Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen,

companies and indlvidual Reparting  Changsha, Shanghai,

investors Period Hangzhou, Nanjing, Suzhou,
Wux, Changzhou, Yangzhou,
Xuzhou, Ningbo, Wenzhou,
Hefei, Wuhu, Beijing,
Tianjin, Shenyang, Dalian,
Qinhuangdao, Tangshan,
Jinan, Qingdao, Chengau,
Wuhan, Chongging, Xi'an,
Taiyuan, Zhengzhou,
Guiyang, etc

Small group or -~ Ping An Asset Management Co., Lid. Central Bank of Norway,
ong-on-one Golden Eagle Fund Management Limited, ICBC Credit Suisse

Asset Management Limited, Zhongou Fund, Huaxia Fund,
Temasek, Tianhong Fund, Samsung Asset Management, HI
Asset Management, KBAsset Management, Fubon Securities
Investment Trust, Bosera Fund, South Fund, Sunshine Insurance,
Yinhua Fund, Rongtong Fund, Harvest Fund, Anbang Asset
Management, Eastern Asset Management, Cathay Pacific
Fund, Norges Bank, Huatai-PineBridge Fund, E-Fund, Amundi
Hong Kong Limited Vontabel Asset Management AG, Allianz
Global, Och Ziff, YSL, UBS Global Asset Management,
Blackrock, Fidelity, Wellington, GIC, APS, TRAFIGURA
INVESTMENT (CHINA) CO., LTD, Brookfield, Capital, Baille
Gifford, NPJ Asset Management, Investec Asset Management,
Qakiree, Northwoods, Moore Capital Mrmt, AXA Investment,
Aberdeen International, Putnam Investment (US), PNB Int'l
Avi Hoddes, Millennium, Henderson Global Investors, T Rowe
Price, Greenlight Asset Management, Lombard Odfer Asset
Management, EGERTON, LAKE TRAIL CAPITAL, OLD MUTUAL,
PUBLIC SECTOR PENSION INVESTMENT BOARD, SCHRODER
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, SPQ ASIA CAPITAL, TD ASSET
MANAGEMENT, Merlon Capital Partners, Super Investment
Mat, Wavestone Capital, Northern Trust Asset Mgt, Covalis
Capital, Samlyn Capital, Tiger Fund, Trafalgar Copley, Fortress
Investment Group, Nikko am, GMO, CBRE Clarion, Neuberger
Barman Asia Limited, First State Investments, Passport Capita,
Falcon Edge Capital, MLC, Cooper Inv Pty Lid and etc.

SRR EEERRR K EH AR 5.11 Was there any use of the Company’s funds by

BAOFCEHERARES
KER?

RV TE FRRR AR 3R H A R O 3
REMERARESNER -

the controlling shareholder and other related
parties for non-operation purpose?

There had not been any use of the Company’s funds by
the controlling shareholder and other related parties for
non-operation purpose.
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162

)

015FEMRASAZEERED
SHRERSHMEBEM (BHRTRE
B)NMESHSTMBEBAMARF
006FEEFtMEBK TRAR

5.12 Appointment and termination of certified
public accountants
The 2015 annual general meeting resolved to re-appoint
KPMG Huazhen LLP and KPMG as the Company’s
auditors for the year 2016. The following table shows
the details on the appointment of the certified public

AEBEGTREBAER

accountants of the Company:

i) 20165 E BARY 20155 %
Year of
Type 2016 service 2015
#Fi1ER FEQ #:ER (AR%T) FEM EHEA (AR%T)
Audited items Auditor Audit fee (RMB) Audit fee Audit fee (RMB)
KEhErREHRARRNEE ESRERSHNES 165 EREERESHNER
AURUBREAR L AR i (RREBAR) fr (RAREEAR)
EHE
The Group's consolidated financial ~ KPMG Huazhen LLP 16 KPMG Huazhen LLP
statements prepared in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards
for business enterprises and issue of RMB10,500,000.00 RMB10,500,000.00
internal control audit report
KERRSBREEARRNSE LR e ERM uFE  ERESHMEBH
anuBER
The Group's consolidated financial ~~ KPMG 24 KPMG
statements prepared in accordance
with the IFRS
BF R ER 1 T
Signing CPA Fong Kwin Wang Xiaomei
BFEAAD BRKE 1 oK IE
Signing CPA Chen Yongyi Law Wing Fai

bBiEFERBBSE BT H

WEIRE -

The above-mentioned audit fee included the travelling

expenses incurred during the auditing period.
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S3HEMA  ARARLATE

E-EE SREBAERR
EENMESHSERR

4 o

S EBREER

ARRHABIERTEGEARAE
BEERLAIARBRRIEZ B EHK
MEVBEBEERE

5.5 HEMRBRER

20171 A128 » REIREREBRS
R HES  fESEEEET (FH
RERTERGBBRA R ZRMDEE
W) - EEROIPBEE S
FERNFABESHFENERAR
1,689,599,817 & AR 3% 17 5 5% 45 Hb i)
£8 - 20171 A248 » KR ipzE
#11,689,599,817 A & AR 15 B
BEETFENIETE - ABRNDF
B20179F18138 - 1A148 1824
AEEME AN IKE

5.13 Disciplinary action taken against the

Company or its Directors, members
of Supervisory Committee and senior
management during the Reporting Period

Nil.

5.14 Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing
Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

5.15 Subsequent event after the reporting period

On 12 January 2017, China Resources and China
Resources Trade, being shareholders of the Company,
entered into an agreement regarding transfer of
shares in China Vanke Co., Ltd. (the "Agreement”) with
SZMC. Under the Agreement, China Resources and
China Resources Trade intended to transfer a total of
1,689,599,817 A shares in the Company to SZMC by way
of agreement. On 24 January 2017, the share transfer
registration formalities for the transfer of 1,689,599,817
A shares under this agreement was completed. For
details, please refer to the information disclosed at
CNINFO Network on 13 January, 14 January and 24
January 2017.
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201793168 + & £ B R &
FiEREBEE (RS EIERK
B)(TCERBZEY) - WHRFE AR
FREXRESETBELEEE(ER®
) WEECERBZE) £
BfEE—FR (A TEEIE8E]) -
FREXSETBECEHFAEN
1,553,210,974iR BRI AR FORE - 1
RERZ2MBRRERAREOEN ([FE
ARERFEF L) ] BSH b B 5T 4R Hb 88
£E - AMEEEBTTAERIMSE
RREFMEITE - B LiBEEEZ
HR—FA - wESEE]{TEQFH’
FT29.38%H) FRIAE - IREE R 2N
RRREHEF - BAHEERE A%
BREIRAELA SRR - A58
NAFHRAR017E3817HEE#
B AR o

2017F3R178 » RRAIZEBEE—H
BAEERN TN RESEEEEESH
EECAREBAEEHEBHA2ERS
¥METREMID KRR EES
NEZHARNEENERERES -
EREMISEE NMELRERZFTE S
EESETEBARKEEERASER
EMEMEEMEIRR - ABARH
BARI0M7E3A18AEEHEAE
K TR ©
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On 16 March 2017, SZMC entered into the Strategic
Cooperation Framework Agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with China Evergrande Group and
the Proxy Agreement with the subsidiaries of China
Evergrande Group on the same day. Pursuant to
the Proxy Agreement, China Evergrande Group's
subsidiaries will entrust to SZMC the voting rights,
proposal rights and rights to attend general meetings
attached to 1,553,210,974 A shares (the “Specific
Shareholders’ Right”) in Vanke held irrevocably within
one year from the effective date of the Framework
Agreement (the "Valid Period”), and SZMC will
exercise the above specific shareholder rights at its
own discretion. Within one year from the date of the
agreement, SZMC can exercise a total 29.38% of the
voting rights, proposal rights and rights to attend
general meetings of the Company. Currently, SZMC has
the highest proportion of voting rights of the Company
among shareholders. For details, please refer to the
disclosure on CNINFO Network on 17 March 2017.

On 17 March 2017, all directors of the Company
agreed unanimously on the resolution in relation to
the consolidation of commercial property assets and
decided to transfer part of or all of the interests in 42
commercial property projects owned by the Group to
the commercial property investment fund set up by the
Company, and give priority to SCPG and its subsidiaries
for the operation and management of other commercial
property projects of the Company under the same
market conditions. For details, please refer to the
disclosure on CNINFO Network on 18 March 2017.
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FERBREYEREEEETSER
REF  ATE—DRASRDES
Fh BEERGEEEGE - #BEY
EVTERBGEREE  RAEFESEH
ATEBRESI AMREIEIGEE ¢
IR E RES8EE o LA E K%
WERMEBRARNAEE  BHREAR
NHEENESRE25%E - 585%
EAETEBRRRBS%IAE - AKX
RETKE - ERENTMERE
B A AR #665,079,3657C A B FT
HERYENRELLOI#E H63% -
MEERMENZRRE - HEAF
M E - BRIWED TRAKIEE
NIEELEE -

506 RAB RARNFZERKR »

B R A SAS AR T B9 = B
BANRMM - BEHR - ARFT
TFHER BT AR £ AR BLFT & 88
BAMEHHBRBEESEA -

BEREHR - AR EZBRARER
MERIZEHIA

Amidst the trend of all-around marketization of the
property service industry in mainland China, in order to
further enhance the competitiveness of Vanke Service,
broaden the area of its services and build a ecological
chain of property ancillary services, the Board of the
Company resolved to introduce two strategic investors:
Boyu Capital and 58 Group. For the total share capital
of Vanke Service after the capital injection, Boyu Capital
acquired 25% of the equity interest through the fund
under its management and 58 Group acquired 5%
of the equity interest through its subsidiaries. After
the capital injection, the registered capital of Vanke
Service become RMB665,079,365 and the Company'’s
shareholding in Vanke Service became 63% and it
remained the controlling shareholder of Vanke Service.
As at the date of this annual report, Vanke Service had
completed the business registration for the capital
injection.

5.16 Credit status of the Company, its controlling

shareholders and de facto controllers

So far as the Company is aware, the Company has not
failed in performing any valid court verdict and fulfilling
any significant payment obligations that fall due during
the Reporting Period.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company

did not have any controlling shareholder or de facto
controller.
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6.1 RABERER

LN DREIRMPEEBERER (B
£2016%F12A318)

6.1 Change in Share Capital
6.1.1 Change in the shares of the Company (As at 31

December 2016)

B
Unit: Share
BH2D
20158128318 (+7-) 20165128318
Increase/
Decrease
31 December 2015 (+,) 31 December 2016
g8 (R) thil 2 (&) g8 (R) tAl
Quantity  Percentage of Others Quantity  Percentage of
ReEH Type (Share)  shareholding (Note) (Share)  shareholding
- EREEARHR 1. Restricted Shares
1. BRREEZAER 1. State-owned and state-owned
legal person shares
2. BMEARR 2. Shares held by domestic legal
persons
3. BREARAER 3. Shares held by domestic natural 16,073,774 0.145% 945,000 15,128,774 0.14%
persons
4 HEBRK 4. Shares held by foreign investors
ERERERDAH Total number of restricted shares 16,073,774 0.145% -945,000 15,128,774 0.14%
= ERERERH 2 Non-restricted Shares
1. ARELER 1. RMB-denominated ordinary shares  9,720,583,058 87.956% 11,515,299 9,709,067,759 87.95%
(A Shares)
2. BOEWAER 2 Domestic listed foreign shares 1,314,955 468 11.899% 0 1,314955468 11.91%
BREEERGA Total number of non-restricted shares  11,035,538,526 99.855% 211,515,299 11,024,023,227 99.86%
= kg 3. Total number of shares 11,051,612,300 100.00% -12,460,299  11,039,152,001 100.00%
5F ¢ QA E2015% [ B B9ARR i Note: The A Shares the Company repurchased in 2015 were

MERREHANEL - R
7 AR B 52 HA HE B T B Ak
SHRAEREHATE 2
B 1) 48 BLE2015F KB A
B - R RAEHD SR
EIEA B ERBRINET RIS
NEERL PEBESFELHE
HERBERATRINS QA
BREHERBSREEA
ERBENRERD  AAA
PR & R B Ay B R &
IR BRI EEEE o
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announced during this reporting period and part of the
options of the A-Share Stock Option Incentive Scheme
were exercised. There is no change in the total number
of shares of the Company from 2015. Meanwhile, there
are changes in the positions and shares held by some
of the senior management staff. The Shenzhen office
of China Securities Depository & Clearing Corporation
Limited accordingly adjusted the trading restrictions on
shares held by the relevant senior management staff
according to regulations. There was changes in both

restricted shares and non-restricted shares.
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CI2BREHARERDEEFERE

6.1.2 Change in Restricted Shares during the reporting

period
B B
Unit: Share
AERE  KEEN
RRER FORERH RERE RERE FARERE RERE BRRERH
Number of Number of ~ Number of
restricted restricted  restricted  Number of
shares shares with shares restricted
held at the restrictions  increased  shares held
Name of beginning  lifted during  during the  at the end of Date of selling
shareholder of the year the year year the year Reason for selling restrictions restrictions removal
E 5,712,901 0 0 5712901 %
Wang Shi Director
N e i = PEEFBLREEAR
B 5,479,684 0 0 5479484 B% BREEAR - i/\
Yu Liang Director, senior management staff RERTRIAAA
' RAEMARRES -
EENSEARRAN
- 389,383 0 0 389,383 ES
Sun Jianyi Director ARERARL
/ The Shenzhen office
N e e o of China Securities
IXg 1,960,718 225,000 0 1735718 £ RREEAE Denository &
Wang Wenjin Director, senior management staff P , / ,
Clearing Corporation
- , Limited, according
R 1,118,059 0 0 1,118,059 EX 1o reaulations
Xie Dong Member of Supervisory Committee d i’
imposed or lifted the
BET 15,000 0 0 15,000 E% seling restictions
o , _ on shares held by
Zhou Qingping Member of Supervisory Committee
directors, members
S f the Supervi
e 678,029 0 0 78009 BBEEAR ore upenEy
. Committee and senior
Zhang Xu Senior management staff
management staff
BER 720,000 720,000 0 0 RREBAR
Tan Huajie Senior management staff
ait 16,073,774 945,000 0 15128774 - -
Total

—=
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GIIRBRITHREMER

168

A.

BRI =ZFRERITERSZRT
(P

201558228 » A REI20145F
BRASGREESTSHETBR
ARBEIS0B T EERNEITE
%5 °2015%7A18 > REIAB
AMERRARNREREETSESRD
BEBERNARABTTITEBAR

BB T RRIEFNER -

20158 4108 R A1 EEHEFE
B2 [ B 57 7J[2015]1915%% ]
NIz MEBREKREER R
THERETBBARKOIE
TLH A RIES © 20155F9 H25H
NEVA2015F R AlfES (B—
H) BEHPSMEITLRE - #

BIIRAEFR ARBSET

EHERSF - AAIMERS
BBRAAA - EHEHNERERR
AAA ° 2015F9 F28H # 17 4
REBRETHERARKES

B &EREmMANEF3.50% e

201511 A9H BB HEFT
BEZ G LT - E5ETE15

ERI0T] - 115 [112285] ©

HEREFWPRATEANET
R
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6.1.3 Issue and listing of shares

A.

Issue of shares and derivative securities in the
past three years

On 22 May 2015, the Board was granted the
mandate at the 2014 AGM to issue bonds within
the limit of RMB15 billion. On July 1 2015, the
Company submitted the resolution of the issuance
of corporate bonds within the limit of RMB9 billion
to the Board through communication vote. On
10 August 2015, the Company was granted the
approval by CSRC by virtue of document “Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2015] No. 1915" for the public issuance
of corporate bonds within the limit of RMB9 billion
to qualified investors. On 25 September 2015, the
Company published the 2015 Corporate Bonds
Issue Prospectus and Launch Announcement,
proposed to issue RMBS5 billion corporate bonds
with the 5-year bond term. On 28 September 2015,
the issuance is completed with the actual issuance
of RMB5 billion at the 3.50% final coupon rate. On
9 November 2015, relevant bonds were listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange under the abbreviated
bond name "15Vanke01” and the bond code
“112285".

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the
Company did not have any internal employee
shares.
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62BREBRNEE (BE20165F 6.2 Information of Shareholders (As at 31

12H318) December 2016)
621 BREBRE 6.2.1 Information on shareholders
BA
Unit: Share
165 RRREH 336,092P (EHAR336,0657  HE27P)  201752R28ARREH 339,309F (EHRAR339,262F + HiR27F)
Total number of Shareholders 336,092 (including 336,065 A Shareholders  Total number of Shareholders 339,309 (including 339,282 A Shareholders
as at the end of 2016 and 27 H Shareholders) as at 28 February 2017 and 27 H Shareholders)
A0ERERRER
Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders
R=R KR BEBRN  BEERE  EAGREN
“g Al RREY RELIER KHRGHE kt#&
Change in
Classification sharesduring ~ Numberof ~ Number of
of Shareholder  Percentage of  Total number  the Reporting restricted  pledged or
L Name of shareholder shareholding ~ shareholding  of shares held Period  sharesheld lock-up shares
ZERD CRC BEEA 15.24% 1682759247 0 0 0
State-owned
legal person
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED="HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED"et! NERE 191% 1314932349 807 0 0
Foreign
shareholder
R Jushenghua it 839% 926010472 0 0 926070462
Others
BMTTERERRAT  Guangzhou Xinsheng Investment £ 471% 526389569 526,389,569 0 0
Co,, Ltd. Others
BfzE%5 - THHT - BIE% Guosen Securities - Industrialand ~ Eft 404% 456,993,190 0 0 0
BABSEABEEEHE  Commercial Bank of China - Others
Guosen Jinpeng No.1 Classified
Collective Asset Management
Plan
AEAZRRROERAT - Foresea Life Insurance Co, Ltd - Eftr 3% 9776441 0 0 0
BHEE Hai Li Nian Nian Others
AEHE - BEET-BR1 OMS Wealth - CMB - De Ying i 298% 329352920 0 0 0
REREEEEHE No. 1 Specialised Asset Others
Management Plan
THHERBRAERAT - AnBang Property & Casualty i) 23% 256167403 0 0 0
ERER Insurance Co,, Ltd - Traditional ~ Qthers
Products
PEEFSBRAERLE  China Securities Finance Corporation  E4 205% 4882634 81534882 0 0
Limited Others
RHNERBRAERAT - AnBang Life Insurance Co, Ltd. - Eft 2% 43677851 0 0 0
RFLFELE Conservative Investment Portfolio  Others

BRREEG-REAREE Remarks on strategic investoror &
FRABA0ERENER  ordinary legal person becoming Nl
top 10 shareholders after placing
of new shares
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A0EERERHRERRER
Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders of non-restricted shares

RERRE
KrRNEE ROER

Number of non-restricted

T Name of shareholder shares held ~ Class of shares
D CRC 168275947 AREERBR (AR)

Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED®'  HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED®! 1314932349 SEHEWONER (HR)

Overseas listed foreign Shares (H Shares)
hRE Jushenghua 926010472 AREBLER (AR)

Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
BNTMEREERA Guangzhou Xinsheng Investment Co., Ltd. 526389569 AEELER (AR

Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
BESE5 - 187 - BEAEA R Guosen Securities - Industrial and Commercial 456,993,190 AREEER (AR)

1REABEERHE Bank of China - Guosen Jinpeng No. ! Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)

Classified Collective Asset Management Plan

B AERRRABRAR - Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. - 39776441 NRBLER (AR)

BHIEE Hai Li Nian Nian Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
REETE - RERT - ERIBZE CMS Wealth - CMB - De Ying No. 1 329352920  ARELBHE (AR)

BEEEHY Specialised Asset Management Plan Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
TARERRRNERLE - AnBang Property&Casualty Insurance Co,, Ltd - 258167403 ARELRER (AR)

BRER Traditional Products Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
PEERLRROERAA China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 28826324 NRELER (AR)

Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)

TANERBRAERAE - RFE AnBang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. - Conservative u3677851  AREEER (AR)
kEas Investment Portfolio Ordinary RMB-denominated Shares (A shares)
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AI0RERERHRRERER

Shareholdings of the top 10 shareholders of non-restricted shares

HERREREAR - TB0HH

Remarks on the connected relationship or action in concert
of the aforementioned shareholders

SERARSRBRRENGNA
Shareholders involved in margin trading business description
ZENFREIFHRR

Shareholders involved in contracted repurchase transactions

F£1: HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED
Fr 35 B 19 /3 H R 32 #9 fEHKSCC
NOMINEES LIMITEDZ 5F = +
R KR AHR R EIR P AR5
HFN o

EREREEE (MEASRRRIERAR - BHEE | MMEASRRRINE B
B[ RAMERBENBRAR - B4E ﬁJWtﬁﬁEﬂ@ FAERAANEE [RBASRRRNE
BAR - RIURAAS | ZBASRRROERAR  HARARREERNE
ARBEERNERLNALATER ﬁ%fﬁﬁ A97.56%HR M - FELAASREBRNBRAT
99.98%8R10 © B sk 5 LB MANR AR EERBAIER ( LR ANEEERE) REH
~HBA -

Jushenghua holds 51% equity of Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. of “Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
- Hai Li Nian Nian"; AnBang Property Insurance Inc. managing the "AnBang Property Insurance Inc.
- Traditional Products” and AnBang Life Insurance Inc. managing the "AnBang Life Insurance Inc.

- Conservative Investment Portfolio” are subsidiaries of AnBang Insurance Group Co., Ltd. AnBang
Insurance Group Co. Ltd holds 97.56% Shares of AnBang Property Insurance Inc. and 99.98% Shares
of AnBang Life Insurance Inc. Besides, it is not known as to whether there are connections or persons
deemed to be acting in concert under the Measures for the Administration of the Takeover of Listed

Companies among the abovementioned shareholders.

=
N
&
N

Note 1: The shares held by HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED
is the sum of shares held in the account of H
shareholders on the trading platform of HKSCC
NOMINEES LIMITED.
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b22AI10BEREKRLERERRE 6.2.2 Number of shares held by the top 10
ERREEKYE shareholders of restricted shares and the

conditions of selling restriction

X VAR
Unit: Share
BREHKMS BENERE ALm Figw £
Fi# RREW HRERDEE XEEE REROHBE REKH
Date on Increase in
which  the number
Number of  listing and of shares that
Name of shareholder restricted trading may may be listed Conditions of selling
No of restricted shares shares held  commence and traded restrictions
1 T H Wang Shi 5,712,901 - - PERFECEEAREER
2 Bi5% Yu Liang 5,479,684 AR D R EIREA B E H
3 T 30& Wang Wenijin 1,735,718 TEE EEMaEABRA
4 R Xie Dong 1,118,059 VNI )
5 5R/B Zhang Xu 678,029 The Shenzhen office of
6 % — Sun Jianyi 389,383 China Securities Depository
7 [&E 15,000 & Clearing Corporation
Zhou Qingping Limited, according to relevant
regulations, put selling
restrictions on the Company’s
shares held by directors,
members of the Supervisory
Committee and senior
management staff
623 IRIR AR s 4 A SR 6.2.3 Controlling shareholders and de facto controllers
N IS B R TR s A - There were neither controlling shareholders nor de facto
R HAR LIS S E L o controllers in the Company, and this situation remained

the same during the Reporting Period.
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6.24FR10% A ERERIER

1~

ERERE-FHITHA

H 1E20165F12 8318 » R % &
LHE-—BITEAETHEEATA
A% A% 192,803,897,216[% - 15 A
A% ) 48 B 1925.40% © AR A
RIS — RMER - BBEanT

6.2.4Shareholders holding 10% or more of the

equity interests in the Company

1. Jushenghua and the party acting in concert with it
As of 31 December 2016, Jushenghua and the party
acting in concert with it held a total of 2,803,897,216
A Shares in the Company, representing 25.40% of
the total number of shares of the company, and
became the largest shareholder of the Company.
Details are set out below:

BAERAARRKR NG
F#  RRER REE (R) IR AL Bl
Number of A
Shares of the  Percentage of
Company held total issued
No Name of shareholder (Share) share capital
1 fEAREE 926,070,472 8.39%
Jushenghua
2 ABASREBERNDERAR - BHFF 349,776,441 3.17%
Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. — Hai Li Nian Nian
3 AIBASRBENBRAR - BREEM 218,081,383 1.98%
Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. — Ju Fu Product
4 BASREBENERAR -B6ES 168,007,821 1.52%
Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd.- Equity fund
5 MBASREBENERAR - BallRBEMR 11,800 0.0001%
Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd.- Universal Insurance Products
6 AEFRRES - BFRT - AHNESHIREETEM S 225,494,379 2.04%
Western Leadbank FMC - China Construction Bank — Western
Leadbank Jinyu No.1 Asset Management Plan
7 AEAGREE - ZRRT - APNEERIREETEHE 156,350,691 1.42%
Western Leadbank FMC - China Construction Bank — Western
Leadbank Baolu No.1 Asset Management Plan
8 ZEEE -RART -FEEEVFERPEETEE 166,662,583 1.51%
First-Trust Fund Management Minsheng Bank -First-Trust
Value No. 1 Special Customer Asset Management Plan
9 BHER - BRRT - BEIREBEE RN S 163,481,676 1.48%
China Southern Capital Management — China Guangfa Bank —
Guangju No. 1 Asset Management Plan
10 BMHER — FRFT - RRIREEEIRAE 97,649,123 0.88%
China Southern Capital Management - Ping An Bank -
Ansheng No. 1 Asset Management Plans
11 BHER - FRIR(T - RR2ZREBEE RS 89,724,515 0.81%
China Southern Capital Management - Ping An Bank -
Ansheng No. 2 Asset Management Plans
12 M ER — FRIRIT - RRIREBEE R E 84,540,563 0.77%
China Southern Capital Management - Ping An Bank —
Ansheng No. 3 Asset Management Plans
13 MABRA - BRIRIT - RIE2REEEEHE 63,465,898 0.57%
China Southern Capital Management — China Guangfa Bank —
Guangju No. 2 Asset Management Plan
14 REES - RAERT - REGHETRECEEREME 94,579,871 0.86%
Dongxing Securities — Minsheng Bank — Dongxing Xinxin
No.7 Collective Asset Management Plan
Bf 2,803,897,216 25.40%
Total

ZE—REFERSE Annual Report 2016 173



6 RABE R IRRBR

VI Change in Share Capital and Information on Shareholders

174

EREFEETEANEAS
REERODBER QR —EF
FF][AIBASRER
MERAR —EEER] -
[RIBASRRERROHDERR
A-BEE2] [AIEA
SREBRNHERAA -8B
BERVRIREM ] MANEAS
R (D BBR A R])51%H IR
o

$F B% ZE 72015911 A258
HEBHNEESEEAR
NAEIEFE] T ARG E I
REEERHEEER
& [F 77 2B A 15 & 815
EEBHMTEAEEERES
B WHREERE] T HE
75 % F ¢ 201511724
HEBHFEREEBRA
RIZRE] T2 BR19% ~ 259, ~ 3
REEEEFE A2
SRR EEIREEST EA
BER WREEHTT
B8 72 % 5 2015411
A2uRRKEESERE
BRAFIZERR T RIEEETHR
REEFPEEEREEAS
B WHREBERE T R
#H 7 W T - 2015%F12A81
HEREZEBRHERLD
AIEI(REEEITES
BEEHETEEEERS
E) 20155128148 B/
FEARERBRARES
(BEE2REEE R EE
EEBAR) MEBHTR

22
FE

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(M

Jushenghua held 51% equity of Foresea
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. managing “Foresea
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. — Hai Li Nian Nian”,
“"Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. — Ju Fu
Product”, “Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. —
Equity fund”, and “Foresea Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. — Universal Insurance Products”.

Jushenghua entered into the Western
Leadbank Baolu No. 1 Asset Management
Plan and the Western Leadbank Jinyu No.
1 Asset Management Plan Contracts with
Western Leadbank FMC on 25 November
2015 with relevant supplementary agreements
subsequently executed, entered into the
Ansheng No.1, No. 2 and No. 3 Asset
Management Plans Contracts on 24
November 2015 and the Guangju No. 1 Asset
Management Plan Contract on 26 November
2015 with China Southern Capital Management
Co., Ltd. with relevant supplementary
agreements subsequently executed, entered
into the First-Trust Value No. 1 Special
Customer Asset Management Plan Contract
with First-Trust Fund Management Co., Ltd. on
24 November 2015 with relevant supplementary
agreements subsequently executed, entered
into the Dongxing Xinxin No.7 Collective Asset
Management Plan Contract (& # {3 &79%% &
EEEBRFEEEEESM) with Dongxing
Securities Co., Limited on 1 December 2015,
and entered into the Guangju No. 2 Asset
Management Plan Contract and relevant
supplementary agreements with China
Southern Capital Management Co., Ltd. on 14
December 2015.
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BEARNT EHEEE
BB HAREERA
BRE FHHFRE - &
EETEFEGFESNRK
MArRIBRBRERE &
ETRETEEEAERR
ZRABRIAEFENER
TERRE: WZEFTA
TEBREEEFEFERSE
EIREE BREASA
EREEMREENS
B BEETESZAETEA
EERETALANESA
PIRNAFTERRBERER -

2016F4F6H » $E A FE M
A ASRBEHDAERA
AEE(BHEERND A
RAGBRAEZRERHE) -
EREREEERANE
£1926,070,4720% B% 15 BT ¥
JFE B 2 B0 R R AE S AT B
B BEZELAEAS
REBRMHDABERRG  EHE
EEHEBBRIMAIEAR -
B 3% iR 17— E 1SR B
ETETE] 6 ER
163,481,6760 B 15 ~ B 1@
(A EAR-EZHRIT—
BiR2SR EEE B8] T
#l 5 & %12,000,0000% A%
7~ A [APFEES —
BRIRT - AAGER
REEEEE ] 25/
8 R1156,350,6910% B& 17 -
BB AN EES &
RIRTT — AIFE W15
BEEEE] FHnER
225,494,3790% I% 15 (AT it
BEEEEEENTAE
[BERTE]) MY RN 2H
R B (& 71547,326,746
BR) TRIBUGER - B|EEE
KRB ASRERERMD AR

A -

Pursuant to the provisions in the contracts,
the relevant asset management plans can be
used to invest in the A shares of the Company.
The contracting parties agreed that during
the terms of the asset management plans, if
the Company convenes a general meeting,
the managers of the asset management plans
shall exercise the voting rights pursuant to
the instruction given by the trustors; if the
trustors require the asset management plans to
exercise other shareholders’ rights such as the
proposal right, nomination right and right to
convene a general meeting, the manager of the
asset management plans shall exercise relevant
rights according to the instruction given by the
trustors.

Jushenghua entered into the “Agreement on
Transfer of Voting Rights of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd.” with Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd. on
6 April 2016, and made an irrevocable and
gratuitous transfer to Foresea Life Insurance of
all the voting rights attached to the 926,070,472
shares it directly holds in the Vanke.
Jushenghua also made an irrevocable and
gratuitous transfer to Foresea Life Insurance
of all the voting rights (a total of 547,326,746
shares) attached to 163,481,676 shares of
Vanke it controls via the “China Southern
Capital Management — China Guangfa Bank
— Guangju No. 1 Asset Management Plan”,
2,000,000 shares via “China Southern Capital
Management — China Guangfa Bank — Guangju
No. 2 Asset Management Plan”, 156,350,691
shares via “Western Leadbank FMC - China
Construction Bank - Western Leadbank
Baolu No.1 Asset Management Plan”, and
225,494,379 shares via “"Western Leadbank FMC
— China Construction Bank — Western Leadbank
Jinyu No.1 Asset Management Plan” (below
collectively, the "Asset Management Plans” for
the aforesaid asset management plans).
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EREELRIFR

AR -

Date of registration:
AfER
Registered capital:
EARE

Legal representative:
FEff oAt
Registered address:

Business scope:

(3) Basic information of Jushenghua

200241 H28H

28 January 2002

AE#1,630,354.298 7T

163,354,290,000

EES

Ms. Ye Weiqing

R T 7R AR B 2 b BE 208858 R E M KB /\1#802%E

Room 802, 8th Floor, Shenye Logistics Building, 2088 Bao’an North
Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen.

REEBRER (ABERARTHRR)  EREBER  SZREIHER
BNFEHERZE K2 CETHKRE  EAFERA (REATHN &
5 R Ee SREBLRHETCRGIER) M BWMRE  BHAR
W BERE LeXRE -BFEM KE ZERAREMENER:
NES BEYVERMELD  BAMEHEE  #HERERE OX2 TR
ERBIENIEB BRI - SRR - TTHORRRGIEYIE B ARG ET RIE 07 Al 8
#) o

Investment in industrial operations (specific projects shall be
separately reported); development of computer software, property
development and operation after legally obtaining land use rights;
corporate marketing planning, information consulting (excluding
employment agency, security, insurance, fund, financial business and
other restricted items); purchase and sales of construction materials,
machinery equipment, office equipment, communication devices,
hardware and electrical equipment, electronic products, furniture,
and interior decoration materials; domestic trade, import and
export of goods and technologies; lease of self-owned properties;
supply chain management (excluding items prohibited by laws
and administrative regulations, and items restricted by laws and
administrative regulations shall obtain an approval before operation).

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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SERREMRRABIT

follow:

The shareholding structure of Jushenghua is as

FF 5%

No

R &M

Name of shareholder

R B L 5
Percentage of
shareholding

ARINTEEIREEBAR AR
Shenzhen Baoneng Investment Group Co., Ltd.
RYNEIRDRERAF]
Shenzhen Baoyuan Logistics Co., Ltd.
RYITERRAIRIRECE (ARAR)
Shenzhen Baoneng Chuangying Investment Company
(Limited Partnership)
RYTHEBEREXRRERNEE (BRAR)
Shenzhen Zheshang Baoneng Industrial Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

67.4%

0.68%

1.92%

30%
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T EREEERER (4) Basic information of Shenzhen Baoneng

@ﬂ%ﬁla/ﬁ

AT A

Date of Registration:

AMER
Registered Capital:
REEI -
Type of enterprise:

ZY N

Legal representative:

PRIR 4518
Shareholding

structure:

awE

Business scope:

Investment Group Co., Ltd.

200043 A23H

23 March 2000

AE¥30,000& 7T

RMB300 million

BEREELQF (BRAABE)

Company with limited liability (sole proprietorship of legal person
invested)

whHREE

Mr. Yao Zhenhua

BEHREE S A FFA100% o

The Company is wholly owned by Mr. Yao Zhenhua.

REMBRERX (ABERZTHR®R) - REXMLIRBEER (ABEB 51T
BR¥R)  BE - REHMHNBHEIETEERNES O - 1TEBUER - Hi‘*
BORE MR E B CATRLHENIEBRIN) - REELOER Ox2 -
Eﬁ(;‘j&%ﬁ, - BIEBORES I IEA RSN - REIENIAR AR H&F—HQTJ—H‘“

2 BRER %Eﬁﬁ%fﬁéﬁif E AMFER EXREEEN (TA)\ZLFF
e EE R CEREGLHEERGIER)  HERER
investment in industmal operations (specific projects shall be
separately reported); investment in culture and tourism industry
(specific projects shall be separately reported); purchase and sales
of construction and decoration material and other domestic trade
(excluding the items which shall obtain approval before registration
according to the laws, administrative regulations and orders from the
State Council), operation of import and export business (excluding
the items prohibited by laws, administrative regulations and
orders from the State Council, and the restricted items shall obtain
approval before operation); purchase, sales and lease of construction
equipment; information consulting and corporate management
consulting (excluding employment agency, security, insurance, fund,
financial business and other restricted items); and supply chain
management.

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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The following chart shows the equity

/
N

I

AN

/
N

3

relationship between Jushenghua and the party

A AR HE B AR Y T AE Bl a0

acting in concert with it and the Company:

PriREE
Yao Zhenhua

REEE

j==FA
HHRe
BIRAH
Shenzhen Baoneng

Y

Investment Group

Co., Ltd.

4
Contract

A A A A A A AR A s

m

PAN
=)

8.39%

BRAR

Shenzhen Jushenghua

RN ERRER S

Co., Ltd.

Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
— Universal Insurance Products
TR < il ok SR T
SUCE kR [ S

»
o
&
3 m Foresea Life Insurance Co.,
K = el Ltd. - Equity fund
W_J w B ﬁﬁxkj%ﬁ@muuwﬁ.ﬁlm
=t | T — T AT <
®gEE —
fipEX = =
<ir s O Foresea Life Insurance Co.,
w2 | Ltd. — Ju Fu Product
= £ IR < ik G R DX
i <T — R IR DS

Foresea Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd. — Hai Li Nian Nian
IR <K E X Bir D

e — e -1

SN

l3.17% l 1.98% l 1.52% J0.00M%
The Company

>
>

0

Dongxing Securities — Minsheng Bank - Dongxing Xinxin
No.7 Collective Asset Management

K ERRHR — K41 B0 — KB 04 ~ SRk i Bt

China Southern Capital Management — China Guangfa Bank
— Guangju No. 2 Asset
HEE QA KE — {20 350 — BB o~ SR M Bt

China Southern Capital Management — China Guangfa Bank
— Guangju No. 1 Asset
HEEARAM K — 20 35 — BB — SR M Bt

China Southern Capital Management — Ping An Bank
- Ansheng No. 3 Asset Management

HERARYE K — B Y B0 — AN oo S NI n B st

China Southern Capital Management — Ping An Bank
- Ansheng No. 2 Asset Management

{EEARAIKE — BHM B — B R I Bl el

China Southern Capital Management — Ping An Bank
- Ansheng No. 1 Asset Management
HERARYI K — B BEUC — I — SR e B S il

‘;‘jSS‘;PM

First-Trust Fund Management — Minsheng Bank —
First-Trust Value No. 1 Special Customer

BT <] — BRAH 100 — WGBTS () R\ X 5t

Western Leadbank FMC — China Construction Bank —
Western Leadbank Baolu No. 1 Asset
HI B W< — M SR — Ml B W B — SR KO e By sl

Western Leadbank FMC — China Construction Bank —
Western Leadbank Jinyu No. 1 Asset
FRI e P el — R SR — HRI R WP IS8 — SR KD M B

179
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2

ERROREZETLAT

B Z=2016%F128318 © # &
BHhEERFERAAREK®G
1,682,759,2470% » kX & B 1
BEH15.24% » R EHK D
ME2ETRAPHEESHER
BIAMR%1D 6,840,5700% - L
BREMNBARASIBEEATA
A% I% 19 1,689,599,8170% » 15 A
B)MARR ANEY15.31% o

EHRHERPEHEFERF
2003F 6 A B RBER IR MND A
BRAG ZEREABBBEE
e EBEERBBERN (£
E) AR A a100%H i K& E
HAEE  TEXEKEREY
TR REBER - RBEE
h B RRES AR
BIAEECENKRE : HEET
EhE (ZEHEEBET)  RARE
ZIRBIMNKEERERE : A
MET - EaEgm - BEMR
ExWEE: EFTABEESR
BMINT - £E - HE: WEE
B RAEEIRNIINEEBR
EREE BRITRR - RaliE
i tut A &I L@ EE KR
E30015F Rk ERRE R LES
B AME RN164.6718
5o

FREEBRARFEERIRSD
16,466,413,526f% B R A% » (HE
R 7K 48 5 H999.9961% ¢ 1 B 3
HEANRNE2ETARERRH
RRREZEERARFEERRS
650,0000% BB A AR « 1EH K
AN 48 FEEN0.0039% » HhEEE 48
NAEIFMEARL152.37(87x » =
ZEEREMBHNKE B
BREKEREEEEBEERS
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

CRC and its wholly own subsidiaries

As of 31 December 2016, CRC held an aggregate
of 1,682,759,247 A shares of the Company, which
represented 15.24% of the total number of the
Company's shares. The wholly owned subsidiary
of CRC, China Resources Trade held 6,840,570
A Shares in the Company. CRC together with
its subsidiary held 1,689,599,817 A shares of the
Company in aggregate, representing 15.31% of the
Company’s total shares.

CRC is a joint stock limited company promoted
and established by CRNC in June 2003, with Mr.
Fu Yuning as its statutory representative. CRC's
major assets include 100% equity interests in
China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. in Hong
Kong (“CRH") and other assets in the PRC. Its
core businesses include investments in finance,
insurance, energy, transportation, electricity,
communication, storage and logistics, food
and beverage producers; investments in and
management of retailers (including supermarket
chains) and civil construction and engineering;
manufacturing of petrochemicals, textile
products and construction materials; processing,
manufacturing, and sale of electronic and
mechanical and electrical products; property
management, exterior and interior decorations for
civil construction projects; technical exchange, etc.
The registered address of CRC is 3/F, Stadium of
Shenzhen Bay Sports Center, No. 3001 Binhai Road,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen. CRC has a registered
capital of approximately RMB16,467 million.

CRNC holds 16,466,413,526 State-owned shares in
CRC, representing 99.9961% of CRC's total share
capital. China Resources International Tendering
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC, owns
650,000 State-owned legal person shares in CRC,
representing 0.0039% of CRC's total share capital.
CRNC has a registered capital of approximately
RMB15.237 billion. Its major assets are the equity
interests in CRC. It is under the direct supervision
of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council.
Mr. Fu Yuning is the statutory representative of
CRNC.
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AR E D R R ERR RN S The following chart shows the equity relationship
ERWT : between CRC and the Company:

BB EEEE
EBTELZER
State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission
of the State Council

100%

FEERR AT
CRNC

A 4

EHEREE
99.9961% BRAT

China Resources

100% K
EEROBRAAE
CRC
v 0.0039%
PHEBERNE S AT
China Resources Trade
Co., Ltd.

. AT
4 The Company

0.06%

S 0171 A28 EEBEH R Note: On 12 January 2017, CRC and its subsidiary China
H B A 7 D OE S 5 e i Resources Trade entered into the Share Transfer
EEES(ENBRO2BM Agreement in Relation to China Vanke Co., Ltd.
ERAFZBRHEZGE) (AREMEEBRNDARRAZ BN EERE) with
4 A 5 A #1,689,599,817 SZMC, transferring to which a total of 1,689,599,817
A A FIARS RS 15 2 20 8 25 5 A Shares held in the Company. The consideration
HEF BEERAARK was RMB37,171,195,974 with each share transferred
37,171,195,9745T » ¥ g & 5 at RMB22.00. The registration procedure for the
B% %2 5 (B 1% 522.007T 7 B - relevant transfer of shares was completed on 24
2017418248 AAE R January 2017. SZMC holds 1,689,599,817 A Shares
NBEFPENFERESZ in the Company, representing 15.31% of the total
8 = E S A A FIAR R 5 number of shares in the Company.

1,689,599,817/% » 1A T4 &
BRI A15.31% ©
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3 EAMERE-FITEHA
HZE2016F12A318  [BXHME
RE-—BITBAGEFEEATA
% B 191,553,210,9748% » {5 A &)
A& 4 EREY14.07% - EBBU0T ¢

Evergrande Real Estate and the party acting
in concert with it

As of 31 December 2016, Evergrande Real Estate
and the party acting in concert with it hold an
aggregate amount of 1,553,210,974 of A Shares
in the Company, representing 14.07% of the total
number of shares of the company. Details are as
follow:

Pt BRREM

FARAAR HARIEE
rE2E (&) RSt 51
Percentage

Number of A of the total
Shares held in number of

the Company

shares of the

No Name of Shareholder (share) Company

1 BEMNTIRERERR AT 526,389,569 4.77%
Guangzhou Xinsheng Investment Co., Ltd.

2 BMNTE2ERERRAR 210,778,555 1.91%
Guangzhou Yubo Investment Co., Ltd.

3 BMNTEBRERRAT 207,273,581 1.88%
Guangzhou Yibo Investment Co., Ltd.

4 BT BAR E AR AR 205,731,814 1.86%
Guangzhou Yuelang Investment Co., Ltd.

5 BT R ERR AT 123,501,075 1.12%
Guangzhou Kaixuan Investment Co., Ltd.

6 BNTREEEXARAA 86,701,961 0.79%
Guangzhou Guangyu Investment Co., Ltd.

7 BT EREGR AR 73,849,402 0.67%
Guangzhou Zhonggin Investment Co., Ltd.

8 BMNTRGEERXERAR 68,205,047 0.62%
Guangzhou Qitong Industrial Co., Ltd.

9 BMNTEERERR AR 50,759,970 0.46%
Guangzhou Kaijin investment Co., Ltd.

10 BARME 20,000 0.0002%
Evergrande Real Estate

asf 1,553,210,974 14.07%

Total

182  ERMERMKHABPRRZAF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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BAME Z SNy Bt LR R 7]

19 1318 K b BE P 12 1
ERRmT

AR -

Date of Registration:
AMfMER
Registered Capital:
EREA

Type of enterprise:
EAREK

Legal Representative:
PRER 451 -
Shareholding
structure:

Business scope:

Save as Evergrande Real Estate, the above nine

N EYN:U] companies are controlled by Evergrande Real

Estate. Information of Evergrande Real Estate is as

follow:

199656 H24H

24 June 1996

AR #250,0008 7T

RMB2.5 billion

BERBEERR CEABE)

Company with limited liability (solely invested by corporation)

KRB

Zhao Chang Long

BMTEEE XA R AFIFRI00% « FREGZEREBERIEGIA

The Company is wholly owned by Guangzhou Kailong Real Estate
Company Limited, with Mr Hui Ka Yan being the de facto controller
FHERBLE BMERARSE  EREM - Rt &L ZARE
U8 - EIMAE TI2MRTS - BREEFB AR

property development and operation; property consulting; interior
decoration and design; refrigeration and air-conditioning equipment
manufacturing; environmental greening engineering services; and

enterprise management consulting.
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BAMERE —HITEH ARK
REREBERNTERNT

The following chart shows the equity relationship

between Evergrande Real Estate and the party

TEE
Ding Yumei

acting in concert with it and the Company:

100%
[ Even Honour Holdings Limited J XinXin (BVI) Limited [ Pu/fliﬁ\fvfirs
l 5.78% 68.42% 25.8%
v

1 E18K(3333.HK)
China Evergrand (3333.HK)

Lwoo%

Anji (BVI) Limited

Lwoo%

EMNTHYBRERRR
Guangzhou Chaofeng Land Compar\y

Lwoo%

BT YE R EARA
Guangzhou Kailong Land Company Limited

iWOO%

fBARME

Evergrande Real Estate Group Limited

Lwoo%

EMNTERIGEFRAR

Guangzhou Xinyuan Investment Co., Ltd.

iWOO%

BT &EBIREARAR
Guangzhou Xintong Investment Co., Ltd.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

N Y S Y 'S

100%

.

.

y

EMHEBREERAR
Guangzhou Yubo
Investment Co., Ltd.

EMHEBIRERRAR
Guangzhou Yibo
Investment Co., Ltd

INTEEBIRE R AR
Guangzhou Longtong
Investment Co., Ltd

§

FEMNTEFREBRAF
Guangzhou Kaixuan
Investment Co., Ltd

EMTHBEARERRAR
Guangzhou Yuelang
Investment Co., Ltd

100%

BEMNDEHEEARR
Guangzhou Guangyu
Industrial Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Qi
Industrial Co.,

I

MHREBEEARA

itong
Ltd.

iy

100%
100%

EMHHBREFRAR || EM TG EFRA

Guangzhou Zhonggin

Guangzhou Kaijin

EM TR EBRAR

Investment Co.,

Ltd.

Investment Co., Ltd.

i

Guangzhou Xinsheng
Investment Co., Ltd.

0.0002% 1.91% 1.88% 0.79%

Rt

A\ 2 H2016%F12830H
— BB EEEIRE
M WES BRI ES
A& 5 R EEE K E LY
13.16% ) J 1% -

184  ERMPERMHBRRAE] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

y 067%

0.46%

y 477%

ARA]
The Company

0.62% 1.12%  1.86%

e
J

Note:

On 30 December 2016, Evergrande Real Estate and
Guangzhou Kailong Land Company Limited entered
into the Investment Agreement with the first batch
of strategic investors making an investment in
Evergrande Real Estate for 13.16% of equity after the

capital increase.



6 RABERRRIFR

VI Change in Share Capital and Information on Shareholders

b5 BB (RLHEPEERA) HEW 6.2.5 Shareholding by the substantial shareholders as

ETERRERER

B 1E20165F12A318 » R EF
HFERGBEAREERRRIID AT
BRHNAFARBRRFBRBERALE
B (EFREEER) F571F 5336
FFEM B #m xR - RIF
BE(EFLTRAD) BREN QA
BEE EELEMEEABIMIME
B ALTREIORBIERAT ¢

1) SERFELERHEBAFNEES
AR AIARR R 22926,070,4720% °
1L SR B 2 38 DA G 6 A B A
w5 {0 [ 5 $§735,877,4450% A
AIAREA R - R - RERE
NEEBRHEZTANF DY
1,141,949,2998% 1~ RIAR # & #
o $hEREAETH12,803,897,216
BRAGIAREE R 285
FE A5 RRARMD B L B A
28.83% + 14~ &) BR% 1) &9t )
/5525.40% o

2) EHROUNEZEEBEASHE
¥ B X 8A1,682,759,247
KR EZEEHRNOOHEZEFRAEF
HMERESRAILNEZHES
ABMEERFBERAARRKS
6,840,5700% ° ZE F AR 1 K& H Kt
BRAREFFEAQAARK®D
1,689,599,8170% + 1A RIAM I
DE LB 517.38% » 16 A &) 42
f& 10 & 5 215.31% - 2584
A -

required by the Securities and Futures Ordinance
of Hong Kong

As at 31 December 2016, in accordance with the
shareholding of the Company's A shareholders
registered with the Shenzhen Branch of China Securities
Depository & Clearing Corporation Limited, and
interests and short positions as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the interests and short positions held by
persons other than the directors, supervisors or senior
management required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of SEHK are as
follows:

1) Jushenghua, as a beneficial owner, directly held
926,070,472 A shares of the Company. In addition,
Jushenghua was indirectly interested in 735,877,445
A shares of the Company through its interests in its
controlled corporations. Meanwhile, Jushenghua
was interested in 1,141,949,299 A shares of the
Company through its capacity as the trustee
of asset management plans. Jushenghua was
interested in a total of 2,803,897,216 A shares of
the Company (long positions) and these shares
accounted for 28.83% of A shares in the Company
and 25.40% of the total number of shares in the
Company.

2) CRC, as a beneficial owner, directly held
1,682,759,247 A shares of the Company, and its
wholly owned subsidiary, CRC, as a beneficial
owner, directly held 6,840,570 A Shares of the
Company. CRC together with its subsidiary
held 1,689,599,817 A shares of the Company in
aggregate, representing 17.38% of the Company'’s
A shares and 15.31% of the Company’s total shares.
They had long positions in the aforesaid shares.

ZE—REFERE Annual Report 2016 185



6 RABE R IRRBR

VI Change in Share Capital and Information on Shareholders

186
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

China Evergrande Group (“China Evergrande”) has
an long position of equity interest in 1,553,210,974
A shares of the Company as controlling interests.
The proportion of the shares in the Company's A
shares is 15.97% and 14.07% of the total share.

Anbang Insurance Group Co., Ltd. was indirectly in
743,106,220 A shares of the Company through its
interests in its controlled corporations. These shares
accounted for 7.64% of A shares in the Company
and 6.73% of the total number of shares in the
Company, and were being held in long position.

Nexus Capital Management Limited indirectly
interested in 151,775,844 H shares of the company
as an investment manager, these shares accounted
for 11.54% of the total H shares and 1.37% of the
total number of shares in the Company.

BlackRock, Inc. was indirectly interested in the
Company's 91,452,308 H shares (long position)
through its interests in its controlled corporations,
and these shares accounted for 6.95% of H shares in
the Company and accounted for 0.83% of the total
number of shares in the Company; BlackRock, Inc.
was indirectly interested in the Company'’s 2,453,600
H shares (short position) through its interests
in its controlled corporations, and these shares
accounted for 0.19% of H shares in the Company
and accounted for 0.022% of the total number of
shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware,
other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors,
chief executives of the Company) should disclose
their interest or short position in accordance with the
requirements of Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance and Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited

As at 31 December 2016, there are 1,314,955,468
overseas listed foreign invested Shares (H Shares) of
the Company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which are all public
float, accounting for 11.91% of total shares in the
Company and with a market value of HK$23.274 billion.
The Company has obtained the exemption from strict
compliance with the requirement of H shares proportion
as the total number of shares of the Company pursuant
to Rule 8.08(1)(b) under Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange when the H Share of
the Company was listed on Main Board of the SEHK.
As at the end of 2016, the public float of the Company
complied with the demand.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

7.1 Directors, Members of Supervisory

Committee and Senior Management

7.1.1 Basic information and work experience

Directors

WANG Shi, male, born in 1951. He joined the PRC
Military Force in 1968. He demobilised in 1973 and
worked for the Water and Electricity Supply Department
of Zhengzhou Railway(8 M & & /K & ER). Mr. Wang
graduated from Lanzhou Railway College (BN igi&EE
f) (now known as Lanzhou Jiaotong University (B/H%
EPNES))
Studies. After graduation, he served in various positions
with the Guangzhou Railway Bureau (B M # ¥ ),
Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation Committee
of Guangdong Province (BERA&/MEEZ), and Shenzhen
Special Region Development Company (&3I4 (@ 2 &
72d8]). In 1984, he established the Shenzhen Exhibition
Centre for Modern Science and Education Equipment
OFRVBRBIHESREE P D), the predecessor of the

Company, and served as General Manager. Mr. Wang

in the PRC in 1978 majoring in Water Supply

became Chairman of the Company in 1988 and served
as General Manager from 1988 to 1999. He is currently
the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang is also a Director
of SOHU.com Inc. and an Independent Director of China
Resources Land Limited and Modern Media Holdings
Ltd..

QIAO Shibo, male, born in 1954. He graduated from
MK ) in PRC with a bachelor's
degree in Chinese Language and Literature in 1983. Mr.

Jilin University (&

Qiao had previously served as a department head at the
Ministry of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation
of the PRC (H/MEEE FE1EE) (currently known as
MOFCOM), Deputy General Manager and then General
Manager of Human Resources Department of CRH and
General Manager and Chairman of China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Co. Ltd. In 2000, Mr. Qiao served
as Director and an assistant to the General Manager of
CRH, during which he also served as Deputy Managing
Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited (ZEEA|
¥ B MR A7) and Chairman of China Resources Machinery
& Minerals (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (ZEE#Wm AR (£E) &
B2 F]). In 2003, Mr. Qiao served as Director and Deputy
General Manager of CRH, Chairman of China Resources
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(Jilin) Bio-Chemical Co., Ltd. (F#MEBEE(LEH BR
7~ 7)), Chairman of the Board of Directors of China
Resources Cement Holdings Ltd. (ZEEKEIZERE R A7)
(Hong Kong stock code: 1313), Chief Executive Officer of
China Huayuan Group Ltd. (FEIZEREEFR A F]) and
General Manager of Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Limited (= L{E %5 E). From 2008 to January 2016,
he served as a Director and a General Manager of CRH,
during which he also served as a Deputy Chairman and
a President of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Limited (EEHEEERBFIRAR]), as well as Chairman of
China Resources Enterprise, Limited (ZEEAIZEBRAF),
China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co.,
Limited GEBE = LB %% D B R A7) and Shangdong
Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Limited (LU B E A F BRI 15 B BR A 7).

He has been a Director and a Deputy Chairman of the
Company since 2010.

YU Liang, male, born in 1965. He had graduated from
Peking University (AL 2K 2) in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1988 and obtained a master’s
degree in Economics therefrom in 1997. Mr. Yu had
worked for Shenzhen Waimao Group (& Il o8 B £
&) and joined Vanke in 1990. He was appointed as a
Deputy General Manager, an Executive Deputy General
Manager and a Finance Manager, and a General
Manager of the Company in 1996, 1999 and 2001
respectively. He has been a Director of the Company
since 1994. M. Yu currently serves as a President and
Director of the Company, as well as an Independent
Director of Shanghai Metersbonwe Fashion &
Accessories Co., Ltd. (F/EFETHEREKRGL BR D
A]) and a Director of Cura Investment Management

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. B/ EBEIEEERERHER AR,
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

SUN Jianyi, male, born in 1953. He had graduated from
Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics (4 & 81
#KE) in the PRC with a diploma majoring in Finance
and holds the title of Senior Economist. Mr. Sun served
as a Deputy General Manager and a member of the
Communist Party Committee (2 Z % 8) of People’s
Insurance Company of China Limited (Wuhan Branch)
(FEARRBRARIEIZDAR]) in 1985. He successively
served as an assistant to General Manager, a Deputy
General Manager, an Executive Deputy General
Manager and an Executive Director of Ping An Insurance
Company of China (FEIFZ R A A) between 1990
and 2003. Mr. Sun has been an Executive Director,
an Executive Deputy General Manager and a Deputy
chief Executive Officer of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (FEIFLRBR(EB)KNDERA
7)) since 2003 and has become its Vice Chairman and
Deputy chief Executive officer since 2008. He was the
Chairman of Ping An Bank LLC between 2008 and 2012.
From 2002 to November 2016, he was the Chairman of
Ping An Bank Co., Ltd. and is currently a non-executive
director of the China Insurance Protection Fund LLC and
an independent director of Hoi-chang Holdings Limited.

Mr. Sun has been a director of the Company since 1995
and a managing director since 1997. Mr. Sun became
the Deputy Chairman in 1998 and was an independent
non-executive director from 2001 to 2008. He was the
convener of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee in 2005. Mr. Sun has served
as a Director of the Company and a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee
since 2008.

WEI Bin, male, born in 1969. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Auditing from Zhongnan University of
Economics (A E B & KX E) in the PRC in 1992 and a
master’s degree in Finance from Jinan University (EF X
) in the PRC in 2001. He holds the certificate of Senior
Accountant (S8 &5TED) and the certificate of Senior
Auditor (B2 5tHT), and is a non-practicing member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(FEIGEMEETAIE). Mr. Wei joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 2001 and served as the
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Director of CRNC from 2012 to 2016. He has served as
the chief accountant and chief financial officer of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited since 2011 and
is currently a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Land Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited and China Resources Gas Group Limited (Z=E A
FIEAR B R A A).

Mr. Wei has been a director of the Company and a
member of the audit committee since 2013.

Chen Ying, male, born in 1970. He graduated from
Tsinghua University (B % KX £) in the PRC with a
bachelor's degree in Architectural Management.
He had obtained a master's degree in Business
Administration from University of Oxford in 2007. He
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1993. Between 1993 and 2002, he served as a
project engineer, a Project Manager and a Manager
of Procurement Department and Executive Director of
China Resources Construction (Holdings) Limited (3£
EEIER)BRAT]). He was the managing director of
China Resources Land (Beijing) Company Ltd. (FEEE
bR BPR AR from 2002 to 2011 and was a director
of China Resources Land Limited (& & ihE R A 7))
from 2003 to 2006. He was the general manager at the
Strategic Management Department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. between 2011 and 2013. Since
2012, he became the supervisor of CRC. He is currently
Chief Strategy Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and a non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, China Resources
Power Holdings Company Limited EHE HhiZE K F
[& & 7l]), China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited (formerly known as China Resources Enterprise,
Limited), China Resources Gas Group Limited (ZEER
TR AR A 7]), China Resources Land Limited, as well
as a director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Limited GEHEEEBGR A A).

Since 2013, Mr. Chen has been a director of the

Company and a member of the Investment and
Decision-making Committee.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

WANG Wenjin, male, born in 1966. He graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (4 & B 4€ K
JAERE) in the PRC with a master’s degree in 1994 and
is a Certified Public Accountant in PRC. Mr. Wang had
previously worked for Hefei Plastic (Factory Ten) (& HE
2K+ ) and Anhui Optical Sophisticated Mechanic
Research Centre of China Academy of Sciences (H#}
T B B REE AT FEFT). After joining the Company
in 1993, Mr. Wang became Deputy Manager of Finance
Department in 1998 and General Manager thereof in
1999. He became the Supervisor of Finance in 2002,
Financial Director in 2004 and Executive Vice President
in 2007. Mr. Wang has served as a director, a member of
the Investment and Decision-making Committee and a
Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 2014. He
has ceased to serve as the Supervisor of Finance and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company since March 2016
and is currently a Director, a member of the Investment
and Decision-making Committee, an Executive Vice
President and a Chief Risk Officer of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

ZHANG Liping, male, born in 1958. He graduated from
Beijing Institute of Foreign Trade (At RHNEEFT) in 1980
and had obtained a master’'s degree in International
Affairs and International Law from St. John's University
in the US in 1987. Mr. Zhang had worked for the Ministry
of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation (now the
Ministry of Commerce) and had served as a Director
of the Investment Banking Division of Merill-Lynch, the
US, a Managing Director and a Head of Greater China
Region of Dresdner Bank, Germany, a Managing Director
of Pacific Concord Holdings Limited, Hong Kong, a
Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International Holdings,
Ltd, Hong Kong and a Deputy Chairman of the Global
Investment Banking Department and a jointed CEO
(Greater China) of Credit Suisse Group. In 2015, Mr.
Zhang joined the Blackstone Group and is currently the
Senior Managing Director and the Chairman of Greater
China Region.

He has become an independent non-executive
director, a convener of the Investment and Decision-
making Committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since 2010. He also became
the convener of the nomination committee in 2014.
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HUA Sheng, male, born in 1953. He graduated from the
Department of Political Economy of Nanjing Institute
of Technology (IR LEFT) (now Southeast University
(RFKEZ)) with a bachelor's degree in 1982. In 1985
he had obtained master’'s degree from the Finance
Department of Graduate School of China Academy of
Social Sciences (F Bt € R EPT). He holds a PhD in
Economics from Wuhan University (BUEAZ) and has
studied, and engaged in research and teaching at the
University of Oxford and the University of Cambridge.
At present, he is the Honorary President of the School
of Economics and Management, as well as a professor
and a PhD supervisor of Southeast University. He is also
an Executive Deputy Chairman of China Federation
of Overseas Entrepreneurs, and a Chairman of Beijing
Return Overseas Chinese Federation. In 1986, he was
among the first group of nationally accredited experts
with outstanding contributions. He is the primary author
and proponent of Dual-Track Price System, State-Owned
Assets Management System and Share Segregation
Reform. Mr. Hua was the winner of China Economic
Theory Innovation Award and Sun Yefang Economics
Prize.

He has become an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 2011.

LAW Elizabeth, female, born in 1954. She had
graduated from the Faculty of Management of
McGill University, Canada in 1976 with a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree in Accounting. She had worked
for the accounting firms in Montreal, Canada. Ms. Law
is currently Managing Practising Director of Law &
Partners CPA Limited, and a partner of Stephen Law &
Company, a Certified Public Accountants. She is also
a member of China People's Political Consultation
Conference Guangdong Committee (EREHKWZ 8).
She is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong
Kong, a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants, a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a fellow
member of Certified Public Accountants Australia and
a certified tax advisor in Hong Kong. She was President
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

of The Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, a
council member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Accountants and the founding president of Association
of Woman Accountants (Hong Kong) Limited. In 2009,
she was awarded as the HKSAR Government Justice
of Peace. Since 2011, she has been an independent
director of Hong Kong-listed Sunwah Kingsway
Capital Holdings Limited and Toronto-listed Sunwah
International Limited.

Ms. Law has been an independent non-executive
director and the convener of the audit committee of the
Company since 2012.

HAI Wen, male, born in 1952. He had graduated from
the Department of Economics of Peking University
with a bachelor's degree in Economics in 1982 and had
obtained a master’s degree in Economics from California
State University, Long Beach in the US in 1983. He had
graduated from University of California, Davis in the US
with a doctoral degree in Economics in 1991. Mr. Hai
had worked at the economics departments of California
State University, University of California, Davis and the
faculty of business of Ford Louis College. He served
as a professor and Deputy Supervisor of China Centre
for Economic Research of Peking University (3t /& K
B &L EMEF L) from 1995 to 2008, an assistant
to the president of Peking University (AL AZ) from
2002 to 2005, and a Vice President of Peking University,
a Managing Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of
Peking University at Shenzhen (1t FRERIIFFTTAERT),
and a Dean of Peking University Shenzhen Business
School bR KEFYIEER) from 2005 to 2008. Mr.
Hai has served as a Vice President of Peking University,
a Dean of Graduate School of Peking University at
Shenzhen and a Dean of Peking University HSBC
Business School (It KB E 2 2F7) between 2008
and 2013. He is currently the Deputy Director of the
University Council and the dean of the HSBC Business
School of Peking University.

He became an independent non-executive director and
a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company since 2014.
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Members of the Supervisory Committee

XIE Dong, male, born in 1965. He had graduated from
Nanjing Engineering Institution (@ 2 L2 ft) in 1987
with bachelor’s degree in Radio Science. He received
a master's degree in Business Administration from
Shanghai Jiaotong University (/8323 K &) in 1997
and a PhD degree in Management therefrom in 2007.
He had worked for Shenzhen RGB Electronics Co., Ltd.
of China Shenzhen TV Company (Headquarters) (+
Bl R Y% B LD REIRGBE FAEBR A F). He joined
the Group in 1992. Mr. Xie became the manager of
Human Resources Department of the Company in
1996 and a General Manager and the director of the
department in 2000 and 2001 respectively. He became
a Deputy General Manager of the Company in 2004.
Mr. Xie served as an Executive Vice President of the
Company from October 2007 to February 2014. He has
been a member of the Supervisory Committee and the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee since 2014. He
has been an independent director of Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (RYITEBEREXERHERA
7)) since 2011.

LIVASIRI Ankana, female, born in 1959, Thai. She
obtained a bachelor's degree in Law Studies and a
postgraduate certificate in Law Studies in the University
of Hong Kong in 1978 and 1981, respectively. She had
served positions at law firms including D. W. Ling & Co.,
Fairbairn & Kwok, and Livasiri & Co. She was a Head
Legal Advisor of China Resources Enterprises Limited
from 2001 to 2005 and a General Manager of Legal
Department of China Resources (Group) Limited from
2006 to 2008. Ms. Kivasiri was the Head Legal Advisor of
China Resources (Group) Limited from 2008 to May 2016.
Since June 2016, she has been the senior compliance
member of the Legal Department of China Resources
(Group) Limited.

She has also been a member of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company since 2014.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

ZHOU Qingping, male, born in 1969. He had graduated
from Hunan University (#F AZ2) (former Hunan Institute
of Finance and Economics (# F8 & B & & £ Fr)) in
1993 with a bachelor's degree in Accountancy. He is a
Certified Accountant in PRC. He had worked in Xiangcai
Securities Co. Ltd. (HiE MBI B 5 AR & £ 2 7). He
joined Vanke in 1995 and served as a Finance Manager
of Vanke Financial Consultancy Company Limited (Z7#}
ISR AR A 7]). He became a Chief Financial Officer
of Chengdu Vanke Real Estate Co. Ltd. (KEEE/FH
EABMRAF]) in 2000 and a Deputy General Manager
of the Risk Management Department of the Company
in 2003. He has been a member of the Supervisory
Committee and a General Manager of Audit Supervisory
Department of the Company since 2010.

Senior Management

YU Liang: for the biography of Mr. Yu, please refer to
the section "Directors”.

WANG Wenijin: for the biography of Mr. Wang, please
refer to the section “Directors”.

ZHANG Xu, male, born in 1963. He had graduated
from Hefei Industrial University (GBI KE) with a
bachelor’'s degree in Industrial and Civil Architecture
in 1984 and obtained an MBA degree in lllinois State
University in 2001. He joined China Overseas Group
(FELEINEE) in 1995 and Vanke in 2002. Mr. Zhang
successively served as an Engineering Supervisor, a Vice
General Manager, an Executive Vice General Manager
and a General Manager of Wuhan Vanke Real Estate
Co. Ltd. (FUEMEREHEBRAF]). He became a Vice
President of the Company in 2012 and has been an
Executive Vice President and a Chief Operations Officer
of the Company since 2014. Since 2012, he is also an
executive director of Vanke Property (Overseas) Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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SUN Jia, male, born in 1978. He had graduated from
the School of Economics, Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in 2001. In 2007, he had graduated
from Harvard Business School with a master’s degree in
Business Administration. He had worked for McKinsey
& Company and China Netcom Corporation. He joined
Vanke in 2007 and became the general manager of the
strategy and investment management department of
China Vanke Co., Ltd in 2008. In 2010, he was appointed
as the general manager of Xian Vanke Company Limited.
He has been the general manager of Shanghai Vanke
Company Limited since 2012, and was appointed as a
Vice President of the Company in 2015. In March 2016,
he was appointed as the Executive Vice President, the
Supervisor of Finance and the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company.

ZHU Xu, female, born in 1975. She had graduated from
the Hunan College of Finance and Economics (now
Hunan University of Finance and Economics) in 1997
with a bachelor's degree in Economics. She obtained a
master's degree in Management in Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law in 2001 and a master’s degree
in Public Policy in the University College London in
2006. As a British Chevening Scholar and a Certified
Tax Agent, she had worked in the Shenzhen Municipal
Office of the State Administration of Taxation, Nationz
Technologies Inc. (SZ.300077), and Shenzhen Grandland
Decoration Group Co., Ltd. (52.002482). Currently, she
is a member of the third session of the appeal and
review committee of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
an executive committee member of the company
secretary committee of the second session of the board
of directors of China Association of Public Companies.
She has served as the Secretary of the Board of the
Company since March 2016.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

7.1.2 Details of remuneration for 2016

The Company continued to uphold the principle of
its remuneration policy, which is "to offer competitive
salaries according to market principles to retain and
attract high-calibre professionals”. The remuneration
of the Company’s senior management members was
determined not only with reference to market level
but also in accordance with the growth in the overall
operating results of the Company. The remuneration of
those directors and members of Supervisory Committee
who were not employed by the Company was
determined by general meeting.

As at the end of the reporting period, the actual
aggregate amount of remunerations of the 8 directors,
members of Supervisory Committee and senior
managements who were employees of the Company
in 2016 was RMB61.225 million. Among the directors
and members of Supervisory Committee who were
not employed by the Company, four directors, namely
Qiao Shibo, Sun Jianyi, Wei Bin and Chen Ying each
received an actual amount of director's remuneration of
RMB180,000, three independent director namely Zhang
Liping, Elizabeth Law and Hai Wen each received an
actual amount of independent director’s remuneration
of RMB300,000 (independent director Hai Wen has
returned all the emolument after tax received as an
independent director of the Company, as an act of
gratitude, the Company has donated such amount to
Peking University Education Foundation); independent
director Hua Sheng voluntarily gave up the remuneration
of an independent director; the member of Supervisory
Committee Livasiri Ankana received a remuneration as a

supervisor of RMB180,000.

In addition, Qiao Shibo, Wei Bin, Chen Ying and Livosiri
Ankana also received salaries from connected entities of
CRC. Mr Wang Shi also received a remuneration for his

role as an independent director from CRL, a connected
entity of CRC.
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016E88 2015588 REERREQ
aMAR SMAE SHEMEBEQ
] BY% HE  FR HeLAs (AR%ER) (AR%ER) FEHHH
Any
remunerations
Total Total  received from
remuneration remuneration  shareholders
(before tax)  (before tax) or other
Period of in 2016 in2015  connected
Name Title Sex Age service (RMB10,000) (RMB'10,000) entities
) EXEIR 5 6 1988~2017 999.0 988 =
Wang Shi Chairman M 66 1988~2017 999.0 998.8  Yes
Bt EE-EEdH E 63 2010~2017 18.0 180 =
Qiao Shibo Deputy Chairman M 63 2010~2017 18.0 180 Yes
B BE 4% E 52 1994~2017 9790 988 &
Yu Liang Director, President M 52 1994~2017 979.0 9988  No
FE- % S 64 1995~2017 180 180 &
Sun Jianyi Director M 64 1995~2017 18.0 180 No
Fiy s g 48 2013~2017 18.0 180 #
Wei Bin Director M 48 2013~2017 18.0 180  Yes
RE B2 g 47 2013~2017 180 180 =
Chen Ying Director M 47 2013~2017 18.0 180  Yes
Ixg BE  hiTalen 3 51 2014~2017 7033 592 &
Wang Wenjin Director, Executive Vice M 51 2014~2017 703.3 5692 No
President
KA BiUEHTES = 59 2010~2017 300 00 A&
Zhang Liping Independent Non-executive M 59 2010~2017 30.0 300 No
Director
bl BUFHTES 5 64 2011~2017 0 0 &
Hua Sheng Independent Non-executive M 64 2011~2017 0 0 No
Director
BEX BIEanES X 63 2012~2017 300 00 A&
Elizabeth Law Independent Non-executive ~ F 63 2012~2017 300 300 No
Director
sl BUFHTES = 65 2014~2017 300 00 A
Hai Wen Independent Non-executive M 65 2014~2017 300 300 No
Director
R EEEIR 5 52 2014~2017 703.3 558 &
Xie Dong Chairman of Supervisory M 52 2014~2017 703.3 556.8  No
Committee
B&Z % X 68 2014~2017 18.0 180 &
LIVASIRI Ankana Member of Supervisory F 68 2014~2017 18.0 180  VYes
Committee
BB EZ s 48 2010~2017 2099 1748 &
Zhou Qingping Member of Supervisory M 48 2010~2017 209.9 1748 No
Committee
2 Ré{TRILH 3 55 2016 338 6606 &
Chen Wei Former Executive Vice M 55 2014~2016 338 660.6  No

President
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Any
remunerations
Total Total  received from
remuneration remuneration  shareholders
(before tax)  (before tax) or other
Period of in 2016 in 2015  connected
Name Title Sex Age service (RMB'10,000) (RMB'10,000) entities
& BITRIEH g 54 2014~2017 898.3 7075 &
Zhang Xu Executive Vice President M 54 2014~2017 898.3 707.5  No
BEMR REZEHE 5 M 2009~2016 17.1 588 &
Tan Huajie Former Secretary to the M 44 2009~2016 171 5388 No
Board
% SEIE 3 39 2016~2017 898.2 - A
Sun Jia Executive Vice President M 39 2016~2017 898.2 - No
A8 EZglE LGV 2016~2017 7315 - A
Zhu Xu Secretary to the Board F 42 2016~2017 731.5 - No
CEH 6,353.4 5,385.3
Total

2016F3A#E - BRETBEERITA
BE BERTBEAQRNESSW
EBE  ERETLRRIEH -
LutPRE - BEAEMAR201651-3
R -

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Since March 2016, Chen Wei has ceased to serve
as the Executive Vice President and Tan Huajie has
ceased to serve as the Secretary of the Board and
serves exclusively as Senior Vice President. The above
remuneration of Chen Wei and Tan Huajie was the
remuneration between January and March 2016.
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2016 F RRAFMESHEMALTH Top five paid person of the Company in 2016
R
i NCTEEL:Y) ERERR
Bt Al R AR B H e
FF 5% (AR¥T) E5 (¥ B EA
Total remuneration Any remunerations
(before tax) received received from
from the Company  shareholders or other
Ranking (RMB) connected entities
1 13,203,171.02 A No
2 12,930,790.05 A No
3 11,103,161.02 A No
4 9,990,000.00 = Yes
5 9,790,000.00 A No
o~ 57,017,122.09 -
Total
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713 Change in shareholding during the reporting
period
Shareholdings of directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company:

SRERE BIRFAR  BEHAREE BEBREAGEN
4 BE BUERE(R) BRAER&(R) ERGEGLA RBER BR(f)  RORER(G) REHEHE(R)
Shares held No of stock
at the end of options  Number of stock
Number of Number of ~ reporting period exercised  options not yet
shares held at  shares held asat s a percentage Number of during the exercised at
the begining of  the end of the  of total number ~ Reasons for stock options reporting  the end of the
Name Title the period period of shares ~ the change granted period  reporting period
1A E3E1R 7817201 7817201 0069% - 6,600,000 0 0
Wang Shi Chairman
B2 £S5 4§ 1,308,245 1,308,245 0066% - 5,300,000 0 0
YuLiang Director, President
fe- £ 59,177 369,383 00035% —fmEER - - -
Sun Jianyi Director Bought from and sold - - -
at secondary market
e EEREEE 231491 231491 001% - 2200000 0 0
Wang Wenjin Director, Executive Vice
President
BR EREIR 1490745 1490745 0013% - 2200000 - -
Kie Dong Chairman of Supervisory
Committee
BT £% 20,000 20,000 00002% - - - -
ZhouQingping ~~ Member of Supenvisory
Committee
i GHE 904,039 904,039 0008% - 750,000 0 0
Zhang Xu Executive Vice President
iz HE 0 0 0 - 650,000 0 0
Sun Jia Executive Vice President
il R 0 0 0 - - - -
ThuXu Secretary to the Board
RER REzgliz 960,000 960,000 0009% - 1,600,000 0 0
Tan Hugjie Former Secretary to the Board
Rz GHIGE 0 0 0 - - - -
Chen Wei Former Executive Vice
President

HREHR EFCREIESHE
MWEC B RELEZEHAE R RARR
5260,0000% * SITRIBH AR ZHE
BRNEFHZTHEBERAARKSE
2,800f% - EEEWEREMHRBE
M) 5 4= 5B 2 mAR AL Z29,6008% -
REHAN - BABRAREESE -

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Note:During the Reporting Period, Ms Wu Xuexian, the
spouse of Mr Qiao Shibo, Vice Chairman of the
Company, held 60,000 A shares in the Company. Ms.
Yuchi Yuheng, the spouse of Mr Sun Jia, Executive
Vice President, held 2,800 A shares, Mr Zhao Gang, the
spouse of Ms Zhu Xu, the Secretary of the Board held
9,600 A shares. As at the end of the Reporting Period,
there was no change in the aforesaid shareholding.
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All the shares held by the aforementioned persons in the
Company were beneficially owned A shares, and they
were all in long position. Save for the aforementioned,
the Company was not aware of any interests or short
positions held by the Company’s directors, supervisors,
senior management and relevant associates recorded
in the register required to be kept in accordance with
section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance of
Hong Kong or interests or short positions held in the
Company or associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) required
to be notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed lIssuers under Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of SEHK.

7.14 Change and reasons for the change in directors,

members of the Supervisory Committee and
senior management during the reporting period
During the Reporting Period, Director and Executive
Vice President Wang Wenjin ceased to serve as the
Supervisor of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company and was re-designated as the Chief Risk
Officer. The Board appointed Sun Jia as the Executive
Vice President, the Supervisor of Finance and the Chief
Financial Officer.

Former Secretary to the Board Tan Huajie ceased
to serve as the Secretary to the Board and serves
exclusively as the Senior Vice President. The Board
appointed Zhu Xu as the Secretary to the Board. Former
Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources
Officer Chen Wei ceased to serve as the Executive Vice
President or Chief Human Resources Officer.
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7.2 Number and composition of staff

As at 31 December 2016, there were 58,280 employees
on the Company's payroll, representing an increase of
38.3% from that of the previous year. The average age
of the employees was 30.9 and and the average year of
service was 2.2 years. Among which 41,839 employees
were male, and 16,441 employees were female.

Property development division

There were 6,437 employees engaged in the property
development division, representing an increase of 3.3%
from that of the previous year.. The average age of the
staff working for this division was 32.9 and the average
year of service was 4.5 years. In terms of education
level, 0.2% held doctor’s degree, 21.1% held master’s
degree, 68.6% held bachelor's degree, 8.2% held tertiary
education and 1.90% held education below tertiary
level. Employees with bachelor’'s degree or higher
education accounted for 98.1% of the total staff in the

property development division.

B {54 Doctors’ degree
TE+ Master's degree

B K7} Bachelor's degree

B K% Education below tertiary level
RHLAT Tertiary education

BEBEK Composition by job classification:
FiE BEEBK AE bk [ B 38R
Number of Year-on-year

No. Composition by job classification individuals Percentage change

1 MBITHMEEAER 811 12.60% -3.56%
Marketing and sales staffs

2 HERIMAE 3,901 60.60% 6.00%
Professional technicians

3 EEBEAE 1,725 26.80% 0.80%

Management staffs

i EEBABRBRREMBE B IT
ERANER BEFBE - AR
DMERSDREBAE -

BRERD AR A F China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Note:Management staffs include financial, audit, IT, legal,
human resources, customer services information analysis

etc. and senior management.
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Among them: Professional technicians include
engineers, designers, cost management, procurement
and project development staff. The composition of
which is as follows.

FFif BERIMASER A =154
Number of

No. Type of professional technicians individuals Percentage

1 TEAE 2,001 51.30%
Engineers

2 HitAB 741 19.00%
Designers

3 RAEEAER 359 9.20%
Cost management staff

4 REAER 218 5.60%
Procurement staff

5 HHERAER 581 14.90%

Project development staff

MERE RS

MERB RGLE B T48,784A -
B b N42.4% - 15 #4307
p% 0 T RIER2F - BREBKET :
BE1150.3%  ABHME10.2% + KE1L
17.7% » KREATR71.8%  KE R
LA E2FE(528.2% °

0.30%

71.80%

(2) Property services division

There were 48,784 employees engaged in property
services, up by 42.4% from the previous year. The
average age was 30.7 and the average year of service
was 2. In terms of education level, 0.3% held master’s
degree, 10.2% held bachelor's degree, 17.7% held
tertiary education and 71.8% held education below
tertiary level. Employees with tertiary education or
higher education accounted for 28.2% of the total staff
in the property services division.

W L Doctors’ degree
TE+ Master's degree
B 7%} Bachelor's degree
B KX Education below tertiary level
B KFHLAR Tertiary education
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(3) Commercial services division

There were 1,332 employees engaged in the commercial
services division, up by 62.8% from the previous year.
The average age was 30.3 and the average year of
service was 1.9. In terms of education level, 0.1% held
doctor's degree, 9.9% held master's degree, 51.9% held
bachelor’s degree, 17.3% held tertiary education and
20.8% held education below tertiary level. Employees
with bachelor's degree or higher education accounted
for 61.9% of the total staffs in the commercial services
division.

{8+ Doctors’ degree
W 151 Master's degree

A%} Bachelor's degree
B K= Education below tertiary level
B KZEPAT Tertiary education

(4) Hotel division

There were 447 employees engaged in the hotel
division, down by 4.1% from the previous year. The
average age was 30.1 and the average year of service
was 1.9. In terms of education level, 1.12% held master’s
degree, 13.65% held bachelor's degree, 17.9% held
tertiary education and 67.34% held education below
tertiary level. Employees with bachelor’'s degree or
higher education accounted for 14.77% of the total
staffs in the hotel division.

&+ Doctors’ degree

1B+ Master's degree
B X%} Bachelor's degree

AZE Education below tertiary level
B KEPUT Tertiary education
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(5) Hb&# (5) Other divisions
EMEFHEEET1,280A " & There were 1,280 employees engaged in the other
FRR272% - FHFEB29.25%  F divisions, up by 272% from the previous year. The
HAERI3F - BEBHROT : 18 average age was 29.2 and the average year of service
TMR7.7% - AEE403% 0 KREAS was 1.3. In terms of education level, 7.7% held master's
16.8% » RELATE35.1% » AR K& degree, 40.3% held bachelor's degree, 16.8% held
LA B E(548.0% © tertiary education and 35.1% held education below

tertiary level. Employees with tertiary education or
higher education accounted for 48.0% of the total staffs

in other divisions.

0.00% 7.71%

B {F+ Doctors’ degree
B 1B+ Master's degree
B K%} Bachelor's degree
K= Education below tertiary level

B KZELAR Tertiary education
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As one of the first batch of companies listed in the PRC,
the Company has always abided by its corporate values:
simplicity, transparency, standardisation and responsibility.
It had strictly complied with the requirements of the
laws, regulations and regulatory documents governing
listed companies and continued to fine-tune its corporate
governance structure and regulate its operation. The general
meeting, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee
and senior management of the Company performed their
respective power and obligations in strict accordance with
the duties and responsibilities ascribed to them in the
Articles of Association of the Company.

8.1 Overview of Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly
complied with the Company Law, the Securities Law,
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange, including all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14, carried out corporate governance activities and
continuously improved the corporate governance
structure in accordance with relevant requirements of
the regulations issued by the regulatory authorities.

The directors, supervisors and senior management
officers of the Company also complied with Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The
directors, supervisors, senior management officers and
employees of the Company complied with relevant
requirements in the Insider Information and Informer
Management System and Rules for the Trading of
Securities by Employees of the Company to strictly
control and prevent insider information. During the
Reporting Period, the Company did not have informer
with insider information conducting the illegal trading
securities of the Company.
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In 2016, the Board of the Company considered and
approved the Measures on the Administration of
Information Disclosure of China Vanke Co., Ltd.
(Revised), which further specified the organization
and procedures of the information disclosure of
the Company, strengthened the administration of
information disclosure and improved the transparency of
the Company.

8.2 Shareholders and Shareholder Meetings

1)

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any
shareholders individually or aggregately holding more
than 10% of the shares of the Company are entitled to
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The Board shall reply, in writing, within ten (10)
days of receiving such proposal, whether it consents
to such request in accordance with the provisions of
the laws, administrative regulations and the Articles
of Association. If the Board rejects to convene such a
general meeting or fails to reply within five (5) days of
receiving such request, such shareholders individually
or aggregately holding more than 10% of the shares of
the Company are entitled to request the Supervisory
Committee to convene such an extraordinary general
meeting. If the Supervisory Committee fails to response,
in which circumstance, shareholders individually or
aggregately holding more than 10% of the shares of the
Company for more than ninety (90) consecutive days are
entitled to convene and chair such a general meeting.

Proposal of Resolution at General Meeting

The shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more
than 3% of the Company’s issued shares with voting
rights may submit extra proposed resolutions in writing
to the convenor of a general meeting 10 days prior to
the meeting. The convenor shall issue a supplementary
notice of the general meeting and announce the
contents of such extra proposed resolutions within 2
days after receipt thereof.
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The shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more
than 1% of the Company'’s issued shares may nominate
the candidates for independent directors to be elected
at the general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary Meeting of the Board

An extraordinary meeting of the Board may be
convened if proposed by shareholders representing
more than 10% of the voting rights. The Chairman shall
convene and preside over the Board meeting within ten
days after receipt of proposal from the shareholders
representing more than 10% of the voting rights.

Enquiry to the Board

Shareholders have the right to obtain the articles of
association with reasonable cost and the right to inspect
and copy: the register of shareholders, equity situation,
the state of repurchase shares, personal data of the
directors, supervisors, presidents and other senior
management of the Company, bonds stubs, the records
of resolutions of the shareholders’ general meetings,
the Board of Directors meeting resolution and the
supervisory committee meetings and financial and
accounting reports. Shareholders may make suggestions
and recommendations based on the schedule of
presenters of shareholders’ meeting, to obtain the

necessary information.

The Company’s Independence from Its Single
Largest Shareholder in Business Operation, Staff,
Assets, Organisation and Finance

During the Reporting Period, the Company maintained
complete independence from its single largest
shareholder Jushenghua and the party acting in
concert with it with respect to business operation, staff,
assets, organisation and finance. The independence
of the Company ensures its operation autonomy and
management ability.

The Company has not disclosed any unpublished
information to Jushenghua and the party acting in
concert with it or taken any other action that might
violate the principle of corporate governance.
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3)

The 2015 (29th) Annual General Meeting

The notice of 2015 Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
was published on CNINFO Network (www.cninfo.com.cn)
and the website of SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) on 12
May 2016, and was published in China Securities
Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai Securities News,
and Securities Daily on 13 May 2016. The 2015 AGM
record date for A shareholders was 17 June 2016. H
shareholders entitled to attend the 2015 AGM are the
holders of H shares whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 27 May 2016.

The following resolutions were considered at the 2015
AGM of the Company: (1) the directors’ report for the
year 2015; (2) report of the Supervisory Committee for
the year 2015; (3) the annual report for the year 2015
and audited financial report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015; (4) the proposal on profit
and dividend distribution for the year 2015; and (5) the
reappointment of auditors for the year 2016. The annual
report for the year 2015 and audited financial report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
proposal on profit and dividend distribution for the year
2015, and the reappointment of auditors for the year
2016 were approved.

The announcement of the resolutions of the 2015 AGM
was published on CNINFO Network (www.cninfo.com.cn)
and the website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) after trading hour on 27 June 2016,
and was published in China Securities Journal, Securities

Times, Shanghai Securities News and Securities Daily on
28 June 2016.

The First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016

The notice of the First Extraordinary General
Meeting in 2016 was published on CNINFO Network
(www.cninfo.com.cn) and the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange after trading hour on 29 January 2016,
and was published in China Securities Journal, Securities
Times, Shanghai Securities News, and Securities Daily
on 30 January 2016. The record date for A shareholders
of the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016 was
9 March 2016, and the H shareholders entitled to attend
the First Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016 are
the holders of H shares whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 17 March 2016.
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The resolution on the application for continuing trading
suspension of Vanke A Shares was considered and
approved at the First Extraordinary General Meeting of
the Company in 2016.

The announcement of the resolutions of the First
Extraordinary General Meeting in 2016 was published on
CNINFO Network (www.cninfo.com.cn) and the website
of Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after
trading hour on 18 March 2016, and was published in
China Securities Journal, Securities Times, Shanghai
Securities News and Securities Daily on 18 March 2016.

Investor Relations

As at the end of 2016, the Company has 9,724,196,533
domestic shares issued to domestic investors (A Shares),
representing 88.09% of total shares of the Company;
1,314,955,468 shares listed on the SEHK and issued to
overseas investors (H Shares), representing 11.91% of
total shares of the Company. H Shares are all public
float and its total market value as at the end of 2016 was
HK$23,274 million.

8.3 Board of Directors

1)

Composition of the Board

The Seventeenth Session of the Board of the Company
consists of eleven Directors, of which there is one
Chairman and one Vice Chairman. Members of the
Board include three executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors. The list of Directors is as follows:

WTESF: IR%kE (28) Executive Directors: Mr. Wang Shi (Chairman)
Bkt Mr. Yu Liang
IXekH Mr. Wang Wenjin

FMTES: BREE (AZE) Non-executive Directors:  Mr. Qiao Shibo

(Vice Chairman)

RE—%E Mr. Sun Jianyi
AT Mr. Wei Bin
BRELE Mr. Chen Ying

BUFHITES: FATEA Independent Non- Mr. Zhang Liping
By executive Directors: Mr. Hua Sheng
EREENL Ms. Law Elizabeth
BEEAE Mr. Hai Wen

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Board and
Senior Management

The Board of Directors is responsible for the
Shareholders’ general meeting and execute the
operating and decision-making power according to
laws. The Company's management is responsible for
implementing resolutions of the Shareholders’ general
meeting and the Board of Directors and presiding over
the Company’s daily operation.

Exgel 3) Board Meetings
016E RN EESLHONEE - I In 2016, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings and 12
ELTI2REEARAR © meetings of voting by electronic communication.
HEER
26 REMR  EEHR iR SmER ZEE8H LRRRAS
#4 Rt e (%) (R) (R)  Frg&(R) () (%)
Numbers of
meetings of  Numbers of
votingby ~ specialized Numbers
Number Attendance electronic ~ committee  of general
of Board ~ Attendance by authorized communication meetings meetings
Name Position meetings  in person person  Absence attended ~ attended  attended
th IR HIES 6 6 0 0 12 0 2
Wang Shi Chairman, Executive Director
it BIR - JHES 6 0 6 0 12 0 0
Qiao Shibo Vice Chairman, Non-executive Director
il §i72% 6 6 0 0 12 0 2
Yu Liang Executive Director
- FTES 6 1 5 0 12 5 0
Sun Jianyi Non-executive Director
i FHTES b 6 0 0 12 5 0
Wei Bin Non-executive Director
R HInES 6 2 4 0 12 2 0
Chen Ying Non-executive Director
e HEE 6 6 0 0 12 2 2
Wang Wenjin  Executive Director
FHT BIiES 6 5 w 0 12 7 0
Zhang Liping  Independent Non-executive Director
g4 BUHITES 6 5 1 0 12 0 0
Hua Sheng Independent Non-executive Director
BEx BUHTES 6 0 0 12 5 0
Law Elizabeth  Independent Non-executive Director
it BIIMTES 4 2 0 12 10 0
Hai Wen Independent Non-executive Director
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4)

Chairman and President

The Chairman of the Board of Director in the Company
is Mr. Wang Shi. The President of the Company is
Mr. Yu Liang. The Chairman of the Board and the
President assume different responsibilities. According
to the Articles of Association, the Chairman of the
Board is mainly responsible for presiding over the
Board meetings and supervising and inspecting the
implementation of Board resolutions; the President is
mainly responsible for the management of production
operation of the Company, reporting to the Board and
implementing Board resolutions.

Non-executive Directors

There are eight Non-executive Directors (including four
Independent Non-executive Directors) in the Company,
each with a term of three years. Each Independent Non-
executive Director has confirmed his/her independence
from the Company, and the Company recognizes the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

Specialized committees of the Board of Directors
The Company has established three specialized
committees, i.e. Audit Committee, Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and Investment and Decision-
making Committee. Independent Directors serve as
the convener of various professional committees.
Specialized matters should be first approved by the
specialized committees before submitting to the Board
for consideration.

The Audit Committee is responsible for auditing
the Company's financial information, reviewing the
internal control and coordinating the communication,
supervision and inspection of the Company's internal
and external audit. In 2016, as considered and approved
by the Board, the Audit Committee enhances its risk
management function. The Audit Committee consists of
Ms. Elizabeth Law (serving as convener), Independent
Non-executive Director, Mr. Hai Wen, Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Wei Bin, Non-executive
Directors.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is
responsible for studying the selection criteria and
procedures for directors and presidents and making
recommendations; reviewing the candidates for
directors and presidents and making recommendations;
studying the assessment standards for directors and
presidents, conducting assessments and making
recommendations; approving the terms of service
contracts of Executive Directors; studying and reviewing
the remuneration policies and programs of directors
and senior management; reviewing the structure and
composition of the Board of Directors and assessing
the independence of independent directors. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee consists of
Mr. Zhang Liping (serving as convener), Independent
Non-executive Director, Mr. Hai Wen, Independent Non-
executive Director and Mr. Sun Jianyi, Non-executive
Director.

The Investment and Decision-making Committee is
responsible for studying the Company's long-term
strategic planning and major investment decisions
and making recommendations. The Investment and
Decision-making Committee consists of Mr. Zhang
Liping (serving as convener), Independent Non-
executive Director, Mr. Chen Ying, Non-executive
Director and Mr. Wang Wenjin, Executive Director.

In 2016, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings and 1
communication meeting, to review the arrangement of
audit, regular financial reporting, the profit distribution
plan, engagement of certified public accountants,
guarantees, derivatives investment, amendments on
the implementation details, risk management of the
Board, Risk Management Committee and its work
progress, internal control system and internal audit, and
carried out multiple communication with auditors. The
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s 2015 annual
report, first quarterly report of 2016, interim report of
2016, third quarterly report of 2016 and internal control
and self-assessment report of 2015, and corporate
governance Report.
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In 2016, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
held 5 meetings and 1 communication meeting to
discuss and review allocation of economic profits-bonus
for 2015 and issues on the collective bonus, handling of
bonus points of economic profits-bonus for departure
and retirement, adjustment of senior management
officers etc. The Remuneration and nomination
committee assessed the level of remuneration of
directors, supervisors and senior management, the
remuneration of senior management on the basis
of market research and determined according to
the Company’s overall operating performance.
The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors,
Independent Directors and Supervisors of the Company
is determined by the general meeting.

In 2016, the Investment and Decision-making committee
held 2 meetings and various communication meetings
to discuss the matters dealt by the Board regarding the
authorization for project development and financing,
introduction of strategic investors, revision of the
project co-investment mechanism, major acquisition and
investments of the Company and so on.
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BUEZE2eEXLEEEREN The attendance in specialized committee meetings of
each member

FMERE REFRR

i Rz ETZEEEE ZEEEE E3 R4 -F
Remuneration  Investment and

and Nomination  Decision-making

Name Post Audit Committee Committee Committee
mE— FMERAZEERE - 5 -
SUN Jianyi Member of Remuneration and Nomination
Committee
i EifRE9Z%E8 5 - -
WEI Bin Member of Audit Committee
[RE REERRZBEZE - - 2
CHEN Ying Member of Investment and Decision-making
Committee
ED'En REERRZEEZRE - - 2
WANG Wenijin Member of Investment and Decision-making
Committee
R FHEREZEGARA RAERKZES - 5 2
ARA
ZHANG Lipin Convener of Remuneration and Nomination

Committee, Convener of Investment and
Decision-making Committee

BEE ErRE2R5A 5 - -
Elizabeth LAW Convener of Audit Committee
HE BILEQ%E  FMERELZEEZE 5 5 -
HAI Wen Member of Audit Committee and Member

of Remuneration and Nomination

Committee
EEgRN TRARCEESRENE The Board reviewed the implementation of corporate
FEIEM governance policy.

ZE—REFEHRSE Annual Report 2016 217



8 NAAEREBLXELRE
VIl Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the formulation of
corporate governance policies of the Company and
performance of the following corporate governance

(1) to formulate and review the corporate governance
policies and practices;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuing
professional development of the Directors and

senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4) to formulate, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to Directors and employees;

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosure in corporate

governance report.

In 2016, the Board has performed its corporate
governance duties through aspects such as the review
and monitor of the training and continuing professional
development of the Directors and senior management
and compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
It has also put great efforts on improving the Company’s
corporate governance practices.
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Training of the Directors

In compliance with the continuing professional
development requirement under the Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors of the Company

participated in the following professional trainings
during 2016:
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In 2016, Chairman Wang Shi participated in the
Company's quarterly meeting, Huawei's Developer
Enablement Plan, Reformation Scheme and other
learning activities in respect of innovation of business
partner system. Director Yu Liang participated in events
relating to the Company's quarterly meeting and
Everest mountain training camp. Director Sun Jianyi
participated in the learning activities in respect of risk
management and corporate management organized
by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
Director Wei Bin participated in a number of business
unit meetings organized by China Resources (Holdings)
Co., Ltd. Director Chen Ying participated in the learning
activities organized by China Resources (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd. in respect of corporate strategy and corporate
management. Director Wang Wenjin participated in
events relating to the Company’s quarterly meeting
and the learning and training activities organized by
KPMG in respect of risk identification and management.
Independent Director Zhang Liping participated in
the learning activities organized by Blackstone Group
in respect of corporate strategy and management.
Independent Director Hua Sheng participated in a
number of academic exchange activities and forums.
Independent Director Elizabeth Law participated in
various training activities organized by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Society
of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, the Hong Kong
Association of Women Accountants, Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute, The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service and State Administration of
Taxation of the PRC as well as over 50 training activities
organized by the Society of Chinese Accountants &
Auditors, Accounting Development Foundation Limited,
BC Training Company Limited and other organisations
in respect of Companies Ordinance, accounting
standards, taxation, audit, regulations on securities
market. Independent Director Hai Wen participated in
learning activities such as a number of forums in respect
of macroeconomics and corporate development.
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9)

10

-

11)

Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company established rules like Management
System for Insider Information and Insider and Rules
Governing Employees Trading Securities of the
Company. The requirements of the relevant internal rules
of the Company are no less strict than the standards set
out in the Model Code. During the Reporting Periods,
except Director Sun Jianyi who disposed 129,794 shares
on 19 and 21 December 2016, no other directors had
sold or purchased any shares of the Company. After
inquiries to the Directors and Supervisors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors and Supervisors complied
with relevant internal regulations of the Company and
the Model Code, and did not conduct any securities
transactions in breach of the Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

During the Reporting Period, no Director of the
Company has material interests in the contracts of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Execution of the Duties of the Independent Non-
executive Directors

In 2016, all Independent Non-executive Directors
performed their duties with due diligence. Not
only did they attend Board meetings and listen to
the reports on matters relating to the Company,
participate in discussion at specialised committees,
and review documents of the Board, but also delivered
independent opinions and constructive advice to
the Company on bonus and dividend distribution,
external guarantee, derivatives investment, connected
transactions, appointment of accounting firm,
remuneration of senior management members, internal
control, share issue, asset acquisition and strategic
cooperation.
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In 2016, the details of the attendance of Independent
Non-executive Directors at Board meetings, specialised
committee meetings and their participation in voting

LU by electronic communication at Board meetings and
specialised committee meetings are as follows:
X VAN
Unit: Number of times
REEAR
KEEZE RERREX  EHREX HESE HERR
BUEEHS L | BALE EHLR WE  ZEEER  ZEeed  Zaged KEfER
Number of
resolutions
voted via
electronic
communication Number of
including ~ specialized ~ Number of
Number of resolutions ~ committee  specialized  Number of
Name of Board meetings Attendance considered meetings ~ committee  shareholder
Independent held during  Attendance by authorized by specialized need to meetings meetings
Directors the year in person person Absence  committees b attended attended attended
iRy 8 5 1 0 14 7 7 0
ZHANG Liping
2t 6 5 1 0 14 0 0 0
HUA Sheng
BEZ 6 6 0 0 14 5 5 0
Elizabeth LAW
e 6 4 2 0 14 10 10 0
HAI Wen
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8.4 Relevant Information on Senior Management

1)

Establishment and Implementation of Appraisal,
Incentive and Reward Mechanisms for Senior
Management

Senior management's performance is evaluated in
accordance with the achievement of annual business
objectives based on the Company’s medium and long
term development strategic goals, and such business
objectives include the operating results of a given
period and sustainability of the Company. The review
covers different categories including the Company'’s
financial position, customers, internal procedure, staff
development and health management. The Company
has established objective benchmarks to measure
the performance in each category. The statistics on
customers and staff satisfaction levels were obtained
from survey conducted by an independent third party.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee under
the Board is responsible for studying and supervising
the establishment and implementation of the appraisal,
incentive and reward system for senior management.
Performance of the president was appraised by the
Board.

The remunerations of management staff are determined
in accordance with the Company's operating results of a
given year, the accomplishment of overall management
targets, their appraisal report, and comparison with
the industry salary level. The major factors to be
considered in reviewing the senior management of the
Company’s headquarters include the Company’s overall
performance, the value of the management staff 's role
in the Company and their performance with reference
to the duties stipulated under their respective positions.
With regard to those in charge of front-line companies,
the review is based on the performance of those front-
line companies to which they are held accountable, the
value of their roles and their performance with reference
to the duties stipulated under their respective positions.
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In 2010, in order to realize shareholder orientation,
align business decisions with shareholders’ interests and
continue to achieve above market average operating
results, the Company made adjustment to the overall
remuneration scheme, by reducing the percentage of
sales bonus and annual profit bonus and introducing
Economic Profit (EP) bonus scheme using EP as a
performance indicator, in order to build a balanced
remuneration structure comprising fixed salaries, sales
bonus, annual profit bonus and EP bonus. In 2013, to
encourage true value creation, the Company made
some adjustments to the classification for appropriation
and methods of distribution of sales bonus, annual
profit bonus and EP bonus, and introduced monthly
bonus in addition to the existing sales bonus, thereby
further optimising the remuneration structure.

All staff receive fixed salaries. The amount of a fixed
salary is determined according to the importance of the
position to the Company and the basic needs of the
staff. The higher the position, the smaller percentage of
the fixed salary taken up in the total remuneration that
goes with that position.

There are two types of sales bonus, namely quarterly
and monthly. All staff are entitled to quarterly sales
bonus, with emphasis on general staff. Based on
the actual sales performance, sales bonus will be
appropriated and distributed once quarterly. Specialised
staff of front-line companies are entitled to monthly
sales bonus. Based on the actual sales performance,
sales bonus will be appropriated quarterly and
distributed monthly.

All staff is entitled to annual profit bonus. Based on

the profit of the year, the annual profit bonus will be
appropriated and distributed annually.
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BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Beneficiaries of the EP bonus include the Company’s
senior management staff, middle management staff,
as well as staff nominated by the president for the
important roles they play in the Company or for their
outstanding contribution. The economic profit, achieved
by the Company for a given year and calculated by an
independent third party, is used as a performance target
indicator and base for appropriation and deduction. A
fixed percentage of 10% of the economic profit will be
appropriated or deducted, with a two-way (upward or
downward) adjustment mechanism. In other words, if
the Company’s EP for the year is positive, an amount
corresponding to the fixed percentage of the EP will be
added to the designated bonus account; on the other
hand, if the Company’s EP for the year is negative, an
amount corresponding to the fixed percentage of the
EP will be deducted from the bonus account. Each year,
after the Board’s approval of the annual report, the
Company, based on the EP calculation report, will make
adjustment to the bonus account by either transferring
the EP bonus for the year to the bonus account or
transferring a corresponding amount from the bonus
account to the Company’s account.

The EP allocated each year will be entirely used as
collective bonus and tied up for three years, prior to
which no distribution will be made. All targets can
only apply for distribution after three years passed.
The targets of collective bonus entrust all of their
entitlements in the collective bonus accounts for
economic profit bonus to third parties for investment
and management. The means of investment include
a variety of marketable securities, including various
kinds of marketable securities issued by the Company,
such as the Company’s shares and private equity funds.
More investment return can be generated by third party
through structural financing or loans under the premises
by taking up more risks.
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The motivation targets of the collective bonus shall
receive annual credits according to the performance
during the year and the contribution to the Company
each year. After the distribution of EP for three years,
the motivation targets can apply to realize the annual
credits. In applying the annual credits to receive the
collective bonus, the balance of the credits will be
deducted from the account of the motivation targets. If
the motivation targets acts in breach of duty or behavior
code or resulting substantial loss by the Company
during the deferred period of the collective bonus,
the qualification to receive the bonus can be revoked
partially or completely.

During the Reporting Period, the Company allocated
EP of RMB976.9 million for 2015 to the former EP-bonus
plan, which were all used for collective bonus.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary changed from Mr. Tan Huajie
to Ms. Zhu Xu from March 2016. The Company has
employed Mr. Luk Chi Chung Peter (who works in Hong
Kong) as Assistant Company Secretary to assist Ms. Zhu
Xu in order to satisfy the requirements in Rules 3.18 and
8.17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange. In 2016, both Ms. Zhu Xu and Mr.
Luk Chi Chung have received over 15 hours of relevant
profession trainings according to the requirements in
Rule 3.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange.

8.5 Internal Control and Risk Management

Under the organization of the Board, the Company
conducts self-assessment on internal control annually
and an internal control audit report will be issued by
KPMG Huazheng LLP.

The Board was of the view that the system of internal
controls established by the Company did not have
any significant shortcoming in respect of integrity,
compliance and effectiveness. In 2016, the Company
maintained effective internal control related to
financial reports and was not aware of any significant
shortcoming in internal control unrelated to financial
report.
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As considered and approved by Board in 2016, the
Company established the functions of risk identification,
assessment, monitoring and prevention at the board
level and the internal management level of the
Company. It specified that the Audit Committee of the
Board is responsible for assessing and confirming the
level and nature of risks acceptable by the Company in
achieving its strategic targets, as well as checking and
assessing the effective implementation and operation
of the risk management system established by the
Company. The company set up risk management
committee and established three-tier risk management
function in headquarters, departments, different
regions and front-line companies, and established risk
management system.

After due assessment, it is concluded that major risks
faced by the Company currently and respective counter-
measures are follows:

Policy risk

The property industry in which the Company operates
is closely related to the macroeconomy and people'’s
livelihood. In order to achieve economic and
social management objectives, the state and local
governments often adopt a series of macroeconomic
policies and measures to manage the property market
and enterprises in various aspects such as credit, land,
housing supply structure, taxation and market order.
Those policies have brought dramatic changes to market
demand and supply, and also challenges to investment
and operational strategies of the Company as well as
uncertainties to the achievement of core operating
targets of the Company.
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In order to cope with such risks, the Company has
assigned staff to study the trend of macroeconomy and
maintain close liaison with policy-making departments
of the state to make relevant arrangement according to
the policy trend. In the meantime, the Company insisted
its strategic positioning for products and corporate
management based on long-term policy of the state
and minimized the risks brought by short-term policy
change.

The Company also set up an investment decision-
making committee which is responsible for approving
the decisions for major investments, strictly controlling
investment risks and quality, and picking up the pace of

investment.

Project development risk

Facing complex design and urgent construction
period, it is challenging to achieve the target of project
development on schedule with good quality and
strict cost control in a safe manner. Due to insufficient
supply of construction materials, unskilled construction
workers, labour disputes, construction accidents, natural
disasters, adverse weather and other factors, risks in
relation to construction progress, project cost, housing
quality and customers satisfaction may arise, and thus
affecting the results of operation and reputation of the
Company.

The company has established systems of project
development, quality control, cost management, with
project management staff of regional and front-line
companies continuously monitoring project progress,
construction quality and work site. It conducted
strict assessment on suppliers and implemented
stringent control on construction changes, improved
construction safety protection measures and set a clear
valuation indicators. In addition, the company also
actively innovated and developed advanced industrial
construction technology and equipment to improve
the construction efficiency and enhance customer
satisfaction while protecting construction safety and
ensuring construction quality.

ZE—REFERE Annual Report 2016 227



8 NAAEREBLXELRE
VIl Corporate Governance Report

(3)

228

MELER
BEETEERNBERKZGEE M
R BEHEEAARER  TERER
XEANRBRBELENEREHER
ERRFERAK - BHEHFE - BEE
WHBRMEFNBRKEHBRRR
REWRT B NE - RFE
BIMMEERSE] ERBE
ZHEEREMRGER  THRRE
EWERDS - MEME - WIRHE
FHAS - EXHLR  BEMEFH
X5 - BEEMREBOHE - WEXB
B BEEE  BREE - FHEE
%z NBHEE T | R E
K BHREBNARERMEIRE
PR RARFEHIDEEL o

INSIE-S e Ve =y A
REF A - BIEEIEMEFEA
Ei o —FASES R E—FA A
BRI SR A EibARERE
E¥BRIFNER: 3—HH  @BBYE
BEMERN - PIINEEME @ 5IAL
BREENEEEBFMEENEXSR
B RREAARRBREEYENE
BAEIRRESN - RRIRB=FEE:T
ZENER  PREEESNEES
MABE SRR AAZ L - BER TR
BREBNIREEREFEERE
T o KT DB RS EIRE
¥BNEEREETHEEENT
- WBEERNBEE RN IIEER
R B IR RERAIE - 30 HE AR FEAY LE1E
REET - EMREBEIDARER
L BBERTEEEEBEEANS
X REEBERESAFTEFRE
FBBRER - A FMEEEAEA
b BEB TR - BB HEN

BEMPEARMNBR A F] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(3) New business risk

As the demand of Chinese residents for self-occupied
properties have been satisfied and the property industry
had entered its silver age, industry development is
greatly affected by domestic macroeconomy and
property regulatory policies of the state. However,
urban development and changes in customer needs
have brought new opportunities and challenges for the
Company’s operation. Focusing on the development
strategy of being an “urban ancillary service provider”,
the Company enriched its product and service system
and continuously explored new business including
property service, business property, logistic property,
long-lease apartment, office property and senior
housing property. Under such business expansion, the
choice of business, operational management, resource
allocation, assessment, personnel incentives face new
requirements, which brings challenge to the effective
business expansion and achievement of targets.

The Company expanded and invested in new business
with a focus on its strategic direction and put in
place stringent control on the scope of new business.
On one hand, it encouraged regional and front-line
companies to carry out innovative practices based on
the headquarter’s strategy and local circumstances. On
the other hand, it acquired experienced management
team and quality business resources through merger
and acquisition of commercial properties and quickly
improved the Company’s ability in operating and
managing commercial properties. In the three-year
business plan, the Company specified the direction of
business expansion and the main point for capacity
building and set annual development target for
expansion in different stages. In operation, the
Company systematically and constantly controlled and
assessed the quality of business expansion, promptly
pointed out and rectified the expansion varied from
the expected one and developed stop-loss mechanism.
In respect of the management and decision-making
system of business expansion, through determining
the lead partners, the efficiency of decision-making
and communication for new business of the Group and
the region was enhanced. Meanwhile, the Company
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further developed the culture of business partnership,
stimulated staff enthusiasm and gradually promoted the
development of new business and its ability to provide
more space for future business growth.

Personnel risk

With the rapid growth of the scale of management,
higher complexity of business, and intense competition
for industry talents, as well as additional demand
of personnel brought by the development of new
projects and expansion of new business, the Company
is exposed to the risk of dilution of human resources.
Furthermore, as the projects of the Company locate in
various cities, the balance and allocation of number of
talents and skills in different regions is challenging. It
may create uncertainties for the innovation of products
or services and achievement of certain performance
target of projects.

In order to attract and retain outstanding staff, the
Company developed sustainable human resources
policies and personnel training mechanism, organized
systematic training courses to improve the ability and
quality of staff and create more opportunities for their
growth and promotion. Also, through the establishment
of competence center, the Company promoted the
sharing of knowledge and experience, coordinated and
allocated regional personnel and capability resources
to ensure sufficient personnel support for all of its
business. It developed remuneration system in line with
its business characteristics based on different business
development stages and adhered to the concept of
“salary increments for the outstanding” to allocate
resources for high-performance personnel and stimulate
the potentials of staff. Since 2014, the Company has
actively promoted the business partner mechanism and
the culture of partnership, and built a more transparent
and fair incentive mechanism to cope with possible
management risk.
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(3)

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range
of policies and regulations, including the company
ordinance of the region where it locates, financial and
taxation regulations, regulations in relation to property
sales and construction and listing rules of Hong Kong
and mainland China etc. If the Company fail to keep
abreast of changes in laws, regulations and policies, the
Company’s business development, result of operation,
financial condition and reputation may be adversely
affected.

The Company has set up a team specialized in studying
new regulations and policies and making relevant
arrangements, and reflected the requirements of laws
and regulations in business activities and operation
through process management of business. The
Company also invited internal and external experts to
provide trainings and updated information and assigned
experienced staff and consulted external experts for
handling compliance matters, and regularly conducted
internal control check and internal audit to ensure
compliance with various relevant regulations, policies
and guidelines.

Corruption risk

The Company advocated the concept of “sunshine
system”, required all employees to abide by the
principle of honesty and trustworthiness, and set up an
effective working system featuring proper assumption
of responsibilities and duties as well as the checks and
balances.

In order to further improve Vanke's professional ethics
risk prevention system, the Company has set up “Vanke
Sunshine Network”, which is an anti-corruption website
for reporting misconduct cases. It promoted the anti-
corruption policies of the Company, provided various
reporting channels and collected reporting information
to prevent and spot corruption. It also established a
platform for all employees to report potential conflicts
of interest, and required all its partners to enter into
the Sunshine cooperation agreement. It monitored the
internal anti-corruption work of the audit department
and carried out special investigations in a supervisory
role.
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During the reporting period, the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and
procedures. According the review result of the Audit
Committee, the risk management and internal control
system and procedures was effective and adequate
during the reporting period.

8.6 Audit

1)

Appointment and Remuneration of Auditors

According to the recommendation from the Audit
Committee, the Board proposed the resolution
regarding the re-appointment of KPMG Huazhen LLP
and KPMG as the accounting firms of the Company in
respect of annual audit at the general meeting. Pursuant
to the resolution of the 2015 AGM, the Company
engaged KPMG Huazhen LLP to audit the Company’s
annual financial statements for the year 2016 which
were prepared in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for Enterprises and the internal control audit
report which was issued in accordance with provisions
of regulatory authorities in China, and engaged KPMG
to audit the Company’s annual financial statements for
the year 2016 which were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards. The total
remuneration for audit is RMB10.5 million, without any
additional payment for travel and other expenses.

In addition, KPMG Huazhen LLP and KPMG provided
other services to the Group, including audit/review
of financial statements of certain subsidiaries, audit
related services and non-audit services in 2016 were
RMB1.84 million, RMB7.01 million and RMB6.67 million,
respectively, without any additional payment for travel
and other expenses.

Confirmations by Directors and Auditors

All Directors of the Company confirmed their
responsibilities for the preparation of financial accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2016. KPMG, the
auditor of the Company, confirmed its reporting
responsibilities in the auditor's report on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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8.7 Investor Relations

As at the end of 2016, the Company has 9,724,196,533
domestic shares issued to domestic investors (A Shares),
representing 88.09% of total shares of the Company;
1,314,955,468 shares listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and issued to overseas investors
(H Shares), representing 11.91% of total shares of the
Company. H Shares are all public float and its total
market value as at the end of 2016 was HK$23,274
million.

In 2016, the Company held 2 Shareholder’'s general
meetings. For details of the meetings, please refer to
“Shareholders and Shareholder Meetings” above.

8.8 Others

There is no material change in the Articles of
Association of the Company during 2016.
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In 2016, facing with the challenges brought by the changes

of shareholding structure of the Company, the Supervisory

Committee stood firmly on the Company's culture and

values, diligently performed their duties and safeguarded

the interests of the Company, its shareholders and

employees, in strictly accordance with the requirements of

Company Law and Articles of Association.

The main duties of the Supervisory Committee during the

year were as follows:

9.1 Supervisory Committee Meetings and
Resolutions of Such Meetings

In 2016, a total of 5 meetings and 1 voting by

correspondence were held by the Supervisory

Committee. The details of the meetings and resolutions

were as follows:

M

The 13th Meeting of the Eighth Supervisory
Committee was held on 11 March 2016. The
meeting considered and approved the report of
supervisory committed for the year of 2015, the
resolution regarding the appropriation and write-
off of the provision for diminution in asset value
for the year 2015; the audited financial report for
the year 2015; the special remarks on the deposit
and use of the proceeds raised from previous
fund-raising exercises during 2015; the internal
control self-assessment report for the year 2015;
the proposal on profit appropriation and dividend
distribution for the year 2015; the resolution
regarding the reappointment of certified public
accountants for the year 2016; the 2015 annual
report and its summary and the 2015 annual results
announcement; the social responsibility report for
the year 2015; the resolution regarding granting the
chairman of the Board and his authorised person(s)
the authority to use investment instruments
to carry out investments in overseas property
projects, the resolution regarding confirmation
of economic profit bonus for the year 2015, the
resolution regarding change in job duties of senior
management personnel and appointment of the
secretary to the Board, executive vice president
and supervisor of Finance.
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(2)

The 14th Meeting of Eighth Supervisory Committee
was held on 27 April 2016. The meeting considered
and approved the 2016 first quarterly report
and relevant financial statements, the resolution
regarding the convening of 2015 annual general
meeting and the resolutions regarding the increase
in capital of Vanke Property (Hong Kong) Company
Limited and Vanke Real Estate (Hong Kong)
Company Limited.

The 15th Meeting of Eighth Supervisory Committee
was held on 17 June 2016. The meeting considered
and approved the resolution regarding the
company's compliance of the conditions for
acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares, the
resolutions regarding the company’s acquiring
assets by way of issuance of shares and connected
transaction proposal and determined, by separate
voting, the target assets and counterparty, the
preliminary estimated value of, pricing principle
and payment method for the target assets, class
and nominal value of the shares to be issued,
target subscriber of the issue, pricing reference
day, pricing method, and issue price, issue amount,
lock-up period of the consideration shares, the
exchange on which the consideration shares are
proposed to be listed, arrangement of target
company's accumulated undistributed profits,
arrangement of the company's accumulated
undistributed profits prior to the issue and the
validity period of the resolution in relation to the
acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares;
the resolution regarding China Vanke Co., Ltd.’s
acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares and
connected transaction proposal, and its summary;
the resolution regarding the company’s acquiring
assets by way of issuance of shares constituting
connected transactions; the resolution regarding
the signing of a conditional agreement on the
acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares;
the resolution regarding the acquiring assets by
way of issuance of shares’ compliance with the
requirement of provision 4 of the provisions on
issues concerning regulating the material asset
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restructuring of listed companies; the resolution
regarding the compliance with the requirement
of provision 43 of the administrative measures
for the restructuring of material assets of listed
companies in the company’'s acquiring assets by
way of issuance of shares; the resolution regarding
the acquiring assets by way of issuance of shares
not constituting a reverse takeover; the resolution
regarding whether the share price fluctuation
of the company reaching the relevant standard
under article 5 of notice of regulating information
disclosure of listed companies and act of each
relevant party; elaboration on the integrity and
compliance in the performance of the statutory
procedures during the acquiring assets by way of
issuance of shares, and the validity of the submitted
legal documents; the resolution regarding
submission to the general meeting for granting
authority to the Board to handle the matters in
relation to the acquiring assets by way of issuance
of shares.

The 16th Meeting of Eighth Supervisory Committee
was held on 19 August 2016. The meeting
considered and approved the 2016 interim
report, summary, interim results announcement
and financial report, the resolution regarding
no distribution of interim dividend for 2016 and
no capitalisation of capital surplus reserve, the
resolution regarding the amendments to the
implementation details of the Audit Committee, the
resolution regarding the cancellation of outstanding
A Share Stock Options.

The 17th Meeting of Eighth Supervisory Committee
was held on 27 October 2016. The meeting
considered and approved the 2016 third quarterly
report and relevant financial statements, and the
resolution regarding the amendments on the
measures for the administration of information
disclosure.

On 13 December 2016, the resolution regarding
the termination of assets acquisition by way of
issuance of shares was submitted to the board
for consideration and approval through voting by
electronic communication.
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9.2 Inspection Tours

In 2016, focusing on the inspecting and visiting front-
line real estate and property management company
companies, the Supervisory Committee carried out
more inspecting and visiting work on new businesses
such as logistic, business management and long-leased
apartments. Through on-site inspection, meetings
and seminars, audit and specialized inspections, the
committee inspected and supervised the operation,
risk management, internal control, the management’s
performance of duties, protection of shareholders’
and employees’ interest of these front-line companies
and business units. It covered financial, investment,
marketing, fund-raising, construction cost, cooperation
and other aspects. The committee supervised all the
companies to diligently performed their duties, control
risks and fine-tune their internal control systems, to
prevent ethics risk.

9.3 Independent Opinions on Certain Issues of

the Company

(1) Statutory compliance: In 2016, members of the
Supervisory Committee continued to supervise the
Company’s operations through attending Board
meetings, operation decision meetings, reviewing
reports on special projects, on-site inspection
and meeting with staff. With reference to various
regulations, the Supervisory Committee was of
the opinion that the Company’s decision-making
process had gone through necessary procedures,
and the internal control measures were effective.
The directors and senior management team of
the Company diligently carried out their duties,
and safeguarded the interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Supervisory Committee
had reviewed the Company’s internal control self-
assessment report and internal control audit report
and corporate governance report for the year 2016
by KPMG Huazhen LLP, and was of the view that
the report reflected the actual situation of the
Company'’s corporate governance, risk management
and internal control, and agreed to publish the
relevant report.



O BEEEWE

IX Report of Supervisory Committee

()

wmEREMBHIER: 2016
FEFOUBRBENMIER
FMRET A RERAYPB
A - B 2R E MR R ISR
ETEE EFSUTHRE
HEATEZER RAQAY
BREWNERR T RA®OHF B
AR ML ERCR

SEEcFRBR B4
& %1 X R)20074F [E 1 515 A
BRESERBE ST HAM
FRBRETRE  WEMT
EFTHRERSTANER (B
TEER) MHANEARES
Be2016FEFREFEREBR
MEEHPENEFRS - iE
HR - ARIEERNIRITHETS
BT ANREI0EITSFHREE
& RBITAREEINETT36.5
BAEIFHAIHRE - 2.2(8%
TLSF HAR AR R M6E X L3
HAFR BB ZE B - WK 1 720154
RAEHENFE  BEEgHE
AEBRESHERBRAMAF
EHNENBERETTEE
REREHIBR ©

RIEMEIER  EEEHARA
H% A% 22 HA 7 5K B 51 8120165F &Y
ERBRAETTEE REY
THEBERERTHRMNBRES
PEHEITRES ©

B 5B ERRAEH
R EE D A FRIRZRE
BEN 2016FREI2E2EF
RAKHEMEMERR QA
HEHEN (KEW) ERAAR
EAEWHE - HRAMEKEBA
THBVRMM - EEEHE
e ENERNE BB LT
TEE RABEBMNREER

()

Financial monitoring: In 2016, the Supervisory
Committee continued to review the Company's
financial situation through the review of financial
reports and inspection tours, and monitored the
Company's operation and its risks. The Supervisory
Committee also provided audited opinions to
each regular report and was of the opinion that
the Company’s financial report reflected a true and
accurate view on the Company’s financial position
and operating results.

Use of proceeds from fund raising exercises: The
Supervisory Committee continued to review the
deposit and use of the remaining proceeds raised
from the subsequent offer of A shares in 2007, and
reviewed the verification report prepared by KPMG
Huazhen LLP on the special remarks on the deposit
and use of proceeds raised from previous fund-
raising exercises during 2016. During the Reporting
Period, the Company issued RMB3 billion 5-year
medium-term notes in China’s interbank market. Its
subsidiaries issued abroad HKD3.65 billion 3-year
medium term notes and USD220 million 5-year
medium-term notes and USD600 million 3-year
medium-term notes, and paid the interest of 2015
corporate bonds. The Supervisory Committee had
monitored the use of funds of the relevant notes
and the interest payment of corporate bonds, and
had found no violation of law.

Stock incentive plan: The Supervisory Committee
had supervised the implementation of the
Company's A-share Stock Option Incentive Scheme
in 2016 and had found no violation, and agreed to
the cancellation of outstanding stock options.

Connected transactions: In 2016, Chengdu
Vanke Real Estate Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a cooperation agreement with China Resources
Land (Chengdu) Co., Ltd., within the scope of
authorization at the general meeting of the
resolution regarding the cooperation with CRC to
jointly develop Plot 1 of Chengdu Jiujiang Project.
The Supervisory Committee had supervised the
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audit and implementation of such cooperation
and was of the opinion that the cooperation will
help to mitigate the Company’s risks and raise
its investment return and it was in the interests
of the listing company and shareholders and not
detriment to the interests of small shareholders.

Major asset acquisitions and disposals: During the
reporting period, the Company brought about the
Proposal of Acquiring Assets by way of Issuance of
Shares and Connected Transaction which proposed
to introduce SZMC as its shareholder. The
Supervisory Committee considered and approved
the proposal. As shareholders of the parties held
different view on the proposal and it was difficult to
arrive at a consensus, the Supervisory Committee
considered and agreed to terminate such
acquisition of assets by way of issuance of shares. In
addition, during the reporting period, the Company
and the cooperating partners co-acquired 96.55%
equity interest in SCPG. The Company contributed
RMB3,889 million. The Supervisory Committee had
supervised the audit and implementation of the
transaction and was of the opinion that the decision
was made in accordance with necessary procedures
and in the interest of the Company.

In 2017, as SZMC becomes a shareholder of
the Company, there will be new changes in
the shareholder structure of the Company.
The Supervisory Committee, together will the
Board and the management team, will diligently
perform their duties, foster the business partner
mechanism, expedite the transformation of the
strategy as an urban property service provider and
better safeguard the interests of shareholders and
employees.
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EHEERIARLR 158 H01 112285 N1559A2BEE N20F9A25H 500000 350% %?&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ RaHER
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China Vanke Co,, Ltd corporate 25 September (. WWEW‘E&E@EH il

bonds in 2015 (first tranche) 201510 28 SGR

September The bonds pay a simple interest
2015 on an annual basis, instead of a

compound interest. Interest is
paid annually and the principal
will be returned on the due
date, while the last interest
payment will be paid together
with the principal amount.
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Trading floor of corporate Stock Exchange

bonds for listing and trading
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Qualified investors
arrangement
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AR

Payment of interest and
the principal amount of the
corporate bonds during the
Reporting Period
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0 REARER R
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Implementation of the special
terms including the embedded
options attached to the bonds
given to the issuer or investors
or exchangeable terms of the
bonds during the Reporting
Period (if applicable).
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The bond is in compliance with Administrative Measures for the Issuance and Trading of Corporate Bonds ({2 AIEHETERHE
JEH%)) and are issued publicly to qualified investors having a qualified account of A share securities in the Shenzhen branch of the
China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited.

RECLAMID R ARLABARERRPHARKE

BRRENS

Interest is paid in full on time.

il

N/A
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10.2 Bond trustee and credit rating institution
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Bond trustee:
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CITIC Securities  Business
Co., Ltd.

Name
address

BEANHAREFETRIFRNECTFRER -

BREAIM  #EA
BERT L=
NN
B% (ZH)
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No. 8, Futian,
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Credit rating institution which rate for the Company during the Reporting Period:
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Name
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EETARBREEREN ZEHRA  BiIHEA
HREENENTES (MER)

During the Reporting Period, the changes in bond
trustee and credit rating agencies appointed by the
Company, the reasons of changes, the procedures

performed and the impacts on the interest of investors

(if applicable)
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China Chengxin Securities Rating Co., Ltd.

LN A

MER

N/A

Business address

2% BR BRAE;

Kb

010-60833504

Nie Lei, Yang  Contact Tel 010-60838838

Fang, Zu Ge

LEMEREERERTORZEXRESE
Level 8, An Ji Plaza, 760 South Xizang Road,
Huangpu District, Shanghai
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Use of proceeds from corporate
bonds and its compliance

FARHRE (B87T)
The remaining balance at the end
of the Year (RMB'0000)
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The operating condition of the
special account for the proceeds
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Whether the use of proceeds is in
compliance with the use, plan and
other undertakings made in the
prospectus

10.3 Use of proceeds from corporate bonds

NABRBRBAMESFZEHPAENOE (RABEFHTHERS
EBWE) (LT RARIBFBTERMRE) (LT RAREEES
E2R - LM RAREEECEEMERNEE 2XR)  CRIIEHFR
ZIRELTRAD  CRYIBF RS EIHR L RFREEELE
5) RABHEERNARLAFSEESEEINE) NEMRTEM
EREMEEES  ULK - BE - B cBOYRBEERET
THE THEESESERAREENERIBL -
The Company's use of proceeds strictly complies with the
relevant regulations and requirements under the agreement
of the prospectus for the issuance of the Bonds, the
Administrative Measures for the Issuance and Trading of
Corporate Bonds ({(RAIEH ETHR 5 E B W X)), the
Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by
Listed Companies({ LT ARIFEHFEITEENIE)), Regulatory
Guidelines for Listed Companies No. 2 - Regulatory
Requirements for the Management and Use of Funds Raised
by Listed Companies ({ LT A RIEEESIE25H- LT AR S
SESEBMFEAMNEE EK)), Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (CRIIZEHR
ZFRE LEM#HAD), the Guidelines of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange for the Standardized Operation of Companies
Listed on the Main Board (CRYIFEFR ZHAER A RIRE
iE{E¥E5|)) and the Management Rules for Proceeds of China
Vanke Co., Ltd. (B EXEBNERAAEEESEEMRE)).
The disclosed information relating to the Company's use of
proceeds were true, accurate, complete, and provided in a
timely manner and there were no violations regarding the use
and management of proceeds.

0
0

BRI CRINBHZH A ERIR LT ARREEERES) SEAHE
RENARAERERERIE  RRIHESERETERPFRH -
AAHEEECHNERERBEITANEHES - BRERER -

In accordance with relevant regulations under the Guidelines of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the Standardised Operation
of Companies Listed on the Main Board ((RIIFEHFR BFTER
LT ARIRFEEIES|)) and Management Rules for Proceeds
of Company, the Company deposited the proceeds in the
special account, performed strict internal approval procedures
to the use of proceeds, to ensure its designated use.

AMRREFEEEASEARSEFAZTNOE B -

The use of proceeds from the corporate bonds was in
compliance with the undertakings made in the prospectus.
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104 Credit rating of corporate bonds

In 2015, China Chengxin Securities Rating Company
Limited (“China Chengxin”) assigned rating to China
Vanke Co., Ltd. 2015 Corporate Bonds (first tranche)
("15Vanke01"), and issued the credit rating report on 18
September 2015. The credit rating of the Company is
AAA, and the credit rating of such bonds is AAA, with
stable outlook.

On 9 May 2016, China Chengxin issued the Followup
Credit Rating Report on China Vanke Co., Ltd. 2015
Corporate Bonds (first tranche) (2016) (Xin Ping Wei
Han Zi [2016] Gen Zong No. 071), and continued to
maintain AAA credit rating of the Company with stable
outlook, and continued to maintain AAA credit rating
of "15Vanke01" corporate bonds. For details, please
refer to the Follow-up Credit Rating Report on China
Vanke Co., Ltd. 2015 Corporate Bonds (first tranche)
(2016) published by the Company on CNINFO Network
(www.cninfo.com.cn) on 11 May 2016.

On 27 June 2016, the Company announced receiving
the “Notice regarding the requisition to the board of
directors of China Vanke Co., Ltd. for convention of
the second extraordinary general meeting in 2016"
from the Company’s shareholders, namely Jushenghua
and Foresea Life Insurance Co., Ltd (“Foresea Life
Insurance”). As the shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the shares of the Company,
Jushenghua and Foresea Life Insurance proposed
to convene the 2016 second extraordinary general
meeting to consider the removal of all the current
directors and shareholder representative supervisors.
On 29 June 2016, China Chengxin issued a report
regarding “Concerns over the announcements of
change of shareholding structure of China Vanke
Co., Ltd., progress of material asset restructuring and
Changes in Members of the Board of China Vanke
Co., Ltd.”, saying that it has noticed that changes in
the shareholding and material asset restructuring of
the Company may affect the Company’'s operational
plan and management, and will raise concerns in
its 2016 Follow-up Report. In the future, changes in
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shareholding may have uncertainties on the control of
the Company. Meanwhile, if the resolution on removal
of all the Company's directors were approved, the
Company may face adjustment pressure on credit rating
or rating outlook. China Chengxin will maintain a close
contact with the Company regarding the progress of
the relevant matters, in order to evaluate the effect of
changes in the shareholding, progress of material asset
restructuring and changes in members of Board towards
the Company’s future development strategy, business
operation and credit profiles. For details of above
announcements, please refer to the announcement
published on Shenzhen Stock Exchange website
(www.szse.cn) and CNINFO Network (www.cninfo.com.cn)
by China Chengxin on 30 June 2016.

10.5 Credit enhancement mechanism for

corporate bonds, debt repayment plans and
debt repayment protective measures

During the Reporting Period, no credit enhancement
measures had been taken for “15Vanke01”.

The funds to be used to repay “15Vanke01” mainly come
from the cash flows generated from the Company’s daily
operations. During the Reporting Period, the Company
maintained a healthy financial structure, with adequate
cash and cash equivalents to meet its short-term debt
obligations. The steady cash inflows had provided a
strong guarantee to the repayment of the principal
amount and interest of the Company’s corporate bonds.

During the Reporting Period, there were no any material
changes in the credit enhancement mechanism for
corporate bonds, debt repayment plans and debt
repayment protective measures.

10.6 Convention of bondholders meetings during

the Reporting Period

Up till the date of publication of the Report, the
Company has not convened any bondholders meeting
for its corporate bonds during the Reporting Period.
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trustee during the Reporting Period

The bond trustee of “15Vanke01” is CITIC Securities
Company Limited. During the Reporting Period, CITIC
Securities Company Limited performed its duty as the
trustee, in strict compliance with Agreement of Trustee
of Bonds, including but not limited to continue to focus
on the Company’s credit status and supervise the usage
and management of proceeds raised from the corporate
bonds in the Company’s designated special account.

On 15 June 2016, the Company disclosed the 2015
Trustee Report on Corporate Bonds (First Issue)
of China Vanke Co. Ltd. on the website of cninfo
(www.cninfo.com.cn) and disclosed the basic information
on the issue of bonds, the operational and financial
conditions of the issuer in 2015, the use of proceeds
and ratings of the bonds.

10.8 Credit facilities obtained from banks, used

and repaid during the Reporting Period

The Group maintained a good credit standing with
banks and other financial institutions. As at the end
of December 2016, the Group had been granted with
an aggregate amount of RMB105.5 billion, RMB59.244
billion of which had been used by the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the Group used the funds according
to the bank lending requirements, and fully repaid the
principal and interest of bank loans in a timely manner.

10.9 Implementation of the relevant provisions

or undertakings made under the Group's
corporate bond prospectus during the
Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
complied with the relevant requirements in the
corporate bond prospectus and used the proceeds as
prescribed, without prejudicing the interests of bond
investors.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company proposed
to acquire 100% equity interest in Qianhai International
Development Co., Ltd. held by SZMC However, due to
that the parties could not reach an agreement on the
adjustment scheme of the transaction and conditions to
continue to promote the scheme was not mature, and
based on the principle of prudence and in a manner
responsible to all shareholders of the company, the
Board of the Directors of the Company terminated the
transaction after negotiation with the SZMC.

CRC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely China
Resources Trade transferred their 1,689,599,817 shares
of A Shares held in the Company in aggregate to SZMC
by transfer agreement. Such registration of the transfer
was completed on 24 January 2017.

10.1"Whether the corporate bond has guarantor

Nil.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China
Vanke Co., Ltd

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with joint
stock limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Vanke Co., Ltd (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the People’s Republic of China, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

FEN SR FER L

Net realisable value of inventories

BB EIRZMT20 R BT 1 (o) 8 & aTE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(p).

HEETSER
The key audit matter

BMHWETNAEEZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

2016F12A318 - EXEE R IREER EED
ERHERYE (A TaBEIFE]) NREEES
HAEREN - REFERBRRNAEATERFE IR
BEFE -

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate
carrying value of the Group's properties held
for development (“PHD"), properties under
development (“PUD") and completed properties

1

held for sale (together "inventories”) was
significant. These properties are stated at the

lower of cost and net realisable value.

EERERTEEREREBEFEHANTERF
=i

The calculation of the net realisable value
for each property development project at
the financial reporting date is performed by

management.

B EENAE2RFENTHOETREFERE
AR -

Our audit procedures to assess the net
realisable value of inventories included the

following:

e NETEEHEGRHNNEEETEREREAX
Tr 518 B 83258 F0H A A AN A8 A B A 52 1A &
2 R AT FETT AL

e assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the preparation and
monitoring of management budgets and
forecasts of construction and other costs
for each property development project;

s THEMNERLHGTREEAERAETEMHEE
WHAREEEELFEEANEENZES
BATTE B PR S AL Y AR R B A TR E

e conducting site visits to property
development sites, on a sample basis, and
discussing with management the progress
of each property development project
and the development budgets reflected
in the latest forecasts for each property
development project;
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BARETSEE
The key audit matter

RPN ET O EEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERETFEANSRFERET  EEEFTHTER
ZRVMENEEMEZI T TRERHEHENE
ERAER RGN UEESEFEEANEAY
ARFEE (BEMOMBRYEREENROIRSHE
B MAKRHEERAUMBRHEER % - 2B
BREANEIREHEAMEET

The calculation of the net realisable value of
inventories involves significant management
judgement and estimation in preparing the
updated estimations of the costs to complete
each property development project for PHD and
PUD as well as in assessing the expected future
net selling prices for each property development
project (with reference to recent sales
transactions in nearby locations), the estimated
future selling costs and the relevant taxes.

BRPEFENA SR FENTEIRERENS
B ERAFEUHESEEENERN  BEFFE
TR B 2 B 55 TR BB A 1 22 85 A B 3 2 AR AR TR 2ROF
EEFERERRR  FrRZEINENMNLBERE
FE BB T B B AR ST M R T IS TG AE o

We identified the assessment of net realisable
value of the Group’s inventories as a key audit
matter because of the significance of inventories
to the assets of the Group and because of the
inherent risks involved in estimating the costs to
complete each property development project
and the future selling prices for each property
development project, particularly in light of the
current economic circumstances and various
property market measures introduced in various
cities across Mainland China.

o HEEEEMRANMGESE A& EHET
RAEMBRMAEFTIERR  BEEFHFEE
B RN R R GETARER - Ehi5 e BERE R
MEEENHEERETEETHER

e evaluating the valuation methodology
adopted by management for assessing
the net realisable value of inventories
and comparing the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuations,
including those relating to average net
selling prices, with market available data
and the sales budget plans maintained by
the Group;

s BEGFEHEAMMGEFTEEXNAREEENR
AE TR - YR E1E2016512A31H
BRI R ZANERE IE20155F 12 A3 B TEE #
THE  URFEEEERANNEREMEAES
BIE

e comparing the estimated construction

costs to complete each property
development project with the Group's
latest budgets and comparing the costs
incurred to 31 December 2016 with
budgets as at 31 December 2015 to assess
the accuracy of management'’s forecasting
and budgeting process;

o ETHRBRMUSNT  UBEHRBETMRRIE
BRHEAGERUEEENZELSERFEHE
HE KRR - WEEBEEGRAFMRKR LRI
BEHNAEENEENEEERR

e performing sensitivity analyses to

determine the extent of changes in key
estimates and assumptions that, either
individually or collectively, would be
required for inventories to be materially
misstated and considering the likelihood
of such a movement in those key estimates
and assumptions arising and the potential
for management bias in their selection.
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Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in Mainland China

BRI ETEHENLT ~ 28 KRBT 2(b)(ii) B & 71 AT B2 {5 5

Refer to notes 7 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting judgement and

estimates in note 2(b)(ii).

HAEETSER
The key audit matter

BMWETNAEEZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEEEEAMNEERIA L —RITHIBER
LAT in Mainland China is one of the main
components of the Group's taxation charge.

EEEHERENYETER DHIZERIZREX
T K 30%-60% 8 4 + I E T o 75 B 75 ¥R
HHR EREEREH I IS ERNTIRSEELT
mE EFLHENHER T E2ZENEXERE
MEARBEREZRNAENERE  BAOHEHEDR
ER1S RO U AR = TR T AT HABR B9 L s AN ~ 4 56 7 3%
KA MEER FHERS - ESEAELMIEE
MEFESFHR  BEREMNHAREEEREAMGN
CREEER -

LAT is levied on sale of properties at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on
the appreciation of land value. At the end of
each financial reporting period, management
estimates the provision for LAT based on its
understanding and interpretation of the relevant
tax rules and regulations and the estimated
total sales of properties less total deductible
expenditure, which includes lease charges for
land use rights, property development costs,
borrowing costs and development expenditure.
When the LAT is subsequently determined,
the actual payments may be different from the
estimates.

BRI EROFTROBAEFBREATIE
o

Our audit procedures to assess the provision
for LAT in Mainland China included the
following:

e MNEEEEHEFEEANLHIBETERED
B 52 P BB 4% i OV ERET VBT B UL

e assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over the calculation of the
estimated LAT provisions;

o HMAAXRMABHBERNIIE FEEEH
2016512 A31HM LI IBERMNER - &
FREPFPIBR - FB A & 17 B #
B ARETOEE BN BB RIERNIER - F1G
SEEEMRRMFE ;

e engaging our internal taxation specialists
to evaluate the Group’'s LAT provisions
as at 31 December 2016 which involved
challenging the Group's assumptions and
judgements based on our experience,
knowledge and understanding of the
practices of the application of the relevant
tax laws by the various local tax bureaus;

s HEEEEHUBAHEMENSHKARA
RIER ©REAMEE - SFHEEEENRRKM
H &

e challenging the Group's assumptions and
judgments based on our assessment of the
value of the estimated sales of properties

and the deductible expenditure;
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BARETSEE
The key audit matter

RPN ET O EEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HPIE LI EF ORI ABREFFE AR
THRETNARESHMBRENERLE - BE
BEREELGEARNAHE RRYBEENERERN
ERHENEREERRER -

We identified provision for LAT in Mainland
China as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the estimated provisions
for LAT are based on management's judgement
and interpretation of the relevant tax laws and
regulations and practices.

BN EEEEN RO T MIBEN - WK
MMt EERESEEBACHNSRETL
By o

re-calculating the provision for LAT and
comparing our calculations with the
amounts recorded by the Group.

YIBIIE B AR

Revenue recognition for property development projects (“PDP")

BRI & SRR L IR DT 1))y & 51 BCE

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(y)(i).

BRETER
The key audit matter

BHNETOAEEZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

MEFEEBNBAEEERE016FEEXKALRL
HEHI97% ©

Revenue from PDP accounted for 97% of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016.

BEEEENTHAKRAEE meRERMEHEIER
BV -

Revenue from PDP is recognised when all of the
following criteria have been met:

(1) BEFEETEEAMR
(i) the sale and purchase agreement has been
signed;

2 BETEFNEHRTEEBARKTEROM
B &

(i) the related deposit has been received and
the arrangements for the settlement of the
remaining proceeds have been confirmed;
and

B EAEREBNBARRINEAREFEHE
AR

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition

of revenue for PDP included the following:

FHERYEMEIRE R ARREENBESR
P BB R Il B R E T AETT A RIE ¢

evaluating the design, implementation
of operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over the recording of revenue for
PDP;
BEEEENEERERERTAQ RGN - AT
EESEFBYEXMERE NRAERBE
EAMAHEBEERIRENK

inspecting the terms of the standard sale
and purchase agreement for sales of PDP
to assess the Group's revenue recognition
policies for sales of PDP, with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
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BRENSBE
The key audit matter

RPN ET O EEZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

3) FEZEDTEERRNTOZM MY

(iii) the property is ready for hand-over to the
buyer, as stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreement.

BHPAEYERERENRABRIIRERETF
B ARAYMEFRZEEENKAHEEENERE
DA Ke BB {4 5 B 35 7R B 35 & W ARERR BV AR /N EE BR
[EAEKRAI B ERENNBEELEERTE -

We identified the recognition of revenue for PDP
as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the Group and because small errors in
recognition of revenue, in aggregate, for each
property development project could have a
material impact on the Group's profit for the year.

s MAFHAFEHESWAMNIER  EEIUX
K BEEEERANRANUFAFED ZEIIR
MRE R X FFEE - AT EMRRBEEHE K
AR BERBREEN B AMERBERER

e inspecting, on a sample basis for sales
of PDP recognised during the year, sales
and purchase agreements and documents
which evidence that the properties
are ready for hand-over to buyers and
assessing whether the related revenue had
been recognised in accordance with the
Group’s revenue recognition accounting
policies;

s HMEEBBEXRBAGEIRFEHEKRANIE
B @REEL REAUEAEECEIR
MR X FIERE - AT EMRBEEHE K
ARBERE MR

e inspecting, on a sample basis documents
which evidenced that the properties were
ready for hand-over to buyers before
and after the end of the financial period
to assess whether the related revenue
had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period;

s HRYMEFRBLBETAFHANEEHEW
A BN BEESFHEERTEAR
ERERMNEEEMALER -

e comparing the average selling price per
square metre of PDP for which revenue
was recognised during the year, on sample
basis, with public information.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the

override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HZE2016F12 8318 ILFfE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

20165 20154
2016 2015
B 5 ARET T AREETF T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 3(a) 228,916,100 184,317,543
SHE B Cost of sales (170,602,315)  (138,625,598)
EF Gross profit 58,313,785 45,691,945
H AU A Other net income 4 1,388,918 3,431,620
SAR =1 @iN Selling and marketing expenses (5,160,716) (4,138,274)
EIEEHR Administrative expenses (7,174,595) (4,853,224)
Hih &y Other operating expenses 5 (519,023) (229,477)
#8  F| 5 Profit from operations 46,848,369 39,902,590
B8 B Finance costs 6(a) (2,310,339) (1,778,974)
FE{LELE AR A ERETE  Share of profits less losses of
associates 16 1,690,322 1,383,361
AL AFRERMEE Share of profits less losses of
joint ventures 17 3,240,394 1,009,731
75 A0 F 8 Profit before taxation 49,468,746 40,516,708
EREE Income tax 7(a) (21,118,491) (14,567,270)
FERHE Profit for the year 28,350,255 25,949,438
U AL FEAG - Attributable to:
YNN8 Equity shareholders of
the Company 21,022,606 18,119,406
IR = Non-controlling interests 7,327,649 7,830,032
FERE Profit for the year 28,350,255 25,949,438
BREN (AE¥T) Earnings per share (RMB) 11
FHIK Basic 1.90 1.64

BEPMH EE AR EM B HRERN — & D - BN
AR EIIRER FEAE AR B A P TFE32(d) ©

The accompanying notes form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for
the year are set out in note 32(d).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BZE20165F12A31 B ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20164 20154
2016 2015
BitEE ARBT T ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FEAE Profit for the year 28,350,255 25,949,438
FRHM2E KR Other comprehensive income
(MKRBREREHIE for the year (after reclassification
HER) adjustments)
Higr@&mnBsE ltems that may be reclassified
BamMIER subsequently to profit or loss:
BMEIRINF R A Exchange differences on
MISmERMER =5 translation of financial
statements of overseas
subsidiaries (292,828) (124,323)
WEMEF Cash flow hedge: net movement
;1/4:1.:%1%“@;5%5 in the hedging reserve 10(a) 220,382 (33,290)
Al RS Available-for-sale securities:
AR EBERBEERFE net movement in the fair
value reserve 10(b) 33,502 52,891
FARHM2E KRS Other comprehensive income
_______ for the year (38,944) (104,722)
FAZHEWR AR Total comprehensive income
for the year 28,311,311 25,844,716
P N= 3 Attributable to:
ZAN/NGI)§ Equity shareholders of the Company 20,968,280 18,008,226
FEPERALRE RS Non-controlling interests 7,343,031 7,836,490
FRAETHKZBHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 28,311,311 25,844,716
BEMIM T AR S B HR N — &5 The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

K2016F12H31H
At 31 December 2016

20165 20154
2016 2015
B 5 ARET T AREETF T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - R KRG Property, plant and equipment 12 9,105,632 6,373,913
KB Investment properties 13 12,096,846 7,609,532
m A E Intangible assets 14 892,754 836,490
A& N R A RERS Interest in associates 16 29,777,377 9,427,598
NE &R E R Interest in joint ventures 17 31,924,611 24,075,826
Hith o mEE Other financial assets 18 1,328,014 1,138,813
EMIEmEEE Other non-current assets 19 17,055,019 9,642,481
EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets 28(b)(ii) 7,198,533 5,166,541
109,378,786 64,271,194
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 466,225,274 367,507,209
B 5 & E i fE W EK IR Trade and other receivables 21 159,542,743 118,576,603
HihmeEE Other current assets 22 8,670,500 7,956,600
SRER Pledged and restricted deposits 23 7,542,103 1,432,760
HERESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 79,490,015 51,747,621
721,470,635 547,220,793
REAE Current liabilities
IRITEFR K Bank loans and borrowings from
SRIMEEER financial institutions 25 40,881,705 25,648,370
EiHES Bonds payable 26 2,468,181 998,122
B 5 N E fth fEAS B Trade and other payables 27 519,643,307 380,825,800
BN EARA 18 Current taxation 28(a) 17,005,293 12,589,535
o 579,998,486 420,061,827
}ﬁiﬁ)ﬁé}%{ﬁ Net current assets 141,472,149 127,158,966
EEZAERABAS Total assets less current liabilities 250,850,935 191,430,160
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

H20165F12H31H
At 31 December 2016

20164 20154
2016 2015
B ARET T AREF T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RITERK Bank loans and borrowings from
& BRI E R financial institutions 25 56,406,061 33,828,585
EfHES Bonds payable 26 29,108,376 19,015,812
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 28(b)(ii) 679,255 754,849
K Provisions 29 118,672 143,221
HiIEReas Other non-current liabilities 30 2,862,000 1,378,076
- 89,174,364 55,120,543
BEEFE NET ASSETS 161,676,571 136,309,617
B AR 4 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 32
N Share capital 11,039,152 11,051,612
E1FRR Treasury shares = (160,163)
1 Reserves 102,405,614 89,292,069
ARRRRELER Total equity attributable to equity
e shareholders of the Company 113,444,766 100,183,518
FERERE Non-controlling interests 48,231,805 36,126,099
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 161,676,571 136,309,617

MR2017F3 A24BEE S e it MIRET

% -

B
EZ

Yu Liang
Director

BEPM B FE AR FEM SRR — 8D -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 24 March 2017.

IxE
EF

Wang Wenjin

Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BZE20165F12A31H IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

20164 2015%F
2016 2015
P aE ARET T ARET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
KETEE Operating activities
Mm% UWER & Cash received from customers 286,532,938 191,908,272
H BB TELEIRSE  Cash generated from other
operating activities 26,302,677 19,156,760
M EEANE® Cash paid to suppliers (178,468,700) (129,979,425)
mEE MFEEFTIIRE Cash paid to and for employees (6,689,013) (5,046,300)
EAM R IERIRS Cash paid for other taxes (11,932,478) (11,696,205)
Hin & ZBFmARE Cash used in other operating
activities (54,351,461) (34,953,218)
KEMELERS Cash generated from operations 24(b) 61,393,963 29,389,884
SR Income tax paid (21,827,834) (13,343,8606)
RETBFELREEHE  Net cash generated from
operating activities 39,566,129 16,046,018
REZEH Investing activities
WHgEfFna - Acquisitions of subsidiaries,
B FTEE AR € net of cash acquired 37 (13,196,517) (4,261,877)
KEBENT REZAA  Investment in associates and
joint ventures (32,730,673) (11,160,068)
KREHEMKZEIER Other investments (369,464) (4,623,100)
U BB - ME MR« Acquisitions of property, plant and
KEMENRETEE equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets (2,146,786) (2,063,001)
HEFRAIZIRS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
BA S CRd) F58 disposals of subsidiaries 38 359,576 (1,199,566)
ﬁ’%%¥ = & Proceeds from disposal of property,
RABPTIS R plant and equipment 247,377 4,275
HE & PTEIE Proceeds from disposals of
investments 493,101 718,620
= U F1 2, Interest received 1,371,607 682,871
2R B Dividends received 2,582,729 1,094,679
HMg & FEZ(THIRE  Cash used in other investing
activities - (140,299)

REZHMARSFE

Net cash used in investing activities

(43,389,050)

(20,947 ,466)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BZE20165F12A31 B ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016% 20154
2016 2015
P aE AR®TR ARETT
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE Financing activities
SRR =T Contributions from
non-controlling interests 9,735,099 4,053,511
EE =g FAINEA Payment to non-controlling interests (4,006,258) (1,864,514)
B 0] f% (X8 Payment for repurchase of shares 32(b)(ii) = (160,163)
B ERAE ST 2)21TAXD  Proceeds from shares issued
Fﬁ?%/iﬂ’\ under share option scheme 151 242,535
WITERRERMEEEZ  Proceeds from bank loans,
ﬁ%"ﬁﬁﬁvﬁ( borrowings from financial
institutions and bonds 80,420,336 30,834,290
EBIRTTER Repayment of bank loans,
SRIRBERKES borrowings from financial
institutions and bonds (38,826,220) (25,028,576)
AR B R & Dividends and interest paid (16,026,457) (13,181,007)
BMETEEE (FTA) Net cash generated from/
E’ﬂ}ﬁ.ﬁggﬁ (used in) financing activities 31,296,651 (5,103,924)
HERBREEEY Net increase/(decrease)
®wm(md) B8 in cash and cash equivalents 27,473,730 (10,005,372)
1A1HRERESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January 51,747,621 61,653,320
ExSFHsLE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 268,664 99,673
12A31HEER Cash and cash equivalents
HEZEEY at 31 December 79,490,015 51,747,621
BEMIM T R S B HRERA—H D o The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “"Group”)
and the Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

e financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
(see note 1(h)); and

e derivative financial instruments (see note 1(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs

that are first effective for the current accounting period

of the Group:

Annual improvements to |FRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification
of acceptable methods of depreciation and

amortisation

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and [AS 28,
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to IAS 27, Equity method in separate
financial statements

None of these developments have had a material effect

on how the Group’s results and financial position for

the current or prior periods have been prepared or

presented. The Group has not applied any new standard

or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 1(s) or (t)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
1(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture (see
note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(0)).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 1(ab)). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’'s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised

to the investment (see notes 1(g) and 1(0)).

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas
the Group’'s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Associates and joint ventures (Continued)
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(h)).

Joint operation

The Group classifies joint arrangements as joint
operations when the Group has rights to the individual
assets, and obligations for the individual liabilities,
relating to the arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

(i) its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

(i) its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the

(iii)

inventories arising from the joint operation;
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Joint operation (Continued)
(iv)

its share of the revenue from the sale of the
inventories by the joint operation; and

(v) its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the IFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 1(0)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

ZZE—NFERE Annual Report 2016 271



b B e

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Br=BHERIN

AARETTTHIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1
(h)

272

BESHHE (&)
Rt A EHRE
AEBRAARBABELFRE (BT
RA - BEARRAEDRANRER

SN) BOBRERANT

BABHFRENFEAAEERE (AR
SER) JIER - FRIFEEEV TR
MARBEANINZZER  MA
ZARBEEHAREEXEBENE
BhmEREERBH  HERMEE
A (EAZRREBRFRABMSH
B) c KABREEERZHRA -

WIFHER B A EFHIRE D IR
RARHERS - RERSHRERN
AAEEAAEE ABERHNEM
2HEKEAERLN AL EERMEE
SR RE o PISMERZE » WA
B REWERR T AN ERT ISR
ER AR BEBERSETE - BIRE
T5 AR 2R 122 B AN F R Ok (B /65 18 e 58
(2B FE1(0) » RFERAEFHI K
B S AR AR B FE (y) (v) T B BRI 4B

2z =7
S IERR o

ERERERIERKHBERE (2
BRI sE1(0)) - BIRATIEEHERE
Mo ER c ZERERAEREK
HEE HERSEREKHEERZ
HER IRIEHER -

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as
follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value of initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that was only date from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs.

Investments in equity securities which are not held for
trading are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(0)). Dividend income
from equity securities is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policies set out in note 1(y)(v),
respectively.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(0)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged (see note 1())).

Hedging

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the asset acquired or liability assumed
affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised, or the Group revokes
designation of the hedge relationship but the hedged
forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(n)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(y)(iv).

Depreciation is calculate to write off the costs of
investment properties, less its residual value of 0% to
7%, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of 20 to 70 years. Both the useful
life and residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss (see note 1(0)):

*  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating
lease (see note 1(n)); and

e other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(aa)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Residual
value %
FerEE
] {5 FH & Hf Useful life %
FHE i Leasehold land N fEmAE A unexpired term of lease 0%
g Buildings N [E v AE HA the shorter of the 4%
312 55406 unexpired term of lease
(LA E AY¥)  and 12.5 - 40 years
VI BE Improvements to premises 5% 5 years 0%
T A7, £ B8 # Machinery and 5ZE204F 5 - 20 years 4%
motor vehicles
HAb & Other equipment 54 5 years 4%

9% - BB MEERE SFDHR]
ERFHAE - ZREBORAREE
EENE MLy 2HoE - MBI E
BITE - BEMAERFHLFRE
B (WA) BF8H -

BREEE (BERKRMD)

ARE B G RERLE A R T AR AR IR
BN HERIR B RS R AT R B ER
HEAR L HE o (FERERBIS TR
HEERBOREMERFH R HRE
REHE - RO THERF 2 RATIR AR
BOARBERAREBENE - V1F
FERR  RHARELE LKA
B BREBRBERZERKA (RH
it1(aa)) B RET#HMORERER (R
ffEE1(0)) °

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an infrastructure operating
right arising from a service concession arrangement
when it has a right to charge for use of the concession
infrastructure. A public premise operating right received
as consideration for providing construction services in a
service concession arrangement is measured at fair value
on initial recognition with reference to the fair value of
the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the public premise operating right is measured at cost,
which includes capitalised borrowing costs (see note
1(aa)),
|osses (see note 1(0)).

less accumulated amortisation and impairment
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1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life of a public premise operating right in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the
Group is able to charge the public for the use of the
infrastructure to the end of the concession period, which
is 8 years. Both the period and method of amortisation

are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is classified as non-current assets and amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as a property,
plant and equipment (see note 1(l)) or is held for
development for sale (see note 1(p)(i)).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see note 1(e)),
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(o)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 1(o)(ii).
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1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(0) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (Continued)

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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other receivables (Continued)

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(o)
(ii)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

— intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(o)
(iii)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
note 1(0)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable values are determined as

follows:

—  Property held for development and property under
development
The cost of properties held for development
and properties under development comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition
cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised (see note 1(aa)).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

-  Completed property for sale
In the case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of
the total development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold properties.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories (Continued)
Construction materials

Construction materials are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
construction materials to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.
The accounting policy for contract revenue is set out
in note 1(y)(iii). When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
statement of financial position as the “Gross amount
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset)
or the “Gross amount due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not
yet paid by the customer are included under “Trade
and other receivables”. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are presented as “Receipts in
advance” under “Trade and other payables”.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(0)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 1(x)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

(i)

(ii)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are no discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1
(x)

(i)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’'s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(x)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties is
recognised upon the signing of the sale and purchase
agreement, the receipt of the deposits and confirmation
of arrangement of settlement of remaining sales
proceeds or the achievement of status ready for
hand-over to customers as stipulated in the sale and
purchase agreement, whichever is the later. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are presented as “Receipts
in advance” under “Trade and other payables”.
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1

(y)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Provision of services

Revenue from services is recognised when services are
rendered.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably:

- revenue from a fixed price contract is recognised
using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of
contract costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract; and

— revenue from a cost plus contract is recognised by
reference to the recoverable costs incurred during
the period plus an appropriate proportion of the
total fee, measured by reference to the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated
total costs of the contract.

— revenue from service concession arrangement is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract. Operation or service revenue is
recognised in the period in which services are
provided by the Group (see note 1(y)(ii)).

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(y) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(aa) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expended in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ab)Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

(i)

operations

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the above criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the group and the company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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1 EEEFEE (#) 1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(ab)FHEFRBEERFXEN (ab)Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
(#&) operations (Continued)
(i) FEREW (i) Discontinued operations
FEBURAEENEEHER KL% A discontinued operation is a component of the group’s
EE RIS R ENHEKE D Héﬁiﬁi\ business, the operations and cash flows of which can
bR B 2 BBV E B - FIARER be clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and
EENFEEXIRNLEME @ 5 which represents a separate major line of business or
ERENDEBEEFERNEEM R geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
B-REHEN D ABEHEARHB coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
& MES 8 F A A of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
REGEHERDEEETRENNTS Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
DRRFHENRMSR - EERXE disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
LI REEERy - B E S AFEEM classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
(2R A EHEG) © occurs if the operation is abandoned.
%%IE?%%?ﬁﬂ%F%%ﬁ B He Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
RAEBRRTERITR 8 single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:
FEBMHMENHHERE - the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
54 operation; and
- BERARBEREHEEKANK - the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
BRZEEELNEENERE measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
HAEANEENAGTENEER the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
MIEFIFHIEK - constituting the discontinued operation.
(ac) BBt (ac) Related parties
(1) WHFETFTH—E ZALHEEER (1) A person, or a close member of that person’ s family,
HBELEEHEHE - is related to the Group if that person:
(i) PEHISEREGAREE (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(iiy YAEEEEAFE : & (i) has significant influence over the Group; or

RAEEXAEEFGRAINE
EEEEKE -

(iii)

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

206 ERMPERMBR AR China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ac) Related parties (Continued)
(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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1

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ad)Segment reporting

(i)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgement and estimates

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgments:

Classification between subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates

The Group co-operated with certain third parties to
engage in property development project through certain
entities. In accordance with the respective co-operation
agreements, the Group has the right to acquire certain
percentage of the equity interest in these entities at a
pre-determined price when certain conditions set out
in these agreements are met. The Group has made
judgment on the classification of these entities to
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates in accordance
with the respective agreements and the involvement
of the Group and the other parties in these entities.
The Group will continuously evaluate the situation and
such investments are accounted for in accordance with
accounting policies set out in notes 1(d) and (e).
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Accounting judgement and estimates
(Continued)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (Continued)
Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management
on determining whether a property is designated as
an investment property or a property held for sale.
The Group considers its intention for holding the
properties at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current
assets if the properties are intended for sale after their
completion, whereas, the properties are accounted
for as investment properties under construction if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.
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(b)

(i)

Accounting judgement and estimates
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 14 and 33 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment and fair value of financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Properties for sale

As explained in note 1(p), the Group's properties for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group's recent experience and the nature
of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates of
the selling prices, the costs of completion in cases for
properties held for development and properties under
development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease and this may result in provision for properties
for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the
actual outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may
be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
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Accounting judgement and estimates
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
LAT

As explained in note 7(a), LAT is levied on properties
developed by the Group for sale, at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, which under the applicable regulations is
calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including lease charges of
land use rights, borrowing cost and relevant property
development expenditures. Given the uncertainties
of the calculation basis of land appreciation tax to
be interpreted by the local tax bureau and the actual
appreciation of land value may be different from the
original estimates, the actual outcomes may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Any increase or decrease in estimates would
affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and
other receivables resulting from the inability of the
customers to make the required payments. The Group
bases the estimates on the aging of the trade and other
receivable balance, customer creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition
of the customers were to deteriorate, actual provisions
would be higher than estimated.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses and other
deductible temporary differences carried forward are
recognised and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to
the operating environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgement exercised by the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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Revenue and segment reporting

Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are development
and sale of properties in the PRC.

Revenue mainly represents income from sale of
properties, construction contract and property
management and related services earned during the
year, net of sales related taxes and discounts allowed,
and is analysed as follows:

20164 2015%F

2016 2015

AR® TR ARETT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

YIEEHE Sale of properties 222,407,728 178,931,475
1) 5% AR %55 £ 48 A AR 75 Property management and

related services 4,055,436 2,799,777

BEEAR Construction contracts 476,086 356,270

Hip Other services 1,976,850 2,230,021

228,916,100 184,317,543

AEENTPRANA - WEEME
—EPHNRZBEHBEAEE KRN
10% °

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

The Group's customer base is diversified and does not
have a customer with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group's revenue.
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions, which
are organised by a mixture of both business lines
(products and services) and geographical location. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following five reportable segments.

e Property development (Beijing region/Guangshen
region/Shanghai region/Central and Western
region): given the importance of the property
development division to the Group, the Group's
property development business is segregated into
four reportable segments on a geographical basis,
as the divisional manager for each of these regions
report directly to the senior executive team. All
four segments derive their revenue mainly from
development and sale of residential properties.
Details about the cities covered by each of these
regions are set out in note 3(b)(i).

e Property management: this segment provides
property management and related services to
purchasers and tenants of the Group's own
developed residential properties and shopping
arcades, as well as those developed by the external

property developers.
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results and assets

For the purpose of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources among segments, the Group's
most senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets,
other investments and current assets in Mainland China
with the exception of deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales before sales related
taxes generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
the profit before PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT"),
excluding share of profits or losses of associates or
joint ventures, dividend income, other income and
other operating expenses in Mainland China, but
including the provision for doubtful debts and the profit
arising from the inter-segment transactions. PRC Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT") which is considered directly
attributable to the sale of properties is deducted from
the segment profit for the review by the Group's most
senior executive management.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar transactions.

BHERS

Property development

YREH  BREM  LBEH tEYEY  NEER h
Central and
Beijing Guangshen ~ Shanghai ~ Western  Property
region region region region management Total
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTn ARMTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
2016% 2016
REMERZHBA Revenue from exteral
AMBHER customers before tax 41,965,884 76,106,276 78,159,807 39,232,854 4,411,431 239,876,252
DEEBA Inter-segment revenue 92,093 19,762 142,016 89,327 1,272,986 1,616,184
ERAHUA Reportable segment
FBHEER revenue, before tax 42,057,977 76,126,038 78,301,823 39,322,181 5,684,417 241,492,436
EHIHAE Reportable segment profit 5,093,688 16,659,579 10,788,306 4,132,955 578,789 37,253,317
ERIVEE Reportable segment assets 169,968,539 238,963,923 216,910,784 121,559,289 6,604,779 754,007,314
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WAK 7 ER®E (8)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

DERERE (&) (b) Segment reporting (Continued)
DEREREE (58) () Segment results and assets (Continued)
BHERE
Property development
IREE  BREM SRS PEPEY  WXER h
Central and
Beijing Guangshen ~ Shanghai ~ Westem  Property
region region region region management Total
ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETR
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
015% 2015
RENPERZIA Revenue from external
ABRHER customers before tax 44244685 51037144 58,857,885 36,526,126 2938951 193,604,791
DEREBA Inter-segment revenue 113,738 102,024 369,029 2821 1204781 1,792,393

SHIWU - RNBHER Reportable segment revenue, before tax  442358,423 51,139,168 59,226,914 36528947 4143732 195,397,184

ERIBAE Reportable segment profit 5755169 9766998 11559919 2455762 448101 29,985,949
EHANEE Reportable segment assets 123,169,768 181,822,097 163,329.896 91624977 4764275 564,711,013
i Note:

IEREEEILR - REF - ES - B
ANE - BEE -KRE E& - K
R-FBl By #IE 28 &
o BRR-Z0 - FE - BRRFE -

BREIEERN - BM R RE
BB -mL &Y EM R
M- FJN - BR - EE-FA AM
RN BOEM

EBREEEE - TN FM - TR
MR-HET BE RE-HBM =
B EGH - ORM - R BN Bl
B RN RER

TEMERERE RE AL E

R BB SEAE AERS
e

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

Beijing region includes Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang, Anshan,
Dalian, Qingdao, Changchun, Yantai, Jilin, Taiyuan, Tangshan,
Langfang, Fushun, Qinhuangdao, Jinzhong, Rizhao, Yingkou,
Jinan, Jimo and Pingdu.

Guangshen region includes Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Qingyuan,
Dongguan, Foshan, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Changsha, Xiamen,
Fuzhou, Huizhou, Hainan, Nanning, Putian, Shishi, Quanzhou
and Zhangzhou.

Shanghai region includes Shanghai, Hangzhou, Suzhou,
Ningbo, Nanjing, Zhenjiang, Nanchang, Hefei, Yangzhou,
Jiaxing, Wuhu, Wenzhou, Nantong, Changzhou, Kunshan,
Wauxi, Xuzhou and Changshu.

Central and Western region includes Chengdu, Wuhan, Xi‘an,
Chongging, Kunming, Guiyang, Urumgi, Nanchong and
Zhengzhou.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss and assets

20165 20154
2016 2015
AR®T T AREFTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue
E3R WA Reportable segment revenue before tax 241,492,436 195,397,184
i o =6 U A Elimination of inter-segment revenue (1,616,184) (1,792,393)
R ERWA Unallocated revenue 600,985 1,944,339
e KM Sales tax (11,561,137) (11,231,587)
RE WA Consolidated revenue 228,916,100 184,317,543
F5E Profit
WO HAE Reportable segment profit 37,253,317 29,985,949
Pl £ o =0 e A R Elimination of inter-segment profit (1,679,324) (189,372)
JE(REEE AR & Share of profits less losses of
A& A RIFERERE associates and joint ventures 4,930,716 2,393,092
g Bl Es Dividend income 6,253 3,650
H b Yoz Other income 471,634 2,018,756
Hh&&hy - Other operating expenses, excluding
T EIERIRERE provision for doubtful debts (164,934) (173,751)
AOERRAX Unallocated expenses (1,564,051) (235,706)
4 IE(E R LAT 10,215,135 6,714,090
MrAR AT 4R & B Consolidated profit before taxation 49,468,746 40,516,708
EE Assets
2RO EBEE Reportable segment assets 754,007,314 564,711,013
8 > 3B e W Rk IE Elimination of inter-segment receivables ~ (238,773,201) (197,014,843)
Ao EE Unallocated assets 315,615,308 243,795,817
HEEBE Consolidated assets 830,849,421 611,491,987
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Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group's property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, intangible
assets, interest in associates, interest in joint ventures,
other financial assets and other non-current assets
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the properties sold. The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties, the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets, other financial assets and other non-current
assets, and the location of operations, in the case of
interest in associates and joint ventures.

REMBEFEA
Revenue from external
customers
20164 20154
2016 2015
AR®TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR Mainland China 228,837,342 184,245,414
BB Hong Kong 78,758 72,129
228,916,100 184,317,543

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.
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3 WARDEEHE (&)
(b) PEPERE (%)
(iii) HEEHF (&)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii) Geographical information (Continued)

EEFRBEE
Specified non-current assets
2016%F 20154
2016 2015
AR® TR ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
LEPNES Mainland China 92,828,443 52,495,711
BB Hong Kong 3,095,893 2,041,997
EE The United States of America 4,783,878 2,660,964
HEH The United Kingdom 1,472,039 1,905,981
102,180,253 59,104,653
H g A 4 Other net income
20164 20154
2016 2015
AR®Tx AR%TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A B W 2= Interest income 1,484,201 1,371,188
&R IR Bl Dividend income from investments 6,253 3,650
BRI EPRE REEE Forfeited deposits and compensation
from customers 198,420 139,046
HEFRAAE - EERAR Net loss on disposals of subsidiaries,
B8 N A E5 18 558 joint ventures and associates (62,730) (172,461)
HEAHEERSE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
Wz (E518) JF5 available-for-sale investment 1,897 (64)
HEWE  BENMRED Net (loss)/gain on disposals of
(B18), /W FsE property, plant and equipment (1,994) 2
FEH (BR),/ W55 Net exchange (loss)/gain (573,170) 38,026
Bt 3Ny VNG Gain on previously held interest in
SCRIFE B R s subsidiaries upon loss of control = 395,770
HISIEGIERBER S S Gain on previously held interest
NCIESZER: St oG in joint venture upon taking control 137,699 941,921
W B R B A Rl e Gain on bargain purchase of
subsidiaries - 495,387
HAb Others 198,342 219,155
1,388,918 3,431,620
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5 HitKREEX

5 Other operating expenses

2016%F 20154
2016 2015
ARBTT AR®TT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
RAREE Impairment loss on trade and

other receivables 297,067 55,726

KREMFERERE Impairment loss on investment
properties 57,022 -
Bi=fiia Donations 120,809 81,752
H (th FETA R 2 Other sundry expenses 44,125 91,999
519,023 229,477

6 BiAlRE
BATFEERR (GTA)

6 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):
(a) MBER (a) Finance costs
2016%F 20154
2016 2015
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTERERFE Interest on interest-bearing borrowings 5,538,216 4,852,954
B BRERERS Less: Interest expense capitalised into
EMEREEZTRR inventories, investment
GRS properties and construction
in progress (3,227,877) (3,073,980)
2,310,339 1,778,974

310
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6 Profit before taxation (Continued)

[= oS (b) Staff costs
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARET ARETIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
e TEMEMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 7,434,935 5,556,045
MR EHRPCGE RGN Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 451,348 302,082
7,886,283 5,858,127

ARARRAEEHEKREFRRSHE
F AP B 7 AR Ko AR U A B AR A8 SR
EHRFOR KBNS ([FH8]) - K
RNE R K REF R B REIR R 77 B
JiH4 R SR A0 ST EL DI VE B 5K = 3t
TR R B RS ETEMRIKE
TXERARE -

AEBETREFERHERTESF S
P REEREBEFE—IRBHIMERTE
EatEl ([BEEEE]) - BEEET
R EARBUZEABTENREMR
FURINET &) - mEt &) 2 B £
e

B B ESRASN - REEY S\ E M E
RESZATRIKERENIFET

The Company and its subsidiaries in Mainland China
participate in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC
municipal and provincial government authorities,
whereby the Company and its subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to make contribution at the rate
required by different local government authorities. The
local government authorities are responsible for the
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the

payment of pension benefits beyond the contributions
described above.
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(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6
(c)

312

BiAIFE (&)

6 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Hibi5 B (c) Other items
20165 20154
2016 2015
AR®T X AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
WE R Depreciation and amortisation 1,148,632 715,806
E:tE Auditors’ remuneration 10,500 10,500
FERA (B:E20(c)) Cost of inventories (note 20 (c)) 166,513,929 135,592,601
BRANENKREHEER Operating lease charges in respect of
properties 121,696 104,727
4= A48 2 2 5 Fr e 7 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
4 A 2L B R (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or |OSS repl’esentSZ
20164 20154
2016 2015
AR®T X ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN AR 18 Current tax
THEFGEE - BENEH Provision for CIT, Hong Kong Profits
KRBTSR B A Tax and U.S. income tax 12,691,507 8,933,256
- 3G (E T A Provision for LAT 10,236,345 6,748,840
BT Withholding tax 205,031 15,643
23,132,883 15,697,739
IEFERL I Deferred tax
EERBEOEREE Origination and reversal of temporary
(B EE28(b)(i)) differences (note 28(b)(i) (2,014,392)  (1,130,469)
21,118,491 14,567,270
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(ii)

(iii)

mEEBERAREHR (&)
mEEERABIEE © (F)

ERFEH  BEEBFEHREEF
=H
ERMBRBEHEN G ERB S
BAKBRRARERNHERGTE - F
HEX2FRARERANMEHRES25%
(2015%F : 25%) - EZE B BB E
BEREET T RFRI

2016F B RN B HMBEHEZEF
A FE R T A E #916.5% (20154 :
16.5%) 5t&

£ B FHE BT BIE M A (R
REBEMA AR T AR
SR F B 035% ) RN FIS
B (AR ARER MR N T A
] # i 51 8 3 4 ) 0% 21 0% B
K3 H) -

+

-+ 8 BB RI0% TE60% ) R i
A EEE R E YL i E
SR o RIDARDAR - HIpuEE
R E AR R A E M X
(BiEtinEREEEE - EREA
RABRE RS ) 5 -

AHH

BINT A Al B 5200841 A1H #
B -7/ B A7 B ER A1) 2 T B PSS A
10%TE$0F: o RIEF B EFBHBIE
o EERBABRBERNG ATEH
ERGCEMNEZBAA] UHEHE
25%3% LA £ A& #E - AT IR5% M R K TR
MBEH RN - REBIBHBINFQ
B ZAS%H R TEFNFL R R o

AEBETTRABRERT AN
BRERFI IR 2% B 4 41 30% 0 TE 41
B o

(ii)

(iii)

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represents: (Continued)

CIT, Hong Kong Profits Tax and U.S. income tax

The provision for CIT is calculated based on the
estimated taxable income at the rates applicable to
each company in the Group. The income tax rates
applicable to the principal subsidiaries in the PRC are
25% (2015: 25%), except for certain subsidiaries which
enjoy a preferential income tax rate.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

The U.S. income tax charge comprises federal income
tax calculated at 35% and state income tax calculated
at the rates ranging from 0% to 10% on the estimated
assessable profits of the subsidiaries of the Company
which were incorporated in U.S..

LAT

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under
the applicable regulations is calculated based on
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights,
borrowing costs and relevant property development
expenditures.

Withholding tax

A withholding tax of 10% is levied on the overseas
subsidiaries in respect of dividend distributions arising
from profit of PRC subsidiaries earned after 1 January
2008. Under the China-Hong Kong Tax Treaty and
the relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident which is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25%
equity interests or more of a PRC enterprise is entitled
to a reduced withholding rate of 5%. Some overseas
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5%.

A withholding tax of 30% is levied on certain subsidiaries
of the Group in respect of dividend distributions arising
from profit of U.S. subsidiaries.
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(BrBEETI  RARETITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

7

(b)

314

mEBRBRAMEHR (&) 7

PR ERERARRIEZS

profit or loss (Continued)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

FTRE R AR - accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ot 7 A Profit before taxation 49,468,746 40,516,708
VB, - T IBE Less: LAT (10,215,135) (6,714,090)
R RATSH & Profit before CIT, Hong Kong Profits
BTG A E Tax and U.S. income tax 39,253,611 33,802,618
RIEAER AR ER Notional tax calculated at applicable
FTEfi Rt E R ZE income tax rate of the relevant
Frigti R B A NS AT Group entities concerned
MEZEN 10,686,639 8,563,231
HARG W Non-taxable income (1,014,558) (1,057,455)
AalEmEx Non-deductible expenses 884,145 586,669
AEREREZFNTE Effect of temporary difference not
recognised 240,674 149,872
EABARERAIEEE Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (40,105) (116,900)
LRI FEEEEMER Under/(over)-provision in respect of
prior years 146,561 (272,237)
REREH - BAMEM CIT, Hong Kong Profits Tax and
ERHFTEFR U.S. income tax 10,903,356 7,853,180
+ i R LAT 10,215,135 6,714,090
FTi5fi Income tax expense 21,118,491 14,567,270
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EEREEME
RIEE B D ARG F383(1) R A A
(RBERFIDER) RPIB28ME

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

8 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

B EEMET - 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2165
2016
B
EE/ET  ERORE REMER . 20155
we  REMAE HE 5 i i
Basic salaries,
Directors'’/ allowances  Bonuses and
supervisors' and other  retirement 2015
fee benefits benefit Total Total
ARBTT AR®TRT ARMTRT ARMTRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITES Executive directors
ThEE Mr. WANG Shi - 1,220 8,770 9,990 9,988
Bt Mr. YU Liang - 1,140 8,650 9,790 9,988
ED G Mr. WANG Wenjin - 850 6,183 7,033 5,692
FHUTES Non-executive directors
BEREE Mr. QIAO Shibo 180 - - 180 180
RE—%% Mr. SUN Jianyi 180 - - 180 180
mELE Mr. WEI Bin 180 - - 180 180
REX & Mr. CHEN Ying 180 - = 180 180
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
directors
RAT A Mr. ZHANG Liping 300 - - 300 300
BEENL Ms. LAW Elizabeth 300 - - 300 300
BELE Mr. HAI Wen 300 - - 300 300
Ediy e Mr. HUA Sheng - - - - -
=z Supervisors
BREE Mr. XIE Dong - 850 6,183 7,033 5,568
BHENL Ms. LIVASIRI Ankana 180 - - 180 180
RETEE Mr. ZHOU Qingping - 493 1,606 2,099 1,748
2016% 2016 1,800 4,553 31,392 37,745 34,784
2015% 2015 1,824 4,314 28,646 34,784

O BETEEREZZ2EARNFRE
B 8 MR BEA B RS E - A
7 RIS EE31 Ko i 5E36(a) K EE

In addition, certain directors and supervisors
participated in the share option scheme and the
Economic Profits Bonus Plan of the Company. Details
are disclosed in notes 31 and 36(a) respectively.
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(BrBEETI  RARETITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

9 BEFMAL 9
TEBREEMALTH BEMS
(20154F : &) BF HEHBHS
BN S - HE =42 (20155 -
=%) ALHB@EEnT

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 2
(2015: 2) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect
of the other 3 (2015: 3) individuals are as follows:

20165 20154

2016 2015

AR¥ET T AREEFIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

e MEM e Salaries and other emoluments 2,380 3,455

BB TEAL Discretionary bonuses 34,601 25,340
BRIRER T2 Contributions to retirement benefit

scheme 256 274

37,237 29,069

gEAN - B A2 EARR RIRE IR
I RRBENBESEE - FAD IR
B 31 e iR 36(a) K B2 -

Hp =% (20155 : =) K= H M
ATHBEBR T IR

In addition, the above individuals participated in the
share option scheme and the Economic Profits Bonus
Plan of the Company. Details are disclosed in notes 31
and 36(a) respectively.

The emoluments of the 3 (2015: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

20164 20154

2016 2015

A AE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

8,500,001 7T £9,000,0007 7T HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 - 1

11,500,001 7c2 12,000,000 7t HK$11,500,001 — HK$12,000,000 — 1

12,500,001 72 13,000,000 77t HK$12,500,001 — HK$13,000,000 1 —

14,500,001% 702 15,000,000/ 7t  HK$14,500,001 — HK$15,000,000 1 -
15,000,001% 752 15,500,000/ 7t HK$15,000,001 — HK$15,500,000 1
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(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

10 Hft 2 EU s 10 Other comprehensive income
20165 20155
2016 2015
AR TR AR%TT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(a) BEREM : (a) Cash flow hedges:
FAEREH TR Effective portion of changes in fair
RABEEZHERIS value of hedging instruments
recognised during the year 177,885 (33,290)
HIHEH O BRERR Reclassification adjustment for
amounts transferred to profit or
loss on maturity of instruments 42,497 —
FAERAEMEE Net movement in the hedging
UG 2 B S0 P i s 2 reserve during the year
HER recognised in other
comprehensive income 220,382 (33,290)
(b) AIMtHERERS: (b) Available-for-sale securities:

FAERN AR BEZD Changes in fair value recognised

during the year 23,414 52,891
RAEEEHH > BEEER Reclassification adjustment for

amounts transferred to profit or

loss upon disposal 10,088 -
AR BE#BEEEFHE Net movement in the fair

value reserve 33,502 52,891
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(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11

318

BREXREF

B % F AN B F 2 AN 2 7 IR R PE A
B A R #21,022,606,0007T (2015
£ A R #18,119,406,0007T) K&
FRNERTEBERMEFHR
#11,039,147,0000% (20154 :
11,041,440,0000% ) 5+% o

11 Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based

on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB21,022,606,000 (2015:
RMB18,119,406,000) and the weighted average of
ordinary shares of 11,039,147,000 (2015: 11,041,440,000)
shares in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

INFEF I MRER Weighted average number of shares:
7B
Number of shares
20165 20155
2016 2015
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
R1ATEMBEEITR Issued and outstanding shares
SN (R at 1 January 11,039,132 11,037,507
ITIFEBRRER 2 Effect of share options exercised 15 7,053
BRRNHTE Effect of shares repurchased
(B #E32(b)(ii)) (note 32(b)(ii) - (3,120)
12831 B INiE TS Weighted average number of shares
at 31 December 11,039,147 11,041,440

A QA R2011F4A25H £ B 17 —
HREEERTE (RWE31) - HE
20165128318 » Fr A BITHEIN
HAREET B B BB RAK -

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 25 April 2011 (see note 31). All share
options were forfeited during the year ended 31

December 2016.
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12 % - BERRE
(a) FREIEEHK

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

12 Property, plant and equipment

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

KtraR HELH 1R
BF URKE  ENRE  HERAE BMRE  RRIE #it
Buildings Leasehold ~ Machinery  Electronic
held for  Improvements land  and motor  and other Construction
ownuse  topremises prepayment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
ARMTR  ARMTn  ARMTn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
B Cost:
R01551A18 At 1 January 2015 2,487,356 653,192 362,867 198,051 36,868 1833482 5901816
ME Additions 1444197 223,658 90,572 109,095 146,730 417,613 2,431,865
a3 Transfer 1,295,960 - - 181,267 1764 (1478991) -
HE Disposals (123,028) (6,073) (348) (28,493) (74.276) (173,743) (405,961)
AfFEER( Change in consolidation scope (206, 164) 126 12,798 9,809 16,203 = (167.228)
2015124318 At 31 December 2015 4,898,321 870,903 465,889 469,729 457,289 598361 7,760,492
10165118 At 1 January 2016 4,898,321 870,903 465,889 469,729 457,289 598,361 7,760,492
AE Additions 13,986 828,355 124,750 37,484 69,739 429,391 1,503,705
i Transfer 551,666 - - - - (262438) 289,228
= Disposals (138,419) (2,156) - (21,783) (21,039) - (183,397)
AREEZ( Change in consolidation Scope 1,729,511 228 64,573 22,263 17,714 - 1,834,289
R2016512A318 At 31 December 2016 7,055,065 1,697,330 655,212 507,693 523,703 765,314 11,204,317
RithE Accumulated depreciation:
R201561A18 At 1 January 2015 474,05 277,159 40,791 100,845 206,055 - 1,098,906
R Charge for the year 165,637 107,313 12,834 36,782 66,284 - 388,850
RHEEM Written back on disposals (35,242) (4,876) (25) (17,275) (31,312 - (88,730)
AREEL Change in consolidation scope (31,925) N 2,102 6,916 10,389 - (12,447)
R20155128318 At 31 December 2015 512,526 319,667 55,702 127,268 251416 - 136579
201651418 At 1 January 2016 572,526 319,667 95,702 127,268 251,416 - 1,386,579
Engi Charge for the year 233,666 295,114 21,114 42,866 80,156 - 679,516
Rt &R Written back on disposals (13,189) (2,156) - (14,501) (16,514) - (46,360)
AfEER Change in consolidation scope 59,301 124 2,501 11,566 5,458 - 78,950
R2016512A8318 At 31 December 2016 852,304 672,749 85917 167,199 320,516 - 2,098,685
RERE Net book value:
R2016512A318 At 31 December 2016 6,202,761 1,024,581 569,295 340,494 203,187 765,314 9,105,632
R2015512A31H At 31 December 2015 4325795 491,236 410,187 342,461 205,873 598,361 6313913
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(BrBEETI  RARETITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

13 REY#E
(a) FREIEE¥ER

13 Investment properties

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

2016%F 20155
2016 2015
TEIME ERME TIYE ERMZE
Properties Properties
Completed under  Completed under
properties development properties  development
ARBTRT AR¥Trn ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A Cost:
R1A1H At 1 January 6,519,623 1,356,933 4,012,031 1,189,362
EEANIZN Additions of construction costs - 156,085 - 1,208,668
EBRARE Transfer from inventories 2,291,730 420,310 1,075,630 24,404
NE Addition 980,115 - 26,898 -
g Acquisition of subsidiaries 126,068 771,387 241,566 56,056
R Exchange adjustment 68,890 19,814 41,941 -
HE Disposal and transfer (113,737) = = =
oAk (R B Transfer upon completion 548,191 (548,191) 1,121,557 (1,121,557)
#M2A31H At 31 December 10,420,880 2176338 6519623 1356933
REE . Accumulated depreciation:
M AR At 1 January 267,024 - 129,053 -
FRZ Charge for the year 193,781 - 137,971 =
[ it 3 Exchange adjustment 11,560 - - -
A& Written back on disposal
and transfer (29,015) = = =
®12A318 At 31 December 443,350 = 267,024 -
B Impairment:
M1A1R At 1 January - - - -
R12H318 At 31 December 57,022 = = =
REFE : Net book value:
®12A318 At 31 December 9,920,508 2,176,338 6,252,599 1,356,933
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13 REW=E (&)

(a)

REEEYER (&)

R2016F12H31H * ZXEBEKREY
XERBAMNFIOZEEMEME
ZHETHHORAARBEROARK
27,664,596,0007T (20154 : A R #
13,803,800,0007T) AR AIE S
%57%%{51%%HE@%E@@/ALEE?% ’ E
BEMSLBRAEBLAREEGHERM
MEMITIELEE -

ERTREMENEEERERKEZ
FNERABHEONEN A RER
M2 ES  RBPEREEREYH%
MHRMEFIRENRBEYE 2 HIHR
SERER (WEA) -

ERREMEXGLENSZHEET S L
AR Z AT BHE BUIRIKETE - &Lk
HERCHEMNRERARN « BitxT
AR~ FRE LB RERANERE

RBERRFTENRENENRAE
1B 0 20 2 B IR B 7% 3 5 2RI S8 135
RABEFEPHAAENFEIERMG
B: ERAEETERBA2HE
MASR(EE -

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

13 Investment properties (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
together with leasehold land on which the
investment properties located as set out in note
19, was approximately RMB27,664,596,000 (2015:
RMB13,803,800,000) as at 31 December 2016 as
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation performed, using the
discounted cash flow ("DCF") approach and the direct
market comparison ("DMC"), by Jones Lang LaSalle, an
independent qualified professional valuer.

The valuation for completed investment properties
was arrived at by considering the capitalised income
derived from the existing tenancies and the reversionary
potential of the properties or, where appropriate, by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions
as the Group’s investment properties.

The valuation for investment properties under
development was arrived at by making reference to
comparable sales as available in the relevant market.
The construction cost incurred, estimated construction
cost to complete the development, discount rate and
estimated developer’s profit as at the date of valuation
are also taken into account.

The fair value of the investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period is categorised into
Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs, as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value
measurement.
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(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

13 REWE (88) 13 Investment properties (Continued)

(b) REVMEREFEIMAOT : (b) The analysis of net book value of investment

properties is set out as follows:

20165 20154
2016 2015
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EHE - HA TS In the PRC, held on leases of
— hHEAFAER (10 — 504 ) — Medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 10,001,577 6,473,665
— RHIFEER (50 LA E) — Long-term lease (over 50 years) 42,888 149,563
10,044,465 6,623,228
EEE - mUATHBRE In Hong Kong, held on leases of
— REAFAER (50 A L) — Long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,136,684 986,304
a9 AT HEES Overseas, held on lease of
— REAFAER (50 A L) — Long-term lease (over 50 years) 915,697 =
12,096,846 7,609,532
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(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

13 REWE (8) 13 Investment properties (Continued)

(c) AEERBLSEHALHEREMER (c) The Group leases out investment properties under
ETHEE - BH—ROFHH2E19 operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
F o HENRBEREBEHESEBHRIR period of two to nineteen years. The leases payment
MENEREEE LBAAHEE - includes fixed rentals and contingent rentals based on

business performance of the tenants.

REBIRE T AT BEH L ST A FE M & The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
RESEBNT non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as
follows:
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
—FE R Within 1 year 369,029 221,135
—FRERFNA After 1 year but within 5 years 1,856,582 1,253,260
HE%E After 5 years 1,292,377 418,820
3,517,988 1,893,215
MREMER - TEBETREMHE At the end of each reporting period, certain of the
ERRITEREL B (RM5EE25) © Group's investment properties were pledged for bank

loans (see note 25).

B E2016F12A318 - REWMEN As of 31 December 2016, investment properties,
NEE i A R4095H & 7T(2015 together with leasehold land amounted to RMB409
F:F) BEEE - million (2015: nil) was pledged.
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(BrBEETI  RARETITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

14 BREE

14 Intangible assets

REERHAM mE et
Operating
right and
others Goodwill Total
AR¥T R AR¥ TR AR¥ T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R : Cost:
7201541818 At 1 January 2015 555,469 201,690 757,159
INE Additions 195,903 - 195,903
2015412 A831H & At 31 December 2015 and
2016%F1 A1H 1 January 2016 751,372 201,690 953,062
INE Additions 188,172 - 188,172
R2016%F12AH31H At 31 December 2016 939,544 201,690 1,141,234
2o . Accumulated amortisation:
7201561 A 18 At 1 January 2015 = = =
FRZH Charge for the year 116,572 - 116,572
R2015%F12A31H At 31 December 2015 and
K2016F1A1H 1 January 2016 116,572 = 116,572
FRLH Charge for the year 131,908 = 131,908
M2016%F12A31H At 31 December 2016 248,480 - 248,480
BRTEFE Net book value:
20155 12A31H At 31 December 2015 634,800 201,690 836,490
K2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 691,064 201,690 892,754
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14 BEEE (&)

(a)

AR HEMKAEZIRMKEAR
RIELERENANEE - REFED
R20144F 12 A B FIRIE(E ©

mE

2016F12A31H M/ E E £ 52012
FAEEKRBEENEX (O8N BR
ARl FR - AEED L EREEEA
el REmETRERE @ I mEk
1SRE °

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

14 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating right and others

The cost of operating right and others mainly
represented the fair value of operating rights of public
premise acquired. The public premise has commenced
operation since December 2014.

Goodwill

Goodwill as at 31 December 2016 arose from acquisition
of Vanke Property (Overseas) Limited by the Group in
2012. As at year end, an impairment test was performed
by comparing the goodwill with its recoverable amount

and no impairment was recorded.
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AARETTTHIR)
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15

326

RFRAFANRE
NTREIBXEAKERE BE
HRENTRAFE - EFTRA - 17
HEAMFRRFE - BEBFEBN
K- FEFARIRAREE -

15 Investments in subsidiaries

The following are the particulars of the subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length. The PRC subsidiaries are of limited
liability.

gk 5ai]
Proportion of ownership interest
BRTREAEARE 5@ A28 FAR
REER AEMER L R A8 it 2 (frn) &EuRE BE BE IEXH
Place of Group's Held
incorporation and Particulars of issued  effective by the Held by a
Name of company operation and paid up capital (‘000) interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
AITENERERRAA A~ AR 8600,000 100% 95% 5 ERE
Shenzhen Vanke Real Estate Company Shenzhen RMB600,000 Property
Limited development
EMTENEHERRAR M AE%1,000,000 100% 90% 0% WERE%E
Guangzhou Vanke Real Estate Company ~ Guangzhou RMB1,000,000 Property
Limited development
LEENBHERRAR tE AR 10,000,000 100% - 100% HxHE
Shanghai Vanke Real Estate Company Shanghai RMB10,000,000 Property
Limited development
IREMERBRAA L) AEH2,000,000 100% 95% 5% MEE%
Beijing Vanke Enterprises Company Limited Beijing RMB2,000,000 Property
development
FIITEREHERR AR il AR20,000 100% - 100% HxHE
Foshan Vanke Property Company Limited ~ Foshan RMB20,000 Property
development
REMEMERERRRA = AR 300,000 100% - 100% WEFHE
Dongguan Vanke Real Estate Company Dongguan RMB300,000 Property
Limited development
HEMENEHERRAR i3 AR10,000 100% 100% - DEEE
Zhuhai Vanke Real Estate Company Limited - Zhuhai RMB10,000 Property
development
EFTEREHERRAR B AR50,000 100% 100% - DEEE
Xiamen Vanke Real Estate Company Xiamen RMB50,000 Property
Limited development
BMTEREHERRAA B AR20,000 100% 100% - DEEE
Fuzhou Vanke Real Estate Company Fuzhou RMB20,000 Property
Limited development
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15 RFARHKRE (&) 15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

FAERRL A

Proportion of ownership interest

BRTREAEARE  A8E  A2F  FAH

NRER AR IR BE LY (frn) &URE b2 BE IEEH

Place of Group's Held

incorporation and Particulars of issued  effective by the Held by a
Name of company operation and paid up capital (‘000) interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BEENEHEREERAR etz AR#10,000 100% 100% - DERE
Hainan Vanke Property Development Hainan RMB10,000 Property

Company Limited development

AREMERBRAA ax AR#150,000 100% 100% - DERER
Nanjing Vanke Property Company Limited ~ Nanjing RMB150,000 Property

development

LEREENEHERRAR & AR#30,000 100% 100% - hER%

Jiangsu Sunan Vanke Real Estate Company  Suzhou RMB30,000 Property
Limited development

EREMERERRBRAA R AR150,000 100% 100% - hER%

Ningbo Vanke Real Estate Company Ningbo RMB150,000 Property
Limited development

AREENERBRAA AlE AR 200,000 100% 100% - hER%

Hefei Vanke Property Company Limited Hefei RMB200,000 Property

development

BLENFHEREERAR Il AR200,000 100% - 100%  WERE
Tangshan Vanke Real Estate Company Tangshan RMB200,000 Property
Limited development
AEENRHEERAA RE AR#390,000 100% 15% 85%  MERE
Tianjin Vanke Real Estate Company Limited  Tianjin RMB390,000 Property

development

EGENEHERRERAR &l AR100,000 100% 95% 5% MERE
Shenyang Vanke Real Estate Company Shenyang RMB100,000 Property
Limited development
REENFHERERRAA K AR#30,000 100% 100% - DERE
Dalian Vanke Property Company Limited ~ Dalian RMB30,000 Property

development

REBNEHERZRRAA & ARH50,000 100% 95% 5% MERE
Changchun Vanke Real Estate Development  Changchun RMB50,000 Property
Company Limited development
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15 RFRATIMKRE (&) 15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Fre &Rt il

Proportion of ownership interest

DRTREAEARE  ARE  A2F  FAF

NEER AEMER Y R AR 2 (frn) &¥RE ®E BE IEXH
Place of Group's Held
incorporation and Particulars of issued  effective by the Held by a
Name of company operation and paid up capital ('000) interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BRENFHEREERAT Ea AR30,000 100% 100% - DEEE
Yantai Vanke Property Development Yantai RMB30,000 Property
Company Limited development
AREMBHEFRAR N AE%60,000 100% 100% - DERE
Taiyuan Vanke Real Estate Company Taiyuan RMB60,000 Property
Limited development
EEEMERERRAA &5 AEH20,000 100% 100% - hER%
Qingdao Vanke Real Estate Company Qingdao RMB20,000 Property
Limited development
RAEHFERERRAA # AR 80,000 100% 90% 0%  WERE
Chengdu Vanke Real Estate Company Chengdu RMB80,000 Property
Limited development
HEMENEHERRAF HE ARE150,000 100% 95% 5% MEEE
Wuhan Vanke Real Estate Company Limited Wuhan RMB150,000 Property

development

EM (ER) BREARARA £l AR100,000 100% 100% - hER%

Vanke (Chongging) Real Estate Company ~ Chongging RMB100,000 Property
Limited development

ARENCEERAA i AE%20,000 100% 100% - VER%E

Xi'an Vanke Enterprises Company Limited ~ Xi'an RMB20,000 Property

development

ERENRHEERAA g AK#100,000 100% 100% - NERE
Guiyang Vanke Real Estate Company Guiyang RMB100,000 Property

Limited development
RREMERERSBRAA & AR#20,000 100% 100% - hER%
Kunming Vanke Property Development Co., Kunming RMB20,000 Property

Ltd. development
HEENEHERRLA SEANE AR%100,000 100% 95% 5% MERE
Xinjiang Vanke Real Estate Company Urumugi RMB100,000 Property

Limited development
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15 RFARHKRE (&) 15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

FREERL A

Proportion of ownership interest

BRTRRAEARE  A8E  ARF  FAH

NAEH ML R S (fr) HukE o] BE FEER
Place of Group's Held
incorporation and Particulars of issued  effective by the Held by a
Name of company operation and paid up capital (‘000) interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
WL EMEHERRAA bl AR#1300000  100% 100% - hRRE
Zhejiang Zhenan Vanke Property Company ~ Wenzhou RMB1,300,000 Property
Limited development
PLAENEHEERAR ll %7£12,000 100% - 100% WERE
Zhongshan Vanke Real Estate Company Zhongshan USD12,000 Property
Limited development
EOMENEHERE AT & AR#20,000 100% 100% - hERZ
Changsha Vanke Real Estate Development ~ Changsha RMB20,000 Property
Company Limited development
EHENFRERRAA ) AR#60,000 100% 100% - DER%
Wuhu Vanke Real Estate Company Limited ~ Wuhu RMB60,000 Property

development

BNEMERERRAA 2 AR#10,000 100% 100% - DER%
Yangzhou Vanke Real Estate Company Yangzhou RMB10,000 Property
Limited development
BHEMEREARAA L) AR100,000 100% 100% - DER%
Zhengzhou Vanke Real Estate Company Zhengzhou RMB100,000 Property
Limited development
RNBMELERRAA M AR100,000 100% 100% - DER%
Xuzhou Vanke Real Estate Company Xuzhou RMB100,000 Property
Limited development
ERENEHERERRAF R AR100,000 100% 100% - DER%
Jinan Vanke Real Estate Development Jinan RMB100,000 Property
company Limited development
BEMENELEERAA BE AR#10,000 100% 100% - DER%
Nanning Vanke Real Estate Company Nanning RMB10,000 Property
Limited development
BHENFRERRAR N AR500,000 100% - 100%  MERE
Changzhou Vanke Real Estate Company ~ Changzhou RMB500,000 Property
Limited development

ZZE—NFERE Annual Report 2016 329



b B e

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Br=BHERIN

AARETTTHIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15

16
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RFRAFANKRE (&)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Fre &Rl
Proportion of ownership interest
BRTREAEARE  ARE  F2F  F4F
NFER AR R B 2 (fr) #HHRE o] BE IEXE
Place of Group's Held
incorporation and Particulars of issued  effective by the Held by a
Name of company operation and paid up capital (‘000) interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
BMEX (85) BRAR REHE/ER 7,500 75% - 75%  WEREARR
Vanke Property (Overseas) Limited The Cayman HK$7,500 Property
Islands/ Investment
Hong Kong holding
Vanke Holdings USA LLC xH ETL29243  100% - 100% REER
Vanke Holdings USA LLC USA USD229,243 Investment
holding

MR20165 &2015F12A31H » # &
1R 54 7K 2= B BB B8 A 1Y B Bl SR 42 AR A

N2
s o
I

No individual non-controlling interest is considered
material to the Group as at 31 December 2016 and

2015.

REEE DT WRER 16 Interest in associates
20164 20154
2016 2015
AR®ET T AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
—REBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 3,462,157 3,386,626
— KLtk — Unlisted 26,315,220 6,040,972
29,777,377 9,427,598

2016F 128318 - REBLEMHER
AR E M T E A ARK3,138,380,000
7T (20154 © A K %2,599,456,000
JT) °

ERERAMEAREH S A RKE
Bl ¥ AN 62 B B 5 AR 0 e R IR dE K B

=27
A2 -

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2016, the market value of the
investment in listed associate in Hong Kong was

RMB3,138,380,000 (2015: RMB2,599,456,000).

Management consider that none of the associates of the

Group will have significant impact to financial position

and performance of the Group individually.
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16 Interest in associates (Continued)

20165 20154
2016 2015
AR T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
BRI TEEBZ A aRN44S  Aggregate carrying amount of
MG mRTAREEE individually immaterial associates
in the consolidated financial
statements 29,777,377 9,427,598
REEDhZFHE QR Aggregate amounts of the Group's
AVEYS AT 6 share of those associates' profit
BN R or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year 1,690,322 1,383,361
REEATINER 17 Interest in joint ventures
ERERARMERAERSE R AHE Management consider that none of the joint ventures
Il 3 AR S B B SRR R R IR E K E of the Group will have significant impact to financial
AT E - position and performance of the Group individually.
2016 2015
2016 2015
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TEEALAAINES  Aggregate carrying amount of
MBsmAR PO REAE individually immaterial joint
ventures in the consolidated
financial statements 31,924,611 24,075,826
$%¢Wﬁ§1£;i%é &\ al Aggregate amounts of the Group's
AR EEW S AZEREE  share of those joint ventures' profit
or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year 3,240,394 1,009,731
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18 HithSmEE 18 Other financial assets
20165 20154F
2016 2015
AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
A HERAEE S Available-for-sale equity securities
—JEET — Unlisted 572,302 158,000
—REELT — Listed in Hong Kong 755,712 980,813
1,328,014 1,138,813
19 HiE R B EE 19 Other non-current assets
2016%F 20154
2016 2015
AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
U B8 K% ) 3 B B TR AN R0E Prepayments for acquisitions and
(KI5E (a)) properties development (note (a)) 5,885,357 587,272
A & A Rl IE Amounts due from joint ventures = 4,127,625
JE Wi Bt 2 N B R IE Amounts due from associates 432,084 386,541
FE BB (MfsE (b)) Prepayments for leasehold land
(note (b)) 9,777,578 3,155,518
ZEER Entrusted loans 960,000 1,385,525
17,055,019 9,642,481
F5E Notes:
(a) ZESHEERITAE T EIR LA (@) The figure mainly included the payments for land
H ) 2 B C0E B T S N B R R development projects for the purpose of acquisition
BEIE o of land and the land consolidation payment for other

properties development.
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19 HitERBEE () 19 Other non-current assets (Continued)
MIeE : (&) Notes: (Continued)
(b) HMIERBEEBRENHEE THIE (b) Movement of prepayment for leasehold land included in
NFIEEB AT : other non-current assets is analysed as follows:
20164 20154F
2016 2015
AR®T T AREETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
AN : Cost:
®1H1H At 1 January 3,313,818 2,994,426
NE Additions 6,974,352 319,392
H & R Disposal and transfer (219,722) =
M®12A31H At 31 December 10,068,448 3,313,818
T ER - Accumulated amortisation:
®1A1H At 1 January 158,300 85,887
FAZMH Charge for the year 143,427 72,413
Ffanicay Written back on disposal and transfer (10,857) =
MW12H31H At 31 December 290,870 158,300
BRMENEE ! Net book value:
®12A31H At 31 December 9,777,578 3,155,518
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19 HibERBEE (8F) 19 Other non-current assets (Continued)
st : (B&) Notes: (Continued)
by HEMIRBEEREMNHEELMTE (b) Movement of prepayment for leasehold land included
RFTEZE S /TR  (48) in other non-current assets is analysed as follows:
(Continued)
TH &+ 0 T8 T RIE AR TR E 5 AT 40 The analysis of net book value of prepayment for
s leasehold land is as follows:
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
R BRZATHEES In the PRC, held on leases of
— A EHE (10 — 504F) — Medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 9,068,396 2,404,681
— RHIfEE (50F A k) — Long-term lease (over 50 years) 45,256 79,996
9,113,652 2,484,677
REBRATHERE In Hong Kong, held on leases of
— REAFEE (50F A L) - Long-term lease (over 50 years) 663,926 670,841
9,777,578 3,155,518
REREHK - ZJ“:\%@%:F%@#% At the end of each reporting period, certain of the
PEECHIRTEFIELER (R Group's other non-current assets were pledged for bank
#25) ° loans (see note 25).
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20 F8 20 Inventories

(a) HEMBERRERANEESRE : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

20164 20154

2016 2015

AR®T ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BERY Properties held for development 136,915,356 103,529,310
EEYE Properties under development 285,060,222 228,606,335
EXTHEER Completed properties for sale 43,712,229 34,825,787
HAt 537,467 545,777
466,225,274 367,507,209

(b) HtAGEERNARE T HEHH (b) Included in the inventories are leasehold land with
40-99FE T - 2R A B A iy lease terms ranging from 40 years to 99 years, which are
E55 o located in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

() BEEMIYHABENEES (c) The analysis of the amount of inventories
BomaOT : recognised as an expense and included in profit

or loss is as follows:

20164 20154

2016 2015

ARET T AR%TT

RMB'000 RMB'000

EEFEREEE Carrying amount of inventories sold 165,675,228 135,152,381
7 EMUR B e Write-down of inventories 838,701 440,220

166,513,929 135,592,601

FERN - BB T A Y ETEE A &35 The write-down of inventories made in this year arose
B3Rz MIERFESEMOR - due to a decrease in the estimated net realisable value

of properties in certain cities.
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20 7K (&)

20 Inventories (Continued)

(c)

BEARIAFABENEFES (c) The analysis of the amount of inventories

BaommT (&)

HEHARNBR—FEKREMNERERY)
X¥NEEMESSE  AEEBAR
#195,5408 & 7T (20156 : AR
137,658B 8 T) - B HMIFETEH
R—ERUE -

RERERR - AEBETEFERZH
17

recognised as an expense and included in profit
or loss is as follows: (Continued)

The amount of properties held for development
and properties under development expected to be
recovered after more than one year is RMB195,540
million (2015: RMB137,658 million). All of the other
inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year.

At the end of each reporting period, certain of the

RITERIEL TR (RHFE25) © Group's inventories were pledged for bank loans (see
note 25).
21 ES R HMERKRKIE 21 Trade and other receivables
201645 20154
2016 2015
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
U BRFX (B sE(a)) Trade debtors (note (a)) 2,128,004 2,563,204
T RBREEAE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (52,747) (52,551)
2,075,257 2,510,653
H iU BRZR (B sE (b)) Other debtors (note (b)) 62,509,770 48,436,057
FEURES 2 N Rl FIE (MisE(c))  Amounts due from associates
(note (c)) 15,978,260 4,850,513
JEU & 2 AR IE (MfsE(c)) Amounts due from joint ventures
(note (c)) 26,946,975 22,199,073
A A (HTEE(d)) Prepayments (note (d)) 50,262,541 39,646,973
FEWEFERIERIE Gross amount due from customers
(B sE(e)) for contract work (note (e)) 1,311,269 811,139
PTEESmIE (FsEd) Derivative financial instruments
(note (f)) 458,671 122,195
159,542,743 118,576,603

336

REKKEARBKILIONEE T
(2015%F : AR¥1,406B&7T) H)
FIEE S kEMERFKIBETERR —F
R e o

BEMPFARNBR2AF] China Vanke Co., Ltd.

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from
receivables of RMB1,701 million (2015: RMB1,406
million), are expected to be recovered within one year.
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(a)

EZREMERRE (&)

R AT

WEIR - AR S REM LK
Zﬁ%%m&ﬂﬁ%%%%)%%v
ERERIRK R B ADHTIT -

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 Trade and other receivables (Continued)
(a) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the date the trade
debtors recognised and net of allowance for doubtful
debits, is as follows:

20164 20154

2016 2015

ARET T AREFIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

1FE R Within 1 year 1,576,924 2,226,662
2= 2% 1 to 2 years 335,093 124,718
2E3F 2 to 3 years 60,590 96,227
BiE3F Over 3 years 102,650 63,046
2,075,257 2,510,653

AEBNEERRINHIFE33)

B 8 BB R E FE W AR SR R AN AR £ [
ERERKAERBGEERINSZEE
MEBAERE -  ERERR/RTEBRE
RBERERIRRILIFEKX - ERNE

% BEEERARERANEEEER
I E A B DR AR AR

WHATHERERE - NEEW &R
uA:/thIET—rﬁEH—HKﬁ oo °

ZECREIEWMBWE T HRE
® - URBENTEEFRRHMARR
ElJTJ\IE °

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 33(a).

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent debtors that have
a good track record or ongoing business relationship
with the Group. Management considers that the
trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
was insignificant. Based on experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

(b) The balance mainly included the deposits paid for the

acquisition of land and advances made to the non-
controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries.
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21
(c)

338

EZRHMEKRIE (K)
HZE2016F12A318 » BB E QAR
AEQNRRBERREEMBAERAE &
HIFEEREREEENRBAARE
8,980F & 7T (20154 : A R#10,8298
BIL) c 2016FERBERAIREER
RIMF B W= AR A ARE326H E T
(2015%F : ARM303E &) ° EHEIK
BENRNAE QAR RIEEEE - 8
BARERKEEIE -

EHREOFEHELIHBENREAR
#23,6068 & T (2015F : AR ¥&
13,302B & T) - BRGEMBKRA
R #5,3308 & 7T (2015 : AR
3,303 & t) MTEN L HEER A
E#54198 &7 (20155 : AR%
4,336B8T) ' REMEEHRAREK
4,792 B&7TT (20154 : &) o

H2016F5A18 8 TBEHE#E
R RERN SR AR ER - &
AREARTNEHEEE I REM
SETR AL - R EEMS%ETEL
A HRETREER - ERIEBHE
RN %HIEIRER R EUEER
A 00 TR IEE R o 1% 85 & BE3%AT
Tt B TB UG (B TR TR 5 L E T8 S B 4K
o

25 NEBRESBRANE®
REERE BREE A E2016
F1I2RNBNEREFERIER
H: A AR ®18728 & 7t (2015
F: AR¥1,372B87T) °

ZETHEEASERLE B M
VHIMNEERENRFEEHREH
(IMEREBAEDH]) NAREE-

MR2016F12A31B R EIH 7 [E Rix
HAEHz2ESLE A ARS8 0238
BT °
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21
(c)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The amounts due from associates and joint ventures as
at 31 December 2016 include an amount of RMB8,980
million (2015: RMB10,829 million) which are interest-
bearing at market rate, unsecured and repayable
on demand. The gross interest income from these
associates and joint ventures amounted to RMB326
million in 2016 (2015: RMB303 million). The remaining
amounts due from associates and joint ventures are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The balance includes prepayments for leasehold land of
RMB23,606 million (2015: RMB13,302 million), prepaid
CIT of RMB5,330 million (2015: RMB3,303 million) and
prepaid LAT of RMB5,419 million (2015: RMB4,336
million) and prepaid value-added tax (“VAT") of
RMB4,792 million (2015: nil).

Since 1 May 2016, the applicable sales tax in respect of
sales of properties has been changed from business tax
to VAT. Projects which met certain criteria in accordance
with the prevailing tax law may adopt a simplified VAT
levy by charging at 5% of the sales amount, with no
input VAT deductible. Other projects will be subject
to output VAT rate of 11% with input VAT deductible.
Prepaid VAT at 3% of the sales amount is paid upon pre-
sale of the properties.

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses to date, included in the
gross amount due from customers for contract work at
31 December 2016, is RMB1,872 million (2015: RMB1,372
million) for the Group.

The amount represented the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap
contracts (“IRS contracts”) entered into by the Group for
hedging purpose.

The notional amount of outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts as at 31 December 2016 was RMB8,023
million.
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MR2016512H31H » & € 51 b
U2 RPEORFERTIRE HHUK
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22

23

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group uses IRS contracts to mitigate the risk of
changes in market interest rates. As at 31 December,
2016, the notional principal of the outstanding IRS
contracts amounted to RMB7,014 million.

The effective portion of gains and losses on forward
contracts and IRS contracts qualifying for hedge
accounting as at 31 December 2016 was recognised
in the other comprehensive income and calculated
separately in equity in hedging reserve.

Other current assets

At 31 December 2016, other current assets mainly
represented investments in wealth management
products with maturity date of less than one year.

Pledged and restricted deposits

In accordance with relevant construction contracts,
certain of the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China
with property development projects are required to
place at designated bank accounts certain amount of
deposits for potential default in payment of construction
costs payables. Such guarantee deposits will be released
after the settlement of the construction costs payables.
As of 31 December 2016, restricted deposits of RMB1.36
billion is in this regard. Bank deposits of RMB6.18 billion
is pledged to secured a bank loan of RMB&6 billion.

HEREESZEEY 24 Cash and cash equivalents
HEREBESEZEYEIE (a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise
20164 20154
2016 2015
AR®T T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
RITERERE Cash at bank and on hand 79,490,015 51,747,621

RBMEBR AEBREBFRMD
([Z#8]) OTRAKEERET
REERITO BB RITEREHRA
R#17 6870 (20155 : AR #0.62
Bx) RARE1 18T (20154 : A
R#0.888187T) °

As of 31 December 2016, bank deposit balances
amounted to RMB1.76 billion (2015: RMB62 million) and
RMB111 million (2015: RMB888 million) were held with
China Resources Bank of Zhuhai, a subsidiary of CRC
and Huishang Bank Corporation, an associate of the
Group, respectively.
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24 LERBAEEEY (&)

(b) BBANEARDEEZTHRE

24 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

EHNRE generated from operation
2016%F 20154
2016 2015
Bt =E ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A1 A1 Profit before taxation 49,468,746 40,516,708
FHEIRE Adjustments for:
17 & MR Write-down of inventories 20(c) 838,701 440,220
R MR OB 1 Provision for doubtful debts
and impairment 5 354,089 55,726
PrEE B G Depreciation and amortisation 6(c) 1,148,632 715,806
HEME - BEX Net loss/(gain) on disposals of
SEER S (hE) property, plant and equipment 4 1,994 )
HEFAA - & A Net loss on disposals of
& /NG SE =R subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates 4 62,730 172,461
HEHHENIRE Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
(M%), BEFE available-for-sale investment 4 (1,897) 64
TR PR IR A Gain on previously held interest
RAEIRFERTFRA in subsidiaries upon
B HE 2 U 2 loss of control 4 - (395,770)
IS Hll B A A A Gain on previously held interest in
BERNEIFAER joint ventures upon
ol gy taking control 4 (137,699) (941,921)
A SN Gain on bargain purchase of
subsidiaries 4 - (495,387)
BhE PR A Finance costs 6(a) 2,310,339 1,778,974
FEWA Interest income (1,484,201) (1,371,188)
KERREWA Dividend income from
investments 4 (6,253) (3,650)
JEhEE S AR REREEE  Share of profits less losses of
associates 16 (1,690,322) (1,383,361)
iR & & ARREREEE  Share of profits less losses of
joint ventures 17 (3,240,394) (1,009,731)
Wt gsia / (Wam) 58 Net exchange loss/(gain) 4 573,170 (38,026)

BEASRY
S
CEYET ee

Changes in working capital:

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other

(53,379,817)

(14,166,328)

receivables (37,186,777) (25,462,382)

B o N EMEMZIEE N Increase in trade and other
payables 103,762,922 30,977,671
REFTBREENE S Cash generated from operations 61,393,963 29,389,884
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25 RITERREBBEE

BEPE R A R B
BEFNEOERNEEER - BEE

K&

(BRBHETI - AARETFITIIR)

(Expressed in thousands in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 Bank loans and borrowings from financial
institutions

This note provides information about the contractual
terms of the Group’s bank loans and borrowings from
financial institutions. For more information about the

AEBNEREBRFER - 280
Bl = Group's exposure to interest rate risk, please refer to
note 33(c).
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARET AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BN EA Current
A Secured
—RTEXR — Bank loans 9,862,982 811,129
— SRR Bk — Borrowings from financial institutions 597,662 =
10,460,644 811,129
4 1 4 Unsecured
— RITEXK - Bank loans 21,277,109 12,849,474
— SR ER — Borrowings from financial institutions 9,143,952 11,987,767
30,421,061 24,837,241
40,881,705 25,648,370
20165 20154
2016 2015
ARET T AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
JERNHR Non-current
HiHE Secured
—RITER — Bank loans 23,153,061 1,682,363
— SRR e — Borrowings from financial institutions 400,000 =
23,553,061 1,682,363
EE 4K Unsecured
—RITER —Bank loans 21,186,000 20,290,222
— SRR fE =k —Borrowings from financial institutions 11,667,000 11,856,000
32,853,000 32,146,222
56,406,061 33,828,585
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25 SRITERR ERMEBER

342

(%)
BERBTERAAEBATETF
R AR S e ot B I

25 Bank loans and borrowings from financial

institutions (Continued)

The secured bank loans are secured over share of
interest in certain subsidiaries of the Group and other
assets as below:

2016% 2015%F

2016 2015

AR® TR ARKETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000

A Inventories 6,511,631 3,821,446
Sa= Investment properties 1,143,080 662,833
HIEmen&E Other non-current assets 780,240 85,907
HREEE Other current assets 930,000 -
EBERZRHIFHR Pledged deposit 6,182,500 -
15,547,451 4,570,186

FTA R 17TE R &E XN FEF X
0.35% % 8%t B (20154 : & 2%
Z8.4%) °

R12H318 + BEE BT B &

All bank loans and borrowings from financial institutions
are interest-bearing at 0.35% to 8% per annum (2015: 2%
to 8.4% per annum).

At 31 December, non-current interest-bearing loans and

ERERARMESFNT borrowings and corporate bonds were repayable as
follows:
20165 20154
2016 2015
AR® T ARBT T
RMB'000 RMB'000
114 {B24F R After 1 year but within 2 years 13,977,931 13,797,591
2518 1B5F R After 2 years but within 5 years 42,127,430 19,568,994
5% 1% After 5 years 300,700 462,000

56,406,061 33,828,585
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26 Bonds payable

20165 20154
2016 2015
AR®T R ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BN A Current
BEF RSB EETHES Bonds issued under Medium Term
(P EE(D)) Note Programme (Note (b))
— AR EEE (i) Renminbi bonds (iii) = 998,122
— ¥ TTES() Singapore Dollar bonds (i) 674,387 -
ARBERIZEAZ (Mi5E(c)  RMB Medium Term Note Programme
(Note () 1,793,794 -
2,468,181 998,122
FEENHR Non-curr